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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K

CURRENT REPORT

PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reportdjvember 17, 2006

Level 3 Communications, Inc.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its @nart

Delaware 47-0210602
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organizatiol Identification No.)
1025 Eldorado Blvd., Broomfield, Colorado 80021
(Address of principal executive office (Zip code)

720-888-1000
(Registrant’s telephone number including area code)

Not applicable
(Former name and former address, if changed sastedport)

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-flis intended to simultaneously satisfy the §liobligation of the registrant under any of
the following provisions (see General Instructior2 Abelow):

O Written communications pursuant to RA2& under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)

O Soliciting material pursuant to Rulead® under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)

O Pre-commencement communications putdodRule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CBR.24d-2(b))
O

Pre-commencement communications putdodRule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CER 23e-4(c))




ITEM 8.01. OTHER EVENTS.

Level 3 Communications, Inc. (the “Company”) isnfg this Current Report on Formi8to update the historical financial statementduded
in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscabyeended December 31, 2005, and its Quarterly ReparForm 103 for the periods ende
March 31, 2006 and June 30, 2006 for presentafiiis software reseller business as discontinuedatfpns.

As reported in the Company’s Quarterly Report om¥@0-Q for the quarterly period ended SeptembefB06, the Company sold its
business software reseller business to Insightrfnses, Inc. in September 2006. The exiting of thisiness meets the requirements under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, Aéounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lonigdd Asset$'SFAS No. 144") for
classification as discontinued operations. As alte the September 30, 2006 Form 10-Q the soBwaseller business was presented as
discontinued operations in the consolidated balaheets, consolidated statements of operations@msblidated statements of cash flows as
of and for the three and nine months ended SepteBih&006, and all prior periods in the FormQQvere revised to reflect that presental

Under requirements of the Securities and Excharagarfiission (“SEC”), all previously issued financihtements included in the Compasy’
Form 10-K and Form 10-Qs are required to be reifiadso present the disposed business as disamdioperations if those financial
statements are to be incorporated by referenaéinigd with the SEC made under the Securities A&983, as amended, even though those
financial statements relate to periods prior todisposed business being classified as discontinpethations.

Accordingly, the Company’s revised audited consibd financial statements for the fiscal years drdecember 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
the related Selected Financial Data and ManagemBigtussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operations (MD&A),
reflecting this classification are filed as Exhi®.1 to this Current Report on Form 8-K. In adudifithe Company has filed revised unaudited
financial statements, MD&A and Computations of Batf Earnings to Fixed Charges for the periodsmmddarch 31, 2006 and June 30,
2006 as Exhibit 99.2 and 99.3, respectively, te @urrent Report on Form 8-K.

This reclassification has no effect on the Compsamgported net loss for any reporting period arglifmmaterial effect on the Company’s
results of operations or financial condition. Theised sections of the Form 10-K and the Forn@QsUncluded in this Current Report have
otherwise been updated for events occurring diedate of the consolidated financial statementss report should be read in conjunction
with the Form 10-K and Form 10-Qs as originallydil

Iltem 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(@) Financial Statements of Business Acquired
None

(b) Pro Forma Financial Information
None

(c) Shell Company Transactions
None

(d) Exhibits




23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourkinm

99.1 Revised Selected Financial Data, Management’'s Bson and Analysis of Financial Condition and Rissof Operations and revised
Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscatryended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (P&#rils 6, 7 and 8 of the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005d filéth the SEC on March 2, 200t

99.2 Revised Consolidated Financial Statements, Managesrn2iscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditenmd Results of Operations
and Computations of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed @karof the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 1f@:Qhe period ended March
31, 2006, filed with the SEC on May 10, 20

99.3 Revised Consolidated Financial Statements, Managesreiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditarmd Results of Operations
and Computations of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed @harof the Company’s Quarterly Report on FornmQLfer the period ended June
2006, filed with the SEC on August 9, 20!




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

Level 3 Communications, In
By: /s/ Eric J Mortense

Eric J. Mortenser
Senior Vice President and Control

November 17, 200




Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Level 3 Communications, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrdggstration statements (Nos. 333-53914, 333-9,18383-68887, 333-71713, 333-115062,
333-123703, 333-125030, 333-125262, and 333-13001Gorms S-3 and the registration statements (BB%-.79533, 333-42465, 333-
68447, 333-58691, 333-52697, 333-115472, and 35341) on Forms S-8 of Level 3 Communications, &rd subsidiaries of our report
dated March 1, 2006, except as to the effectssmioditinued operations discussed in note 23 whiel if November 17, 2006, with respec
the consolidated balance sheets of Level 3 Commtiaits, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 305 2@d 2004, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, cash flolanges in stockholders’ equity (deficit) and coefy@nsive loss for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2005, whpbrr@ppears herein.

Our report refers to a change in the method of aiiog for asset retirement obligations on Jandai3003, upon adoption of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 14&8counting for Asset Retirement Obligations
KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
November 17, 200




Exhibit 99.1
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The Selected Financial Data of Level 3 Communicegjonc. and its subsidiaries appears below.

Fiscal Year Ended(1)
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(dollars in millions, except per share amounts

Results of Operation:

Revenue $ 1,71¢ $ 1,77¢ $ 2,027 $ 1,21t $ 1,41C
Loss from continuing operations( (707) (478) (695) (872) (4,35])
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 69 20 (21) 14 (627)
Net loss(3] (638) (458) (711) (858) (4,97¢)
Per Common Shar
Loss from continuing operations( (1.02) (0.70) (1.23 (2.19) (11.649)
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 0.10 0.03 (0.09) 0.03 (1.68)
Net loss(3] (0.92) (0.67) (1.26) (2.11) (13.32)
Dividends(4) — — — — —
Financial Position
Total asset 8,277 7,544 8,30z 8,972 9,32F
Current portion of lon-term debt(5’ — 143 124 3 5
Long-term debt, less current portion| 6,028 5,067 5,24¢ 6,10z 6,20¢
Stockholder’ equity (deficit)(6) (476) (157) 181 (240) (65)
Q) The operating results of Software Spectrum, Indctwlvas acquired in 2002 and sold in September 200&tructure, LLC, which

was sold in 2005, the Midwest Fiber Optic Netwousiness acquired from Genuity, Inc. in 2003 and §oR003, the Company’s
Asian communications operations, which the Compagrged to sell in 2001, as well as Software Spetsontact service busine
obtained in the Software Spectrum acquisition i628nd sold in 2003 are included in discontinuegrations for all periods
presented for which Level 3 owned each business.

The Company purchased substantially all of thetass®al operations of Genuity, Inc. in February 2008 Company also purchas
Telverse Communications, Inc. in July 2003.

The Company acquired the managed modem busineskeS and Sprint on April 1, 2004 and October 1020respectively.

The Company purchased WilTel Communications Graug; (“WilTel”) on December 23, 2005, and recordgipeoximately
$38 million of revenue attributable to this busses2005.

(2) In 2001, Level 3 recorded a $3.2 billion impairmeharge to reflect the reduction in the carryingant of certain of its
communications assets in accordance with SFAS B "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal ofrigsLived Assets”Also in
2001, Level 3 recognized a gain of $1.1 billioraagsult of the early extinguishment of long-terabd

In 2002, the Company recognized approximately $#lbom of termination and settlement revenue, $idllion of impairment and
restructuring charges, a gain of approximately $i@lion from the sale of Commonwealth TelephoneeEprises, Inc. common
stock, $88 million of induced conversion expend&#atable to the exchange of the Company’s catiitMerdebt securities,

$120 million of federal tax benefits due to legigla enacted in 2002 and a gain of $255 milliomaesult of the early
extinguishment of long-term debt.

In 2003, the Company recognized approximately $8#don of termination and settlement revenue, $4ilion of impairment and
restructuring charges, a gain of approximately 8ifllon from the sale of “91 Express Lanes” tolaassets, $200 million of
induced conversion expenses attributable to theange of the Company’s convertible debt securitiad,recognized a gain of
$41 million as a result of the early extinguishmehlong-term debt.

In 2004, The Company recognized a gain of $197onilas a result of the early extinguishments ofatedong-term debt and
$113 million of termination revenue.




(3)

(4)

()

(6)

In 2005, the Company recognized $133 million ofrieation revenue and approximately $23 millionrapairment and restructuri
charges.

In 2001, the Company agreed to sell its Asian tat@ounications business to Reach Ltd. and recordéchpairment charge of
$516 million related to its discontinued Asian agi@ms. Losses attributable to the Asian operatwaie $89 million for fiscal 2001.

In 2005, the Company sold §Structure, LLC and recognized a gain on the sb#18 million. For fiscal years 2005 and 2004, (
Structure revenues approximated costs. Lossebudtlile to the operations of Structure for fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001e
$17 million, $6 million and $22 million, respectlye

In September 2006, Level 3 sold Software Specttom,and recognized a gain on the sale of $33anilliThe income (loss) from
the operations of Software Spectrum including thetact services business sold in 2003 were $2@mjl$20 million, $(16) million
and $20 million for the fiscal years 2005, 200402@nd 2002, respectively.

The Company’s current dividend policy, in effectcg April 1998, is to retain future earnings foe urs the Company’s business. As
a result, management does not anticipate payingasty dividends on shares of common stock in tresézable future. In addition,
the Company is effectively restricted under cert@imenants from paying cash dividends on sharés obmmon stock.

In 2001, the Company negotiated an increase itotiaéamount available under its senior secureditfacility to $1.775 billion an
borrowed $650 million under the facility. Also i@@1, a subsidiary of the Company and Level 3 rdpased, using cash and
common stock, approximately $1.9 billion face antafrthe Company’s long-term debt and recognizedia of approximately
$1.1 billion as a result of the early extinguishineidebt.

In 2002, the Company received net proceeds of $4i®n from the issuance of $500 million of 9% JonConvertible
Subordinated Notes due 2012. Also in 2002, the Gampepurchased, using cash and common stock,dpately $705 million
face amount of its long-term debt and recognizgdia of approximately $255 million as a resulttoé early extinguishment of debt.

In 2003, the Company received net proceeds of $@#i®n from the issuance of $374 million of 2.878%nvertible Senior Notes
due 2010 and the issuance of $500 million of 10.Bs#ior Notes due 2011. The Company completed etebange whereby the
Company issued $295 million (face amount) of 9% \@wotible Senior Discount Notes due 2013 and comstock in exchange for
$352 million (book value) of long-term debt. In &itwh, Level 3 using cash on hand, restricted aashthe proceeds from the
issuance of the 10.75% Senior Notes due 2011,depdill, the $1.125 billion purchase money indebitess outstanding under the
Senior Secured Credit Facility. Also in 2003, ther@any repurchased, using common stock, approxiyndie007 billion face
amount of its long-term debt and recognized a ghapproximately $41 million as a result of thelga&ixtinguishment of debt.

In 2004, the Company received net proceeds of $38ibn from the issuance of a $730 million Sen8®cured Term Loan due 20
and the issuance of $345 million of 5.25% Senionyeotible Notes due 2011. The Company used thenoeeeds to repay portions
of its 9.125% Senior Notes due 2008, 11% Senioesldue 2008, 10.5% Senior Discount Notes due 2008.6.75% Senior Euro
Notes due 2008. The Company repurchased portiotieafutstanding notes at prices ranging from 88que to 89 percent of the
repurchased principal balances. The net gain oedflg extinguishment of the debt, including traoige costs, realized foreign
currency losses and unamortized debt issuance, egatst50 million for these transactions. Also @92, the Company paid
approximately $54 million and assumed obligatianextinguish a capital lease obligation and recogphia gain of $147 million on
the transaction.

In 2005, the Company received net proceeds of $@llion from the issuance of $880 million of 10% Bertible Senior Notes due
2011. Also in 2005, a wholly-owned subsidiary af thompany received net proceeds of $66 million ftbencompletion of a
refinancing of the mortgage of its corporate headligus. The subsidiary entered into a new mortd@aye of $70 million at an initial
fixed rate of 6.86% through 2010.

In 2001, the Company issued approximately 16 nmlBbares of common stock, valued at approximaté®yrillion, in exchange
for long-term-debt.




In 2002, the Company issued approximately 47 nmilBbares of common stock, valued at approxima#@bg$nillion, in exchange
for long-term debt. Included in the value of comnstock issued, are induced conversion premium88frillion for convertible
debt securities.

In 2003, the Company issued approximately 216 omilhares of common stock, valued at approxim&@hB million, in exchange
for long-term debt. Included in the value of comnsbock issued, are induced conversion premium£00 $nillion for convertible
debt securities.

In 2004, the Company realized $95 million of foremurrency losses on the repurchase of its Eurorderated debt. The unrealized
foreign currency losses had been recorded in @berprehensive Income within Stockholders’ Equitgfibit).

In 2005, the Company issued 115 million sharesoafrmon stock, valued at approximately $313 millias the stock portion of the
purchase price paid to acquire WilTel.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This document contains forward looking statementbiaformation that are based on the beliefs ofagament as well as
assumptions made by and information currently abédl to Level 3 Communications, Inc. and its subsiels (“Level 3" or the “Company”).
When used in this document, the words “anticipdteglieve”, “plan”, “estimate” and “expect” and silar expressions, as they relate to the
Company or its management, are intended to idefaifyard-looking statements. Such statements refleccurrent views of the Company
with respect to future events and are subject t@micerisks, uncertainties and assumptions. Shook&lor more of these risks or uncertainties

materialize, or should underlying assumptions piiagerrect, actual results may vary materially frtose described in this document.

Level 3 Communications, Inc., through its operasngsidiaries, is primarily engaged in the commaitidns business with additior
operations in coal mining. The Company is a faesitbased provider of a broad range of integradeanecunications services categorized as
Core Communications Services, Other CommunicatBersices and SBC Master Services Agreement. Reiengemmunications services
is recognized on a monthly basis as these seraigegrovided. For contracts involving private lingvelengths and dark fiber services, Le¢
3 may receive up-front payments for services tddlavered for a period of up to 20 years. In theitgations, Level 3 will defer the revenue
and amortize it on a straight-line basis to earmioger the term of the contract. At December 3D5280r contracts where up-front payments
were received for services to be delivered in therg, the Company’s weighted average remainingrachperiod was approximately
14 years.

Communication Services

The Company separates its communication servitestiree separate groups: 1) Core Communicationsces, 2) Other
Communications Services, and 3) SBC Master SernAgesement. Each group is in a different phaséefservice life cycle, requiring
different levels of investment and focus and pringddifferent contributions to the Company’s AdptOIBDA (as defined below).
Management of Level 3 believes that growth in renefiom its Core Communications Services is ciiiticahe long-term success of its
communications business. At the same time, the @ompelieves it must continue to manage effectitteéypositive cash flows from its SE
Master Services Agreement and its Other CommuwicstServices including the Company’s mature managetem business and its related
reciprocal compensation. The Core Communicatiomgi&es group includes transport and infrastructlPeand data services, voice and W
video services. The Other Communications Servicesmincludes managed modem and related recipoocapensation, DSL aggregation
services and the legacy managed IP service busifieesSBC Master Services Agreement product gralpnelude all the revenues related
to this contract, which was obtained in the Decen23¢ 2005 acquisition of WilTel.

The Company’s transport and infrastructure serviigelside colocation services, wavelength, private,ldark fiber and transoceanic
services. Growth in transport and infrastructureneie is largely dependent on increased demartthftdwidth services and available capital
of companies requiring communications capacitytfieir own use or in providing capacity as a serpiavider to their customers. These
expenditures may be in the form of up-front payreemtmonthly payments for private line, wavelengthiark fiber services. An increase in
demand may be partially offset by declines in pniting.

IP and data services primarily include the Compatmgh speed Internet access service and IP-VRAEcssr Level 3's high speed

Internet access service is a high quality and Bjgged Internet access service offered in a vaofatgpacities. The Company’s IP-VPN
services permit businesses of any size to repladepte networks with a single, cost-effective daa that
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greatly simplifies the converged transmission dEgpvideo, and data. This convergence to a sipigiform can be obtained without
sacrificing the quality of service or security lévef traditional ATM and Frame Relay offerings-WPN services also permit customers to
prioritize network application traffic so that highiority applications, such as voice and videe, mot compromised in performance by the
flow of low priority applications such as email.

The conversion from narrow band dial-up servicesigher speed broadband services is expected teaise demand for the
Company’s IP and data services. Revenue growthisrarea is dependent on the continued increassaige by both enterprises and
consumers and the pricing environment. An incréaslee reliability and security of information tremitted over the Internet and declines in
the cost to transmit data have resulted in incibagiization of e-commerce or web based servigebusinesses. The Company, however,
continues to experience lower revenue growth dysrite compression for its IP and data servicess€&hleclines were partially offset by an
approximate 90% increase in IP and Data traffic2fa®5. Current high levels of available capacitgl #re numerous companies competing in
this market have resulted in a very competitiveipg environment.

The Company experienced price compression in tBe 2545% range for transport and IP services imd208vel 3 believes that
industry-wide, excess network inventory has begnificantly reduced and pricing pressures are begqmto moderate as evidenced by the
Company'’s improved pricing and increased traffitumee. For its IP services, the Company’s average grer megabyte declined
approximately 30% in 2005. In addition to pricingegsures, the decline in the Company’s average pec megabyte is attributable to higher
traffic from larger customers and customers movibigher speed services with a lower price perabgte. The larger customers have a
lower price per megabyte due to higher volume camiets.

The Company also continued to see pricing presau2805 for those transport and infrastructure mugrs that require simple, low
quality, point-to-point services, as competitorgragsively pursued this business. However, Levml@ves that competitors are less willing
to discount these services if it requires investnemcremental capacity to meet the customergiements. For those customers that
provide high quality content or require a combioatof transport, IP and voices solutions on a mreglior national platform, Level 3 is seeing
some indications that price compression is stattinpoderate and, in many cases, prices are gddimcrease as confirmed by research
performed by industry analysts. Independent ingusgiports indicate that wholesale pricing of loraythwavelength and private line services
have been stable in North America over the laghdBths and, in some cases, have started to rige. a&gael 3 intends to remain disciplined
in its approach to pricing for its transport andsH?vices.

The emergence of a number of companies from batdyygrotection and additional competition from atlestressed carriers
continues to contribute to the difficult and conitfpet operating environment. The Company does mpeet this environment to change
significantly until the industry consolidates fugthrand/or demand accelerates.

The Company has developed new voice servicesithatldition to its existing voice services, tarlggge and existing markets. The
Company believes that the efficiencies of Leval [P and optical based network, including its Swattsh technology, will provide customer:
lower cost alternative than the existing circuittsived networks. The Company is moving quickly éwelop both its capability to market and
sell in the voice market and develop the intergatems and processes necessary to support theeneiges being launched. The revenue
potential for voice services is large; however,rinenues and margins are expected to continuedind over time as a result of the new low
cost IP and optical based technologies. In additiveymarket for voice services is being targetechny competitors, several of which are
larger and have more financial resources than timagany.

Vyvx provides audio and video programming for itstomers over the Company’s fiber-optic network giadsatellite. It uses the
Company’s fiber-optic network to carry many livaditional broadcast and cable television evenis fifte site of the event to the network
control centers of the broadcasters of the evantli¥e events where the location is not knowndwance, such as breaking news stories in
remote locations, Vyvx provides an integrated $itgednd fiber-optic network based service to traitghe content to its customers. Most of
Vyvx’'s customers for these services contract ferdarvice on an event-by-event basis; however, ascsome customers who have
purchased a dedicated point-to-point service whitdibles these customers to transmit programmiagyatime.

Vyvx also distributes advertising spots to radid élevision stations throughout the U.S., botlctetmically and in physical form.
Customers for these services can utilize a netwaded method for aggregating, managing, storingdastdbuting content for content own
and rights holders.

The Company’s Other Communications services ar@maatroducts or services that are not areas of asipfor the Company. As

noted above, Other Communications services inaiaeaged modem, DSL aggregation services, relatgofoeal compensation and legacy
managed IP services.
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The Company and its customers continue to see omrsumigrate from narrow band dial-up servicesigbér speed broadband
services as the narrow band market matures. Téisl fis expected to result in declines in managediemorevenue in the future. The
Company recognized $396 million, $488 million arg2% million of managed modem and managed modertecetavenue for 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively. These declines may be atéihin the mid to longer term by growth in IP-lthservices offered by the Company that
address the market shift to higher speed broadbamices. Level 3 believes that the low cost stmgcof its network will enable it to
aggressively compete for new business in the IRdazarket.

Level 3 receives compensation from other carridrsmit terminates traffic originating on those &g’ networks. This reciprocal
compensation is based on interconnection agreemétfitshe respective carriers or rates mandateth®y=CC. The Company earns the
majority of its reciprocal compensation revenuerfrproviding managed modem services.

The exclusivity provisions in the contract with tGempany’s primary DSL aggregation customer expatetthe end of the first
quarter of 2005. The customer completed the migmatf its existing DSL aggregation subscriberggmivn network during the third quarter
of 2005. Contracts with the Company’s remaining CAfglgregation customers expired in the fourth quaft@005. The Company recognized
DSL aggregation revenue of $79 million, $138 miiland $99 million for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respetfi The Company does not expect
to recognize DSL aggregation revenue in the forsleduture.

Legacy managed IP services primarily include loeegpservices which utilize ATM technology, as vesllVPN and managed
security services. The Company’s legacy Interneéss business consists primarily of a businessathatacquired in the Genuity transaction
in 2003. The Company has elected not to pursudiaddi customers and limit the capital investedthis component of its business.

The SBC Master Services Agreement was an agredmémeen SBC Services Inc. and WilTel and was aeduir the WilTel
transaction in December 2005. Recently, SBC Sesvite became a subsidiary of AT&T Inc., (togett&BC”). WilTel and SBC amended
their agreement in June 2005 to run through 20@9itgorovides a gross margin purchase commitmef886 million from December 2005
through the end of 2007, and $75 million from Jap2908 through the end of 2009. Only purchasemefiet services count toward
satisfaction of this purchase commitment. Origimgitind terminating access charges paid to localgphompanies are passed through to
in accordance with a formula that approximates.dadtlitionally, the SBC Master Services Agreemenavides for the payment of
$50 million from SBC if certain performance critedre met by Level 3. If Level 3 meets the perfarceacriteria, it is eligible to earn
$25 million in 2006 and $25 million in 2007.

Level 3's management continues to review the Cormyigaxisting lines of business and service offesitg determine how those
lines of business and service offerings assist thithCompany’s focus on delivery of communicatiand information services and meeting
its financial objectives. To the extent that cert@es of business or service offerings are nositered to be compatible with the delivery of
communications and information services or withaating financial objectives, Level 3 may exit thdises of business or stop offering those
services.

Management focuses on Adjusted OIBDA, cash flowmfoperating activities and capital expenditureasteess the operating
performance of the communications business. Managthelieves that Adjusted OIBDA, when viewed aveie, reflects the operating tre
and performance of its communications businessugtdfl OIBDA, or similar measures, also is an inicaf performance used by Level 3's
competitors and is used by management in evaluegiatjve performance.

Management of Level 3 believes the introduction@iv services or technologies, as well as the fudbgelopment of existing
technologies, may reduce the cost or increaseumg!\s of certain services similar to those provithgd_evel 3. The ability of the Company
anticipate, adapt and invest in these technologygés in a timely manner may affect the future assof the Company.

The Company completed the initial planned deploytnoéthe next generation of optical transport tembgy in its North American
and European networks in the fourth quarter of 28 early in the first quarter of 2006, respedyivEhe Company has decided to deploy
the technology for additional routes in North Ancarand Europe and expects to complete the depldgmarthese routes in the first quarter
of 2006. The Company began an upgrade of its IRHzae technology in the third quarter of 2005. LU&/believes that this deployment of
new equipment to the existing network equipment alibw the Company to optimize the amount of tiaif carries over the network and
lower the cost of providing services.

In order to expand its service offerings in Eurahe, Company expects to invest $20 million for &kd#er based expansion in nine
European markets. The dark fiber is expected tacepor supplement existing wavelength capacity.
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The communications industry continues to consadidaével 3 has participated in this process withabquisition of WilTel and the
proposed Progress Telecom transaction describewbkével 3 will continue to evaluate consolidatimpportunities and could make
additional acquisitions in 2006.

The successful integration of WilTel into Levels3iinportant to the success of Level 3. The Companst quickly identify
synergies, integrate the networks and support @gaons while maintaining the service quality llsvexpected by existing customers.

The Company is focusing its attention on 1) growiegenue through Core Communications servicesp@firruing to show
improvements in Adjusted OIBDA as a percentageewénue, 3) completing the integration of WilTel godentially Progress Telecom, and
4) managing cash flows provided by its Other Comigations services. The anticipated change in timeposition of the Company’s revenue
will require the Company to manage operating expemsarefully and concentrate its capital expeneitan those technologies and assets tha
will enable the Company to develop its Core Comroaitidns services further and replace the declimevenue and earnings from Other
Communications services.

In addition to the operational metrics mentionedva) the Company is also focusing on improvingdidggsidity, financial condition,
and extending the maturity dates of certain oflébt and lowering the effective interest rate sroittstanding debt over the long term. In
April 2005, Level 3 completed the offering of $8&@lion of 10% Convertible Senior Notes due 2011ntitutional investors and, in
September 2005, its subsidiary HQ Realty, Inc. deteg a mortgage refinancing of $70 million for thevel 3 corporate headquarters in
Colorado. Level 3 intends to use the net procers these offerings for general corporate purpdsekjding possible acquisitions, working
capital, capital expenditures, debt refinancing deldt repurchases.

In January 2006, the Company completed the exchaihggveral tranches of its debt maturing in 2088af new tranche of debt
maturing in 2010. The Company was able to exteadrthturity date of approximately $692 million obtlelue in 2008 to March 2010. The
Company will continue to look for opportunitiesitoprove its financial position in 2006 and focusriésources on growing revenue and
managing costs for the communications business.

Information Services

On November 30, 2005, the Company sold its whollyrved subsidiary, i()Structure, LLC, which provided computer outsougcin
services primarily to small and medium-sized busses. The Company also completed the disposifitda @maining subsidiary in the
information services business, Software Spectram,dn September 7, 2006. The results of opermton financial position fori()Structure
and Software Spectrum are reflected as discontinpedations for all periods presented in this repor

Coal Mining
Level 3, through its two 50% owned joint ventureface mines in Montana and Wyoming, sells coal prity through long-term
contracts with public utilities. The long-term coattts for the delivery of coal establish the prigdume, and quality requirements of the coal

to be delivered. Revenue under these and otheram®iis recognized when coal is shipped to theoousr.

The following discussion and analysis of financiahdition and results of operations should be rgadonjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanyotgs contained in this report.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company has identified the policies below #gcat to its business operations and the undedstanof its results of operations.
The effect of any associated risks related to tipetieies on the Company’s business operationssimudsed throughout this Management’'s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebsults of Operations where these policies affec@ompany’s reported and expected
financial results.
Revenut

Revenue for communications services, including &omrivate line, wavelengths, colocation, Intereatess, managed modem, data

services, video and dark fiber revenue is recoghimenthly as the services are provided. Commumioatservices are provided either on a
usage basis, which can vary period to period, ca oantractually committed amount.
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Reciprocal compensation revenue is recognizedwhBn an interconnection agreement is in place antbther carrier, or at rates mandated
by the FCC. Periodically, the Company will recepayment for reciprocal compensation services irrgexof FCC rates and before an
agreement is in place. These amounts are includethéer current liabilities on the consolidateddnale sheet until a final agreement has been
reached and the necessary regulatory approvalstiemrereceived. These amounts were insignificatiteadCompany in 2005 and 2004.

Revenue attributable to leases of dark fiber purst@mindefeasible rights-of-use agreements (“IRUkat qualify for salesype leas:
accounting, and were entered into prior to Junel909, was recognized at the time of delivery atmbptance of the fiber by the customer.
Certain sale and long-term IRU agreements of dase fand capacity entered into after June 30, 18@9required to be accounted for in the
same manner as sales of real estate with propepsovements or integral equipment. This accourttiegtment results in the deferral of the
cash that has been received and the recogniticevehue ratably over the term of the agreementdntly up to 20 years).

Termination revenue is recognized when a custornsepdnects service prior to the end of the conaciod, for which Level 3 had
previously received consideration and for whicheraye recognition was deferred. Termination revésagso recognized when customers
make termination penalty payments to Level 3 tdesebntractually committed purchase amounts thatctistomer no longer expects to meet
or when a customer and Level 3 renegotiate a cotntrader which Level 3 is no longer obligated toypde product or services for
consideration previously received and for whicheraye recognition has been deferred. Terminatioeme® is reported in the same manner as
the original product or service provided.

Accounting practice and guidance with respect godbcounting treatment of revenue continues tovevéiny changes in the
accounting treatment could affect the manner irctvithe Company accounts for revenue within its comications and coal businesses.

Nor-Cash Compensation

The Company applies the expense recognition panasof SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Basedrpensation” (“SFAS
No. 12%). Prior to the issuance of SFAS No. 123R “Shaes&] Payments” (“SFAS No, 123R"), most companidsdi follow the expense
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123; ratherytdésclose the information only on a pro forma basis a result, these pro-forma
disclosures must be considered when comparing ¢inep@ny’s results of operations to those reportedtbgr companies. Under SFAS
No. 123, the fair value of an option or other s-based compensation (as computed in accordanceaegépted option valuation models) on
the date of grant is amortized over the vestingogesrof the options in accordance with Financiat@mting Standards Board Interpretation
No. 28“Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Othériable Stock Option or Award Plans.” Althougte trecognition of the value of
the instruments results in compensation or professiexpenses in an entity’s financial statemehtsgxpense differs from other
compensation and professional expenses in that ttfesges, though generally permitted to be settledsh, are typically settled through the
issuance of common stock, which would have a diuéffect upon earnings per share, if and when sptibns are exercised.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uiard issued SFAS No. 123R which requires conagatoi recognize the fair
value of stock based compensation in the statenfeygerations for reporting periods beginning i9&0

Long-Lived Assets

Property, plant and equipment is stated at codtjaed by provisions to recognize economic impaitmermalue when management
determines that events have occurred that reqniemalysis of potential impairment. Costs assodidteectly with network expansions and
the development of business support systems, ghneenployee-related costs are capitalized. The gamy capitalized $51 million,
$66 million and $61 million of cost, primarily delabor and related employee benefits, in 200842ihd 2003, respectively. Intercity
network segments, gateway facilities, local netwahkd operating equipment that have been placeghiice are being depreciated over their
estimated useful lives, primarily ranging from 2yars. The total cost of a business support syist@mortized over a useful life of three
years. The useful lives of the Comp’s assets are estimates and actual in-serviceqsefio specific assets could differ significantigrh
these estimates. Due to changes in technologyhendampetitive environment, these estimates regusignificant amount of judgment.

The Company at least annually, or as events ounrtistances change that could affect the recovesabflihe carrying value of its
communications and information services assetgjwts a comprehensive review of the carrying valuies assets to determine if the
carrying amount of the assets are recoverabledardance with SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Irinpeent or Disposal of Long-lived
Assets.” This review requires the identificationtloé lowest level of identifiable cash flows forrpases of grouping assets subject to review.
The estimate of undiscounted cash flows includeg-term forecasts of
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revenue growth, gross margins and capital experaditiAll of these items require significant judgrmand assumptions. An impairment loss
exists when estimated undiscounted cash flowdattble to the assets are less than their cargyimgunt. If an asset is deemed to be
impaired, the amount of the impairment loss recogghirepresents the excess of the asset’s carrging as compared to its estimated fair
value, based on management’s assumptions and foofec

The Company assessed its communications long-&gsdts for impairment at December 31, 2005, aratrdeted that an
impairment charge was not required. The commuminatnetwork includes electronics, optronics, filmeutiple conduits and colocation
facilities. Level 3 separately evaluates colocafawilities, certain empty conduit and the netwasiset. The impairment analysis is based on &
long-term cash flow forecast to assess the recawieitye communications assets over their estimasedul lives.

Level 3 also assesses the carrying value of gobdwihin annual basis in accordance to SFAS No:'®&®ddwill and Other
Intangible Assets.The carrying value of each reporting unit, incligdgoodwill assigned to that reporting unit, is camgal to its fair value. |
the fair value of the reporting unit does not exctie carrying value of the reporting unit, inclugligoodwill, an analysis is performed to
determine if an impairment charge should be reabriiie Company did not record charges for the impat of long-lived assets or
goodwill in 2005, 2004 or 2003.

Management’s estimate of the future cash flowsbattable to its long-lived assets and the fair geadfiits businesses involve
significant uncertainty. Those estimates are basetianagement’s assumptions of future results, tirévnds and industry conditions.
Management will continue to assess the Compangstador impairment as events occur or as industnglitions warrant.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities and disclosui@afingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported ansoofitevenues and expenses during the reportingdoérhe most critical estimates and
assumptions are made in determining the allowancddubtful accounts, revenue reserves, whetheaimmgnt charges are necessary, useful
lives of fixed assets, accruals for estimated taklagal liabilities that are probable and estihiacost of revenue disputes for
communications, unfavorable contracts recognizqulilthase accounting, and asset retirement oldigatiActual results could differ from
those estimates and assumptions.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncem

Recently issued accounting pronouncements areideddn Note 1 to the consolidated financial stagta. The following are the
recently issued pronouncements that the Comparsmvasl are applicable to its business.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123Raf&Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS No.R 28quires that
compensation cost relating to share-based paymargections be recognized in the financial statésresmsed on the fair value of equity or
liability instruments issued. The U.S. Securitiad &#xchange Commission extended the effective @fa®-AS No. 123R such that the
Company is first required to adopt SFAS No. 123Rit@ng January 1, 2006. The adoption of SFAS N@RLon January 1, 2006 is not
expected to have a significant effect on the Comisdimancial position or results of operationstias Company adopted the expense
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accountifog Stock-Based Compensation” in 1998.

After adopting SFAS No. 123R, the Company expextontinue utilizing a modified Black-Scholes mottel/alue any outperform
stock options granted to employees. The ComparigJves that the relative short life of the options éhe other variables used in the model
provide a reasonable estimate of the fair valuta@fption at the time of grant.

The FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Non-®ary Assets”, which is effective for Level 3 sitagtJanuary 1, 2006.
Under SFAS No. 153, the Company will measure asseatisanged at fair value, as long as the trangabtis commercial substance and the
fair value of the assets exchanged is determinaitten reasonable limits. A non-monetary exchangse tommercial substance if the future
cash flows of the entity are expected to changeifsigntly as a result of the exchange. The adoptioSFAS No. 153 is not anticipated to
have a material effect on the Company’s financisifion or results of operations as Level 3 is @yp@ a limited number of non-monetary
transactions and those transactions have not bagariai.

Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 04A&counting for Stripping Costs Incurred duringoBuction in the Mining
Industry” (“EITF No. 04-6") establishes appropriagcounting for stripping costs incurred during pineduction
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phase and is effective for fiscal years beginniitgr@ecember 15, 2005, with early adoption perxitEITF No. 04-6 concludes that
stripping costs incurred during the production ghasa mine are variable production costs that khbe included in the costs of the invent
produced during the period that the stripping castsincurred. EITF No. 04-6 further defines inptproduced as mineral that has been
extracted. As a result, stripping costs relateeiqmosed, but not extracted mineral will be expersseithcurred rather than deferred until the
mineral is extracted. The Company’s coal miningifiess currently defers stripping costs and amatikese costs over the period in which
the underlying coal is mined. The Company expédwsatdoption of EITF No. 04-6 beginning JanuarydQ&will not have a significant effect
on the Company'’s financial position or results pémtions.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretatitm 47 “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retiremétiligations,” (“FIN
47"). FIN 47 provides additional clarification aswhen companies should recognize asset retirealdigations pursuant to SFAS No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” TBempany’s adoption of FIN 47 effective on DecemBikr2005 did not have a material
effect on the Compang’results of operations or financial position agdle recognized the discounted value of its coouétl asset retireme
obligations when it adopted SFAS No. 143 at tharbegg of 2003.

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement No. 154 cthmting Changes and Error Corrections—a replacenfedPB Opinion
No. 20 and FASB Statement N¢’, (“SFAS No. 154").This Statement requires retroactive applicatioprior period financial statements ¢
voluntary change in accounting principle unless impracticable and is effective for fiscal yebegjinning after December 15, 2005.
Previously, most voluntary changes in accountingaiple were recognized by including the cumulatffect of changing to the new
accounting principle in net income of the periodta change. The adoption of SFAS No. 154 is npeeted to have a significant effect on
the Company’s financial position or results of @iEms.

Results of Operations 2005 vs. 2004

Revenuefor 2005 and 2004 is summarized as follows:

(dollars in millions) 2005 2004
Communication: $1,645 $1,68E
Coal Mining 74 91

$1,71¢ $1,77¢

Communications revenue is separated into thregpgrdl) Core Communications Services (includinggpamt and infrastructure
services, IP and data services, voice serviced/smr services), 2) Other Communications Servicasl{iding managed modem and its
related reciprocal compensation, DSL aggregatiod,legacy managed IP services), and 3) SBC Masi®icgs Agreement. Revenue
attributable to these service groupings is providetthe following table:
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(dollars in millions) 2005 2004
Core Communications Service

Transport and Infrastructu $ 653 $ 574
IP and dat: 186 167
Voice 120 53
Vyvx 3 —
962 794

Other Communication Service
Managed Moden 396 488
DSL aggregatiol 79 138
Reciprocal Compensatic 100 150
Managed IP 83 115
658 891
SBC Master Services Agreement 25 —
Total Communications Revenue $1,645 $1,68E

Transport and infrastructure revenue increase®@b 2rimarily due to increased demand for colocaspace in large markets in
North America and Europe, and an increase in waggherevenue due to sales to 360Networks, Frantezdi®m and other new and existi
customers. Transport and infrastructure reven@®@5b includes $4 million attributable to WilTel. &aldition, termination revenue related to
transport and infrastructure services increasedoappately $23 million in 2005. The termination eswe in 2005 is primarily attributable to
agreements reached with France Telecom and 360retwnalating to the termination of existing dafiei lease agreements with those
customers described below.

On February 22, 2005, France Telecom and Leveid@ified an agreement to terminate a dark fibereagesit signed in 2000. Under
the terms of the agreement France Telecom retuhwefiber to Level 3. Under the original IRU agrem) the cash received by Level 3 was
deferred and amortized to revenue over the 204gear of the agreement. As a result of this transagct.evel 3 recognized unamortized
deferred revenue of approximately $40 million as-gash termination revenue in the first quarte2@35. The wavelength sales described
above were a part of this transaction.

On March 1, 2005, Level 3 entered into an agreeméht360networks in which both parties agreedetoiinate a 20-year IRU
agreement. Under the new agreement 360networkseetihe dark fiber originally provided by LevellBder the original IRU agreement,
signed in 2000, the revenue associated with thie maived by Level 3 was deferred and amortizedvienue over the 20-year term of the
agreement. As a result of this transaction, Levelc®gnized the unamortized deferred revenue afoappately $86 million as non-cash
termination revenue in the first quarter of 200Be wavelength sales described above were a ptrisafansaction.

The Company expects to recognize termination rexémthe future if customers desire to renegotiatgracts or are required to
terminate service. The Company is not able to eg#rthe specific value of these types of transastimtil they occur, but does not currently
expect to recognize significant termination revefurehe foreseeable future.

IP and data revenue increased in 2005 primarilytddeaffic growth from new and existing customtrat exceeded the rate of price
compression as well as improved market acceptaitte €Company’s new IP-VPN service. In additionQ20P and data revenue includes
$1 million attributable to WilTel.

Level 3's voice revenue, excluding WilTel, incredde.7% in 2005. The increase is primarily attrillgeto the Company’s
wholesale voice products including voice terminatémd local inbound services. Voice termination lmeal inbound services experienced a
35% and 49%, respectively, increase in minutessefin the fourth quarter of 2005 compared to timeesperiod in 2004. The Company also
recorded voice revenue of $5 million attributaldé/XilTel for the period Level 3 owned WilTel in theurth quarter of 2005.

The Vyvx business was acquired on December 23, a6Q&@rt of the WilTel transaction. Revenue of $ian is included from the
acquisition date through the end of the year.

Managed modem revenue declined in 2005 as a m&fsthieé continued migration from narrow band dialsgpvices to higher speed
broadband services by end user customers. Thigehasulted in a decline in the demand for managedem ports. America Online, the
Company'’s largest managed modem customer, redheealimber of ports it purchased from Level 3 byrapimately 25% in the second
half of 2004 and decreased the number of portshaised by an additional 30% primarily
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in the second half of 2005. In addition to the mamcellation provisions, the contracts with Amar@nline contain market-pricing provisions
that have the effect of lowering revenue as Levisl@ligated to provide America Online a reducedmort rate if Level 3 offers another
customer better pricing for a lower volume of congtée services.

Partially offsetting this decline in managed modewenue in 2005 was the revenue purchased in Beal@ Sprint transactions
completed in the second and fourth quarter of 26é&pectively. The Company expects, excluding ffects of future acquisitions, managed
modem related revenue to continue to decline ifuhee primarily due to an increase in the nuntdfesubscribers migrating to broadband
services and the potential pricing concession®agacts are renewed.

DSL aggregation revenue decreased significantB0Bb as the Company’s primary DSL aggregation custdegan to migrate its
DSL subscribers to its own network beginning infirgt quarter of 2005. The customer completedntiigration of its subscribers in the third
quarter of 2005. In addition, the Company’s oth&Lzontracts expired in 2005 and were not renewkd.Company does not expect to
recognize DSL aggregation revenue in the foresedahire.

Reciprocal compensation revenue declined from 28@dls primarily due to a settlement with a majarrir in the third quarter of
2004, which did not recur in 2005. The settlemesbived rate issues for 2004 and prior periodsrasulted in the recognition of $31 million
of revenue for services provided in prior periosis revenue had been deferred as the Companyotitdawe an interconnection agreemer
place and approved by the relevant authoritieadutition to this agreement, the Company signeddotenection agreements with other
carriers in 2004 and 2005 that resulted in the Gowipeceiving a lower rate per minute for termingfiraffic. The majority of the Comparsy’
interconnection agreements provide rate structinesigh 2006. The Company earns the majority afeitsprocal compensation revenue fr
managed modem services.

With the agreements reached in 2004 and 2005, l3kek interconnection agreements in place fontherity of traffic subject to
reciprocal compensation. Level 3 continues to nagohew interconnection agreements with its loeatiers. To the extent that the Company
is unable to sign new interconnection agreemenssgois new agreements containing lower rates,aetts a significant decline in the
Company’s managed modem dial-up business, or FGate regulations change such that carriers dreequired to compensate other
carriers for terminating ISP-bound traffic, recipabcompensation revenue may decline significamilyr time.

The Company’s legacy Managed IP business congistaply of a business that was acquired in the (@griransaction in 2003.
The Company has not invested in this service andtigctively looking for new customers. The deglin revenue is attributable to the
disconnection of service by existing customers. Thenpany expects this trend to continue in 2006.

The SBC Master Services Agreement was obtaingaeiMtilTel transaction. Under the terms of the agrest, SBC has gross
margin purchase commitments through 2009. Duedgaitmificance of the commitment, the Company hested to separate and report this
contract from its other communications servicevdl@ earned revenue of approximately $25 milligrikzutable to this contract in 2005.

Coal mining revenue decreased to $74 million in 2005 compar&®1 million in 2004. The decline in revenue f003 is
attributable to a significant reduction in coaluggd to be purchased in 2005 under a contract Bétnoit Edison from 2004 levels. The
Company has signed new agreements with Detroitdisut with lower tonnage requirements and lowargs.

Cost of Revenudor the communications business, as a percentageyehue for 2005 and 2004 was 28% and 27%, ragplctin
2005, the Company recognized $133 million of teation revenue, primarily related to 360networks Brethce Telecom in the first quarter.
In 2004, termination revenue was $113 million, mafsvhich was attributable to the McLeod transatiio the fourth quarter. An increase in
termination revenue with no corresponding cosewtnue, positively affected the percentage in pe#rs. Excluding termination revenue in
2005 and 2004, the cost of revenue, as a perceafageenue, would have been 30% and 28%, resgdgtiVhe increase in 2005 is
attributable to the increase in voice servicesabich the corresponding cost of revenue is genehidlher than Level 3's other services.

Cost of revenue, as a percentage of revenue, dardhl mining business was consistent for 2005280d at 72% and 73%,
respectively. The decrease in cost of revenuepgsaentage of revenue is attributable to the fablereesolution of certain production tax
issues related to prior periods that resulted$5 anillion decrease in the cost of revenue forrttieing business in the second quarter of 2!

The Company expects the cost of revenue as a gageeaf revenue for the coal mining business toeimge in 2006 as a result of
new contracts signed in 2005 at lower tonnage reménts and lower prices.
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Depreciation and Amortization expenses were $647 million in 2005, a 4% decrease 2004 depreciation and amortization
expenses of $671 million. The decrease is primatiiybutable to shorter-lived communications as#edt were placed in service in prior
years becoming fully depreciated during 2004 ar@b2

Due to the acquisition of WilTel in the fourth gterof 2005, Level 3 expects depreciation and a@aiidbn expenses to increase in
2006 from 2005 levels.

Selling, General and Administrativeexpenses decreased 6% to $769 million in 2005 $882 million in 2004. This decrease is
primarily attributable to lower compensation andoéogee related costs resulting from the workforeduction for the communications
business which occurred in the first quarter of2@eclines in base compensation, bonus, travalyittng and facilities expenses all
contributed to the decrease in selling, generalaatmdinistrative expenses in 2005 for the commuitinatbusiness. Also contributing to the
decline in operating expenses were lower advegjsimarketing and bad debt expenses. Partially thfigethe reduction in communications
expenses was an increase in operating expens@élficel since its acquisition in the fourth quart#r2005.

Included in operating expenses for 2005 and 2004 &1 million and $43 million, respectively, ofmoash compensation and
professional expenses recognized under SFAS Norel2ted to grants of stock options, warrants aherostock-based compensation
programs. The $8 million increase in non-cash careggon expense is primarily attributable to thetmieted stock units granted by the
Company in second quarter of 2005 resulting indased value of the stock based compensation dittdlio employees. The Company may
make additional annual grants of restricted statksias part of its long-term compensation prograddition to potential quarterly OSO
grants to employees.

The Company expects selling, general and admitiigtraxpenses to increase in 2006 versus 2005adiie tacquisition of WilTel.

Restructuring and Impairment Chargeswere $23 million in 2005 and $14 million in 200heélCompany recognized $15 million
related to the workforce reductions of the commaitidms business in North America and Europe in 200& employees affected by this
workforce reduction provided support functions arked directly on mature services. All obligati@tibutable to the 2005 restructuring
activities were paid by December 31, 2005.

During 2005, the Company recognized $9 million @amscash impairment charges resulting from the decisdrrminate projects fi
certain voice services and IT projects in the comications business. The costs incurred for thesggts, including capitalized labor, were
impaired as the carrying value of these projecteesded their estimated fair value.

The Company recorded real property lease impairiggntges of $14 million for leases in North Amerécad Europe in the fourth
quarter of 2004. The charge resulted from the ckase of certain space, the signing of subleagesxfeting vacant space at lower than
estimated rates, and extending the estimated set&stes for other vacant properties due to cumenket conditions.

Adjusted OIBDA is defined by the Company, as operating incomes)lfsem the consolidated statements of operatiess,
depreciation and amortization expense, less nom-@ampensation expense included within sellingegalirand administration expense on the
consolidated statements of operations, and lessah&ash portion of restructuring and impairmdrarges. Adjusted OIBDA is not a
measurement under accounting principles generatlg@ed in the United States and may not be usedhgy companies. Management
believes that Adjusted OIBDA is an important pdrtte Company’s internal reporting and is an intcaf profitability and operating
performance used by the chief operating decisiokemar decision making group, especially in a adgittensive industry such as
telecommunications. Adjusted OIBDA excludes inteegense and income tax expense and other gassfmot included in operating
income. Excluding these items eliminates the expeassociated with the Company’s capitalizationtardtructures. Note 19 of the
consolidated financial statements provides a rdtiation of Adjusted OIBDA for each of the Compasyoperating segments.

Adjusted OIBDA for the communications business %458 million and $463 million for 2005 and 2004spectively. The decline
2005 is primarily attributable to the decline imamunications revenue partially offset by highentigation revenue recognized by the
Company in 2005. The termination revenue recognigethe Company in 2005 was $133 million versus3itillion in 2004. The decline in
revenue was offset by a reduction in operating egee primarily attributable to lower compensatiod amployee related costs resulting fi
the workforce reduction for the communications bass which occurred in the first quarter of 2008 lamver advertising, marketing and bad
debt expenses.
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Adjusted OIBDA for the mining business decreasef1t® million in 2005, from $18 million in 2004. Thiecrease is due to the
expiration of higher margin contracts in 2004 whigére replaced by contracts at lower prices aneétdannage in 2005.

Adjusted OIBDA for the Company’s other businessesréased from negative $1 million in 2004, to niegek3 million in 2005.
This change is due to the increase in professimea¢xpenses in 2005.

Interest Incomewas $35 million in 2005 increasing $22 million fra&gh3 million for 2004. The increase in interestame was due
to the increase in the Company’s average returitsgrortfolio to 2.8% in 2005 from 1.3% in 2004.€laverage portfolio balance increased to
$1.2 billion in 2005 from $1.0 billion in 2004. Réing utilization of cash and cash equivalents,Goenpany invests its funds primarily in
government and government agency securities an@ynmarket funds. The investment strategy genepatlyides lower yields on the funds
than on alternative investments, but reduces ghetoi principal in the short term prior to thesads being used in the Company’s business.

The Company has elected to take advantage of éha girve and purchase longer-term U.S. governsexrities. The maturity
dates on the government securities ranged from Mbee 2006 through February 2008. Due to the Willbgjuisition and expected liquidity
requirements, the Company has classified certamergment securities, previously classified as helohaturity, as available for sale which
means they are reported at market value insteadstfat the end of the reporting period. The Comfeas characterized its remaining
securities as held to maturity.

Interest Expense, netncreased by $45 million to $530 million in 2005 pared to 2004, primarily as a result of increassetest
expense from the issuance of the Company’s $88bmif 10% Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 im skcond quarter of 2005. In
addition, there was an increase in interest expduedo the accretion on discount notes and hiiglerest rates on the variable rate debt.
was partially offset by the refinancing transactibat occurred in the fourth quarter of 2004. Theen@any entered into a $730 million Senior
Secured Term Loan due 2011 and issued $345 mdfi@25% Senior Convertible Notes due 2011 in theth quarter of 2004. The
Company used the proceeds from these transactioeptirchase approximately $1.1 billion of the Camps public debt due in 2008.
Overall, the refinancing transaction in the fougtfarter of 2004 reduced the Company’s annual istengoense by approximately $16 million
in 2005 compared to the same period in 2004.

In addition, the extinguishment of the Allegian@pital lease obligation, assumed in the Genuity&dipn, in the second quarter of
2004 resulted in a decrease in interest expena@da.

Level 3 expects interest expense to increase i6 288& result of the $692 million of debt exchangedanuary 13, 2006, for debt
with a later maturity at a higher interest ratee ®006 increase in interest expense would alsadedhe implied discount on the new debt.

Gain on Extinguishment of Debtwas zero in 2005 and $197 million in 2004. In tberth quarter of 2004, the Company
repurchased portions of its 9.125% Senior Notes2@8, 11% Senior Notes due 2008, 10.5% SeniordDiscNotes due 2008 and 10.75%
Senior Euro Notes due 2008. The Company repurchasidns of the outstanding notes at prices ramffiom 83 percent to 89 percent of
repurchased principal balances. The net gain oedhg extinguishment of the debt, including trariga costs, realized foreign currency
losses and unamortized debt issuance costs, waniilh for these transactions. In the second tprasf 2004, the Company paid
approximately $54 million and assumed certain @tians to extinguish the Allegiance capital leaskgation and recognized a gain of
$147 million on the transaction.

Other, netis primarily comprised of gains and losses on #ile ef marketable securities and non-operatingtsisselized foreign
currency gains and losses and other income.

Income Tax Expensavas $5 million in 2005 compared to $1 million in020 In 2005, the communications business incurred
additional tax expense attributable to increasedrire in various Level 3 subsidiaries, including ICdhat are required to file state income
returns on a separate legal entity basis.

As of December 31, 2005, Level 3 had net operdtiag carryforwards of approximately $5.9 billiom federal income tax purpos:
If certain transactions occur with respect to Le3/slcapital stock that result in a cumulative ovetép change of more than 50 percentage
points by 5-percent shareholders over a threeye@od as determined under rules prescribed bytBe Internal Revenue Code and
applicable regulations, annual limitations wouldif@osed with respect to the Compangbility to utilize its net operating loss carmi@rds
and certain current deductions against any taxabteme Level 3 achieves in future periods. Levhb8 entered into transactions over the last
three years resulting in significant cumulativerodpes in the ownership of its capital stock. Additibtransactions could cause the Company
to incur a
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50 percentage point ownership change by 5-pertamebolders and, if the Company triggers the abmted Internal Revenue Code impo
limitations, prevent it from fully utilizing net @pating loss carryforwards and certain current dédns to reduce income taxes. The
Company does not believe its net operating losyfmawards will be limited in 2006 or thereaftegded on information available at the time
of this filing.

Income from Discontinued Operationswas $69 million for 2005 and is comprised of $20ion from Software Spectrum and $49
million from the sale of {)Structure to Infocrossing. In 2004, discontinugémtions of Software Spectrum resulted in netatpey income
of $20 million.

Revenue for Information Services increased 1% f§d®36 million in 2004 to $1,958 million in 2005marily as a result of sales
a systems integrator on behalf of the Departmehtandy in addition to increased sales to the smaithionm business market customers. This
was partially offset by an increase in sales usdéware publishers’ agency licensing programs tbsiilt in only a service fee being
recognized as revenue, rather than the selling pfiche software. The software reseller industrydasonal, with revenue and operating
income typically being higher in the second andttoguarters of the Company’s fiscal year.

Software Spectrum began experiencing an increasal@s under Microsoft's 6.0 licensing program sindilar programs offered by
other suppliers in 2003. Under these programs, ergerprise-wide licensing arrangements are pris#éd and collected directly by the
software publishers. Software Spectrum continugsdwide sales and support services related t@ttieasactions and earns a service fee
directly from publishers for these activities. TBempany recognizes the service fee it receiveswamnue and not the entire value of the
software under this program. Software SpectrumrdeEmbapproximately $74 million and $54 million efvenue attributable to these types of
contracts in 2005 and 2004, respectively. The ed@thselling price of the software sold under tremgeements was $1.235 billion and
$975 million for the corresponding periods.

The cost of revenue for Information Services, ps@entage of its revenue, was 90% for 2005 and f8t #004. Software Spectrum
is very reliant on rebates received from softwarklighers to improve its operating results. In 2608 2004, Software Spectrum earned
approximately $40 million and $42 million, respeety, in rebates which reduced cost of revenuetv&oeé Spectrum does not earn rebates
from Microsoft on agency program sales.

Selling, general and administrative expenses flarination Services businesses increased from $ifiémin 2004 to $152 million in 2005
primarily as a result of an increase in headcotftdtware Spectrum.

Results of Operations 2004 vs. 2003

Revenuefor 2004 and 2003 is summarized as follows:

(dollars in millions) 2004 2003
Communication: $1,685 $1,947
Coal Mining 91 80

$1,77€¢ $2,027

Communications revenue is segregated into thregyodes: 1) Core Communications Services (includiagsport and infrastructu
services, IP and data services, voice serviced/smr services), 2) Other Communications Servicasl({iding managed modem and its
related reciprocal compensation, DSL aggregatiod,Managed IP services), and 3) SBC Master Ser#igesement. Revenue attributable to
these groupings are identified in the followingléab

(dollars in millions) 2004 2003
Core Communications Service
Transportation and infrastructu $ 574 $ 779
IP and dat: 167 171
Voice 53 17
Vyvx — —
794 967
Other Communication Service
Managed Moden 488 627
DSL aggregatiol 138 99
Reciprocal Compensatic 150 127
Managed IP 115 127
891 980

SBC Master Services Agreement — —
Total Communications Revenue $1,6858 $1,947
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Transport and infrastructure services revenueQvecreased significantly from 2003 primarilyaagsult of the recognition of
$344 million of termination revenue in 2003 ver$a97 million in 2004. In 2003, an amended IRU agreset originally executed in 1998
with XO Communications resulted in Level 3 recogmiz$294 million of revenue that had previously meeferred, but did not result in any
incremental cash benefit to the Company. In Decerdd@e4, Level 3 and McLeod amended their 1999 agee which resulted in Level 3
recognizing $98 million of non-cash terminationeaue for amounts previously deferred. Excludingiteation revenue, transport and
infrastructure revenue increased 7% due to highsk fiber, private line, wavelength and colocatiemenue.

IP and data services revenue decreased in 2004acethfp 2003. The decline in the revenue attridatabthe core IP and data
services is primarily attributable to wholesaleehniet access. Although demand for Internet serwiceased during 2004, price declines
more than offset revenues relating to the incr@aselume. This decrease was partially offset byiticrease in IP-VPN revenue due to the
growth in demand for the service since its intrdiucin 2003.

Voice revenue in 2004 increased significantly prilgadue to the market acceptance of the Compawngise termination and local
inbound products. In 2004 revenue attributabldésé products increased over 200% compared to B9 increased traffic on the
network.

The decline in managed modem revenue is primatig/td price declines in services and a reductidghemumber of ports provided
to America Online. Partially offsetting the pricealines was an increase in managed modem usagaueegéributable to the acquisitions of
certain ICG and Sprint customer contracts at tiggriméng of the second and fourth quarters of 208dpectively. The managed modem
revenue in 2004 includes $38 million and $4 millattributable to the ICG and Sprint acquisitiorspectively.

In 2004, Level 3's largest managed modem custoAragrica Online, informed the Company that it wordduce its overall
purchases of fixed service ports for its U.S. diplnetwork. America Online reduced the number ofgib purchases from Level 3 by
approximately 25% in the second half of 2004.

DSL aggregation services were $138 million in 2884 $99 million in 2003. Level 3 began providinglD&krvices when it
purchased certain assets from Genuity in Februd®g.2The growth in DSL aggregation revenue is duée inclusion of revenue for the full
period as well as an increase in demand for théymto

Reciprocal compensation revenue increased to $1iomin 2004 from $127 million in 2003. This inease is primarily attributable
to the agreements reached with carriers in thensband third quarters of 2004.

In the third quarter of 2004, the Company and alloarrier entered into an agreement that resalaedissues for current and prior
periods. The agreement resulted in the recognitf@pproximately $67 million of reciprocal competiga revenue in 2004. A portion of the
revenue recognized as a result of this agreemetatipe to services provided in previous periodsth@ftotal revenue recognized, Level 3 had
received and deferred approximately $31 milliopafceeds prior to 2004, which had been reflecteutlzer current liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet.

During the second quarter of 2004, the CompanyBaibouth finalized a new interconnection agreemehich resulted in the
Company recognizing approximately $10 million ofipgocal compensation revenue in the second quavtech represented the majority of
the revenue to be recognized in 2004 under thiseagent. Given this arrangement, Level 3 expeatsdeive reciprocal compensation
revenue from BellSouth over the three year ternhefagreement.

The Company signed an amendment to its existiregdohnection Agreement with Verizon Communicationthe third quarter of
2004. Under the agreement, the intercarrier congimmsrate for local, ISP-bound traffic was se$ 8005 per minute for 2004, $.00045 per
minute for 2005, and $.0004 per minute for 2006.

On February 14, 2005, Level 3 announced that itetesl amendments to its existing interconnectioremgent with SBC. The
amendments set the intercarrier compensation eatedal, ISP-bound traffic between the two comparat $.0005 per minute for the first
half of 2005; $.00045 per minute for the second &ia2005; and $.0004 per minute for 2006. Level 3’
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amended agreement with SBC covers SBC’s entirécgetarritory, which includes California, Texadinbis and 10 other states.

Managed IP revenue was lower in 2004 as the Compasglected not to actively market these sertiwesw customers. The
revenue decline due to customers disconnectingcgenas partially offset by the inclusion of a fy#lar of results for this service. The
Managed IP business was acquired in the Genuitgaction in February 2003.

Coal mining revenue increased to $91 million in 2004 compaoe$B0 million in 2003. The increase in revenuettiskatable to a
12% increase in coal tonnage shipped to new argdfilegicustomers partially offset by a lower averpgee per ton.

Cost of Revenudor the communications business, as a percentagevehue for 2004 and 2003 was 27% and 19%, ragphkctin
2003, the Company recognized $346 million of temtion revenue, primarily related to XO Communicasioln 2004, termination revenue
was $113 million, most of which was attributablehe McLeod transaction in the fourth quarter. Témognition of this revenue, with no
corresponding cost of revenue, resulted in the ta@west of revenue as a percentage of revenue i8.20@R004, the ICG, KMC and Allegiar
transactions also resulted in additional networnesses prior to migrating the customer traffic &wvél 3's network.

Cost of revenue, as a percentage of revenue, dardhl mining business was consistent for 20042008 at 73%.

Depreciation and Amortization expenses were $671 million in 2004, a 16% decrirage 2003 depreciation and amortization
expenses of $798 million. The decrease is primatiiybutable to shorter-lived communications as#edt were placed in service in prior
years becoming fully depreciated during 2003 ar@42th addition, the McLeod intangible assets wally amortized during the third quar
of 2004. These decreases were partially offsehbyamortization expense attributable to the intalegissets acquired in the ICG and Sprint
acquisitions, completed in the second and fourtirtgus of 2004, respectively.

Selling, General and Administrativeexpenses decreased 9% to $822 million in 2004 $86# million in 2003. This decrease is
primarily the result of the synergies realized friita Genuity transaction in the second half of 2883vell as declines in non-cash
compensation expense. The acquisition of GenuiBeioruary 2003 initially resulted in higher compegtien, travel, training, contract
maintenance and facilities expenses for the CompBmpughout 2003, the Company was able to incateamuch of Genuity’s operations
into its existing support infrastructure and thuesvable to reduce the incremental workforce anubdis of excess facilities. Also contributing
to the decline in operating expenses were loweeriding, marketing and bad debt expenses. Pgroéfietting these declines were incree
in consulting and professional fees associated th#thCompany'’s efforts to expand its voice servamed develop internal systems and
processes. During 2004, the Company received fiirderty tax valuations and assessments from dguesalictions for property taxes
accrued in 2003. These assessments were lowetitha@@ompany had previously estimated and, thergiforeduced the property tax accrual
by approximately $3 million during 2004 for 200 perty taxes. During 2003, the Company receiveal finoperty tax valuations and
assessments from several jurisdictions for propentgs accrued in 2002. These assessments weretltanethe Company had previously
estimated and, therefore, it reduced the properyatcrual by approximately $8 million during 20082002 property taxes.

Included in operating expenses for 2004 and 20@8¢ 843 million and $78 million, respectively, @mcash compensation and
professional expenses recognized under SFAS Norel2ted to grants of stock options, warrants aherostock-based compensation
programs. The decrease in non-cash compensati@mss(is attributable to a decline in the valuerahts distributed to eligible employees.
During the second quarter of 2004, the Compangskstolders approved a proposal at the Comma@04 annual meeting for the reserva
of additional shares of common stock under the Gomis 1995 Stock Plan.

Restructuring and Impairment Chargeswere $14 million in 2004 and $26 million in 200helCompany recorded real property
lease impairment charges of $14 million for leaedsorth America and Europe in the fourth quarte2@04. The charge resulted from the
ceased use of certain space, the signing of swdgdasexisting vacant space at lower than estidhates, and extending the estimated
sublease dates for other vacant properties dugrtert market conditions.

During the first quarter of 2003, Level 3 announeemtkforce reductions that affected approximateB0OD employees in the
communications business. The Company recordediodgting charges of approximately $26 million rethto these actions in 2003.
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Adjusted OIBDA is defined by the Company, as operating incomes)lfsem the consolidated statements of operatiess,
depreciation and amortization expense, less nom-@ampensation expense included within sellingegairand administration expense on the
consolidated statements of operations, and lessaheash portion of restructuring and impairmdrarges. Adjusted OIBDA is not a
measurement under accounting principles generatlg@ed in the United States and may not be usedhgy companies. Management
believes that Adjusted OIBDA is an important pdrtte Company’s internal reporting and is an intcaf profitability and operating
performance used by the chief operating decisiokemar decision making group, especially in a @pittensive industry such as
telecommunications. Adjusted OIBDA excludes intemgense and income tax expense and other gassfmot included in operating
income. Excluding these items eliminates the expeassociated with the Company’s capitalizationtardtructures. Note 19 of the
consolidated financial statements provides a rdtiation of Adjusted OIBDA for each of the Compasyoperating segments.

Adjusted OIBDA for the communications business ®463 million and $735 million for 2004 and 2003pectively. The decrease
in 2004 was primarily attributable to $346 milliohtermination and settlement revenue recognizetheyCompany in 2003 versus
$113 million in 2004. Also contributing to the dease in 2004 was a decline in managed modem rewenbi@cremental network costs
incurred from the Sprint, ICG, KMC and Allegiancarisactions. These declines were partially offgetdrreased selling, general and
administrative expenses discussed above.

Adjusted OIBDA for the mining business increaseghtly to $18 million in 2004, from $17 million iB003. The increase was due
increased revenues as discussed above with conipasdling, general and administrative expensesds periods.

Adjusted OIBDA for the Company’s other businessesdgased from negative $5 million in 2003, to nega$bl million in 2004. The
increase was attributable to the receipt of $5iomlbf insurance proceeds which related to the Gomis previous investment in packaging
businesses. These proceeds represent the recdvatain legal and environmental expenses incurrgaior years, and therefore reduced
selling, general and administrative expenses.

Interest Incomewas $13 million for 2004 compared to $18 million2@03. The decrease was primarily attributabldéodecline in
the average cash and marketable security portialiance offset slightly by an increase in the wesdtaverage interest rate earned on the
portfolio. The Company’s average return on its casth cash equivalents increased from 1.1% in 260A33% in 2004 while the average cash
balance decreased from $1.5 billion during 20081t® billion during 2004.

Interest Expense, netlecreased by $82 million from $567 million in 20035485 million in 2004. Interest expense decreased
primarily as a result of the repayment of the $&.tb#lion Senior Secured Credit Facility during tloeirth quarter of 2003, which included a
$24 million charge to interest expense for the unrdimed deferred debt issuance costs attributabilee termination. Also contributing to the
decrease was the conversion of $480 million ofdu@bnvertible Subordinated Notes into Level 3 camrmstock in the second quarter of
2003, reduced interest charges on debt repurcltassmhverted to equity during or after the secoundrtgr of 2003, and the extinguishmen
the Allegiance capital lease obligation during $keond quarter of 2004. The Company also repurdhasions of its 9.125% Senior Notes
due 2008, 11% Senior Notes due 2008, 10.5% SensmoDnt Notes due 2008 and 10.75% Senior Euro Nite2008 during the fourth
quarter of 2004, thereby reducing interest chaogethese notes. These decreases in interest exgensalightly offset by increased interest
expense from the issuance of a $730 million Sedémured Term Loan due 2011 and 5.25% Senior Cableelotes due 2011 in the fourth
quarter of 2004 as well as the issuance of 2.876%v&rtible Senior Notes due 2010 in the secondtguaf 2003 and the issuance of 9%
Convertible Senior Discount Notes due 2013 and3P@.%enior Notes due 2011 in the fourth quarterO®32

Gain on Extinguishment of Debtwas $197 million in 2004 and $41 million in 2008.the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company
repurchased portions of its 9.125% Senior Notes2®@8, 11% Senior Notes due 2008, 10.5% SeniordDigcNotes due 2008 and 10.75%
Senior Euro Notes due 2008. The Company repurchassidns of the outstanding notes at prices rapmffiom 83 percent to 89 percent of
repurchased principal balances. The net gain ordhg extinguishment of the debt, including trarige costs, realized foreign currency
losses and unamortized debt issuance costs, waniilh for these transactions. In the second tprasf 2004, the Company paid
approximately $54 million and assumed certain @ians to extinguish the Allegiance capital leaskgation and recognized a gain of
$147 million on the transaction.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company exchdrifil million aggregate principal amount of itsZ% Senior Notes due 2008,
$53 million aggregate principal amount of its 11&n®r Notes due 2008, $26 million aggregate prialcgmmount of its 11.25% Senior Notes
due 2010, and $212 million face value ($210 millg@anrying value) of its 10.5% Senior Discount Nadeg 2008. The Company issued
approximately 20 million shares of its common staakth approximately $105 million in exchange foese senior notes. The net gain on the
early extinguishment of the debt, including unaized debt issuance costs, was $37 million for thesesactions.
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In the third quarter 2003, the Company exchangé&driillion aggregate principal amount of its 11% iBeMNotes due 2008,
$23 million of its 9.125% Senior Notes due 2008 &Rdnillion aggregate principal amount of its 12@2Senior Notes due 2010. The
Company issued approximately 7 million shareso€dmmon stock with a market value of approxima$dly million. The net gain on the
early extinguishment of the debt, including unaized debt issuance costs, was $2 million for thesgsactions.

In the second quarter of 2003, the Company excltafigi@0 million aggregate principal amount of it§Z5% Senior Notes due 20
The Company issued approximately 13 million shafets common stock with a market value of appraadety $96 million. The net gain on
the early extinguishment of the debt, includingisaction costs and unamortized debt issuance ezasss$2 million.

Other, netincreased to a gain of $32 million in 2004 fromoad of $109 million in 2003. In 2004, the Compagglized a gain of
$23 million on the sale of Commonwealth Telephoommon stock. In 2003, the Company realized a ga$v6 million from the sale of “91
Express Lanes” toll road and $200 million of indd@®nversion expense resulting from the Comparmysersion of convertible debt
securities.

Income Tax Expensdor 2004 was a $1 million provision compared tceadfit of $51 million for 2003. In 2004, the Compan
recognized tax expense attributable to the Comparnal business. In 2003, the Internal Revenuei@:completed the audit of the
Company’s 1996 and 1997 Federal tax returns. Téaugon of these federal tax audits and otheedtst issues primarily related to its coal
mining operations, resulted in the Company reduitsdeferred tax liabilities by approximately $5dlion in 2003.

Loss from Discontinued Operationswvas $21 million for 2003. During 2003 the Compaaldsts MFON business and recorded as
discontinued operations, operating income of $1iflani(from acquisition in February 2003 through #ale in December 2003). Level 3 did
not recognize a gain or loss on this transactisrit, accurred within the one year “allocation pédfiprovided under SFAS No. 141.

The Company has included the 2003 net loss of $illibmrelated to the operations of JStructure in discontinued operations as a
result of the sale of thei {Structure business in 2005.

The operating activities of the discontinued Infation Services businesses resulted in income ofdiftion in 2004 and a $26
million loss in 2003. R evenue for Software Spactrdecreased from $1,999 million in 2003 to $1,886on in 2004 primarily as a result
of an increase in sales under software publistagyshcy licensing programs that result in only &iserfee being recognized as revenue,
rather than the selling price of the software. $bftware reseller industry is seasonal, with reeemod Adjusted OIBDA typically being
higher in the second and fourth quarters of the @owy’s fiscal year. Revenue declines attributablert increase in agency sales were
partially offset by increased information techngl@pending throughout the United States that thm@amy and the IT industry began to
experience in the fourth quarter of 2003. In additithe strengthening of the Euro and other foreigmencies against the U.S. dollar resulted
in an estimated additional $88 million of infornmatiservices revenue in 2004 compared to 2003.

Software Spectrum began experiencing an increasal@s under Microsoft's 6.0 licensing program sindgilar programs offered by
other suppliers in 2003. Under these programs, ergerprise-wide licensing arrangements are pris#éd and collected directly by the
software publishers. Software Spectrum continugsdwide sales and support services related t@tttassactions and earns a service fee
directly from publishers for these activities. Thempany recognizes the service fee it receives\anue and not the entire value of the
software under this program. Software SpectrumrdeEmbapproximately $54 million and $35 million efvenue attributable to these types of
contracts in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The ed@ithselling price of the software sold under ttegeements was $975 million and
$661 million for the corresponding periods.

The cost of revenue for the information servicesifiesses, as a percentage of its revenue, was®126G4 down from 92% in
2003. This decrease is attributable to an increasales under new licensing programs implemenyesbftware publishers for which the cost
of revenue is minimal. Software Spectrum is vetiarg on rebates received from software publisheisprove its operating results. In 2004
and 2003, Software Spectrum earned approximatedyndilion in rebates which reduced cost of rever&mftware Spectrum does not earn
rebates from Microsoft on agency program salesa Aesult, as agency program sales increase, therdarbrebates earned from Microsoft is
expected to decline. This decline is partially effdy Software Spectrum earning, in general, highg&rgins on Microsoft agency sales than
on Microsoft non-agency sales.
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The Company also recognized approximately $2 milbibrestructuring charges in 2004 related to thgoing integration and
restructuring of Software Spectrum that began @320n 2003, the information services businessgezed $14 million of restructuring
charges related to the ongoing integration anduettring of Software Spectrum. These actions teduh the termination of approximately
500 employees in 2003. The restructuring chargelade $4 million for lease termination costs fatifiies the Company had ceased using.

In addition, Software Spectrum exited the contactises business in 2003 and recorded a loss fisootinued operations of
$7 million, including a loss of $9 million on thals of the business.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principleof $5 million resulted from the adoption of SFAS.N@3 as of January 1,
2003. The $5 million of income reflects the netradpain accrued reclamation liability attributabdetie Company’s coal operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows provided by (used in) continuing operadifor the year ended December 31 are as folldelta¢s in millions):

Year Ended
December 31
2005 2004
Communications** $ (1200 $ (121)
Other 2 (1)
Total $ (1180 $ (122

** Includes interest expense net of interest income

Cash flows from continuing operations for the cominations business in 2005 were negatively affebieilTel in 2005. As a
result of the fluctuations in working capital beemethe close date of December 23, 2005 and Dece®ih@005, WilTel had negative cash
flows from operations of $61 million. Cash flowsr#dutable to changes in working capital for thésérg communications business provided
incremental cash of $90 million in 2005. Favorahletuations in accounts receivable, accounts payaid other current liabilities
contributed to the increase. An increase in intggagments of $30 million in 2005 partially offgae positive changes in working capital.

The increase in cash from continuing operationsterother businesses is primarily attributablthtopayment of state tax
obligations in 2004 for which liabilities had preusly been recorded, partially offset by higherrapieg income, including insurance
proceeds received in 2004.

Investing activities in 2005 include $648 milliosad to purchase marketable securities, $300 miliged for capital expenditures,
primarily in the communications business, and $3@f8on for the acquisition of WilTel, net of $12illion of cash acquired in the
transaction. In addition, Level 3 invested $10 imillin a communications equipment company and wasired to increase its restricted cash
and securities by $4 million. Partially offsettittese cash outflows were $584 million from the sdlmarketable securities, $82 million of
proceeds from the sale of JStructure, $13 million of advances from the digeured Software Spectrum operations and $11 millibn
proceeds from the sale of excess property, plashegnipment.

Financing sources in 2005 consisted of $877 miliiod $66 million of net proceeds from the issuasfae 10% Convertible Senior
Notes and the refinancing of the HQ Realty mortgaggpectively. The Company repaid $130 milliordebt in 2005, which was compris
primarily of amounts owed under the HQ Realty mage and the Genuity capital leases in 2005 of $dillion and $24 million, respectivel

Discontinued operations consumed $32 million ohdas2005, primarily for distributions to the camting operations of the parent

company and capital expenditures. In 2004 disnaetil operations generated $56 million of cash.dewatine in 2005 is primarily attributat
to unfavorable fluctuations in accounts receivalrid other current assets.
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The Company incurred losses from continuing openatof $707 million and consumed $418 million afftdor operating activities
and capital expenditures in 2005. The Company dsgpbat the business will continue to consume @ag006, however the amount of cash
consumed is expected to diminish. In 2006, the Gomxpects its costs will continue to exceed raeeand it will continue to consume ci
primarily due to interest payments and capital exiteres. The Company expects Adjusted OIBDA toriowp in 2006 primarily as a result
of the WilTel acquisition and growth in Core Comnuations services revenue. Interest payments grectad to increase to approximately
$525 million in 2006, based on debt levels at itme tof this filing. Capital expenditures for 200@ a&xpected to range from $320 million to
$360 million and will consist of $100 million to $% million of base capital expenditures (capitaguieed to keep the network operating
efficiently and product development), approximateB0 million of capital expenditures for the intation of WilTel and $20 million for a
dark fiber based expansion in Europe. The majorfitye Company’s ongoing capital expenditures apeeted to be succebssed, which a
tied to incremental revenue. In total, the Compaxyyects that cash required for operating actiyitiéescontinued operations and capital
expenditures will range from $265 million to $27%8lion, excluding fluctuations in working capitalhe Company does not have any
significant principal amounts due on its outstagdilebt until 2008.

Level 3 has approximately $789 million of cash,hcaquivalents and marketable securities on hab®ee¢mber 31, 2005, excluding
cash and cash equivalents of discontinued opegatloraddition, $34 million and $75 million of cent and non-current restricted securities,
respectively, are used to collateralize outstantittgrs of credit, long-term debt, certain opemgtbligations of the Company or to fund
certain reclamation liabilities. Based on informatavailable at this time, management of the Compatieves that the Company’s current
liquidity and anticipated future cash flows fromeogations will be sufficient to fund its business.

The Company estimates that its current liquiditgt aash flows provided by operating activities Wi sufficient to operate the
current business and will not require additionalrses of financing. However, if the Company hasdpportunity, at acceptable terms, to
improve its liquidity, refinance its debt, or fuadquisitions, the Company may elect to secure iadditfinancing in the future.

In addition to raising capital through the debt aqdity markets, the Company may sell or disposxitting businesses, investme
or other non-core assets. In 2005, the Company katetpthe sale of thei (Structure business to Infocrossing for approximya$85 million
in cash and Infocrossing, Inc. common stock. Thenfany also received gross proceeds of $353 milfmm the sale of Software Spectrum
to Insight Enterprises in September 2006.

In the second quarter of 2005, Level 3 announcatlith wholly-owned subsidiary, Technology Spectrime., had filed a
registration statement with the Securities and Brgle Commission to enable the sale of that sulbgisisommon stock to the public in an
initial public offering. Technology Spectrum, Iris.the principal holding company for Level 3's infeation services business including
Software Spectrum and §Structure. With the sale ofi {Structure, the Company elected to withdraw théstegion statement in the first
quarter of 2006.

Level 3 is aware that the various issuances afutstanding senior notes, senior discount notesandertible notes may trade at
discounts to their respective face or accreted amtsoln order to continue to reduce future caserast payments, as well as future amounts
due at maturity, Level 3 or its affiliates may,rfrdime to time, enter into debt for debt, debtdquity or cash transactions to purchase these
outstanding debt securities in open market or pelyanegotiated transactions. Level 3 will evaluatg such transactions in light of then
existing market conditions and the possible dikiffect to stockholders. The amounts involvedniyn such transactions, individually or in
the aggregate, may be material.

On January 13, 2006, the Company completed prastbhange offers to exchange a portion of its onthtey 9.125% Senior Notes
due 2008, 11% Senior Notes due 2008 and 10.5% SBisocount Notes due 2008 (together the “2008 Npthsit were held by eligible
holders in a private placement for cash and new%3iSenior Notes due 2010. The Company issued $@@maggregate principal amount
of 11.5% Senior Notes as well as paid $46 millibeash consideration in exchange for the 2008 Niatedered in the transactions. The
Company also paid approximately $13 million in césttotal accrued interest on the 2008 Notes tiaatbeen accepted for exchange to the
closing date and $5 million in transaction costs.

The communications industry continues to consadidaével 3 has participated in this process withabquisition of WilTel and the
proposed Progress Telecom transaction describewbkével 3 will continue to evaluate consolidatimpportunities and could make
additional acquisitions in 2006.

On December 23, 2005, the Company completed thasitign of WilTel Communications Group, LLC fronelucadia National

Corporation and its subsidiaries. The considergtaid consisted of approximately $391 million irslegwhich included a $16 million
adjustment for estimated working capital), plus@dillion in cash to reflect Leucadia’s having
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complied with its obligation to leave that amouhtash in WilTel, and 115 million newly issued stgrwith a fair value of approximately
$313 million, of Level 3 common stock. The Compaiso incurred costs of approximately $7 milliorated to the transaction. The cash
purchase price is subject to post-closing adjustsieased on actual working capital as of the ctpsizte.

On January 26, 2006, Level 3 signed a definitiveagent to acquire all of the membership interesBrogress Telecom LLC, a
regional wholesale network services company bas&l.iPetersburg, Florida. Progress Telecom, LL@nised by PT Holding, LLC which is
jointly owned by Progress Energy, Inc. and OdysBelgcorp, Inc. Under the terms of the agreementelL® expects to pay tot
consideration of $137 million, consisting of $68&8lion in unregistered shares of Level 3 commarcktand $68.5 million in cash. The
number of shares to be delivered will be determinedediately prior to closing. Progress Telecorméssork spans approximately 9,000
miles, includes 29 metro networks and connectatirmational cable landings in South Florida andrbile telephone switching centers in
the southeast United States. Progress Telecomssapgeoximately 200 customers with a significantaamtration of international and
wireless carrier customers. The Company expectsaheaction to close early in the second quafteno6.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Level 3 has not entered into df&lance sheet arrangements that have had, okaletlb have, a current or future material effecit¢
results of operations or its financial position.

The following tables summarize the contractualgdtions and commercial commitments of the Compameaember 31, 2005, as
further described in the notes to the financiatesteents.

Less than 4-5 After 5

Payments Due by Perioc Total 1 Year 1-3 Years Years Years
Contractual Obligations

Long-Term Debt, including current portic $ 6,02 $ — $ 1,291 $ 2,028 $ 2,707

Interest Expense Obligatiol 2,78C 525 1,07¢ 894 282

Asset Retirement Obligatior 181 3 5 11 162

Operating Lease 1,65¢ 144 274 222 1,01t

Purchase Obligatior 180 180 — — —
Other Commercial Commitments

Letters of Credi 19 3 4 — 12

The Company’s debt instruments contain certain gants which, among other things, limit additiomalébtedness, dividend
payments, certain investments and transactionsaffilfates. If the Company should fail to complytvthese covenants, amounts due under
the instruments may be accelerated at the noteehsldiscretion after the declaration of an evdrdefault.

Long-term debt obligations reflect only amountsoreled on the balance sheet as of December 31, 280&. December 31, 2005,
the outstanding obligation of $252 million of 9%r@ertible Senior Discount Notes due in 2013 hadameteted to its face value. These n
will accrete to their full face value of $295 milii in the fourth quarter of 2007.

Interest expense obligations assume interest oateariable rate debt do not change from DecembgP@05. In addition, interest is
calculated based on debt outstanding as of Dece®&Ih&005 and on existing maturity dates.

Purchase obligations represent all outstandinghase order amounts of the Company as of Decemh@085, and have not been
reduced for obligations that have been recordegiitain accounts on the consolidated balance shé&stcember 31, 2005.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Level 3 Communications, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheéisvel 3 Communications, Inc. (a Delaware corporgt@nd subsidiaries as of

December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related cdasedl statements of operations, cash flows, changteckholders’ equity (deficit) and
comprehensive loss for each of the years in theetlyear period ended December 31, 2005. Theselatated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupeesibility is to express an opinion on these ctidated financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with starsdafrthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on flasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegaferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Level 3
Communications, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Dece®be2005 and 2004, and the results of their djmgraand their cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthe?®5, in conformity with U.S. generally accepéadounting principles.

As discussed in note 1 to the consolidated findistéements, Level 3 Communications, Inc. and igiigoses adopted the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, A8ounting for Asset Retirement Obligatiorsfective January 1, 2003.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the effectiveness
of Level 3 Communications, Inc.’s internal contover financial reporting as of December 31, 20@s€edl on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cassion (COSO), and our report
dated March 1, 2006 expressed an unqualified opiaiomanagement’s assessment of, and the effeqtim@tion of, internal control over
financial reporting.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 1, 2006, except as to the effects of disoowtil operations
discussed in note 23, which is as of November 0062
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For each of the three years ended December 31, 2005

Revenue
Communication:
Coal mining
Total revenue
Costs and Expenses (exclusive of depreciation araitezation shown separately belo
Cost of revenue
Communication:
Coal mining
Total cost of revenue
Depreciation and amortizatic
Selling, general and administrati
Restructuring and impairment charges
Total costs and expenses
Operating Loss
Other Income (Expense
Interest incomi
Interest expens
Gains on early extinguishment of d«
Other, net
Total other income (expense)
Loss from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxed Change in Accounting Principle
Income Tax Benefit (Expense)
Loss from Continuing Operations

Discontinued Operation
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic
Gain on sale of discontinued operations
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Net Loss Before Change in Accounting Princi
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle
Net Loss
Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock (Basidluted):
Loss from Continuing Operatiol
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatic
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle
Net Loss

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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2005 2004 2003
(dollars in millions, except per
share data)

$ 1,645 $ 1,685 $ 1,947
74 91 80
1,71¢ 1,77€ 2,027

463 436 370
53 67 58
516 503 428
647 671 798
769 822 904
23 14 26

1,05¢ ~ 201C _ 2,156
(236) ~ (234) (129

35 13 18
(5300 (485 (567
— 197 41

29 32 (109)

(466) (243) (617)
(702) (477) (746)

(5) 1) 51
(707) (479) (695)

20 20 (21)
49 — —
69 20 (21)

(638) (458  (716)
5

$ (638 5 (458 § (710)

$ (1.01) $ (0.70 $ (1.23)
0.10 0.02  (0.04)
— 0.01

$ (091 § (067 $ (120




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004
(dollars in millions,
except per share

data)
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 379 $ 338
Marketable securitie 176 225
Restricted cash and securit 34 48
Receivables, less allowances for doubtful accooh$i7 and $17, respective 392 133
Current assets of discontinued operati 597 598
Other 92 60
Total Current Assets 1,67C 1,402
Property, Plant and Equipment, | 5,632 5,371
Marketable Securitie 234 114
Restricted Cash and Securit 75 67
Goodwill and Intangibles, n 291 200
Noncurrent Assets of Discontinued Operati 264 298
Other Assets, net 111 92

$ 82771 $ 7,544

Liabilities and Stockholde’ Deficit
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 367 $ 186
Current portion of lon-term debt — 143
Accrued payroll and employee bene 79 65
Accrued interes 102 73
Deferred revenu 199 192
Current liabilities of discontinued operatic 539 563
Other 137 80
Total Current Liabilities 1,425 1,30z
Long-Term Debt, less current portis 6,023 5,067
Deferred Revenu 737 836
Other Liabilities 570 496

Commitments and Contingenci

Stockholder Deficit:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 100@@shares: no shares outstanc — —
Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 1,5000@@shares: 817,767,818 outstanding in 2005 and

686,496,721 outstanding in 20 8 7
Additional paic-in capital 7,75¢ 7,371
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I (512) 19
Accumulated deficit (8,192) (7,554)

Total Stockholders’ Deficit (476) (157)

$ 82771 $ 7,544

See accompanying notes to consolidated financassients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For each of the three years ended December 31, 2005

2005 2004 2003
(dollars in millions)

Cash Flows from Operating Activitie

Net Loss $ (638 $ (458 $ (711)
(Income) loss from discontinued operatic (69) (20) 21
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — — (5)
Loss from continuing operations (707) (478) (695)

Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing ofieres to net cash used in operating activities of
continuing operations

Equity earnings — — 3)
Depreciation and amortizatic 647 671 798
Induced conversion expense on convertible — — 200
Gain on debt extinguishmer — (197) (42)
Loss on impairments and asset si 9 — —
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment, Comaealth Telephone shares and other a 9) (30) (74)
Non-cash compensation expense attributable to stockda 51 43 78
Deferred revenu (121) (66) (277)
Deferred income taxe — — (58)
Amortization of debt issuance co 16 16 42
Accreted interest on discount d¢ 33 75 106
Accrued interest on loi-term debt 30 (27) 25
Change in working capital items net of amounts aequ
Receivable! 3 (6) (72)
Other current asse (15) 13 20
Payables (12) (16) (13)
Other liabilities (26) (117) (37)
Other a7 (3) (6)
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities of ContinulDdgerations (118) (122) 7)
Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketaloigrities 584 70 —
Purchases of marketable securi (648) (410) —
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash and sexa 4) 21 9
Capital expenditure (300) (272) (153)
Advances to discontinued operations, 13 7 44
Investments (20) — (2)
WilTel acquisition, net of cash acquired of $1 (369 — —
Sprint acquisition, excluding g-assignment or assumption inco — (34) —
ICG acquisitior — (35) —
Genuity acquisitior — — (109)
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operat 82 — 20
Proceeds from sale of Commonwealth sh — 41 —
Proceeds from sale of toll road operati — — 46
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipnasm other investments 11 19 57
Net Cash Used in Investing Activitir $ (641) $ (593) $ (88)

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activitie
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance c
Payments and repurchases of -term debt, including current portic
Stock options exercised
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activil
Discontinued Operations (Revis—See Note 1)
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued opagadictivities
Net cash used in investing activiti
Net cash used in financing activiti
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equtgalen
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Discontinued Opens
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equigalen
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival:
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Y
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing opera
Cash and cash equivalents of discontinued opegation
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Y
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations
Cash and cash equivalents of discontinued opegation

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informati
Cash interest pai
Income taxes pai

Noncash Investing and Financing Activitir
Common stock issued in exchange for long term
Long-term debt principal retired by issuing common st
Accrued interest paid with common stc
Common stock issued for acquisitic
Long-term debt extinguished due to sale of toll roadrapens
Settlement of debt obligation and current lial@ktiwith restricted securitit
Capital leases assumed in Genuity transa
Decrease in deferred revenue related to acquisi
Warrants cancelled in exchange for constructionices

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#sients.
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2005

2004

2003

(dollars in millions)

$ 943 $ 985 $ 848

(1300 (1,027 (772
— — 3
813 @2) 79
(5) 58 43
(22) (4) (48)
(1) (1) —

(4) 3 2
(32) 56 3)
(13) 15 6

9 (686) 13)

338 1,08  1,09C
105 49 52

$ 379 338 $ 1,08C
$ 73 105 $ 49
$ 451 421 $ 394
$  — — $ 953
— — 1,007

— — 10
313 — 29
— — 139

13 — 410

— — 309

2 — 76

— — (2)




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
For each of the three years ended December 31, 2005

Balances at December 31, 2(
Common Stock

Issued to extinguish lo-term debi

Stock options exercise

Stock plan grant

Shareworks pla

401(k) plan

Warrants cancelle

Telverse acquisitio
Net Loss
Other Comprehensive Income
Balances at December 31, 2003
Common Stock

Stock plan grant

Shareworks pla

401(k) plan

Convertible Note Hedge and Warrant (See

Note 14)

Net Loss
Other Comprehensive Income
Balances at December 31, 2004
Common Stock

WilTel acquisition

Stock plan grant

Shareworks pla

401(k) plan
Net Loss
Other Comprehensive Loss
Balances at December 31, 2005

Additional

Accumulated
Other

Common Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated
Stock Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Total
(dollars in millions)
4 $ 6,275 $ (132) $ (6,385) $ (240)
3 950 — — 953
— 3 — — 3
— 57 — — 57
— 36 — — 36
— 14 — — 14
— (2) — — (2)
— 29 — — 29
— — — (712) (712)
— — 42 — 42
7 7,36( (90) (7,096) 181
— 22 — — 22
— 34 — — 34
— 17 — — 17
— (62) — — (62)
— — — (458) (458)
— — 109 — 109
7 7,371 19 (7,554) (157)
1 312 — — 313
— 37 — — 37
— 24 — — 24
— 15 — — 15
— — — (638) (639)
— — (70) — (70)
8 $ 7,75¢ $ (51) $ (8,192) $ (476)

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For each of the three years ended December 31, 2005

Net Loss

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before 1
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on marketablétyggecurities and other arising during per
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) lossesudet in net loss

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before Tax

Income Tax Benefit Related to Items of Other Corhpresive Income (Loss)

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Taxes

Comprehensive Loss

SUPPLEMENTARY STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT INFORMATION

2005

2004

2003

(dollars in millions)

$ (638) $ (458) $ (711)

(72) 29 31
1) (2) 14
3 82 ©)
(70) ~ 109 42
0 105 42

$ (708 $ (349) $ (669)

Net Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustment Other Total
(dollars in millions)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Ic
Balance at January 1, 20 $ (113) $ (19) $ (132
Change 29 13 42
Balance at December 31, 2003 (84) (6) (90)
Change 134 (25) 109
Balance at December 31, 2004 50 (32) 19
Change (69) (1) (70)
Balance at December 31, 2005 $ (19) $ 32) $ (51)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include twants of Level 3 Communications, Inc. and subsiés (the “Company” or
“Level 3”) in which it has control, which are engabin enterprises primarily related to communiaagiand coal mining. Fifty-percent-owned
mining joint ventures are consolidated on a pra basis. Investments in other companies in whiefCtbmpany exercises significant
influence over operating and financial policieshas significant equity ownership are accountedjothe equity method. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have basaimated.

On December 23, 2005, Level 3 acquired WilTel Comitations Group, LLC and its operating subsidia(i®gilTel”). The
financial position, results of operations and cialvs attributable to WilTel are included in thensmlidated financial statements from the «
of acquisition (See Note 2).

On September 7, 2006, Level 3 sold Software Spagthoc. (“Software Spectrum”), the Company’s softeveeseller business, to
Insight Enterprises, Inc. (“Insight EnterprisesQn November 30, 2005, Level 3 sold)Gtructure, LLC (“(i) Structure”), Level 3's wholly-
owned IT infrastructure management outsourcingididry to Infocrossing, Inc. (“Infocrossing”). Theo businesses comprised Level 3's
information services segment. The results of dpers, financial condition and cash flows for theft®%are Spectrum andi (Structure
businesses have been classified as discontinuedtmpes in the consolidated financial statementsrahated footnotes for all periods
presented in this report (See Note 3 and 23).

In 2003, Level 3 sold the Midwest Fiber Optic Netlw¢'MFON”) business acquired in the Genuity, liftGenuity”) transaction.
The results of operations and cash flows for thisitess have also been classified as discontinpeiitions in the consolidated financial
statements for all periods presented (See Note 3).

Communications

The Company’s communications business providesaddorange of integrated communications servicesgrily in the United
States and Europe as a facilittegsed provider (that is, a provider that owns asés a substantial portion of the property, pladtequipmer
necessary to provide its services). The Companyieged, through a combination of constructiomcpase and leasing of facilities and o
assets, an advanced international, end-to-enditifsszbased communications network. The Comparsythélt and continues to upgrade the
network based on optical and Internet Protocolrietisgies in order to leverage the efficiencieshafse technologies to provide lower cost
communications services.

Revenue for communications services, includinggigvine, wavelengths, colocation, Internet acaessiaged modem, voice, video
and dark fiber, is recognized monthly as the ses/@re provided based on contractual amounts eg&xbe collected. If, at the time
services are rendered, collection is not reasoredsyred either due to credit risk, the potentiabflling disputes or other reasons, revenue is
not recognized until such contingencies are resblReciprocal compensation revenue is recognizgdvaimen an interconnection agreement
is in place with another carrier.

Certain sale and long-term IRU agreements of dasefand capacity are required to be accountethftire same manner as sales of
real estate with property improvements or integrplipment. This accounting treatment results irdéferral of the cash that has been
received and the recognition of revenue ratably tve term of the agreement (currently up to 20gkea

Termination revenue is recognized when a custorisepdtinues service prior to the end of the contpaciod, for which Level 3 he
previously received consideration and for whicheraye recognition was deferred. Termination revésagso recognized when customers
make termination penalty payments to Level 3 tdesebntractually committed purchase amounts thatctistomer no longer expects to meet
or when a customer and Level 3 renegotiate a contrader which Level 3 is no longer obligated toyide services for consideration
previously received and for which revenue recognitias been deferred. Termination revenue is regpantthe same manner as the original
service provided, and amounted to $133 million,3ddillion and $346 million in 2005, 2004 and 208&spectively (See Note 4).

The Company is obligated under dark fiber IRUs aifer capacity agreements to maintain its networfficient working order an
in accordance with industry standards. Customer®hligated for the term of the agreement to payffeir
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allocable share of the costs for operating and tamiimg the network. The Company recognizes thismae monthly as services are provic

Level 3's customer contracts require the Companméet certain service level commitments. If Levelo®&s not meet the required
service levels, it may be obligated to provide éeedisually in the form of free service, for a ghgeriod of time. The original services that
resulted in the credits are not included in revesm to date, have not been material.

Cost of revenue for the communications businedsidies leased capacity, right-of-way costs, acckasyes and other third party
circuit costs directly attributable to the netwoak, well as costs of assets sold pursuant to sgledeases, but excludes depreciation and
amortization and related impairment expenses. Tdrefany also includes in communications cost of meeghe satellite transponder lease
costs, the package delivery costs and the blarkraglia costs attributable to the video business.

The Company recognizes the cost of network sengsdbey are incurred in accordance with contrdcagairements. The Compa
disputes incorrect billings from its suppliers etwork services. The most prevalent types of desputclude disputes for circuits that are not
disconnected by its supplier on a timely basisasaie bills with incorrect or inadequate informatiDepending on the type and complexity
of the issues involved, it may take several quarterresolve the disputes.

In determining the amount of these expenses aaterehccrued liabilities to reflect in its finarlgéatements, the Company
considers the adequacy of documentation of disadmuices, compliance with prevailing contractterjuirements for submitting these
disconnect notices and disputes to the providéhehetwork services, and compliance with its taenection agreements with these carr
Significant judgment is required in estimating thémate outcome of the dispute resolution procassyell as any other amounts that may be
incurred to conclude the negotiations or settlelaigation. Actual results could vary from the iesated amounts accrued for disputes.

The Company may periodically enter into agreemengquire network assets from other telecommuiicatservice carriers. The
carriers may in turn acquire network assets fromel 8. Transactions in which Level 3 transfers metassets to and acquires network as
from the same third party at or about the same &iregeferred to as “contemporaneous transactidimese transactions would generally be
recorded as non-monetary exchanges of similarsaasébok value, as these transactions do notgepréhe culmination of an earnings
process. Contemporaneous transactions do not ieshk recognition of revenue. Net cash or othenetary assets paid or received in
contemporaneous transactions are recorded as @straépt to the book value of the transferred pityp@he adjusted book value becomes
the carrying value of the transferred propertynpbnd equipment. The Company did not enter ingéseahtypes of agreements during the three
years ended December 31, 2005. Beginning Janu&@08, the Company will measure -monetary assets exchanges at fair value in
accordance with SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Non-dary Assets”, (“SFAS No. 153").

Competition

The communications industry is highly competitiMany of the Company’s existing and potential cortpeg in the
communications industry have financial, personmaltketing and other resources significantly gretiten those of the Company, as well as
other competitive advantages including larger austobases. Increased consolidation and stratdgio@és in the industry resulting from the
Telecommunications Act of 1996, the opening ofth8. market to foreign carriers, technological athes and further deregulation could
give rise to significant new competitors to the Qamy.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company provides communications services tala vange of customers, ranging from well capitdinational carriers to
smaller, early stage companies. The Company hplede policies and procedures to review the fir@remndition of potential and existing
customers and concludes that collectibility of rawe and other out-of-pocket expenses is probaite forthe commencement of services. If
the financial condition of an existing customeradigtrates to a point where payment for servicés @goubt, the Company will not recognize
revenue attributable to that customer until cagkdgived. As a result of the WilTel acquisition2i®05, the total number of customers
increased to approximately 5,000 at December 305 2A significant portion of WilTel's revenue igidbutable to SBC Services, Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of AT&T Inc. (“SBC") and asresult, due to the credit worthiness of SBC,Gbenpany does not believe its overall
credit risk has increased significantly. The pasand procedures for reviewing the financial ciowliand recognizing revenues of these
additional customers related to the WilTel acqigairemained consistent with those described abbive.Company has from time to time
entered into agreements with valagded resellers and other channel partners to maumer and enterprise markets for voice servides
Company has policies and procedures in place tuawathe financial condition of these reselleiisipto initiating service to the final
customer. The Company is not immune from the effe€the downturn in the communications
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industry; however, management believes the coratorrof credit risk with respect to receivablesigigated due to the dispersion of the
Company’s customer base among different industnelsgeographic areas and remedies provided bt tof contracts and statutes.

A significant portion of Level 3's communicationsrsgice revenue is concentrated among a limited murobcustomers. Revenue
attributable to Time Warner Inc. and subsidiariesluding America Online, amounted, on an aggregatas, to $288 million, $374 million
and $450 million for the years ended December 80522004 and 2003, respectively, representingaqpiately 8 percent, 10 percent and
11 percent of consolidated revenue for the respegears and is included within the Communicatieegment on the consolidated statements
of operations. If Level 3 would lose one or morganaustomers, or if one or more major customegsificantly decreased its orders for
Level 3 services, the Company’s communicationsriass would be materially and adversely affected.

The Company’s DSL aggregation services were prignprovided to a single customer on an exclusivedm certain markets,
which exclusivity expired at the end of the firstagter of 2005. The customer completed the mignadfdats existing DSL customers to its
own network during the third quarter of 2005.

As part of the WilTel transaction, the Company aesgicertain contracts with SBC that representga@pmately 66% of WilTel's
2005 revenue. The Company expects SBC to be disaymti customer in 2006.

Discontinued Information Services

Software Spectrum is a global reseller of busirsefsvare, primarily to large and medium sized besges. Revenue is recognizel
either an agency fee, whereby sales under ceitainsing programs permit Software Spectrum to rei@egonly a service fee paid by the
software publisher as revenue, or on a “gross”shasivhich case the Company recognizes the fullevaf the software sold as revenue.
Accounting literature provides guidance to enablepanies to determine whether revenues from thedlires of goods and services should
recorded on a “gross” or “net” basis. The Compaeljelves that the facts and circumstances, partigulaose involving pricing and credit
risk indicate that the majority of Software Spenttsi sales should be recorded on a “gross” basis.|atitude and ability of Software
Spectrum to establish the selling price to theamast is an important indication of “gross” revemaporting. The assumption of credit risk is
another important factor in determining “gross” s “net” reporting. Software Spectrum has theaesibility to pay suppliers for all
products ordered, regardless of when, or if, itewt$ from its customers. Software Spectrum is stdely responsible for determining the
creditworthiness of its customers.

Microsoft Corporation, a significant supplier offtseare to Software Spectrum, changed certain licgngrograms in 2001 whereby
new enterprise-wide licensing arrangements aregyicilled and collected directly by Microsoft.2003, several other suppliers, for whom
Software Spectrum resells products and serviceggrbadopting this type of program. Software Spectwill continue to provide sales and
support services related to these transactionsvihearn a service fee directly from the softwatelishers for these activities. Under this
licensing program, Software Spectrum only recoghthe service fee paid by the software publishee@snue and not the entire value of the
software. The Company continues to sell producteeumarious licensing programs, but beginning i@2Mas experienced an increase in the
level of sales under these new programs and maregempects further adoption of agency licensirggams in the future. If Microsoft and
other software publishers are able to successfulhyement and sell a significant amount of softwmaméer this program, or it is determined
that the accounting for reselling of the softwdreldd be recorded on a “net” basis, the Company exggrience a significant decline in
information services revenue, but will also expecea comparable decline in cost of revenue.

Microsoft is the primary provider of business safte/to the Company’s Software Spectrum businedgiciosoft should
successfully implement programs for the direct sélgoftware through volume purchase agreementséher arrangements intended to
exclude the distribution or resale channel, Sofen&pectrum’s results of operations would be mdlg@ad adversely affected.

In 2005, Microsoft notified Software Spectrum obposed changes to Microsoft's sales agency prograich, once finalized by
Microsoft, will take effect for customer contraetstered into after July 1, 2006. All contracts ctetgxd prior to July 1, 2006, will be
grandfathered under the existing sales agency anogdnder the proposed revised program for agemmy sales as currently drafted, the
number of performance metrics against which So#v&pectrum is measured and the standard of penficenan those metrics are expected
to increase. Based on a preliminary evaluation mfdéoft's proposed program changes, Software Sp@oexpects that the amount of
agency fees it earns from Microsoft will be reduosdr the thregrear period in which it is implemented. Due to gnendfathering of existir
sales agency program sales, however, Software iBpeeinticipates that the program changes will moeha significant effect on Software
Spectrums results of operation or financial position in 80Microsoft has yet to finalize the proposed clem@nd thus Software Spectrur
not able to definitively determine the effects oithdsoft’'s proposed changes on its results of dmera and financial position after July 1,
2006.

Revenue is recognized from software sales at the ¢f product shipment, or in accordance with #rms of licensing contracts,
when the price to the customer is fixed, and ctlddity is reasonably assured. Revenue from maiatee contracts is recognized when
invoiced, the license period has commenced, wheptice to the customer is fixed, and collectipilg reasonably assured, as Software
Spectrum has no future obligations associated fuitire performance under these maintenance costradvzance billings are recorded as
deferred revenue until services are provided.

Cost of revenue for Software Spectrum includesctiicests of the licensing activity and costs tocpase and distribute software.
costs directly attributable to advance billings de¢erred and included in other current and nomeurassets in the consolidated balance sheet
Rebate income received from software publisheredegnized as a reduction of cost of revenue irpgred in which the rebate is earned
based on a systematic allocation of the total e=lvaiome considered probable of being reali



Competition

The information services industry is highly compedi. Many of the Compang’competitors in the industry have financial, mérig
and other resources significantly greater thangtudshe Company. In addition, the Company’s sofearaselling business could be adversely
affected if major software publishers successfutiplement or expand programs for the direct salsoftfvare through volume purchase
agreements or other arrangements intended to extheddistribution or resale channel.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s customer base consists of severasémal accounts including corporations, governmgeneies, educational
institutions, non-profit organizations and othesibess entities. For the year ended December 35, 2@ single customer represented more
than 10 percent of information services revenue distomer base is represented by a large numis@rine 500 and Fortune Global 500
companies and the Company does not believe thddvskef any single customer would have a matadakrse effect on its revenues.

Coal Mining

Historically, coal sold by Level 3's coal miningenations has been sold primarily under long-termtraets with public utilities,
which burn coal in order to generate steam to predilectricity. A substantial portion of Level &sal revenue was earned from long-term
contracts during 2005, 2004, and 2003. The remaiofdeevel 3's sales are made on the spot markest<of revenue related to coal sales
include costs of mining and processing, estimagethmation costs, royalties and production taxes.

The long-term contracts for the delivery of coabefish the price, volume, and quality requiremeaftthe coal to be delivered. The
contracts also contain provisions for periodic prijustments through the use of indices for iteuth as materials, supplies and labor. Other
portions of the price are adjusted for changegaayction taxes, royalties and changes in costamew legislation or regulation. These
contractual adjustments are recognized in reveauleachanges occur and become billable to themess.

The terms and conditions of the lotegm contracts generally require the customer tetraenual contractual commitments. Thus
customer has the ability to defer or acceleraté sli@ments during the year to meet its requiresidRévenue under these contracts is
recognized when coal is actually shipped to théotner.

Competition

The coal industry is highly competitive. Level Shmoetes with other domestic and foreign coal supglimost of whom are larger
and have greater capital resources devoted tooddenining business than Level 3, and with altemeamethods of generating electricity and
alternative energy sources. Many of Level 3's cotit@s are served by two railroads and, due tactirapetition, often benefit from lower
transportation costs than Level 3, which at eadtsahines is served by a single railroad. Addisittyy many competitors have more favora
geological conditions than Level 3, often resultindower comparative costs of production.

Level 3 is also required to comply with variousdeal, state and local laws concerning protectiothefenvironment. Level 3
believes its compliance with environmental promtind land restoration laws will not affect itsmqmetitive position since its competitors .
similarly affected by these laws.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Level 3's coal sales contracts are concentrateld s@veral electric utility and industrial companiksthe event that these customers
do not fulfill contractual responsibilities, Lev@lcould pursue the available legal remedies.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses irckalaries, wages and related benefits (includiregges for stock based

compensation), property taxes, travel, insurara®, contract maintenance, advertising and othemiradtrative

F- 32




expenses.
Advertising Costs

Level 3 expenses the cost of advertising as indu#kedvertising expense is included as a componeselting, general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying catestglil statements of operations. Advertising experse$6 million, $17 million and
$29 million for the years ended December 31, 2@094 and 2003, respectively.

Rent Expense

The Company recognizes rent expense on a striighbasis over the term of the lease based ofutbee minimum rental paymer
during the lease term.

Stock-Based Employee Compensation

The Company has accounted for stock-based emptmrapensation using a fair value based method parsa&FAS No. 123
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS.N@3") since 1998. The Company recognizes expasieg the accelerated vesting
methodology of FASB Interpretation No. 28 “Accoungtifor Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variabteck Option or Award
Plans” (“FIN 28") (See Note 15). Beginning Janu&n2006, Level 3 will adopt the provisions of SFANS. 123R, “Share-Based Payment.”
Depreciation and Amortization

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Baegireciation and amortization for the Companytgperty, plant and equipment
are computed on straight-line and acceleratedc@dain coal assets) methods based on the follouseful lives:

Facility and Leasehold Improvemel 10- 40 yeas
Network Infrastructure (including fiber and condt 7 - 25 yeas
Operating Equipmer 3-7yeas
Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipme 2-7yeas

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over thrteshad their estimated useful lives or lease tetihas are reasonably assured.
Depletion on mineral properties is provided on #sdof-extraction basis determined in relation é@lccommitted under sales

contracts. The Company’s coal mining business doesise its coal reserve estimates for purposdsmi&tion but, rather, depletes the
properties over the estimated recoverable tongaifthat are required to be delivered under exjstival contracts.
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Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share have been compsied the weighted average number of shares dednb period. Diluted earnin
(loss) per share is computed by including the nuéffect of common stock that would be issuediadésg conversion or exercise of
outstanding convertible notes, stock options, stiaded compensation awards and other dilutive giesuNo such items were included in
computation of diluted loss per share in 2005, 2602003 due to the losses from continuing openatiacurred by the Company.

Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thedagdadmount and can bear interest. The allowancdofaotful accounts is the
Company’s best estimate of the amount of probataldittlosses in the Company’s existing accountsivable. The Company determines the
allowance based on an analysis of the aging ofiticeunts receivable balance. The Company revienadldwance for doubtful accounts
quarterly. Past due balances over 90 days andaoseecified amount are reviewed individually folectibility. Account balances are
charged off against the allowance after all medrtollection have been exhausted and the potéiotiakcovery is considered remote. The
Company does not have any off-balance sheet arpdsure related to its customers.

Restricted Cash

The Company classifies any cash or other secuthigscollateralize outstanding letters of creldihg-term debt, or certain operating
or performance obligations of the Company as i@stlicash. The Company also classifies cash or séwarrities restricted to fund certain
reclamation liabilities as restricted cash. Thesiffication of restricted cash on the consoliddtaldnce sheet as current or noncurrent is
dependent on the duration of the restriction aeddtlrpose for which the restriction exists.

Gooduwill and Intangible Assets

The Company segregates identifiable intangibletasgsuired in an acquisition from goodwill. In amtance with SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS Nat2l'), goodwill is no longer amortized, and is eslked for impairment at least annually
based on the fair value of the reporting unit taclitthe goodwill relates.

Intangible assets primarily include customer carnsacustomer relationships and technology acquirédisiness combinations.
These assets are amortized on a straight-line basisthe expected period of benefit which rangesf2 to 11 years. Certain intangibles
acquired in the WilTel transaction have an indéditife.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews the carrying amount of longdiassets or groups of assets, at the lowestlagsktvhere cash flow is
separately measurable, for impairment wheneverte\@rchanges in circumstances indicate that thging amount may not be recoverable.
The determination of any impairment includes a cangon of the estimated future undiscounted opegatash flows anticipated to be
generated during the remaining life of the ass#émet carrying value of the asset.

Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company follows the policy of providing an aarfor reclamation of mined properties in accorawith SFAS No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SBANo. 143"), based on the estimated total cos¢storation of such properties to meet
compliance with laws governing surface mining. Thestimated costs are calculated based on thetexd@ture risk adjusted cash flows to
remediate such properties discounted at a riskrfrtee The Company also provides an accrual fdgatibns related to certain colocation
leases and right-of-way agreements in accordantteSHAS No. 143, based on the estimated totalafagtstoration of such properties to
their original condition. These estimated obligai@re calculated based on the expected futureutised cash flows using the Company’s
estimated weighted average cost of capital atithe the obligation is incurred and applying a piuliy factor for conditional restoration
obligations. Changes in expected future cash flamesdiscounted at interest rates that were in effiethe time of the original estimate for
downward revision to such cash flows, and at irster&tes in effect at the time of the change favangl revisions in the expected future cash
flows.
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Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided for the tempyadidferences between the financial reporting andldasis of the Company’s
assets and liabilities using enacted tax ratefféttefor the year in which the differences areeotpd to reverse. Net operating losses not
utilized can be carried forward for 20 years tasefffuture taxable income. A valuation allowancs heen recorded against deferred tax
assets, as the Company is unable to conclude ueldeant accounting standards that it is moreyikiehn not that deferred tax assets will be
realizable.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes income (lasd)other non-owner related changes in equitymatided in income (loss),
such as unrealized gains and losses on marketatileities classified as available for sale, foreigrrency translation adjustments related to
foreign subsidiaries, and other adjustments.

Foreign Currencies

Generally, local currencies of foreign subsidiaaes the functional currencies for financial repartpurposes. Assets and liabilities
are translated into U.S. dollars at year-end exgbaates. Revenue, expenses and cash flows astatexhusing average exchange rates
prevailing during the year. Gains or losses resglffom currency translation are recorded as a corapt of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’ deéind in the statements of comprehensive lossghifgiant portion of the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries have the Euro as its functionerency, which experienced significant fluctoas against the U.S. dollar during 2005,
2004 and 2003. As a result, the Company has experkesignificant foreign currency translation atquents which are recognized as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive indtoes) in stockholders’ deficit and in the statetnaf comprehensive loss.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities and disclosur@atingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported ansoofitevenues and expenses during the reportingdo&rhe most critical estimates and
assumptions are made in determining the allowancddubtful accounts, revenue reserves, whetheaimmgnt charges are necessary, useful
lives of fixed assets, accruals for estimated litdos that are probable and estimatable, cosewémue disputes for the communications
services, unfavorable contract liabilities set mpiurchase accounting and asset retirement oldigamtiActual results could differ from those
estimates and assumptions.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123Raf&Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS No.R 28quires that
compensation cost relating to share-based paymargections be recognized in the financial statésrggmsed on the fair value of equity or
liability instruments issued. The U.S. Securitiad &xchange Commission extended the effective @fa®-AS No. 123R such that the
Company is first required to adopt SFAS No. 123Rit@ng January 1, 2006. The adoption of SFAS Nd@RLon January 1, 2006 is not
expected to have a significant effect on the Comisdimancial position or results of operationstias Company adopted the expense
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accountifog Stock-Based Compensation” in 1998.

After adopting SFAS No. 123R, the Company expextditize a modified Black-Scholes model to valuy autperform stock
options granted to employees. The Company belighatshe relative short life of the options and tlieer variables used in the model proy
a reasonable estimate of the fair value of theoopdt the time of grant.

The FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Non-®ary Assets”, which is effective for Level 3 sitagtJanuary 1, 2006.
Under SFAS No. 153, the Company will measure asseatisanged at fair value, as long as the trangsabtis commercial substance and the
fair value of the assets exchanged is determinaitten reasonable limits. A non-monetary exchangse tommercial substance if the future
cash flows of the entity are expected to changeifsigntly as a result of the exchange. The adoptioSFAS No. 153 is not anticipated to
have a material effect on the Company’s financisifion or results of operations as Level 3 is dyp@ a limited number of non-monetary
transactions and those transactions have not bagariai.

Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 04A&counting for Stripping Costs Incurred duringoBuction in
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the Mining Industry” (“EITF No. 04-6") establisheppropriate accounting for stripping costs incumadng the production phase and is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Decemb®gy 2005, with early adoption permitted. EITF R4-6 concludes that stripping costs
incurred during the production phase of a minevaréble production costs that should be includethé costs of the inventory produced
during the period that the stripping costs aretiredl EITF No. 04-6 further defines inventory prodd as mineral that has been extracted. As
a result, stripping costs related to exposed, btiertracted mineral will be expensed as incuregdar than deferred until the mineral is
extracted. The Company’s coal mining business atlgrelefers stripping costs and amortizes thestsanger the period in which the
underlying coal is mined. The Company expects ttapaon of EITF No. 04-6 beginning January 1, 2086 not have a significant effect on
the Company’s financial position or results of @iEms.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretatitm 47 “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retiremétiligations,” (“FIN
47"). FIN 47 provides additional clarification aswhen companies should recognize asset retirealdigations pursuant to SFAS No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” TBempany’s adoption of FIN 47, effective on Decem®kr2005, did not have a material
effect on the Compang’results of operations or financial position agdle recognized the discounted value of its cooétl asset retireme
obligations when it adopted SFAS No. 143 at tharbegg of 2003.

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement No. 154 ctdmting Changes and Error Corrections—a replacenfedPB Opinion
No. 20 and FASB Statement N¢’, (“SFAS No. 154").This Statement requires retroactive applicatioprior period financial statements ¢
voluntary change in accounting principle unless impracticable and is effective for fiscal yebegjinning after December 15, 2005.
Previously, most voluntary changes in accountingaiple were recognized by including the cumulagffect of changing to the new
accounting principle in net income of the periodta change. The adoption of SFAS No. 154 is npeeted to have a significant effect on
the Company’s financial position or results of @iEms.

Reclassifications

Certain current and prior year amounts have bedagsified to conform to the September 30, 2008qrttion as filed in the
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended Septer8Be2006.

In 2005 the Company has separately disclosed temtipg, investing and financing portion of thefcflews attributable to its
discontinued operations, which in prior periodseveaported on a combined basis as a single amount.

(2) Acquisitions

WilTel: On December 23, 2005, the Company completeddtpeisition of WilTel Communications Group, LLC (“Wel”), from
Leucadia National Corporation and its subsidiafiegether “Leucadia”). The consideration paid cetesl of approximately $390 million in
cash (which included a $16 million adjustment fstiraated excess working capital), plus $100 miliorcash to reflect Leucadia’s having
complied with its obligation to leave that amouhtash in WilTel, and 115 million newly issued ugistered shares of Level 3 common
stock, valued at $313 million. The Company alsained costs of approximately $7 million relatedhe transaction. The cash purchase price
is subject to post-closing adjustments based amabeatorking capital and other contractual itemefhe closing date. Level 3 entered into
certain transactions with WilTel prior to the acijtion of WilTel by Level 3, whereby it receivedstafor communications services to be
provided in the future. As a result of the acqiosit Level 3 can no longer amortize this defermgenue into earnings and accordingly,
reduced the purchase price applied to the netsaasqtiired in the WilTel transaction by $2 milliehe amount of the unamortized deferred
revenue balance on December 23, 2005. The redusenations attributable to WilTel are includedlive consolidated financial statements
from the date of acquisition.

The acquisition includes all of WilTel's communiicats business and WilTel's Vyvx video transmisdiusiness. The acquisition
also includes a multi-year contract between SB@iSeyInc. and WilTel (“SBC Master Services Agreeantie Recently, SBC Services Inc.
became a subsidiary of AT&T, Inc. (“AT&T") (togeth&SBC”) and announced its intention to migrate sieevices provided by WilTel to the
merged SBC Services, Inc. and AT&T network. Wil&ad SBC amended the SBC Master Services Agreement through 2009 and it
provides a gross margin purchase commitment of $38mn from December 2005 through the end of 20&Td $75 million from
January 2008 through the end of 2009. Only purchaten-net services count toward satisfactiorns purchase commitment. Originating
and terminating access charges paid to local pbomgpanies are passed through to SBC in accordaititefiormula that approximates cost.
Additionally, the SBC Master Services Agreementvites for the payment of $50 million from SBC ifrtz@n performance criteria are met
Level 3 in 2006 and 2007. If Level 3 meets the genfance criteria it is eligible to earn $25 millian2006 and $25 million in 2007.

As specified in the purchase agreement with LeagadfilTel transferred certain excluded assets tachdia and
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Leucadia assumed certain excluded liabilities. &auded assets include all cash and cash equisdleexcess of $100 million at closing,
all marketable securities, WilTel's headquartergding located in Tulsa, Oklahoma and certain otiéscellaneous assets. In addition,
WilTel assigned to Leucadia all of its right to @a@ cash payments from SBC totaling $236 milljpursuant to the Termination, Mutual
Release and Settlement Agreement, dated June @5, @hong Leucadia, WilTel and SBC. The excludahilities include all of WilTel's
long-term debt obligations, WilTel's obligationsder its defined benefit pension plan, certain otraployee related liabilities and other
claims. The agreement required Leucadia to paylirafi of WilTel's obligations under its credit empment and for Leucadia to release
WilTel from any obligation under the outstandingnigage note secured by its headquarters buildiegel3 entered into an agreement with
Leucadia to lease a portion of the former WilTehthguarters building in Tulsa.

Preliminary Purchase Price Allocatic

Under business combination accounting, the to&limimary purchase price was allocated to WilTeks tangible and identifiable
intangible assets based on their estimated fairegahs of December 23, 2005 as set forth belowpfdianinary allocation of the purchase
price was based upon a preliminary valuation aeddbmpany’s estimates and assumptions are subjebaihge upon the receipt and
management’s review of the final valuation andfthal determination of restructuring costs as disct below. The primary areas of the
purchase price allocation that are not yet finaliggate to tangible and identifiable intangiblsets, the fair value of deferred revenue, the
value of certain assumed long-term lease and estireiment obligations and restructuring costs.

Tangible and Intangible Long-Lived Assets

In performing the preliminary purchase price altima the Company considered, among other factbesintention for future use of
acquired assets, analyses of historical finan@édiopmance and estimates of future performance itfF&ls products. The fair value of assets
was based, in part, on a preliminary valuation gisirtost and income approach and estimates anchpissas provided by management. The
tangible assets primarily include the real and geaisproperty used to provide communications adéwiservices. In addition, tangible assets
include the fair value of software purchased orefigyved by WilTel. The intangible assets have deabée lives ranging from 2 to 11 years.
Intangible assets primarily include customer relahips and the Vyvx trademark. Management hagglan indefinite life on the Vyvx
trademark and lives ranging from 6 to 11 yearsHercustomer relationships.

Deferred Revenu

The estimated fair value of deferred revenue inetlith the preliminary purchase price allocation determined based on monthly
amounts billed in advance for which services wdlgrovided to customers in the next month. Levaid3not record deferred revenue for
long-term contracts in which WilTel had alreadya®ed consideration from the customer as Level&dwmt expect to incur any direct and
incremental costs associated with the contracts.

Current and Noncurrent Obligations

The fair value of WilTel's current liabilities waketermined based on the expected cash flows fardketwelve months. Level 3 did
not present value the cash flows as it does naa@xpe present values to be significantly diffetban the gross cash flows.

The noncurrent obligations assumed in the WilTahsaction have been recorded at their present ualog an appropriate interest
rate. The Company has identified certain WilTellfages that it does not expect to utilize for tbembined business. The Company has not
completed this analysis and may identify additiomadess facilities for which restructuring liabds may be necessary. The Company has
revalued WilTel's asset retirement obligations gdievel 3's weighted cost of capital rather thadT's weighted cost of capital.

Sprint:  On October 1, 2004, the Company acquired the egadé dial Internet access business of Sprint Carwations Compan)
L.P. (“Sprint”). Level 3 paid $34 million in cash acquire the business, which provides dial-uprieaccess to leading Internet service
providers (“ISPs”) throughout the United States agtkeed to provide discounted services to Sprattwere valued at $5 million, which was
accounted for as part of the purchase price. L&a#ld Sprint entered into a transition services@gent for the migration of customers onto
the Level 3 network, which Level 3 completed in thied quarter of 2005. During the migration periodtil such time as a customer contract
was assumed or assigned, amounts received forssmiovided by Sprint were accounted for as aatémiuin purchase price as opposed to
revenue. The net amount received prior to the aggamor assignment of these contracts totaled #l®omthrough December 31, 2005 and
therefore reduced the purchase price to $29 millWgith the completion of the migration activitiesvel 3 recognizes as
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revenue, amounts received from all customer cotsti@auired in this transaction. The results ofrafiens attributable to the Sprint assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are included éndbnsolidated financial statements from the dasssumption or assignment of contracts.

ICG: On April 1, 2004, the Company acquired the whalleslial access customer contracts of ICG Commtiaits Inc. (“ICG”).
The Company agreed to pay approximately $35 milliocash to acquire the contracts and related egrip, which provide dial-up Internet
access to various large customers and other le&8Pg The terms of the agreement required Letelgay $25 million at closing and
additional payments of $5 million on both July 002 and October 1, 2004. The purchase price wge®ub post-closing adjustments, but
those adjustments were not material. Level 3 mégr#ite traffic from the customer contracts acquirech ICG onto its own network
infrastructure and the migration was substantiedisnplete by the end of 2004. The results of opemnatattributable to the ICG assets acqt
and liabilities assumed are included in the codstdid financial statements from the date of actiisi

Telverse: Level 3 completed the acquisition of Telverse Gamications, Inc. (“Telverse”), a provider of hast®-based voice
services for enterprises, in July 2003 for appratety $29 million in Level 3 common stock (approzimly 4.2 million shares) and $2 milli
in cash consideration. Telverse’s revenues andtsesuoperations are included in the consolidatiedements of operations from the date of
acquisition. The financial results of Telverse ptmacquisition were immaterial to Level 3. Managat’s preliminary allocation of the
purchase price resulted in the consideration, dinlytransaction costs, plus assumed liabilitieseerding the fair value of the identifiable
tangible assets acquired by approximately $32 anillivhich was initially recorded as goodwill. Therffpany completed its assessment o
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in theefgdvtransaction in the fourth quarter of 2003 cWwhiesulted in allocating the purchase price
consideration primarily to developed technologyuced with an insignificant amount allocated totomser contracts.

Genuity: In 2003, Level 3 completed the acquisition ofstahtially all of the assets and operations of @gna Tier 1 Internet
Protocol (IP) communications company. The totahaamsideration, including transaction costs, wasa@ximately $144 million including
approximately $60 million in cash consideratiortte Genuity Bankruptcy Estate plus approximately 8illion in cash to reimburse the
estate for payments on assumed capital lease tibligaelated to network operating equipment. Iditah, Level 3 assumed certain of
Genuity’s long term operating agreements. Leveitéred into certain transactions with Genuity ptethe acquisition of the assets and
operations of Genuity by Level 3, whereby it reegivash for communications services to be provildeide future. As a result of the
acquisition, Level 3 could no longer amortize tthéserred revenue into earnings and accordinglyjaed the purchase price applied to the net
assets acquired in the Genuity transaction by $iflom the amount of the unamortized deferred rewebalance on February 4, 2003. The
preliminary fair value of the assets acquired aabilities assumed was subsequently adjusted d@®®3 based upon actual settlements
between the Genuity Bankruptcy Estate and Level pést closing adjustments, which reduced thehasge price paid by Level 3 by
$35 million, as well as increased the liabilitissamed by $4 million. This resulted primarily idecrease in the value assigned to property,
plant and equipment and identifiable intangiblestssT he results of operations attributable toGlkauity assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are included in the consolidated finastééments from the date of acquisition.

The unaudited financial information in the tabléowesummarizes the combined results of operatidriewel 3 and the acquired
businesses, on a pro forma basis, as though thpatoes acquired in 2004 and 2005 have been combmetithe beginning of each of the
periods presented. The pro forma financial inforarais presented for informational purposes onlgt ot indicative of the results of
operations that would have been achieved if thaiaitipns had taken place at the beginning of eddhe periods presented. The pro forma
financial information for all periods presentedaaiiscludes the preliminary business combinatioroanting effect on historical revenues of
the acquired companies, adjustments to depreciaticaacquired property, amortization charges froquaed intangible assets, restructuring
costs, acquisition and tender offer costs reflegtdtie historical statements of operations foiquesx prior to Level 3's acquisition.

Unaudited
Pro Forma
Years ended
December 31
2005 2004
(dollars in
millions, except
per share data)

Revenue $ 343C $ 3,397
Loss from Continuing Operatiol (564) (386)
Income from Discontinued Operatio 69 20
Net Loss (495) (366)
Per share

Loss from continuing operatiol $ (0.69) $ (0.48

Net loss $ (0.61) $ (0.46)
Pro Forma Weighted Shares Outstanding (in thou$: 811,72z 798,84¢
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Included in the actual results and pro forma finalnaformation for the year ended December 31,228 certain amounts which
affect the comparability of the results, includiegmination revenue of $133 million, a gain on slaée of (i )Structure of $49 million, a
workforce reduction charge of $15 million, non-casipairment charges of $9 million that primarilsutted from the decision to terminate
projects for certain voice products in the Commatians business.

Included in the actual results and pro forma finalnaformation for the year ended December 31,428 certain amounts which
affect the comparability of the results, includiains of $197 million as a result of the early egtishments of certain long-term debt,
$113 million of termination revenue, a gain of appmately $23 million from the sale of Commonwealtlephone Enterprises, Inc.
common stock and lease impairment charges of $libmi

The fair value of the assets acquired and theliligisiassumed in the WilTel transaction are bagssh a preliminary valuation and
are subject to change based on post-closing pweghase adjustments and changes to the integrptaonof the combined business. The
estimated fair value of assets acquired and lisdslassumed in the Sprint, ICG, Telverse and Ggmainsactions as of their respective
acquisition dates after reflecting post-closingghaise price adjustments are as follows.

WilTel Sprint ICG Telverse  Genuity
(dollars in millions)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 128 $§ — $ — $ — $ —
Accounts receivabl 257 — — — —
Other current asse 18 3 2 — 50
Property, plant and equipment, | 660 — — 1 246
Identifiable intangible asse 152 31 37 32 107
Other assets 26 — — — 22
Total Assets 1,241 34 39 33 425
Liabilities:
Accounts payabl 204 — — 2 —
Accrued payrol 29 — — — —
Other current liabilitie: 69 — 4 — 56
Current portion of lon-term debt — — — — 121
Long-term debt — — — — 188
Deferred reveni—WilTel/Genuity 41 — — — 6
Deferred reveni—Level 3 (2) 5 — — (76)
Other liabilities 90 — — — 21
Total Liabilities 431 5 4 2 316
Purchase Price $ 810 $ 29 $ 35 $ 31 $ 109

The fair value of the assets acquired and liabdiissumed in the Genuity transaction were deterhfinsed on a valuation
completed in May 2003. Subsequently in 2003, L8vethanged the purchase price allocation by inangatsie preliminary fair value of the
MFON assets to be sold to CenturyTel, Inc. (“Ceyifiet”) (See Note 3) to $16 million to reflect thetaal proceeds received from
CenturyTel. A corresponding decrease in propefantpand equipment and identifiable intangibles vex®rded in conjunction with this
adjustment.

During the second quarter of 2003, the Companyedxtie managed hosting portion of the businessjitieed through the Genuity
transaction. The Company sold the hosting custoaraisoperations to Computer Sciences Corporati68C”). Due to the decision to exit
the managed hosting portion of the business, widchbeen contemplated at the time of acquisitiomnet operating results of the business
have not been consolidated in the consolidatedraett of operations. Level 3 did not realize argcpeds from the sale of the hosting
business to CSC.

The following is the summarized results of operagiof the managed hosting business for the periddé&May 24, 2003 (since
acquisition on February 4, 2003) (dollars in miik).

Revenue $14
Operating Los: (1)
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(3) Discontinued Operations

On November 30, 2005, Level 3 sold)Structure to Infocrossing, Inc. (“Infocrossingdrfproceeds of $85 million which consisted of
$82 million in cash and $3 million of Infocrossirige. common stock. The cash purchase price isstuty post-closing adjustments based on
actual working capital as of the closing date. L&/eecognized a $49 million gain on the transactiothe fourth quarter of 2005.

The following is the summarized results of operagiof the ( )Structure business for the eleven months endeaiber 30, 2005
and the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

2005 2004 2003
(dollars in millions,
except per share

data)
Revenue! $64 $75 $ 79
Costs and Expense
Cost of revenu 47 53 58
Depreciation and amortizatic 8 13 14
Selling, general and administrati 9 9 19
Restructuring and impairment charges — — 5
Total costs and expenses 64 75 96
Loss from Operations — — (17)
Gain on Sale of Discontinued Operations 49 — —
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations $ 49 $ — $17

The following is summarized financial informatiaor the discontinuedi()Structure business as of December 31, 2004:

December 31

2004
(dollars in
millions)
Assets
Current Assets
Receivable: $ 4
Other 9
Total Current Assets 13
Property, Plant and Equipment, net 33
Total Assets $ 46
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 14
Current portion of lon-term debt 1
Accrued payroll and employee bene 4
Deferred revenu 2
Other 1
Total Current Liabilities 22
Deferred Revenue —
Net Assets $ 24

On December 31, 2003, Level 3 sold MFON to Centahydr approximately $16 million. MFON is a regidm@mmunications
system located in the midwestern United Statesnaasdacquired by Level 3 as part of the Genuitydaation in February 2003. Level 3
adjusted the value of MFON assets from its origesimated value, pursuant to the one-year “aliongieriod” provisions of SFAS No. 141,
to match the proceeds from this transaction. Aesalt, the Company did not recognize a gain or ¢dosthe disposition of MFON.

The following is the summarized results of openagiof the MFON business for the period ended Deeeidb, 2003 (since
acquisition on February 4, 2003) (dollars in miik):
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2003

Revenue $16
Costs and Expense

Cost of revenu

Selling, general and administrative

Total costs and expenses

Income from Operations
Loss from Sale of Discontinued Operations
Income from Discontinued Operations

ISR
NIRINDDN

“
=
N

In June 2003, Software Spectrum announced thastexiting the contact services business in omeohcentrate on the software
reseller business. In conjunction with this decisiBoftware Spectrum sold substantially all of¢batact services business to H.I.G. Capital
for approximately $4 million in cash. Software Spem recorded a loss within discontinued operatimiregpproximately $9 million on the
sale.

The following is the summarized results of operaiof the contact services business for the péni@®03 through June 18, 2003
(dollars in millions):

2003
Revenue $38
Costs and Expense
Cost of revenu 25
Depreciation and amortizatic 1
Selling, general and administrative _10
Total costs and expenses 36
Income from Operations 2
Loss from Sale of Discontinued Operations —9)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations $(7)

Level 3's management continues to review the Coryigaxisting lines of business and service offesitmg determine how those
lines of business and service offerings assist thighCompany’s focus on delivery of communicatisessices and meeting its financial
objectives. To the extent that certain lines ofilbess or service offerings are not considered todmepatible with the delivery of
communications services or with obtaining finanoiajectives, Level 3 may exit those lines of buser stop offering those services.

See Note 23 for additional disclosures regardiregstile of Software Spectrum.
(4) Termination Revenue

On March 1, 2005, Level 3 entered into an agreemvéht360networks (USA), Inc. (“360networks”) in veh both parties agreed to
terminate a 20-year IRU agreement. Under the nereeagent, 360networks returned the dark fiber oaifyrprovided by Level 3. Under the
original IRU agreement, signed in 2000, the caskiwed by Level 3 was deferred and amortized temae over the 20-year term of the
agreement. As a result of this transaction, Lewelc®gnized the unamortized deferred revenue afoappately $86 million as non-cash
termination revenue in the first quarter of 2005.

On February 22, 2005, France Telecom Long Distaie&, LLC (“France Telecom”) and Level 3 finalized agreement to
terminate a dark fiber agreement signed in 200@ddthe terms of the agreement, France Telecormedithe fiber to Level 3. Under the
original IRU agreement, the cash received by L8wshs deferred and amortized to revenue over thgeabterm of the agreement. As a
result of this transaction, Level 3 recognizeduhamortized deferred revenue of approximately $#flom as non-cash termination revenue
in the first quarter of 2005.

Level 3 and McLeodUSA Incorporated (“McLeod”) ergdrinto an agreement on November 1, 2004, wheretlyebt returned
certain intercity dark fiber provided by Level 3dar a 1999 agreement and provides discounted neseovices to Level 3 in exchange for
cash and other consideration. Cash received uhdelr@99 agreement was deferred and amortized émuevover the 20-year term of the
agreement. Level 3 had no further service obligatiwith respect to the fiber and therefore recagphthe $98 million of remaining
unamortized deferred revenue for the fiber returedon-cash termination revenue in 2004. The Cagnglocated the amounts paid to
McLeod to fiber and prepaid network expenses. The
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value of the fiber returned was determined basetth@mrapital costs that would be avoided in pulbilglitional fiber in certain segments of
Company’s intercity network where fiber inventorpud need to be replenished in the next three y&#es prepaid network expense was
valued based on the amount of discounted netwgrkrese services the Company expects to realizeghmpurchases of these services on
McLeod’s network.

In February 2003, Level 3 and XO Communications@Xamended their 1998 IRU agreement. As part efitd98 agreement, XO
purchased 24 fibers and one empty conduit alonglL&g North American intercity network. The ameddgreement, among other things,
required XO to return six fibers and the empty agntb Level 3. In return, Level 3, 1) reduced #rmual operations and maintenance che
that XO was required to pay under the original agrent, 2) provided XO an option, expiring July 20@7acquire a 20 year IRU for a single
conduit within or along Level 3's intercity netwoakd 3) provided XO an option to purchase up to 25%e fiber installed in the next
conduit within or along each segment of the intgroetwork.

As individual segments were delivered to XO, Le¥eleferred and amortized the revenue attributabieed conduit over the term of
the original agreement. As a result of the ameradgdement, Level 3 had no further service obligatiith respect to the original conduit,
thus recognized $294 million of communications rexe which was the remaining unamortized deferegénmue from the original sale of the
conduit, less the fair values of the operationsraathtenance services, and options to purchasedimeconduit provided by Level 3 under
the amended agreement. The values of the serwicksmions to purchase fiber and conduit were detexd based on the fair value of sim
services and assets.

(5) Restructuring and Impairment Charges

In the first quarter of 2005, the Company initiatediorkforce reduction of approximately 470 emplksy@ its North American and
European communications business and as a resafimized severance and related charges of appr®tin®&l5 million. As of
December 31, 2005, the Company has satisfiedrtairéng obligations associated with the workforeduction.

During 2005, the Company identified additional conmications facilities that it no longer requireddamould not provide any future
economic benefit to the Company. Also during tharythe Company revised its lease impairment aizalggeflect improvements in sublei
income for communications facilities impaired ingprperiods. In total, the Company reduced its exge lease impairment obligations by
$1 million in 2005.

The communications business recorded lease impairoharges of $14 million for real property leageblorth America and Eurof.
in the fourth quarter of 2004. The charge resuitech ceasing use of certain leased space, themgjgifisubleases for existing vacant space at
lower than estimated rates, and extending the attuinsublease dates for other vacant propertietoduigrent market conditions. The
Company paid approximately $3 million of facilitiedated costs in 2004 for restructuring chargesnded in 2001.

In the first quarter of 2003, Level 3 announcedkimrce reductions that affected approximately 1,26{ployees in the
communications business. These actions were piinsresult of the integration of acquired openasiérom the Genuity transaction into
Level 3's operations and the Company matchingitofean costs with expected revenues. The Compaayded restructuring charges of
approximately $26 million related to these actidnsng the year ended December 31, 2003. The réngadbligation of $4 million with
respect to this action was paid during 2004.
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A summary of the restructuring charges and relatgigity follows:

Severance and Relate:

Facilities Related

Number of
Employees Amount Amount
(in millions) (in millions)

Balance December 31, 20 — 3 — % 10
2003 Charge 1,11¢ 26 —
2003 Payments (1,059) (22) (4)
Balance December 31, 2003 60 4 6
2004 Charge 80 — 14
2004 Payments (140) (4) (4)
Balance December 31, 2004 — — 16
2005 Charges(Benefi 472 15 1)
2005 Payments (472) (15) (3)
Balance December 31, 2005 — % — % 12

Lease termination obligations of $12 million argeated to be paid over the terms of the impairadds, which extend to 2015, if
the Company is unable to negotiate a buyout ofahses.

Impairments

The Company at least annually, or as events ourtistances change that could affect the recovesabfiithe carrying value of its
communications and information services assetgjwus a comprehensive review of the carrying valugs communications assets to
determine if the carrying amount of the communa@atissets are recoverable in accordance with SFAI NI, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAB. 144"). For purposes of this review, Level pamtely evaluates for impairment its
colocation facilities, certain excess conduits am@ommunications network (including optronicefi, conduits and customer premise
equipment) as these are the lowest levels withraggig identifiable cash flows for grouping of assd he impairment analysis of these assets
are based on long-term revenue growth, gross meaaggid cash flow forecasts of operating results,sates of assets over their estimated
useful lives. The Company concluded that the assets not impaired as of December 31, 2005. Managémill continue to assess the
Company’s assets for impairment as events occas éndustry conditions warrant.

The Company recognized $9 million of non-cash impant charges in 2005 that primarily resulted fite decision to terminate
projects for certain voice services and certainrmiation technology projects in the communicatibusiness. These projects have identifii
costs which Level 3 can separately evaluate foaimpent. The costs incurred for these projectduiting capitalized labor, were impaired as
the carrying value of these projects exceeded #stimated fair value. The Company did not incseagnpairment expenses in 2004 or 2|

(6) Sale of Toll Road Operations

On January 3, 2003, California Private Transparta@ompany (“CPTC"), a majority-owned subsidiartted Company, sold the
“91 Express Lanes” toll road assets in Orange Go@alifornia to the Orange County Transportatianti#rity. The Company received net
proceeds from the sale of $46 million and recoraggin of approximately $70 million in Other, netthe consolidated statement of
operations. The Company'’s total long-term debt reasiced by approximately $139 million as a restithe sale as the debt incurred to
finance the construction of the toll road had beemsolidated due to the Company’s 65% equity istareCPTC.

(7) Loss Per Share

The Company had a loss from continuing operationshe three years ended December 31, 2005. Therehe dilutive effect of th
approximately 418 million, 171 million and 83 midli shares issuable pursuant to the five, four hrektseries of convertible notes
outstanding at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 206fectively, have not been included in the compantadif diluted loss per share because
their inclusion would have been axilutive to the computation. In addition, the dilt effect of the approximately 59 million, 49 rolh and
52 million options and warrants outstanding at Delger 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, hatdeen included in the computation of
diluted loss per share because their inclusion @vbakve been anti-dilutive to the computation.
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The following details the loss per share calcufaifor the Level 3 common stock (dollars in milli@xcept per share data):

Year Ended
2005 2004 2003

Loss from Continuing Operations $ (707) $ (478) $ (695
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

(2005 includes gain on sal 69 20 (21)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting

Principle — — 5
Net Loss $ (638) $ (458) $ (711)

Total Number of Weighted Average Shares

Outstanding used to Compute Basic and

Diluted Earnings Per Share (in thousar 699,58¢ 683,846 565,931
Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Level 3 Common

Stock (Basic and Diluted

Loss from Continuing Operatiol $ (1.01) $ (0.700 $ (1.29
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatic 0.10 0.03 (0.04)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting

Principle — — 0.01
Net Loss $ (091) $ (0.67) $ (1.26)

(8) Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instaments
The following methods and assumptions were usetermine classification and fair values of finah@nstruments:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents generally consist of funds inekesténighly liquid instruments purchased with aigoral maturity of three months
or less. The securities are stated at cost, wipphoximates fair value.

Marketable and Restricted Securities

At December 31, 2005, marketable securities con$istS. Treasury securities and the Infocrossheyes received in the |
Structure transaction. For most of 2005, the Compuduaracterized the Treasury securities as heddatmirity. As a result of the acquisition of
WilTel and expected cash flow requirements in 2@86,Company designated certain Treasury secuasi@sailable for sale in the fourth
quarter of 2005. These securities total $173 mmland are reflected as current assets on the édatgal balance sheet at December 31, 2005.
At December 31, 2004, marketable securities cabishtirely of U.S. Treasury securities that wdraracterized as held to maturity.
Restricted securities consist primarily of caskestments that serve to collateralize outstandittgrkeof credit and certain performance and
operating obligations of the Company. The coshefdecurities used in computing unrealized andzexhbains and losses is determined by
specific identification. Fair values are estimabeded on quoted market prices for the securities.riet unrealized holding gains and losses
for marketable securities classified as availabtestle are included in accumulated other comprahemncome (loss) within stockholders’
equity (deficit). Securities characterized as helthaturity are stated at cost. The unrealizedihgldains and losses for securities
characterized as held to maturity are not reflest@tie consolidated financial statements.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 the unrealized hgldains and losses on the marketable securities agefollows:

Unrealized Unrealized

Holding Holding Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(dollars in millions)

2005
Marketable Securitie:
U.S. Treasury securities—

Current $ 173 $ — 3 — $ 173
Equity Securitie—Current 3 — — 3
U.S. Treasury securities—

Noncurrent 234 — (2) 232

$ 410 $ — 3 (2) $ 408
2004

Marketable Securitie:
U.S. Treasury securities—

Current $ 225 % —  $ — $ 225
U.S. Treasury securities—
Noncurrent 114 — (1) 113

$ 339 $ — 3 (1) $ 338
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Scheduled maturities of marketable debt secuttitedd at December 31, 2005 are as follows:
2006—%$173 million; 2007—%$234 million.

The Company recognized $2 million of realized Igsisem the sale of marketable debt securities BB2@hich are reflected in
Other, net on the consolidated statement of oeraitiThe Company recognized $23 million of realigaths from the sale of marketable
equity securities in 2004, which are reflected théD, net on the consolidated statement of operstibhe Company did not recognize any
realized gains and losses on sales of marketahbigyesgcurities in 2003.

Maturities for the restricted securities have regib presented, as the types of securities ara edlsh or money market mutual fur
that do not have a single maturity date.

Long-Term Debt

The fair value of long-term debt was estimated gishe December 31, 2005 and 2004 average of thartnicask price for the
publicly traded debt instruments. The CBRE Comnadidiortgage was not traded in an organized pub&omer. The fair value of this
instrument is assumed to approximate the carryaigevat December 31, 2005 as it was secured bylyimdpassets. The 9% Convertible
Senior Discount Notes due 2013 included within L-ogxgm Debt are not traded in an organized publiomaa. The fair value of these notes
was calculated using a convertible model, whictsuke Black-Scholes valuation model to value thétggportion of the security and bond
math to value the debt portion of the securityrigsharket yields on other Level 3 traded debt). To# Convertible Senior Notes due 2011
included within Long-term Debt are not traded inoaganized public manner. Level 3 has obtained kketaalue from a third party.

The carrying amount and estimated fair values @€L8'’s financial instruments are as follows:

2005 2004
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(dollars in millions)
Cash and Cash Equivalents (excluding discontingpedations’ $ 379 $ 379 $ 338 $ 338
Marketable Securiti—Current 176 176 225 225
Marketable Securiti—Noncurrent 234 232 114 113
Restricted Securiti—Current 34 34 48 48
Restricted Securiti—Noncurrent 75 75 67 67
Investments (Note 1: 15 15 5 5
Long-term Debt, including current portion (Note ! 6,023 5,26€ 5,21C 4,44k
(9) Receivables
Receivables at December 31, 2005 and 2004 wedlaw$:
Communications Coal Total
(dollars in millions)

2005

Accounts Receivabl- Trade $ 400 $ 9 % 409

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts a7 — 17)

Total $ 383 $ 9 $ 392

2004

Accounts Receivabl- Trade $ 138 $ 12 % 150
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts a7) — 17)
Total $ 121 $ 12 % 133

The Company recognized bad debt expense in sefiargral and administrative expenses of less thaniion, $3 million and
$7 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectivelyvéled received $2 million, $2 million and $4 miltimf proceeds for amounts previously
deemed uncollectible in 2005, 2004 and 2003, re@dy. The Company reduced accounts receivablesdindiance for doubtful accounts by
less than $1 million, $8 million, and $8 million 2005, 2004 and 2003,
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respectively, for the write off of previously reged amounts the Company deemed as uncollectible.
(10) Other

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 other current assetssted of the following:

2005 2004

(dollars in

millions)
Prepaid Asset $55 $30
Debt Issuance Costs, r 16 16
Other 21 14
$92 $60

Prepaid assets include insurance, software maintenaent and right of way costs. The increasebbds attributable to the
acquisition of WilTel.

(11) Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Costs associated directly with expansions and ingiments to the communications network and custanséallations, including
employee related costs, have been capitalizedCbhinepany generally capitalizes costs associatedveitivork construction, provisioning of
services and software development. Capitalizedrlabhd related costs associated with employees @mtdact labor working on capital
projects were approximately $51 million, $66 mifliand $61 million for the years ended Decembe2805, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Included in capitalized labor and related costs $&amillion, $2 million and $4 million of capitakrl non-cash compensation costs related to
options and warrants granted to employees for éa@syended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, teghec

The Company continues to develop business supysteras required for its business. The externattests of software, materials
and services, and payroll and payroll related egpeffior employees directly associated with thegptdpcurred when developing the busir
support systems are capitalized and included icép&alized costs above. Upon completion of agaipjthe total cost of the business support
system is amortized over an estimated useful fithree years.

The Company reviews its capitalized projects atleanually or when events and circumstances itelibat the assets may be
impaired. When previously capitalized software depment costs are considered to be impaired, thegaay calculates and recognizes an
impairment loss in accordance with SFAS No. 144;¢dunting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long+kd Assets.”

Level 3 has been able to finalize negotiations@anins on several of its large multi-year netwookistruction projects. As a result,
the Company was able to release approximately $&mi$8 million and $28 million of capital expeitgre accruals for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively htmh previously been reported as property, pladtegjuipment. In the ordinary course of
business, as construction projects come to a dles&Company reviews the final amounts due antesainy outstanding amounts related to
these contracts, which can result in changes imatgd costs of the construction projects.

Included in Land and Mineral Properties are minpraperties related to the coal business with &lwasis of approximately
$5 million for each of the years ended Decembe2B05 and 2004. The remaining Land and Mineral éntigs balance of approximately
$205 million and $182 million for the years endeecBmber 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, represemed assets of the communications
and information services businesses, including lemmfovements. The coal mineral properties inclogeed and leased assets. The various
coal lease agreements require minimum lease pagraadtprovide for royalty or overriding royalty pagnts based on the tons of coal mined
or sold from the properties. Depletion on the mah@roperties is provided on a units-of-extracti@sis determined in relation to coal
committed under sales contracts.

Capitalized business support systems and netwarktaation costs that have not been placed in@sehave been classified as
construction-in-progress within property, plant aggiipment below.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, property, planteapndpment were as follows:
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December 31, 2005

Land and Mineral Propertit

Facility and Leasehold Improvemen
Communication:
Coal Mining

Network Infrastructur

Operating Equipmen
Communication:
Coal Mining

Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipme

Other

Construction-in-Progress

December 31, 200

Land and Mineral Properti

Facility and Leasehold Improvemen
Communication:
Coal Mining

Network Infrastructur

Operating Equipmen
Communication:
Coal Mining

Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipme

Other

Construction-in-Progress

Accumulated

Book
Cost Depreciation Value
(dollars in millions)

$ 210 $ (26) $ 184
1,532 (355) 1,177
153 (149) 4
4,705 (1,138) 3,567
2,156 (1,516) 640
69 (62) 7
111 (96) 15
22 (19) 3
35 — 35
$ 899 $ (3,361 $ 5,632
$ 187 $ (18) $ 169
1,388 (281) 1,107
149 (145) 4
4,379 (868) 3,511
1,843 (1,349 494
74 (68) 6
109 (84) 25
24 (14) 10
45 = 45
$ 819 $ (2,827 $ 5,371

The value of WilTel’s property, plant and equipmianbased on a preliminary valuation.

Depreciation expense was $584 million in 2005, $8ilBon in 2004 and $744 million in 2003.
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(12) Goodwill and Other Intangibles, net

Goodwill and Other Intangibles, net at DecemberZBD5 and 2004 were as follows (dollars in millipns

Other

Goodwill Intangibles
December 31, 200!
360networks $ — 3 4
Sprint — 16
ICG — 4
Telverse — 16
Genuity — 30
WilTel — 151
McLeod 40 —
XCOM 30 —

$ 70 $ 221

December 31, 200

Sprint $ — % 28
ICG — 23
Telverse — 23
Genuity — 55
McLeod 41 —
XCOM 30 —

$ 71 $ 129

The Company segregates identifiable intangibletagssuired in a business combination from goodWilaccordance with SFAS
No. 142, Goodwill is no longer amortized and theyiag amount of the goodwill must be evaluatetkast annually for impairment using
fair value based test. An assessment of the carmaiue of the goodwill attributable to communioas and information services businesses
indicated that the assets were not impaired assoebber 31, 2005.

On December 23, 2005, Level 3 completed the adgpnisdf WilTel. A preliminary valuation of the adseacquired indicated a value
of $152 million for intangible assets. The intarigibssets primarily include customer relationslaipd the Vyvx trademark. The preliminary
valuation has placed an indefinite life on the Vyrsademark and lives ranging from 6 to 11 yeargtiercustomer relationships.

During the first quarter of 2005, Level 3 purchaaezlistomer contract from 360networks for cashfatde services valued at
$4 million. The total purchase price was recordedraintangible asset and will be amortized overémaining four-year term of the
customer contract.

In the third quarter of 2005, the Company deterhitit the remaining costs accrued for the intégraif the McLeod business
were no longer required and, as a result, reddoedadodwill attributable to the McLeod transactin$1 million.

In October 2004, Level 3 acquired the wholesaltldiarnet access business of Sprint. As part efrchase price allocation, Le
3 valued the customer relationships and contract8 amillion and is amortizing this asset overatimated life of three years.

In April 2004, Level 3 purchased managed modemractd and related equipment from ICG. As part efgibrchase price
allocation, Level 3 valued the customer relatiopstand contracts at $37 million and is amortizing &isset over a period equal to the term of
the primary customer contract acquired of two years

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company hadv$ion of goodwill attributable to the acquisitiaf XCOM in 1998.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 identifiable intaleyédssets were as follows (dollars in millions):
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Accumulated

Book
Cost Amortization Value
December 31, 200!
Customer Contract:
Sprint $ 31 % (15) $ 16
ICG 37 (33) 4
Genuity 28 ()] 11
McLeod 49 (49) —
Customer Relationship
Genuity 79 (60) 19
360networks 4 — 4
WilTel 120 (1) 119
Trademarks
WilTel 32 — 32
Technology:
Telverse 31 (15) 16

$ 411 $ (190 § 221

Accumulated

Book
Cost Amortization Value
December 31, 200
Customer Contract:
Sprint $ 31 % 3) % 28
ICG 37 (14) 23
Genuity 28 (11) 17
McLeod 49 (49) —
Customer Relationship
Genuity 79 (41) 38
Technology:
Telverse 32 (9) 23

$ 256 $ 127 $ 128

Intangible asset amortization expense was $63anjl$58 million and $54 million for the years enddecember 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

The amortization expense related to intangibletagsgrently recorded on the Compaspooks for each of the five succeeding y
is estimated to be the following for the years ehDecember 31: 2006—$63 million; 2007—%$34 milli@308—$21 million; 2009—
$17 million; 2010 —$16 million and thereafter — $3dlion.
(13) Other Assets, net

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 other assets codgisthe following:

2005 2004

(dollars in

millions)
Debt Issuance Costs, r $ 54 $ 67
Investment: 15 4
Deposits 22 1
Other 20 20
$111 $ 92

At the beginning of 2004, the Company held an gquitsition in Commonwealth Telephone Enterprises,, lan incumbent local
exchange carrier operating in various rural Peragyh markets, and CTSI, Inc. a competitive loeca@hange carrier. In January 2004, the
Company sold its remaining investment in Commonthebélephone for $41 million in cash, resultingaigain of approximately $23 millio

In 2005, the Company invested $10 million in Infm&orporation, a privately-held communicationsipoent company. Level 3 is
accounting for this investment using the cost metho

Included in the assets acquired in the WilTel tamtisn were long term deposits primarily with irsuce carriers and
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financial institutions.
(14) Long-Term Debt

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, long-term debt gdslbows:

2005 2004
(dollars in
millions)
Senior Secured Term Loan (11.42% due 2( $ 730 $ 730
Senior Notes (11.0% due 20(C 132 132
Senior Notes (9.125% due 20( 954 954
Senior Discount Notes (10.5% due 20 144 144
Senior Euro Notes (10.75% due 20 59 68
Convertible Senior Notes (2.875% due 20 374 374
Senior Discount Notes (12.875% due 20 488 475
Senior Euro Notes (11.25% due 20 123 142
Senior Notes (11.25% due 201 96 96
Senior Notes (10.75% due 201 500 500
Convertible Senior Notes (10.0% due 20 880 —
Convertible Senior Notes (5.25% due 20 345 345
Convertible Senior Discount Notes (9.0% due 2( 252 230
Convertible Subordinated Notes (6.0% due 2( 362 362
Convertible Subordinated Notes (6.0% due 2( 514 514
Commercial Mortgage:
CRBE (6.86% due 201! 70 —
GMAC — 117
Capital leases assumed in Genuity transa — 24
Other — 3
6,028 5,21C
Less current portion (143)

$6,025 $5,067

Debt Exchanges and Repurchases

In the fourth quarter of 2004, Level 3 used the3bi#tllion of net proceeds from the issuance of$leaior Secured Term Loan due
2011 described below and $272 million from the ésme of the 5.25% Senior Convertible Notes due 2i@ktribed below to purchase
portions of its 9.125% Senior Notes due 2008, 1E1i@& Notes due 2008, 10.5% Senior Discount NotesaD08 and 10.75% Senior Euro
Notes due 2008. The Company purchased portiorteedduitstanding notes at prices ranging from 83quriow 89 percent of the purchas
principal balances. The net gain on the early gxtishment of the debt, including transaction cagtalized foreign currency losses and
unamortized debt issuance costs, was $50 milliothiese transactions.

Debt | nstruments

At December 31, 2005, Level 3 was in compliancddlie covenants on all outstanding debt issuances.

F- 50




Senior Secured Term Loan due 2011

On December 1, 2004, Level 3 Communications, Becguarantor, Level 3 Financing, Inc. (“Level 3dining”), a wholly- owned
subsidiary of the Company, as borrower, Merrill tiirCapital Corporation, as administrative agent@oithteral agent, and certain lenders
entered into a credit agreement (“Credit Agreemgmiitsuant to which the lenders extended a $73llomienior secured term loan (“Senior
Secured Term Loan”) to Level 3 Financing. The téman matures in 2011 and has a current interesiofahe London Interbank Offering
Rate (“LIBOR”) plus an applicable margin of 700 basis points.ragon the note accrues at the three month LIB@Rspayable in cash «
March 1, June 1, September 1 and December 1 ofyesehin arrears, beginning March 1, 2005. Therast rate was 11.42% at
December 31, 2005 and was determined at the conemeamt of the interest period beginning Decemb2005.

Level 3 Financing’s obligations under this termri@ae, subject to certain exceptions, secured figineassets of the Company; and
certain of the Company’s material domestic subsiekahat are engaged in the telecommunicationméss. The Company and these
subsidiaries have also guaranteed the obligatibhswel 3 Financing under the Senior Secured Teaarl Level 3 Communications, LLC
and its material domestic subsidiaries have guaeahéand have pledged certain of their assets toestire obligations under the Senior
Secured Term Loan. Certain of the initial subsigdigmarantors have been released from their pleddegyaarantee obligations under the
Senior Secured Term Loan.

The Credit Agreement includes certain negative namés which restrict the ability of the Companyyé&k3 Financing and any
restricted subsidiary to engage in certain acésitiThe Credit Agreement also contains certaintewardefault. It does not require the
Company or Level 3 Financing to maintain specifi@hcial ratios.

Level 3 used the net proceeds of $713 million rafensaction costs, to fund purchases of its iexjstebt securities.

Debt issuance costs of $17 million were originaiitalized and are being amortized to interesergp over the term of the Senior
Secured Term Loan. After amortization, debt isseatusts were $15 million at December 31, 2005.

11% Senior Notes due 2008

In February 2000, Level 3 Communications, Inc. ineeg $779 million of net proceeds, after transactiosts, from a private offerir
of $800 million aggregate principal amount of itd Senior Notes due 2008 (“11% Senior Notes”). ABecember 31, 2005, a total of
$668 million aggregate principal amount of the 1%&hior Notes had been repurchased. Interest amoties accrues at 11% per year and is
payable semi-annually in arrears in cash on Makchrid September 15, beginning September 15, 20@01T1% Senior Notes are senior,
unsecured obligations of Level 3 Communications,,Irankingpari passuwith all existing and future senior debt. The 11&hni®r Notes
cannot be prepaid by Level 3 Communications, laed mature on March 15, 2008. The 11% Senior Nmie&in certain covenants, which
among other things, limit additional indebtednekgidend payments, certain investments and tramsectvith affiliates.

Debt issuance costs of $21 million were originakyitalized and are being amortized to intereseagp over the term of the 11%
Senior Notes. As a result of amortization and deptirchases, the capitalized debt issuance coststiegen reduced to $1 million at
December 31, 2005.

9.125% Senior Notes due 2008

In April 1998, Level 3 Communications, Inc. receiv&l.94 billion of net proceeds from an offeringb@fbillion aggregate principal
amount 9.125% Senior Notes Due 2008 (“9.125% Sevites”). As of December 31, 2005, a total of $6.04lion aggregate principal
amount of the 9.125% Senior Notes had been repsechdnterest on the notes accrues at 9.125% perayel is payable on May 1 and
November 1 each year in ca:

The 9.125% Senior Notes are subject to redemptitimezoption of Level 3 Communications, Inc., inoddor in part, at any time or
from time to time on or after May 1, 2003, plusraet and unpaid interest thereon to the redemplao®, if redeemed during the twelve
months beginning May 1, of the years indicated Welo

Year Redemption Price
2005 101.52%
2006 and thereaftt 100.000%

The 9.125% Senior Notes are senior, unsecuredatidits of Level 3 Communications, Inc., rankpeayi passuwith
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all existing and future senior unsecured indebteslind the Company. The notes contain certain coxtenevhich among other things, limit
consolidated debt, dividend payments, and trarmatiith affiliates. Level 3 Communications, Insed the net proceeds of the note offering
in connection with the implementation of its busia@lan.

Debt issuance costs of $65 million were originaiyitalized and are being amortized to interesergp over the term of the 9.12!
Senior Notes. As a result of amortization and deptirchases, the capitalized debt issuance coststigen reduced to $7 million at
December 31, 2005.

10.5% Senior Discount Notes due 2008

In December 1998, Level 3 Communications, Inc. $&84 million aggregate principal amount at mayuoit 10.5% Senior Discoul
Notes Due 200&'10.5% Senior Discount Notes”). The sales proce#d®500 million, excluding debt issuance costs,enecorded as long-
term debt. As of December 31, 2005, a total of $&@0on aggregate principal amount of the 10.5%i8eDiscount Notes had been
repurchased. Interest on the 10.5% Senior Disddotds accreted at a rate of 10.5% per annum, conggalisemiannually, to an aggregate
principal amount of $834 million ($144illion after repurchases) at December 1, 2003. @enting December 1, 2003, interest on the 1(
Senior Discount Notes accrued at the rate of 1B#@nnum and is payable in cash semiannuallyréaes.

The 10.5% Senior Discount Notes are subject torn@dien at the option of Level 3 Communications,.Jme whole or in part, at any
time or from time to time at the following redemptiprices (expressed as percentages of accreteel) yalis accrued and unpaid interest
thereon to the redemption date, if redeemed duhiagwelve months beginning December 1, of they/gaficated below:

Year Redemption Price
2005 101.75%
2006 and thereaft 100.0(%

These notes are senior unsecured obligations d&ll3Communications, Inc., rankimpgri passwwith all existing and future senior
unsecured indebtedness of Level 3 Communicatioes,The 10.5% Senior Discount Notes contain cexairenants which, among other
things, restrict or limit the Company’s ability irecur additional debt, make certain restricted pegts, pay dividends, enter into sale and
leaseback transactions, enter into transactiorsafiitiates, and sell assets or merge with anotbenpany.

Debt issuance costs of $14 million were originakyitalized and are being amortized over the tefrthev10.5% Senior Discount
Notes. As a result of amortization and debt repases, the capitalized debt issuance costs haverééeced to $1 million at December !
2005.

10.75% Senior Euro Notes due 2008

In February 2000, Level 3 Communications, Inc. nese €488 million ($478 million when issued) of pebceeds, after debt
issuance costs, from an offering of €500 milliog@gyate principal amount 10.75% Senior Euro Notes2008 (“10.75% Senior Euro
Note¢"). As of December 31, 2005, a total of €450 miiliaggregate principal amount of the 10.75% Seniwo Botes had been repurchased.
Interest on the notes accrues at 10.75% per yehisgrayable in Euros semi-annually in arrears @mdid 15 and September 15 each year
beginning on September 15, 2000. The 10.75% Sé&nioy Notes are not redeemable by Level 3 Commuaitgtinc. prior to maturity. Debt
issuance costs ofl2 million were originally capitalized and are btgpimortized over the term of the 10.75% Senior Botes. As a result ¢
amortization and debt repurchases, the net caggtaliebt issuance costs have been reduced tdvées€1 million at December 31, 2005.

The 10.75% Senior Euro Notes are senior, unseabiightions of the Company, rankipgri passuwith all existing and future
senior debt. The 10.75% Senior Euro Notes congitain covenants, which among other things, liddifional indebtedness, dividend
payments, certain investments and transactionsaffitrates.

The issuance of thes80 million 10.75% Senior Euro Notes has been deseg as, and is effective as, an economic hedajaesidhe
investment in certain of the Company’s foreign sdibsies. Therefore, foreign currency gains andéssresulting from the translation of the
debt have been recorded in other comprehensivenia¢toss) to the extent of translation gains oségson such investment. The 10.75%
Senior Euro Notes were valued, based on curretitagge rates, at $59 million in the Company’s cadatéd financial statements at
December 31, 2005. The difference between the iogrmalue at December 31, 2005 and the value ahis=®, after repurchases, is recorded
in other comprehensive income.
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2.875% Convertible Senior Notes due 2010

In July 2003, the Company completed the offerin®74 million aggregate principal amount of its758 Convertible Senior Not
due 2010 (“2.875% Convertible Senior Notes”) inualerwritten public offering pursuant to the Comgarshelf registration statement.
Interest on the notes accrues at 2.875% per yehisgrayable semi-annually in arrears in cash onaiy 15 and July 15, beginning
January 15, 2004. The 2.875% Convertible Senioedlate senior, unsecured obligations of Level 3@onications, Inc., rankingari passi
with all existing and future senior unsecured d&he 2.875% Convertible Senior Notes contain certavenants, which among other things,
limit additional liens on assets of the Company.

The 2.875% Convertible Senior Notes are convertitite shares of the Company’s common stock at aersion rate of $7.18 per
share, subject to certain adjustments. On or atilgr15, 2007, Level 3, at its option, may redeenchsh all or a portion of the notes. Level 3
may exercise this option only if the current manete for the Level 3 common stock for at leastr2@ing days within any 30 consecutive
trading day period exceeds prices ranging from 180%e conversion price on July 15, 2007 decrepin50% of the conversion price on
or after July 15, 2009. Level 3 would also be dditiégl to pay the holders of the redeemed noteshaarasunt equal to the present value of all
remaining scheduled interest payments.

Level 3 used the net proceeds of $361 million rdfensaction costs, for working capital, capitgbenditures and other general
corporate purposes, including new product develapntebt repurchases and acquisitions.

Debt issuance costs of $13 million were originakyitalized and are being amortized to interesersp over the term of the 2.87!
Convertible Senior Notes. As a result of amortmatithe capitalized debt issuance costs have leelrced to $8 million at December 31,
2005.

12.875% Senior Discount Notes due 2010

In February 2000, Level 3 Communications, Inc. sold private offering $675 million aggregate pipad amount at maturity of its
12.875% Senior Discount Notes due 2010 (“12.875%dBéiscount Notes”). The sale proceeds of $36llianj excluding debt issuance
costs, were recorded as long-term debt. As of Deeerdl, 2005, a total of $187 million aggregata@pal amount of the 12.875% Senior
Discount Notes had been repurchased, leaving $488maggregate principal amount outstanding. legt on the 12.875% Senior Discount
Notes accreted at a rate of 12.875% per year, congeml sen-annually, to an aggregate principal amount of $#d8on on March 15, 200!
Cash interest did not accrue on the 12.875% S@&igmount Notes prior to March 15, 2005. Commenditagch 15, 2005, interest on the
12.875% Senior Discount Notes accrues at the fat2.875% per year and is payable in cash semialhnia arrears. For the period ended
March 15, 2005, $13 million of accretion was adttedutstanding debt balance to arrive at the faceuat of the 12.875% Senior Discount
Notes. The $13 million of accretion was recordethterest expense during 20(

The 12.875% Senior Discount Notes are subjectdemgption at the option of Level 3 Communicatioms,. | in whole or in part, at
any time or from time to time on or after March 2805. Level 3 Communications, Inc. may redeenmlth&75% Senior Discount Notes at
the redemption prices set forth below, plus inteiéany, to the redemption date. The followingcps are for 12.875% Senior Discount N¢
redeemed during the 12-month period commencing arcM15 of the years set forth below and are esprkas percentages of principal
amount.

Year Redemption Price

2005 106.43(%
2006 104.29%
2007 102.14¢%
2008 and thereaftt 100.000%

The 12.875% Senior Discount Notes are senior, umedmbligations of the Company, rankipari passuwith all existing and futur
senior debt. The 12.875% Senior Discount Notesatormertain covenants, which among other thingst kdditional indebtedness, dividend
payments, certain investments and transactionsaffitfates.

Debt issuance costs of $9 million were originaliyitalized and are being amortized to interest egp®ver the term of the 12.87!

Senior Discount Notes. As a result of amortizatod debt repurchases, the capitalized debt issuarste have been reduced to $3 million at
December 31, 2005.
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11.25% Senior Euro Notes due 2010

In February 2000, Level 3 Communications, Inc. g €293 million ($285 million when issued) of qebceeds, after debt
issuance costs, from an offering of €300 milliog@gyate principal amount 11.25% Senior Euro Notes2010 (“11.25% Senior Euro
Note¢"). As of December 31, 2005, a total of €196 miiliaggregate principal amount of the 11.25% Seniwo Botes had been repurchased.
Interest on the notes accrues at 11.25% per yehisgrayable semi-annually in arrears in Euros @mndid 15 and September 15 each year
beginning September 15, 2000.

The 11.25% Senior Euro Notes are subject to redempt the option of Level 3 Communications, Inig.whole or in part, at any
time or from time to time on or after March 15, 800he 11.25% Senior Euro Notes may be redeemie aédemption prices set forth
below, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if anyhéredemption date. The following prices arelfb25% Senior Euro Notes redeemed
during the 12-month period commencing on March flthe years set forth below, and are expresse@m@eptages of principal amount.

Year Redemption Price

2005 105.62:%
2006 103.75(%
2007 101.87:%
2008 and thereaft: 100.00%

Debt issuance costs of €7 million were originakipitalized and are being amortized over the terth®fl1.25% Senior Euro Notes.
As a result of amortization and debt repurchasescapitalized debt issuance costs have been edu&d million at December 31, 2005.
The 11.25% Senior Euro Notes are senior, unseabightions of the Company, rankipagri passuwith all existing and future senior debt.
The 11.25% Senior Euro Notes contain certain cavisnavhich among other things, limit additional éhdedness, dividend payments, certain
investments and transactions with affiliates.

The issuance of the380 million 11.25% Senior Euro Notes has been deségl as, and is effective as, an economic hedgjasidhe
investment in certain of the Company’s foreign sdibsies. Therefore, foreign currency gains andéssresulting from the translation of the
debt have been recorded in other comprehensivenie¢toss) to the extent of translation gains osdégson such net investment. The 11.25%
Senior Euro Notes were valued, based on curretitagge rates, at $123 million in the Company’s feiahstatements at December 31, 2005.
The difference between the carrying value at De@zrth, 2005 and the value at issuance, after rbpaes, is recorded in other
comprehensive income.

11.25% Senior Notes due 2010

In February 2000, Level 3 Communications, Inc. neset $243 million of net proceeds, after transactiosts, from a private offerir
of $250 million aggregate principal amount of iis25% Senior Notes due 2010 (“11.25% Senior Notéss)of December 31, 2005, a total
of $154 million aggregate principal amount of tHe2b% Senior Notes had been repurchased. Intemgbeaotes accrues at 11.25% per year
and is payable semi-annually in arrears on MarchritbSeptember 15 in cash beginning Septembei00, 2

The 11.25% Senior Notes are subject to redemptitimezoption of Level 3 Communications, Inc., inoddor in part, at any time or
from time to time on or after March 15, 2005. Le8eCommunications, Inc. may redeem the 11.25% $&totes at the redemption prices set
forth below, plus accrued and unpaid interestnyf, a0 the redemption date. The following prices far 11.25% Senior Notes redeemed
during the 12-month period commencing on March flthe years set forth below:

Year Redemption Price

2005 105.625%
2006 103.75(%
2007 101.87%
2008 and thereaftt 100.000%

The 11.25% Senior Notes are senior, unsecuredatiaits of the Company, rankimpgri passwwvith all existing and future senior
debt. The 11.25% Senior Notes contain certain cavesn which among other things, limit additionalébtedness, dividend payments, certain
investments and transactions with affiliates.

Debt issuance costs of $7 million were originathpitalized and are being amortized to interest esp®ver the term
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of the 11.25% Senior Notes. As a result of amatitmeand debt repurchases, the capitalized debaig® costs have been reduced to
$1 million at December 31, 2005.

10.75% Senior Notes due 2011

In October 2003, Level 3 Financing received $48Bioni of net proceeds from a private placementrifig of $500 million
aggregate principal amount of its 10.75% SenioreNalue 2011 (“10.75% Senior Notes”). Interest ennthites accrues at 10.75% per year
and is payable on April 15 and October 15 each yeaash. These notes are guaranteed by Level 3r@mications, LLC and Level 3
Communications, Inc. (See Note 21).

The 10.75% Senior Notes are subject to redemptitimezoption of Level 3 Financing, in whole or iarp at any time or from time to
time on or after October 15, 2007, plus accruediarghid interest thereon to the redemption datediéemed during the twelve months
beginning October 15, of the years indicated below:

Year Redemption Price

2007 105.37%
2008 102.68(%
2009 and thereaftt 100.000%

The 10.75% Senior Notes are senior, unsecuredatidits of Level 3 Financing, rankinmri passuwith all existing and future
senior unsecured indebtedness of Level 3 Finan@ing.notes contain certain covenants, which amadimer ahings, limit consolidated debt,
dividend payments, and transactions with affilialdse net proceeds of the offering were used taygmounts outstanding under a senior
secured credit facility.

Debt issuance costs of $14 million were originakyitalized and are being amortized to interesersp over the term of the 10.7!
Senior Notes. As a result of amortization, the t@diged debt issuance costs have been reducedtmiflion at December 31, 2005.

10% Convertible Senior Notes due 2011

In April 2005, Level 3 Communications, Inc. recel&877 million of net proceeds, after giving effexbffering expenses, from an
offering of $880 million aggregate principal amouwiiits 10% Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 (“10%tnvertible Senior Notes”) to
institutional investors. Interest on the notes aesrat 10% per year and will be payable senmiually on May 1 and November 1 beginning
November 1, 2005. The 10% Convertible Senior Natesunsecured unsubordinated obligations of Le@®@munications, Inc., rankir
pari passiwith all existing and future unsecured unsuboraidatebt of Level 3 Communications, Inc. The 10%\@otible Senior Notes
contain certain covenants which limit additionahl on assets of the Company.

The 10% Convertible Senior Notes will be convediby holders at any time after January 1, 200%d¢oner if certain corporate
events occur) into shares of Level 3 common stéekanversion price of $3.60 per share (subjeatjastment in certain events). This is
equivalent to a conversion rate of approximately.27 shares per $1,000 principal amount of noteadtlition, holders of the 10%
Convertible Senior Notes will have the right touizg the Company to repurchase the notes upondtéri@nce of a change in control, as
defined, at a price of 100% of the principal amoofrthe notes plus accrued interest and a makeengreimium.

On or after May 1, 2009, Level 3, at its option ymadeem for cash all or a portion of the notes Tb% Convertible Senior Notes
are subject to redemption at the option of Levéh3yhole or in part, at any time or from time bmé¢, on not more than sixty nor less than
thirty days’ notice, on or after May 1, 2009, paccrued and unpaid interest thereon to the redemptte, if redeemed during the twelve
months beginning May 1, of the years indicated Welo

Year Redemption Price
2009 103.33(%
2010 and thereaftt 101.67%

Debt issuance costs of $3 million were originaliyitalized and are being amortized to interest egp®ver the term of the 10%
Convertible Senior Notes. As a result of amort@atithe capitalized debt issuance costs have legkited to $2 million at December 31,
2005.
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5.25% Convertible Senior Notes due 2011

On December 2, 2004, Level 3 Communications, lommleted the offering of $345 million aggregatenpippal amount of its 5.25%
Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 (“5.25% Convértihenior Notes”) in a private offering. Interestthe notes accrues at 5.25% per year
and is payable semi-annually in arrears in casbume 15 and December 15, beginning June 15, 20@55.25% Convertible Senior Notes
are senior, unsecured obligations of Level 3 Comioations, Inc., rankingari passuwith all existing and future senior unsecured d#bt
Level 3 Communications, Inc. The 5.25% Convertiéémior Notes contain certain covenants which ladditional liens on assets of the
Company.

The 5.25% Convertible Senior Notes are convertigi¢he option of the holders, into shares of tbenany’s common stock at a
conversion rate of $3.98 per share, subject tareadjustments. Upon conversion, the Companyhade the right to deliver cash in lieu of
shares of its common stock, or a combination ofi gasl shares of common stock. In addition, holdéthe 5.25% Convertible Senior Notes
will have the right to require the Company to refhase the notes upon the occurrence of a charagpmirol, as defined, at a price of 100% of
the principal amount plus accrued interest and keméole premium.

On or after December 15, 2008, Level 3, at itsamptmay redeem for cash all or a portion of thesoThe 5.25% Convertible Ser
Notes are subject to redemption at the option @EL8, in whole or in part, at any time or from &rto time, on not more than 60 nor less 1
30 days’ notice, on or after December 15, 20085 pkcrued and unpaid interest thereon to the retilemgate, if redeemed during the twelve
months beginning December 15, of the years indich&ow:

Year Redemption Price

2008 102.25(%
2009 101.50(%
2010 and thereaftt 100.75(%

In connection with the issuance of the notes, L8vated approximately $62 million of the net pratsef the offering to enter into
convertible note hedge and warrant transactionis regpect to the Company’s common stock to reche@adtential dilution from conversion
of the notes. Level 3 used the remainder of theorateeds from this offering to fund repurchaseissoéxisting debt securities due in 2008.

Under the terms of the convertible note hedge gearent (the “Convertible Note Hedge”) with Mertifnch International
(“Merrill”), Level 3 paid $125 million for a forward purchaseiop contract under which it is entitled to purch@&om Merrill a fixed numbe
of shares of Level 3 common stock (at a currerteppier share of $3.98). In the event of the comwersf the notes, this forward purchase
option contract allows the Company to purchase,fated price equal to the implicit conversion priaf shares issued under the convertible
notes, a number of shares equal to the sharekdkat 3 issues to a note holder upon conversiotilegeent terms of this forward purchase
option allow the Company to elect cash or sharttese¢nt based on the settlement option it choasssttling the conversion feature of the
notes. The Company accounted for the Convertible Redge pursuant to the guidance in EITF 00-12ctinting for Derivative Financial
Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled @ompany’s Own StockAccordingly, the $125 million purchase price of foeward stocl
purchase option contract was recorded as a reduictioonsolidated stockholders’ equity.

Level 3 also sold to Merrill a warrant (the “Wartgrto purchase shares of Level 3 common stock. Wagrant is currently
exercisable for 86,596,380 shares of Level 3 comstock at a current exercise price of $6.00 pereshavel 3 received $63 million cash
from Merrill in return for the sale of this forwashare purchase option contract. Merrill cannot@se the Warrant unless and until a
conversion event occurs. Level 3 has the optiogetifing the Warrant in cash or shares of Levadi@mon stock. The Company accountec
the sale of the Warrant as the sale of a permaatgrity instrument pursuant to the guidance in EDDFL9. Accordingly, the $63 million sales
price of the forward stock purchase option contvears recorded as an increase to consolidated situekis’ equity.

The Convertible Note Hedge and the Warrant ecoraligiallow Level 3 to acquire sufficient sharescoimmon stock from Merrill
to meet its obligation to deliver common stock ugonversion by the holder, unless the common spoicle exceeds $6.00. When the fair
value of the Level 3 common stock exceeds sucleptiie contracts have an offsetting economic impadt accordingly, will no longer be
effective as a hedge of the dilutive impact of ffdssconversion.

Debt issuance costs of $11 million were originaiyitalized and are being amortized to interesepgp over the term of the 5.25%
Convertible Senior Notes. As a result of amortmatidebt issuance costs were $9 million at Decer@bgP005.
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9% Convertible Senior Discount Notes due 2013

In October 2003, Level 3 completed the exchanggppfoximately $352 million (book value) of debt awtrued interest
outstanding, as of October 24, 2003, for approx@ya20 million shares of Level 3 common stock ag28&million (book value) of a new
issue of 9% Convertible Senior Discount Notes.

Level 3 Communications, Inc. issued $295 millioggate principal amount at maturity of 9% ConvetiSenior Discount Notes.
Interest on the 9% Convertible Senior Discount N@tecretes at a rate of 9% per annum, compoundeidrseually, to an aggregate principal
amount of $295 million by October 15, 2007. Caghriest will not accrue on the 9% Convertible SeBimcount Notes prior to October 15,
2007; however, Level 3 Communications, Inc. magtie commence the accrual of cash interest ooudditanding 9% Convertible Senior
Discount Notes on or after October 15, 2004, inclwtdase the outstanding principal amount at mgtofieach 9% Convertible Senior
Discount Note will, on the elected commencemeng dag¢ reduced to the accreted value of the 9% CtinkeSenior Discount Note as of t
date and cash interest shall be payable on tha dloApril 15 and October 15 thereafter. CommenG@otpber 15, 2007, interest on the 9%
Convertible Senior Discount Notes will accrue at thte of 9% per annum and will be payable in cashiannually in arrears. Accrued
interest expense for the year ended December 85, @0 the 9% Convertible Senior Discount Notesse§lthan $1 million was added to
long-term debt.

The 9% Convertible Senior Discount Notes are cdrihlerinto shares of the Company’s common stock @nversion rate of $9.99
per share, subject to certain adjustments. Thénataber of shares issuable upon conversion wilyjeafrom approximately 25 million to
30 million shares depending upon the total acangpidor to conversion. On or after October 15, 2008/el 3, at its option, may redeem for
cash all or a portion of the notes. Level 3 mayrese this option only if the current market prfoe at least 20 trading days within any 30
consecutive trading day period exceeds 140% ofdheersion price on October 15, 2008. This amollhte decreased to 130% and 120%
on October 15, 2008 and 2009, respectively, ifitfiteal holders sell greater than 33.33% of theesotevel 3 is also obligated to pay the
holders of the redeemed notes a cash amount extred present value of all remaining scheduled@stepayments.

The 9% Convertible Senior Discount Notes will bejsat to conversion into common stock at the optibthe holder, in whole or i
part, at any time or from time to time after 18@slafter the issue date at the following convergiooes (expressed as percentages of act
value) plus accrued and unpaid interest theredinet@onversion date, of the time periods indic&ieldw:

Year Conversion Price

October 15, 200- April 14, 2006 83.932%
April 15, 2006- October 14, 200 87.70%%
October 15, 200- April 14, 2007 91.65€6%
April 15, 2007- October 14, 200 95.78(%
October 15, 2007 and thereaf 100.09(%

These notes are senior unsecured obligations d&ll3Communications, Inc., rankimpgri passwwith all existing and future senior
unsecured indebtedness of Level 3 Communicatios, |

6% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009

In September 1999, the Company received $798 mitiiopproceeds, after transaction costs, from aerioi§ of $823 million
aggregate principal amount of its 6% Convertible@dinated Notes Due 2009 (“Subordinated Notes 200%e Subordinated Notes 2009
are unsecured and subordinated to all existingfatade senior indebtedness of the Company. Inteneshe Subordinated Notes 2009 accrues
at 6% per year and is payable each year in cashtanoh 15 and September 15. The principal amoutti@Subordinated Notes 2009 will be
due on September 15, 2009. The Subordinated NO@3% rday be converted into shares of common stotikeo€ompany at any time prior to
maturity, unless previously redeemed, repurchasdideoCompany has caused the conversion rightspioee The conversion rate is 15.3401
shares per each $1,000 principal amount of SubatelihNotes 2009, subject to adjustment in cerfatumstances. On or after September
2002, Level 3, at its option, may cause the conwensghts to expire. Level 3 may exercise thisiaponly if the current market price exce:
approximately $91.27 (which represents 140% oftiveversion price) for 20 trading days within anyipé of 30 consecutive trading days
including the last day of that period. As of DecemB1, 2005, less than $1 million of debt had bamwerted into shares of common stock.
As of December 31, 2005, a total of $461 millioyegate principal amount of the Subordinated N2689 had been repurchased or
exchanged for common stock.
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Debt issuance costs of $25 million were originakyitalized and are being amortized to interesersp over the term of the
Subordinated Notes 2009. As a result of amortinadiod debt repurchases, the capitalized debt iseuansts have been reduced to $4 million
at December 31, 2005.

6% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2010

In February 2000, the Company received $836 milibnet proceeds, after transaction costs, fromtip offering of $863 million
aggregate principal amount of its 6% Convertible@dinated Notes due 2010 (“Subordinated Notes '30T@e Subordinated Notes 2010
are unsecured and subordinated to all existingfande senior indebtedness of the Company. Inteneshe Subordinated Notes 2010 accrues
at 6% per year and is payable semi-annually in casiarch 15 and September 15 beginning Septemh&0DO0. The principal amount of
the Subordinated Notes 2010 will be due on March?030.

The Subordinated Notes 2010 may be converted hates of common stock of Level 3 Communications, &t any time prior to tt
close of business on the business day immediatelyegding maturity, unless previously redeemed,nd@ased or Level 3
Communications, Inc. has caused the conversionsrighexpire. The conversion rate is 7.416 shagegach $1,000 principal amount of
Subordinated Notes 2010, subject to adjustmergiin events.

On or after March 18, 2003, Level 3, at its optiorgy cause the conversion rights to expire. Levaby exercise this option only if
the current market price exceeds approximately ¥B@vhich represents 140% of the conversion pificeat least 20 trading days within ¢
period of 30 consecutive trading days, including ltst trading day of that period. As of Decemlder2D05, no debt had been converted into
shares of common stock. As of December 31, 20@&adof $350 million aggregate principal amountité Subordinated Notes 2010 had
been repurchased or exchanged for common stock.

Debt issue costs of $27 million were originally italized and are being amortized to interest expaver the term of the
Subordinated Notes. As a result of amortization delot repurchases, the capitalized debt issuarste bave been reduced to $6 million at
December 31, 2005.

Commercial Mortgage:
GMAC

In June 2000, HQ Realty, Inc. (a wholly-owned sdlasy of the Company) entered into a $120 millitmafing-rate loan (“GMAC
Mortgage”) providing secured, non-recourse delfin@ance the Company’s world headquarters.

On June 30, 2005, the GMAC Mortgage matured and€@lty, Inc. repaid the outstanding balance of &hilion with
$103 million in cash and $13 million in restricteecurities.

CBRE

In the third quarter of 2005, the Company completedfinancing of the mortgage on its corporatelearters. On September 27,
2005, HQ Realty, Inc. entered into a $70 millioarct an initial fixed rate of 6.86% through 20tt® anticipated repayment date, as defined
in the loan agreement (“CBRE Commercial Mortgag&fer 2010 through maturity in 2015, the intereste will adjust to the greater of
9.86% or the five year U.S. Treasury rate plus I38€ls points. HQ Realty, Inc. received $66 milladmet proceeds after transaction costs
deposited $2 million into restricted cash accodotsuture facility improvements and property taxel§) Realty, Inc. is required to make
interest only payments in the first year with maytbrincipal payments beginning in the second ye&esed on a 30-year amortization
schedule.

Debt issuance costs of $1 million were capitaliaad are being amortized as interest expense ogeetn of the CBRE Commerc
Mortgage.

The assets of HQ Realty Inc. are not availablatsfy any third party obligations other than tho§¢lQ Realty, Inc. In addition, tt
assets of the Company and its subsidiaries otlaertQ Realty, Inc. are not available to satisfydbigations of HQ Realty, Inc.

Genuity Capital Lease Obligations

As part of the Genuity transaction that closed ebrkary 4, 2003, the Company assumed certain tégtse obligations of Genuity
for operating equipment. The Company used a 15%odi# rate to present value the minimum lease paianeepresenting the effective
interest rate that could be obtained by the Compang similar agreement, resulting in a
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capital lease obligation of $309 million. The caplease agreements also contained provisions Whérvel 3 was required to purchase
approximately $30 million of O&M services and netwaapacity ratably over the lease term, which wepearded as prepaid assets
(recognized as cost of revenue over the term oagiteement) and other current and noncurrent iligisil

On April 6, 2004, a bankruptcy court approved dlemient agreement between the Company and Allegidietecom, Inc.
(“Allegiance”). The agreement terminates a multaykease which was one of the capital lease olidigatassumed in the Genuity acquisition
in 2003 described above, whereby the Company wigatdéd to lease approximately 470,000 managed mqautats from Allegiance. The
Company paid approximately $54 million and assumkggiance’s obligations under an agreement with KMC Teleclnm, to extinguish th
capital lease obligation and recognized a gainldf7dmillion on the transaction during the secondrtgr of 2004.

The future minimum lease payments under the cdpitgle obligations as of December 31, 2004, exouttie O&M and network
capacity obligations were adjusted based upon tlegiance settlement and the remaining capitaldeddigation was $24 million at
December 31, 2004. The remaining obligations utitkecapital lease agreement were paid in 2005.

Junior Convertible Subordinated Notes

In July 2002, the Company sold $500 million aggtegaincipal amount of its 9% Junior Convertibleb8rdinated Notes due 2012
to entities controlled by three institutions: Loeaf Partners Funds, Berkshire Hathaway, Inc., &gflMason, Inc. The notes, which had a
10-year maturity, paid 9% cash interest annualyable quarterly beginning October 15, 2002. Thesywere convertible, at the option of
the holders, into Level 3 common stock at any taha conversion price of $3.41 (subject to certaistomary adjustments). The notes were
convertible at the Company’s option into convedipteferred stock under certain conditions andiaistances. The convertible notes ranked
junior to substantially all of the Level 3 Commuations, Inc's outstanding indebtedness.

In January 2003 and April 2003, an aggregate ofrifi®on principal amount of the Junior Convertit#eabordinated Notes were
converted into approximately 13 million shares ef/&l 3 common stock. Pursuant to the original cosiga terms, the holder received
293.255 shares of Level 3 common stock for eacBORLprincipal amount of notes converted. The ded® wonverted pursuant to the original
conversion terms; therefore, no gain or loss wesgeized on the transaction.

In June 2003, the remaining $457 million aggregaitecipal amount of the Company’s 9% Junior CoribégtSubordinated Notes
due 2012 were converted into approximately 16lionilshares of Level 3 common stock with a markédevaf approximately $1.135 billiol
The market value of securities issuable pursuaatitpnal conversion privileges on the conversiatedvas approximately $945 million.
Therefore, pursuant to the provisions of SFAS Nh.d&bt conversion expense of $190 million wasnd®d in the second quarter of 2003.
Approximately $7 million of foregone accrued intgréhrough the date of the conversion was creddediditional paidn capital. In additior
approximately $10 million of unamortized debt isste costs were charged to additional paid-in chaga result of the conversion to
common stock. The total increase in common stock@sult of this conversion and related debt csioe expenses was $644 million.

Future Debt Maturities:

Scheduled maturities of long-term debt outstandimgf December 31, 2005 are as follows (in milljo2906—3$0; 2007—
$1 million; 2008—$1,290 million; 2009—%$363 millio2010—$1,662 million and $2,707 million thereaffBhese maturities do not reflect
the debt exchange transaction completed in JarR@fy§, whereby certain notes maturing in 2008 wrobh&nged for cash and a new serie
notes maturing in 2010 (See Note 22).

(15) Asset Retirement Obligations

In June 2001, the FASB approved SFAS No. 143. SNASL43 establishes accounting standards for retogrand measurement
a liability for an asset retirement obligation @hd associated asset retirement cost. The faiewafla liability for an asset retirement
obligation is to be recognized in the period in ethit is incurred if a reasonable estimate of ¥alue can be made. The associated retirement
costs are capitalized and included as part of éng/ing value of the long-lived asset and amortiaeer the useful life of the asset. SFAS
No. 143 was effective for the Company beginninglanuary 1, 2003. The Compi’s coal mining business had previously accrued as
component of cost of revenue, an estimate of futeckamation liability. The reclamation liabilitg included in noncurrent liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheets. The net effect cdidiption of SFAS No. 143 to the Company’s coal ngrhusiness as of January 1, 2003 was
a decrease in noncurrent liabilities of approxiya$® million (which is being amortized to expensed was reflected as a cumulative-effect
adjustment in the 2003 consolidated statement efagjpns.
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The communications business has entered into nertdodcation and office space leases wherebyr@dsired upon termination of
the lease, to remove the leasehold improvementsedurh the leased space to its original conditidre Company has also entered into right-
of-way agreements for its intercity and metropaliteetworks that may require the removal of the adngpon termination of the agreement.
Upon adoption of this standard on January 1, 20@8Company also recorded obligations and corretipgrassets of approximately
$31 million for these lease and right—of-way agreats.

Asset retirement obligation accretion expense &fidillion, $11 million and $12 million was recordddring the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectivelyjtieg in total asset retirement obligations, irdihg reclamation costs for the coal
business, of $181 million, $138 million and $127liom at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respelgtiThe total asset retirement
obligation as of December 31, 2005 includes WilF elsset retirement obligation of $35 million.

Expense of $10 million related to the communicatibosiness was recorded in selling, general andnégtrative expenses on the
consolidated statement of operations for the yede@ December 31, 2005. Expense of $3 millionedléd the Company’s coal mining
business was recorded in cost of revenue on theotidated statement of operations for the year @kcember 31, 2005. In addition, the
coal mining business incurred $3 million of addidreclamation liabilities and incurred costsvimrk performed on asset retirement
obligations of $2 million.

Expense of $7 million related to the communicatibasiness was recorded in selling, general andraslmtive expenses on the
consolidated statement of operations for the yrde@ December 31, 2004. Expense of $4 million edl& the Company’s coal mining
business was recorded in cost of revenue on theotidated statement of operations for the year @mkcember 31, 2004. In addition, the
coal mining business incurred $4 million of addi@breclamation liabilities and incurred costsvimrk performed on asset retirement
obligations of $1 million.

Expense of $8 million related to the communicatibasiness was recorded in selling, general andradirédtive expenses on the
consolidated statement of operations for the yrde@ December 31, 2003. Expense of $4 million edl& the Company’s coal mining
business was recorded in cost of revenue on theotidated statement of operations for the year @mrember 31, 2003. This was partially
offset by $1 million of gains recognized on settirnof obligations attributable to the use of int#resources rather than third parties to
perform reclamation work. In addition, the coal mmbusiness incurred $3 million of additional seoktion liabilities and incurred costs for
work performed on asset retirement obligationsfdllion.

The Company had noncurrent restricted cash of appedely $56 million and $52 million set aside tm#l the reclamation liabilities
at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(16) Employee Benefit Plans

The Company adopted the recognition provisionsFAS No. 123 in 1998. Under SFAS No. 123, the faiue of an option or other
stock-based compensation (as computed in accorddgtitaccepted option valuation models) on the déigrant is amortized over the
vesting periods of the options in accordance wAlSB Interpretation 28, “Accounting for Stock Appiaiion Rights and Other Variable
Stock Option or Award Plans.” Although the recogmitof the value of the instruments results in cermgation or professional expenses in an
entity’s financial statements, the expense diffesm other compensation and professional expemst®t these charges may not be settled in
cash, but rather, are generally settled throughaisse of common stock.

The adoption of SFAS No. 123 has resulted in mataonn-cash charges to operations since its adopti®998, and the adoption of
SFAS No. 123R will continue to result in materiahacash charges to operations in the future. Theuatof the non-cash charges will be
dependent upon a number of factors, including titelver of grants, the fair value of each grant estuh at the time of its award and the
number of grants that ultimately vest.

The Company recognized in the consolidated stateofasperations a total of $51 million, $43 milli@md $78 million of non-cash
compensation in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectitetjuded in discontinued operations is non-cashprmmation expense of $6 million,
$3 million and $8 million in 2005, 2004 and 2008spectively. In addition, the Company capitaliz@ddillion, $2 million and $4 million in
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, of non-cash emsgtion for those employees and contractors direatolved in the construction of the
network, installation of customers or developmerihe business support systems.
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The following table summarizes non-cash compensa&ipense and capitalized non-cash compensatighddhree years ended
December 31, 2005.

(dollars in millions) 2005 2004 2003
Warrants $— $— $ 9
0SsO 18 16 30
C-0SO — 1 15
Restricted Stoc 19 4 2
Shareworks Match Ple 2) 4 8
401(k) Discretionary Grant Ple 9 5 11
401(k) Match Expense 15 18 15

59 48 90
Capitalized Noncash Compensation (2) (2) 4

57 46 86
Discontinued Operations (6) 3) (8)

$51 $43 $78

Non-qualified Stock Options and Warrants

During the second quarter of 2004, the Companyessyproximately 374,000 warrants to a consultamagment for future
consulting financial advisory services. The warsaaltow the consultant to purchase common sto@4 &0 per share. The warrants vested
equally in quarterly installments over twelve mantiihe warrants expire on April 1, 2011. The Conypacorded less than $1 million of
expense during 2004 for these warrants. As of Déeer®1, 2004, these warrants were fully expensersuant to the relevant accounting
guidance, the fair value of these warrants is datexd on their respective vesting dates. At DecerBhe2004, the fair value of the warrants

was $1 million and was calculated using the Blachees valuation model with a risk free interesé raf 3.82%, an expiration date of
April 1, 2011, and a volatility rate of 75% oveetterm.

During the first quarter of 2003, the Company iskapproximately 684,000 fully vested warrants tmasultant as payment
primarily for acquisition-related consulting semsc The warrants allow the consultant to purchasemon stock at $4.90 per share. The
warrants were fully vested at issuance and wilirxpn January 1, 2013. The Company recorded appedgly $1 million of expense during
2003 for these warrants. The fair value of the wmts at the time they vested was approximately fiiomand was calculated using the

Black-Scholes valuation model with a risk free ietd rate of 4.12%, an expiration date of JanuaB013, and a volatility rate of 70% over
the term.

In March 2003, the Company issued approximatelyniilliion warrants to a consultant as payment foufe consulting financial
advisory services. The warrants allow the consuttapurchase common stock at $5.16 per sharewghents vested equally in quarterly
installments over twelve months. The warrants explarch 31, 2010. The Company recorded less thanifitn and $6 million of expense
during 2004 and 2003, respectively, for these wastal he fair value of these warrants when thewbecfully vested was approximately

$6 million and was calculated using the Black-Sekalaluation model with a risk free interest r&t8.6%, an expiration date of March 31,
2010, and a volatility rate of 75% over the term.

As of December 31, 2005, there were approximatélg million warrants outstanding ranging in priéesn $4.00 to $60.06. Of
these warrants, all were exercisable at Decemhe2@Ib with a weighted average exercise price d@@%per warrant.

The Company has not granted NQSOs since 2000. Becémber 31, 2005, all NQSOs previously granteckvitdly vested and
expensed.
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Transactions involving NQSOs granted are summaidacfllows:

Weighted
Exercise Price Average
Units Per Unit Exercise Price
Balance December 31, 20 9,795,23t $.12-3$84.7¢ $ 6.60
Options grante: — — —
Options cancelle (352,719 6.5(- 42.0C 24.79
Options exercised (521,159 1.76- 6.5C 5.48
Balance December 31, 2003 8,921,36: 12- 84.7¢ 5.95
Options grante: — — —
Options cancelle (361,500) 5.43- 84.7t 15.70
Options exercised — — —
Balance December 31, 2004 8,559,86: 12- 21.6€ 5.85
Options grante: — — —
Options cancelle (606,15() 5.43- 8.0C 11.35
Options exercise (61,16%) 0.12- 0.1z 0.12
Options expired (1,746,500  4.04- 21.6¢ 6.36
Balance December 31, 2005 6,146,04¢ $1.76- $8.0C $ 5.75
Options exercisable
December 31, 20C 8,921,36: $.12-%$84.7t $ 5.95
December 31, 200 8,559,86: A12- 21.6¢ 5.85
December 31, 200 6,146,04¢ $1.76- $8.0C $ 5.75
Options Outstanding
and Exercisable
Weighted
Number Average
Outstanding Remaining Weighted
as of Life Average
Range of Exercise Price 12/31/05 (years) Exercise Price
$1.76-1.76 4,04¢€ 2.30 1.76
4.04-5.43 4,600,07! 1.64 5.3€
6.20 - 8.00 1,541,92! 2.06 6.92
6,146,04¢ 1.75 $ 5.75

Outperform Stock Option Plan

In April 1998, the Company adopted an outperforatistoption (“*OSO”) program that was designed s the Company’s
stockholders would receive a market return on tineiestment before OSO holders receive any retartheir options. The Company believes
that the OSO program aligns directly managememitsstockholders’ interests by basing stock optialue on the Company’s ability to
outperform the market in general, as measureddédwtandard & Poor’s (“S&P”) 500 Index. Participaimshe OSO program do not realize
any value from awards unless the Company’s comrtamk grice outperforms the S&P 500 Index duringlifeeof the grant. When the stock
price gain is greater than the corresponding gaithe S&P 500 Index (or less than the corresponidisgion the S&P Index), the value
received for awards under the OSO plan is baseadformula involving a multiplier related to the &h\by which the Company’s common
stock outperforms the S&P 500 Index. To the extieat Level 3's common stock outperforms the S&P Bi@x, the value of OSOs to a
holder may exceed the value of nonqualified stquions.

In August 2002, the Company modified the OSO progra target that no more than 25% of Level 3’s edrmance was delivered
to employee-owners, and that the exercise of pabsfiture OSO grants does not exceed shares restenvissuance under the Company’s
1995 Stock Plan, as amended. The following modifica, affecting August 19, 2002 and later grawexe made to the Plan:

*  OSO targets are communicated in terms of numb@&S®s rather than a theoretical dollar value.

»  The success multiplier was reduced from eight tw.fo
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»  Awards will vest over 2 years and have a 4-year Hifty percent of the award will vest at the efidhe first year after grant,
with the remaining 50% vesting over the second y&215% per quarter).

The mechanics for determining the fair value ofratividual OSO are described below:

The initial strike price, as determined on the gagr to the OSO grant date, is adjusted over filhe “Adjusted Strike Price”), until
the exercise date. The adjustment is an amount &xtlee percentage appreciation or depreciatidhénvalue of the S&P 500 Index from the
date of grant to the date of exercise. The valub®fOSO increases for increasing levels of outperdnce. OSOs granted prior to August 19,
2002 have a multiplier range from zero to eightetefing upon the performance of Level 3 common stelzkive to the S&P 500 Index as
shown in the following table. OSOs granted Augugst2002 and later have a multiplier range from zerfour depending upon the
performance of Level 3 common stock relative to384> 500 Index as shown in the following table.

If Level 3 Stock Then the Pre-multiplier Gain Is

Outperforms the Multiplied by a Success Multiplier of:

S&P 500 Index by: Pre August 19, 2002 Grant: August 19, 2002 and Later Grant:

0% or Less 0.00 0.00

More than 0% but Less than  Outperformance percentage Outperformance percentage
11% multiplied by?®/ 11 multiplied by¥/ 11

11% or More 8.00 4.00

The Pre-multiplier gain is the Level 3 common stpcke minus the Adjusted Strike Price on the déitexercise.

Upon exercise of an OSO, the Company shall detivgray to the grantee the difference between tlireMrrket Value of a share of
Level 3 common stock as of the day prior to the@se date, less the Adjusted Strike Price, theetBise Consideration”. The Exercise
Consideration may be paid in cash, Level 3 commocksor any combination of cash or Level 3 commimrtls at the Company’s discretion.
The number of shares of Level 3 common stock tddleered by the Company to the grantee is detexchby dividing the Exercise
Consideration to be paid in Level 3 common stockheyFair Market Value of a share of Level 3 Commtutk as of the date prior to the
exercise date. Fair Market Value is defined in@&0 agreement, but is currently the closing prixeghare of Level 3 common stock on the
NASDAQ exchange

OSO awards are granted quarterly to eligible paditts.

Awards granted prior to August 19, 2002 vest inatquarterly installments over two years and haf@uayear life. OSOs granted
between March 1, 2001 and August 18, 2002 are esednle immediately upon vesting and have a four-iitsa

The fair value of the OSOs granted in 2002 and aftes calculated by applying a modified Black-Selsainodel with the
assumptions identified below. The Company uses difiad Black-Scholes model due to the additionaialgles required to calculate the
impact of the success multiplier of the OSO program

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003

S&P 500 Expected Divider

Yield Rate 1.99% 1.54% 1.51%

Expected Life 2year: 2years 2 year:
S&P 500 Expected Volatilit

Rate 13% 15% 25%
Level 3 Common Stoc

Expected Volatility Rati 55% 56% 80%
Expected S&P 50

Correlation Facto .30 19 46
Calculated Theoretic:

Value 116% 120% 156%

The fair value of each OSO grant equals the caledltheoretical value multiplied by the Level 3 ¢oon stock price on the day
prior to the grant date.

As part of a comprehensive review of its long-t@@empensation program, the Company temporarily sudgukawards of OSOs in
April 2005. During the second quarter of 2005, @wmnpany granted participants in the plan restristedk
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units, discussed below.

Beginning in the third quarter 2005, the Compasuésl both restricted stock units and OSOs as pastlong-term compensation

program. The Company plans to make annual gramesstricted stock units that vest ratably over fgesirs and plans to make quarterly OSO

grants to employees that have similar terms atli&0s granted in the first quarter of 2005.

The fair value under SFAS No. 123 for the approxetyad million, 5 million and 2 million OSOs awardi¢o participants during the
year ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, tesgdecwas approximately $18 million, $22 milliand $20 million, respectively. As
December 31, 2005, the Company had not reflectedii®n of unamortized compensation expense iffiitancial statements for previously

granted OSOs.

Transactions involving OSOs awarded are summaiizéte table below. The Option Price Per Unit idféed in the table below
represents the initial strike price, as determioedhe day prior to the OSO grant date.

Weighted
Option Price Average
Units Per Unit Option Price
Balance December 31, 20 24,497,05. $2.45-%$113.8° $ 21.14
Options grante: 2,165,22: 4.90- 6.6€ 5.46
Options cancelle (172,887 2.45- 113.8] 4.85
Options expire( (3,374,391 3.02- 113.8; 56.93
Options exercised (1,631,58) 2.45- 5.5¢ 4.12
Balance December 31, 20 21,483,41. 2.45- 113.8] 15.36
Options grante: 5,394,05¢ 2.59-5.7C 3.36
Options cancelle (211,87¢) 2.45- 113.8] 4.80
Options expirec (4,873,81f) 3.02- 113.8] 41.94
Options exercised (430,256 2.45- 5.5¢ 3.64
Balance December 31, 20 21,361,52; 2.45- 25.31 6.61
Options grante: 5,859,06¢ 2.03-3.3¢ 261
Options cancelle (1,048,49;) 2.03- 25.31 3.00
Options expire( (11,841,490 2.59- 25.31 8.91
Options exercised (84,62¢) 2.45- 3.02 2.86
Balance December 31, 20 14,245,97 $2.03- $6.6¢ $ 3.34
Options exercisable
December 31, 20C 18,948,041 $2.45-$113.87 $ 16.54
December 31, 200 15,507,84 2.45- 25.31 7.75
December 31, 20C 8,453,29¢ $2.59- $6.6¢ $ 3.88
OSOs Outstanding OSOs Exercisable
at December 31, 200 at December 31, 200
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Number Remaining Life Average Number Average
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding (years) Option Price Exercisable Option Price
$2.03- $3.02 7,369,74¢ 251 $ 2.5C 3,039,85! $ 2.86
3.39-4.90 5,013,15: 2.41 3.68 3,550,36° 3.78
5.16 - 6.66 1,863,07: 1.50 5.72 1,863,07: 5.72
14,245,971 234 $ 3.35 8,453,29¢ $ 3.88

At December 31, 2005, based on the Level 3 comrtank rice and post-multiplier values, the Compeuag not obligated to issue

shares for vested and exercisable OSOs as thenpegeeincrease in the S&P 500 Index exceeded tvepage increase in the Level 3 stock

price for all grants.

In July 2000, the Company adopted a convertiblparibrm stock option program, (“C-OSQ”) as an esten of the existing OSO

plan. The program was a component of the Compamgeing employee retention efforts and offered lsinfeatures to those of an OSO, but
provided an employee with the greater of the value single share of the Company’s common stoekatcise, or the calculated OSO value

of a single OSO at the time of exercise.

C-0OSO0 awards were made to eligible employees emagloy the date of the grant. The awards were nmade i
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September 2000, December 2000, and September PB8hwards granted in 2000 vested over three ysaisllows:Y/ s of each grant at the
end of the first year, a furthéfsat the end of the second year and the remaiisig the third year. The September 2001 awards vésted
equal quarterly installments over three years. EBaedrd was immediately exercisable upon vestingaria expired four years from the date
of the grant.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had fully dixext the compensation expense in its financiaéstants for C-OSOs
awarded in 2000 and 2001. The final series of C-©8@nted to employees expired in 2005. There @a@-@©SO units outstanding at
December 31, 2005.

Transactions involving C-OSOs are summarized below:

Weighted
Option Price Average
Units Per Unit Option Price
Balance December 31, 2002 4,999,98! $3.82-%$87.2: $ 17.4¢
Options cancelle (120,01Y) 3.82- 87.2: 12.3¢
Options expire( (35,929 3.82- 87.2: 19.13
Options exercised (779,359 3.82- 87.2: 29.1¢
Balance December 31, 2003 4,064,68: 3.82- 87.2: 15.3¢
Options cancelle (24,029 3.82- 87.2: 3.82
Options expire( (201,096 3.82- 87.2: 33.3¢
Options exercised (1,162,77)  3.82- 87.2¢ 41.67
Balance December 31, 2004 2,776,77¢ 3.82 3.82
Options cancelle — — —
Options expirec (137,980) 3.82 3.82
Options exercised (2,638,799 3.82 3.82
Balance December 31, 2005 — 3 382 $% 3.82
Options exercisable

December 31, 20C 3,469,14: $3.82-$87.2: $ 17.37
December 31, 20C 2,776,77! 3.82 3.82

December 31, 200 — — _

Restricted Stock and Units

In 2005, 2004 and 2003, approximately 24,594,006,000 and 670,000 shares, respectively, of réstristock or restricted stock
units were awarded to employees and non-employeebees of the Board of Directors. The restrictedlstonits and shares were granted to
the recipients at no cost. Restrictions on transfese over one to four year periods. The fair @afirestricted stock units and shares awarded
in 2005, 2004 and 2003 of $50 million, $2 milliomda$4 million, respectively, was calculated usihg value of the Level 3 common stock
day prior to the award and is being amortized dlerrestriction lapse periods of the awards in etamece with FIN 28, Accounting for Stoc
Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock OptorAward Plans”. As of December 31, 2005, the Canyphad not reflected $29 million
of unamortized compensation expense in its findistéements for the restricted stock units andeshpreviously granted.

Shareworks and 401(k) Plans

Level 3 has designed its compensation programspeitticular emphasis on equity-based incentive ramog. The Company had
developed two plans under its Shareworks prograemMatch Plan and the Grant Plan. In December 2@0#der to provide employees
opportunities to diversify their investments in Quany-sponsored savings and retirement plans, thep@oy decided to enhance the 401(k)
plan by introducing a Company match on employedritnrtions. At the same time the Company determihed, effective January 1, 2003,
the Shareworks Match Plan would be discontinuedtbad&hareworks Grant Plan would be rolled into4b#(k) plan.

Match Plan— The Match Plan was suspended on January 1, 20i08.t€this date, the Match Plan allowed eligiblepgoyees to
defer between 1% and 7% of their eligible compéaosdb purchase Level 3 common stock at the avestmgk price for the quarter. Full tir
employees of the communications business and nenf@irmation services businesses were considdigille on the first day of the calenc
quarter after their hire. The Company matched ttaees purchased by the employee on a one-for-ais. l&tock purchased with payroll
deductions was fully vested. Stock purchased vi¢hGompany’s matching contributions vested threes/after the end of the quarter in
which it was made. Effective January 1, 2003, pastributions to the Match Plan continued to vieetyever, there will be no further
contributions to the Plan by
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employees or the Company.
The Company’s quarterly matching contribution wamgized to compensation expense over the vesgnigg of 36 months.

As of December 31, 2005 the Company had fully aimedtto compensation expense the value of the imgtctontributions and all
matching contributions were fully vested. During #econd quarter of 2005, the Company reversedili@mof non-cash expense in Europe
attributable to the discontinuance of certain gqoitmpensation programs.

Grant Plan— The Grant Plan enabled the Company to grant slodilesvel 3 common stock to eligible employees @& th
Communications business and certain informatiovices businesses based upon a percentage of tHeyemg eligible salary up to a
maximum of 5%. Level 3 employees employed on Deaar8h of each year, who were age 21 or older witliramum of 1,000 hours
credited service were considered eligible. Theeshgranted were valued at the fair market valus #se last business day of the calendar
year. All prior and future grants vested immediatgbon the employ¢'s third anniversary of joining the Shareworks PIAH prior grants for
active employees were vested as of January 1, 2003vere transferred into the 401(k) plan. As dised below, the Company made
discretionary contributions into the 401(k) plan éach of the three years ended December 31, Z¥fain foreign subsidiaries of the
information services business received cash payietieu of Level 3 common stock due to regulat@strictions.

401(k) Plan—The Company and its subsidiaries offer their digaliemployees the opportunity to participate mhefined
contribution retirement plan qualifying under theyisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Reve@gale. Each employee was eligible to
contribute, on a tax deferred basis, a portionnoiual earnings generally not to exceed $14,00@052Effective January 1, 2003, the
Company began matching 100% of employee contribstigp to 7% of eligible earnings or applicable tatpry limits for employees of the
communications businesses in the form of LevelBroon stock.

The Company’s matching contributions are made Wéthel 3 common stock based on the closing stoademn each pay date. The
employees are able to diversify the Company mabciribution as soon as it is made, even if theynatefully vested. The Company’s
matching contributions will be fully vested upomugletion of three years of service. For the yealedrDecember 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
the Company recorded as expense $14 million, $1®mand $15 million, respectively, relative to4®) plan matching contributions made
to employees.

The Company made a discretionary contribution €41 (k) plan in Level 3 common stock for the yearded December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003 equal to three percent, two percehtvao percent of eligible employees’ eligible eags each year, respectively. The 2005
deposit is expected to be made into the employ@ar’in Level 3 common stock as of December 314206 December 31, 2003, equal to
two and three percent of eligible employees’ 200d 2003 eligible earnings, respectively. The dapagere made into the employed§1(k)
accounts during the first quarter of the subseqyeat. Level 3 recorded an expense of $8 millighirillion, and $8 million attributable to
the year’s contribution in 2005, 2004 and 2003peetively.
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(17) Income Taxes

An analysis of the income tax benefit (provisiotijibutable to loss from continuing operations lefmcome taxes for the three
years ended December 31, 2005 follo

2005 2004 2003
(dollars in millions)

Current:
United States Feder $ 4 $— $—
State — (1) (7)
Foreign 1 — —
G @ O
Deferred, net of changes in valuation allowan
United States Feder — — 58
State — — —
Foreign — — —
— — 58
Income Tax Benefit (Provision) $6G) $@ $51

During 2003, the Internal Revenue Service complatedudit of the Company’s 1996 and 1997 fedexatgturns. The resolution of
these federal tax audits and other state tax igmimsirily related to its coal mining operationsuked in the Company reducing its deferred
tax liabilities and recording an income tax benefi$51 million in 2003.

The United States and foreign components of lass frontinuing operations before income taxes fadlow

2005 2004 2003
(dollars in millions)
United State: $ (717) $ (300) $ (568)
Foreign 15 (177) (178)

$ (702 $ (477 $ (746

A reconciliation of the actual income tax bengfitavision) and the tax computed by applying the.fe8eral rate (35%) to the loss
from continuing operations, before income taxeglierthree years ended December 31, 2005 follows:

2005 2004 2003
(dollars in millions)

Computed Tax Benefit at Statutory R~ $ 246 $ 167 $ 261

State Income Tax Bene 23 16 17
Stock Option Plan Exercis: 3) (29) —
Taxes on Extinguishments of Convertible

Debt — (1) (68)
Other (12) 33 56
Excess Book Net Operating Losses (260) (197) (215)
Income Tax Benefit (Provision) $ 5) $ 1 $ 51
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The components of the net deferred tax assetsliiied) for the years ended December 31, 200520a# were as follows and are
included in Other Liabilities on the consolidateddance sheets:

2005 2004
(dollars in millions)

Deferred Tax Asset:

Fixed asset $ 790 $ 801

Accrued payroll and related benel 299 297

Investment in securitie 27 30

Accrued liabilities and deferred reven — 18

Investment in joint venture 82 83

Unutilized tax net operating loss 2,249 1,845

Other assets or liabilities 38 46
Total Deferred Tax Assets 3,485 3,120
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Accrued liabilities and deferred revenue (105) =
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (105) —
Net Deferred Tax Assets before valuation allowe 3,380 3,120
Valuation Allowance Component

Net Deferred Tax Asse (3,305 (3,045)

Stockholders’ Equity (primarily tax benefit from togm

exercises (75) (75)

Net Nor-Current Deferred Tax Assets after Valuation

Allowance $ — & —

Deferred income taxes are provided for the tempatidferences between the financial reporting andtasis of the Company’s
assets and liabilities using enacted tax ratefféttefor the year in which the differences areeotpd to reverse. Net operating losses not
utilized can be carried forward for 20 years tasefffuture taxable income. A valuation allowancs bheen recorded against deferred tax
assets, as the Company is unable to conclude ueldeant accounting standards that it is moreyikiedn not that deferred tax assets will be
realizable. The ultimate realization of deferredaasets is dependent upon the generation of ftamedle income during the periods in wh
those temporary differences become deductible.Jdrapany considers the scheduled reversal of deféaveliabilities, projected future
taxable income and tax planning strategies in ngpktirs assessment.

For federal income tax reporting purposes, the Gomas approximately $5.9 billion of net operafivgs carryforwards, net of
previous carrybacks, available to offset futuresfaditaxable income. The net operating loss camdods expire through 2025 and are sut
to examination by the tax authorities. The U.S.aparating loss carryforwards expire as followdl@te in millions):

Expiring December 31 Amount
2018 $ 3
2019 2
2020 660
2021 978
2022 1,287
2023 1,001
2024 969
2025 1,024

$5,924

In addition, the Company has approximately $70iamlbf net operating loss carryforwards for forelgoations, the majority of
which have no expiration period.

The Internal Revenue Code contains provisions wiialt limit the net operating loss carryforwardsilade to be used in any giv
year upon the occurrence of certain events, inoudignificant changes in ownership interests. Chepany does not believe its |
operating loss carryforwards will be limited in B00r thereafter, based on information availablatime of this filing.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company has no ptarepiatriate undistributed earnings of foreign glibges as any
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earnings are deemed necessary to fund ongoing Eamagperations and planned expansion. Undistribtedenings of foreign subsidiaries t
are permanently invested, and for which no defetagds have been provided, amounted to approxiyn@ié million and zero as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(18) Stockholders’ Equity

During 2004, the Company'’s stockholders approvptbaosal at the Company’s 2004 annual meetinghi®réservation of an
additional 80 million shares of common stock untther Company’s 1995 Stock Plan.

During 2003, the Company issued approximately 2ilom shares in exchange for approximately $1.60fon aggregate principal
amount of long-term debt (See Note 14).

The Level 3 1995 Stock Plan permits option holdertender shares to the Company to cover inconmestdxe on option exercises.

Issuances of common stock, for sales, conversaptmn exercises and acquisitions for the threesyeaded December 31, 2005 are
shown below.

Outstanding
Common Shares

December 31, 2002 443,556,86.
Option, Shareworks and 401(k) Activi 14,021,13!
Debt for Equity Exchanges and Conversi 42,464,77!
Conversion of 9% Junior Convertible SubordinatedeN 173,611,06:
Telverse Communications, Inc. Acquisition 4,174,80(

December 31, 2003 677,828,63
Option, Shareworks and 401(k) Activity 8,668,08'

December 31, 2004 686,496,72
Option, Shareworks and 401(k) Activi 16,271,09°
WilTel Communications Group, LLC Acquisition 115,000,00!

December 31, 2005 817,767,81

(19) Industry and Geographic Data

SFAS No. 131 “Disclosures about Segments of anrgnse and Related Information” defines operatiegments as components of
an enterprise for which separate financial infoiorats available and which is evaluated regulaghthee Company’s chief operating decision
maker, or decision making group, in deciding howaltocate resources and assess performance. Opesatiments are managed separately
and represent separate strategic business unitsftbadifferent products and serve different nesk The Company’s reportable segments
include: communications and coal mining (See Not@®ther primarily includes California Private Temortation Company, L.P., equity
investments, and other corporate assets and ovkenmattributable to a specific segment. In thedtquarter of 2006, the Company exited
the information services business as a resultet#te of Software Spectrum. Segment informati@een revised due to reclassification of
the information services businesses as discontiopedations in the consolidated financial stateséaee Note 23).

Adjusted OIBDA, as defined by the Company, consi$tsperating income (loss) before (1) depreciatiod amortization expense,
(2) stock-based compensation expense includedmsiliing, general and administrative expensefierconsolidated statements of
operations and (3) any non-cash impairment costaded within restructuring and impairment experalkas reported on the consolidated
statements of operations. The Company excludek-staeed compensation due to the recording of neh-campensation expense under the
provisions of SFAS No. 123. Adjusted OIBDA is arpiontant part of the Company’s internal reportind @&@an indicator of profitability and
operating performance used by the chief operatawgstbn maker or decision making group to evalpatdormance and allocate resources. It
is a commonly used indicator in the capital-inteesiommunications industry to analyze companietherbasis of operating performance
over time. Adjusted OIBDA is not intended to regneisnet income or cash flow for the periods presris not calculated consistently with
the commonly used metric “EBITDA”, and is not reoaged under generally accepted accounting prinsifi@ AAP”) but is used by
management to assess segment results and allesateces.

The data presented in the following tables includésmation for the twelve months ended Decemtigr205, 2004 and 2003 for
all statement of operations and cash flow inforovapresented, and as of December 31, 2005 andfaoas#
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balance sheet information presented. Informatitated to the acquired businesses is included figein tespective acquisition dates. Reve
and the related expenses are attributed to coardgsed on where services are provided.

Industry and geographic segment financial infororafollows. Certain prior year information has beealassified to conform to the
2005 presentation.

Coal
Communications Mining Other Total
2005
Revenue
North America $ 1,49¢ $ 74 % — 3 1,57C
Europe 149 — — 149
Asia — — — —
$ 1,645 $ 74 $ — 3 1,71¢
Adjusted OIBDA:
North America $ 437 $ 16 $ (3)
Europe 21 — —
Asia — — —
$ 458 $ 16 $ (3)
Net Capital Expenditure:
North America $ 271 % 2 3 — 3 273
Europe 27 — — 27
Asia — — — —
$ 298 $ 2 $ — 3 300
Depreciation and Amortizatiol
North America $ 560 $ 5 $ — 3 565
Europe 82 — — 82
Asia — — — —
$ 642 $ 5 $ = & 647
Coal
Communications Mining Other Total
2004
Revenue
North America $ 154 $ 91 $ — 3 1637
Europe 139 — — 139
Asia — — — —
$ 1,685 $ 91 $ — 3 1,77¢
Adjusted OIBDA:
North America $ 459 % 18 $ 1)
Europe 4 — —
Asia — — —
$ 463 $ 18 $ (1)
Net Capital Expenditure:
North America $ 240 $ 2 3 — 3 242
Europe 30 — — 30
Asia — — — —
$ 270 $ 2 $ — 3 272
Depreciation and Amortizatiol
North America $ 571 $ 6 $ — 3 577
Europe 94 — — 94
Asia — — — —
$ 665 $ 6 $ — 9 671
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2003

Revenue
North America
Europe
Asia

Adjusted OIBDA:

North America
Europe
Asia

Net Capital Expenditure:

North America
Europe
Asia

Depreciation and Amortizatiol

North America
Europe
Asia

| dentifiable Assets
December 31, 200

North America
Europe
Asia

December 31, 200

North America
Europe
Asia

Coal

Communications Mining Other Total
$ 1,80 $ 80 $ — 1,88¢
138 — — 138
1 — — 1
$ 1,947 $ 80 $ — 2,027
$ 730 $ 17 $ (5)
5 _ _
$ 735 $ 17 $ (5)
$ 138 $ 2 % — 140
13 — — 13
$ 151 $ 2 % — 153
$ 705 % $ — 711
87 — — 87
$ 792 % 6 $ = 798
Discontinued
Information Coal
Communications Services Mining Other Total
(dollars in millions)
$ 5782 $ 631 $ 90 810 7,313
716 206 — 18 940
— 24 — — 24
$ 6,496 $ 861 $ 90 828 8,277
$ 494C $ 644 $ 84 710 6,37¢
894 230 — 20 1,144
— 22 — — 22
$ 5834 $ 896 $ 84 730 7,544
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Discontinued
Information Coal
Communications Services Mining Other Total
(dollars in millions)

Long-Lived Assets (excluding Goodwill)
December 31, 20C

North America $ 550z $ 68 $ 75 $ — % 5,64¢&
Europe 696 1 — — 697
Asia — 1 — — 1
$ 6,19¢ $ 70 $ 75 $ — 3 6,342
December 31, 200
North America $ 4848 $ 95 % 66 $ — 3 5,00¢
Europe 859 1 — — 860
Asia — — — — —
$ 5707 $ 9% $ 66 $ — % 5,86¢
Goodwill (1)
December 31, 200
North America $ 70 $ 194 % — % — 3 264
Europe — — — — —
Asia — — — — —
$ 70 $ 194 $ — 3 — 3 264
December 31, 20C
North America $ 71 % 202 $ — 3 — 3 273
Europe — — — — —
Asia — — — — —
$ 71 $ 202 % — 3 — 3 273

(1) Goodwill for Discontinued Information Servicpeesented in the table above includes $194 miblioth $202 million of goodwill
related to Software Spectrum at December 31, 26852804, respectively. This goodwill is includedhe Consolidated Balance Sheet in
Noncurrent Assets of Discontinued Operatic

Communications revenue is grouped into three caiegidl) Core Services (including transport andasifructure services, IP & data services,
voice services and Vyvx services) 2) Other Servioeduding managed modem and related reciprocalpamsation, DSL aggregation, and
Internet access services), and 3) SBC Master Serigreement. This revenue reporting structuressamts a change from prior year
presentations to reflect how the Company’s managemi invest and manage cash flows in the comroatidns business going forward.
Management believes this new product grouping pies/imore meaningful information to the reader effthancial statements because each
of the revenue groups has different expectatiotis seispect to future revenue performance.

Services
SBC Master
Services
Core Other Agreement Total

(dollars in millions)
Communications Revenue

2005
North America $ 818 $ 653 $ 25 $ 1,49¢
Europe 144 5 — 149
Other — — — —
$ 962 $ 658 $ 25 % 1,64E

2004
North America $ 664 $ 882 $ — 3 1,54¢€
Europe 129 10 — 139
Other — — — —
$ 793 $ 892 $ — 3 1,68E

2003
North America $ 841 $ 967 $ — 3 1,80¢
Europe 126 12 — 138
Other — 1 — 1
$ 967 $ 980 $ —  $ 1,947
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Transport and Infrastructure includes $130 milli®h07 million and $344 million of termination rewenfor the year ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectivelf. [Rita includes $1 million, $5 million and $2 mdh of termination revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respeactivel

The majority of North American revenue consistservices delivered within the United States. Théonitg of European revenue
consists of services delivered within the Uniteddgdom but also includes France and Germany. Traasic revenue is allocated to Europe.

The following information provides a reconciliatiofNet Income (Loss) to Adjusted OIBDA by opergtisegment, as defined by
the Company, for the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2003:

2005
Discontinued
Information
Communications Services Coal Mining Other
(dollars in millions)
Net Income (Loss $ (720) $ 69 $ 16 $ 3)
(Income) Loss from Discontinued Operatic — (69) — —
Income Tax Provisio 2 — 2 1
Total Other (Income) Expense 474 — (7) (1)
Operating Income (Loss) (244) — 11 3)
Non-Cash Impairment Char 9 — — —
Depreciation and Amortization Exper 642 — 5 —
Non-Cash Compensation Expense 51 — — —
Adjusted OIBDA $ 458 $ — 3 16 $ (3)
2004
Discontinued
Information
Communications Services Coal Mining Other
(dollars in millions)
Net Income (Loss $ (509) $ 20 $ 11 % 20
(Income) Loss from Discontinued Operatic — (20) — —
Income Tax Provisio — — 1 —
Total Other (Income) Expense 264 — — (21)
Operating Income (Loss) (245) — 12 1)
Depreciation and Amortization Exper 665 — 6 —
Non-Cash Compensation Expense 43 — — —
Adjusted OIBDA $ 463 $ — % 18 $ (1)
2003
Discontinued
Information
Communications Services Coal Mining Other
(dollars in millions)
Net Income (Loss $ (820) $ (33) $ 16 $ 126
(Income) Loss from Discontinued Operatic (12) 33 — —
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Princi — — (5) —
Income Tax Provision (Benefi — — — (51)
Total Other (Income) Expense 697 — — (80)
Operating Income (Loss) (135) — 11 (5)
Depreciation and Amortization Exper 792 — 6 —
Non-Cash Compensation Expense 78 — — —
Adjusted OIBDA $ 735 $ — $ 17 ¢ (5)

F-73




(20) Commitments, Contingencies and Other Items

In May 2001, Level 3 Communications, Inc., and wdts subsidiaries were named as a defendaBairer, et. al. v. Level 3
Communications, LLC, et gla purported class action covering 22 statesq fih the U.S. District Court for the Southern Bétof Illinois. In
April 2002, the same plaintiffs filed a second mg&tentical purported multi-state class actiorsiate court in Madison County, lllinois. In
July 2001, the Company was named as a defend&myile, et. al. v. Level 3 Communications, Inc.akt, a purported two state class action
filed in the U.S. District Court for the Districf tdaho. In September 2002, Level 3 Communicatituh& was named as a defendanSimith
et al v. Sprint Communications Company, L.P., etalpurported nationwide class action filed in theted States District Court for the
Northern District of lllinois. In April 2005, therSith plaintiffs filed a Fourth Amended Complaint izh did not include Level 3 as a par
thus ending Level 3's involvement in the Smith cdsd-ebruary 2005, Level 3 Communications, LLC wamed as a defendant in
McDaniel, et. al., v. Qwest Communications Corporatet al., a purported class action covering 10 states fileétie United States District
Court for the Northern District of lllinois. Thesetions involve the Company’s right to installfitser optic cable network in easements and
right-of-ways crossing the plaintiffs’ land. In gaal, the Company obtained the rights to consitsatetwork from railroads, utilities, and
others, and has installed its network along thietsigpf-way so granted. Plaintiffs in the purportdaks actions assert that they are the owners
of lands over which the company’s fiber optic cafddwork passes, and that the railroads, utilites] others who granted the Company the
right to construct and maintain its network did have the legal authority to do so. The complasetsk damages on theories of trespass,
unjust enrichment and slander of title and propextywell as punitive damages. The Company hagetsived, and may in the future
receive, claims and demands related to rights-ofigsues similar to the issues in these casesrtagte based on similar or different legal
theories. To date, all adjudicated attempts to ltdags action status granted on complaints filedres the Company or any of its subsidiaries
involving claims and demands related to rights-afpissues have been denied.

It is still too early for the Company to reach acloision as to the ultimate outcome of these astiblowever, management believes
that the Company and its subsidiaries have sulistalefenses to the claims asserted in all of tlesens (and any similar claims which may
be named in the future), and intends to defend thigorously if a satisfactory form of the settlerhennot approved.

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties toyrotirer legal proceedings. Management believesatimaresulting liabilities for
these legal proceedings, beyond amounts reseniaotvmaterially affect the Company’s financiamition or future results of operations,
but could impact future cash flows.

Operating Leases

The Company is leasing rights-of-way, facilitieslarther assets under various operating leases wihiglddition to rental payments,
may require payments for insurance, maintenancgepty taxes and other executory costs relateldetéetase. Certain leases provide for
adjustments in lease cost based upon adjustmetits tonsumer price index and increases in thddesid management costs.

The rights-of-way agreements have various expinadimes through 2030. Payments under these righagfagreements were
$30 million in 2005, $31 million in 2004 and $31lioin in 2003

The Company has obligations under non-cancelal#eating leases for certain colocation and offiaglitées, including lease
obligations for which facility related restructugicharges have been recorded. The lease agreemasetsarious expiration dates through
2082. Rent expense, including common area maintenamder non-cancelable lease agreements was ifiod im 2005, $88 million in
2004 and $93 million in 2003.

For those leases involving communications colocadiod right-of-way agreements, the Company antiegpthat it will renew these
leases under option provisions contained in thed@@reements given the significant cost to retotted Company’s network and other
facilities.

Future minimum payments, including common area teaance, for the next five years under right-of-wagyeements and non-
cancelable operating leases consist of the follgwihDecember 31, 2005 (dollars in millions):
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Right-of-Way Other

Agreements Facilities Assets Total

2006 $ 45 $ 97 $ 2 % 144
2007 45 94 2 141
2008 43 85 5 133
2009 44 72 — 116
2010 43 63 — 106
Thereafter 668 347 — 1,01E

Total $ 888 $ 758 % 9 3 1,655

It is customary in Level 3's industries to use was financial instruments in the normal courseusihess. These instruments include
items such as letters of credit. Letters of craditconditional commitments issued on behalf ofdl&vin accordance with specified terms :
conditions. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, L8vwd outstanding letters of credit of approxirya$d.9 million and $26 million,
respectively, which are collateralized by cash aredreflected on the consolidated balance sheestricted cash. The Company does not
believe it is practicable to estimate the fair eatii the letters of credit and does not believeosype to loss is likely nor material.

Other

Level 3 receives certain mine management services Peter Kiewit Sons’, Inc. The expense for themwices was $5 million for
2005, $6 million for 2004 and $5 million for 200ihd is recorded in selling, general and adminisgaxpenses. As of December 31, 2005
and 2004, the Company owed less than $1 million$dnahillion, respectively for fourth quarter minenmagement services.

For use in its business operations, the Company deasehold interests in two corporate aircraftsinde 1999 a 15% ownership
interest in an additional corporate aircraft, vilite remaining 85% ownership interest held by a@@ton that is controlled by Walter Scott,
Jr., a director of the Company. During 2005, iregatiated transaction with an unrelated third pahtg Company obtained a continuing 15%
ownership interest in a replacement corporateafirar exchange for its 15% ownership intereshim aircraft surrendered in the transaction
and a payment of approximately $2 million. The ramim 85% ownership interest was obtained by thpa@tion controlled by Mr. Scott,
which paid for its ownership interests separatelthe transaction.

(21) Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

As discussed in Note 14, in October 2003, Leveinafcing issued $500 million 10.75% Senior Notes thu2011. These notes are
unsecured obligations of Level 3 Financing, howetray are also jointly and severally and fully amdtonditionally guaranteed on an
unsecured senior basis by Level 3 Communicatiorts,dnd Level 3 Communications, LLC (a wholly-owrsedbsidiary). The 10.75% Senior
Notes were registered with the Securities and BExgda&ommission in 200.

In conjunction with the registration of the 10.73nior Notes, the accompanying condensed consalidiitancial information has
been prepared and presented pursuant to SEC RegutaX Rule 3-10 “Financial statements of guarestind affiliates whose securities
collateralize an issue registered or being reg@stéiThis information is not intended to presert fimancial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the individual companies or groupsahpanies in accordance with generally accepteodusting principles.

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operatiarthdoyears ended December 31, 2005, 2004 andf200®. Level 3

Communications, LLC leases equipment and certaitfitias from other wholly-owned subsidiaries ofdat 3 Communications, Inc. These
transactions are eliminated in the consolidatedlt®sf the Company.
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2005

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
Revenue $ — 3 — $ 1,457 $ 440 $ (178) $1,71¢
Costs and Expense
Cost of Revenu — — 575 104 (163) 516
Depreciation and Amortizatic — — 444 203 — 647
Selling, General and Administrati 4 — 640 140 (15) 769
Restructuring and Impairment Charges — — 21 2 — 23
Total Costs and Expenses 4 — 1,68C 449 (178) 1,95%F
Operating Income (LosS) 4) — (223) 9) — (236)
Other Income (Loss), ne
Interest Incom: 19 1 11 4 — 35
Interest Expens (390) (133) — (7) — (530)
Interest Income (Expense) Affiliates, 1 784 527 (1,336 25 — —
Equity in Net Earnings (Losses) of
Subsidiariet (1,04¢) (1,492 (1) — 2,541 —
Other Income (Expense) 1 — 12 16 — 29
Other Income (Loss) (634) (1,097) (1,314 38 2,541 (466)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations
Before Income Taxe (638) (1,097) (1,537) 29 2,541 (702
Income Tax Expense — — — (5) — (5)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations (638) (1,097 (1,537) 24 2,541 (707)
Income from Discontinued Operations — 49 — 20 — 69
Net Income (Loss $ (638) $ (1,04¢) $ (1,537) $ 44 $ 2,541 $ (638)
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2004

Revenue $
Costs and Expense
Cost of Revenu
Depreciation and Amortizatic
Selling, General and Administrati
Restructuring and Impairment Charges

Total Costs and Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)
Other Income (Loss), ne
Interest Incom:
Interest Expens
Interest Income (Expense) Affiliates, 1
Equity in Net Earnings (Losses) of
Subsidiaries
Other Income (Expense)

Other Income (Loss)

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations
Before Income Taxe
Income Tax Expense

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations
Income from Discontinued Operations

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications,
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

— 3 — 3 1,514 $ 554 $ (292) $1,77¢€
- - 692 85 (274) 503
— — 423 248 — 671
7 - 681 152 (18) 822
— — 6 8 — 14
7 — 1,802 493 (292) 2,01C
) — (288) 61 —  (239)
— — 11 2 — 13
(405) (61) (13) (6) —  (48)
809 396 (1,20€) 1 — —
(907) (1,247) (1) — 2,151 —
52 1 150 26 — 229
(451) (907) (1,059 23 2,151 (243)
(458) (907) (1,347) 84 2,151 (477
— — — 1) — 1)
(458) (907) (1,347) 83 2,151 (479
— — — 20 — 20
(458) $  (907) $ (1,347 $ 103 $ 2,151 $ (458

Net Income (Loss $
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2003

Revenue
Costs and Expense
Cost of Revenu
Depreciation and Amortizatic
Selling, General and Administrati
Restructuring and Impairment Charges
Total Costs and Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Other Income (Loss), ne
Interest Incom:
Interest Expens
Interest Income (Expense) Affiliates, 1
Equity in Net Earnings (Losses) of
Subsidiaries
Other Income (Expense)
Other Income (LosS)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations
Before Income Taxe
Income Tax Benefit
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations
and Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle
Income (Loss) from Discontinued
Operations
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounti
Principle
Net Income (Loss

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

— $ — 3 1,767 $ 591 $ (331) $2,027
- - 648 93 (313) 428
— — 458 340 — 798
39 — 573 310 (18) 904
— — 22 4 — 26
39 = 1,701 747 (331) 2,15€
(39) — 66 (156) — (129

1 — 3 14 — 18
(433) (14) (39) (81) —  (567)
866 137 (1,02€) 25 — —
(949) (1,072 (24) — 2,048 —
(157) — (7) 96 — (68)
(672) (949) (1,095) 54 2,04 (617)
(711) (949) (1,029) (102) 2,045 (746)
= = = 51 = 51
(711) (949) (1,029) (51) 2,045 (695)
— — 12 (33) — (21)
— — — 5 — 5
(71) $ (949 $ (1,017 $ (79 $ 2,045 $ (711)

F-78




Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets as of Dexe3tih2005 and 2004 follow:

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
December 31, 2005

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalel $ 37 % 8 $ 275 % 59 % — $ 379

Marketable securitie 173 3 — — — 176

Restricted cash and securit — 3 20 11 — 34

Accounts receivable, n — — 84 308 — 392

Due from (to) affiliates 10,117 4,613 (14,857 123 — —

Current assets of discontinued operati — — — 597 — 597

Other 16 4 29 43 — 92
Total Current Assets 10,34: 4,631 (14,445 1,141 — 1,67C
Property, Plant and Equipment, | — — 3,40¢ 2,22¢ — 5,632
Marketable Securitie 234 — — — — 234
Restricted Cash and Securit 16 — — 59 — 75
Goodwill and Intangibles, n — — 85 206 — 291
Investment in Subsidiarie (6,2517) (9,651) 802 — 15,10C —
Noncurret Assets of Discontinus

Operations — — — 264 — 264
Other Assets, net 44 21 14 32 — 111
Total Assets $ 4,38€ $ (4,999 $ (10,13%) $ 3,92 $ 15,10C $8,277
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

(Deficit)
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ — % 1 3 141 $ 225 $ — $ 367

Current portion of lon-term debt — — — — — —

Accrued payroll and employee bene — — 46 33 — 79

Accrued interes 83 18 — 1 — 102

Deferred revenu — — 138 61 — 199

Current liabilities of discontinued

operations 539 539

Other 1 2 50 84 — 137
Total Current Liabilities 84 21 375 943 — 1,423
Long-Term Debt, less current portis 4,722 1,23C — 71 —  6,02:
Deferred Revenu — — 633 104 — 737
Other Liabilities 56 1 196 317 — 570
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) (476) (6,251) (11,339 2,49C 15,10(¢ (476)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

(Deficit) $ 4386 $ (4,999) $ (10,135 $ 3,925 $ 15,10C $8,277
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Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Marketable securitie
Restricted cash and securit
Accounts receivable, n
Due from (to) affiliates

Current assets of discontinued operati

Other
Total Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment, |
Marketable Securitie
Restricted Cash and Securit
Goodwill and Intangibles, n
Investment in Subsidiarie
Noncurrent Assets of Discontinu
Operations
Other Assets, net
Total Assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
(Deficit)
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Current portion of lon-term debt
Accrued payroll and employee bene
Accrued interes
Deferred revenu
Current liabilities of discontinued
operations
Other
Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Debt, less current portis
Deferred Revenu
Other Liabilities
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

(Deficit)

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

December 31, 2004

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3

Communications, Financing, Communications, Other

Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

$ 3 % 17 $ 245 $ 73 % — $ 338
— — 225 — — 225
— 6 14 28 — 48
— — 113 20 — 133
9,16¢ 4,10C (13,297) 24 — —
598 598
13 26 17 — 60
9,18t 4,127 (12,670 760 — 1,402
— — 3,271 2,10C — 5,371
— — 114 — — 114
16 — — 51 — 67
— — 136 64 — 200
(5,457  (8,360) 1 — 13,81¢ —
298 298
43 24 17 8 — 92
$ 3,787 $ (4,209 $ (9,130)) $ 3,281 $ 13,81€ $7,544
$ — % — 8 120 $ 66 $ — $ 186
— — 26 117 — 143
— — 53 12 — 65
52 17 3 1 — 73
— — 172 20 — 192
563 563
1 — 61 18 — 80
53 17 435 797 — 1,30z
3,83¢€ 1,23C — 1 — 5,067
— — 707 129 — 836
55 1 198 242 — 496
(157) (5,457) (10,471) 2,112 13,81¢€ (157)
3,787 $ (4,209 $ (9,131) $ 3,281 $ 13,816 $7,544
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flomtaéoyears ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and f200&:

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2005

Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Operating Activities of Continuing Operatio
Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Proceeds from sale and maturity of marketable #éxsi
Purchases of marketable securi
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash and sexs
Capital expenditure
Investments and acquisitio
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operat
Advances to discontinued operations,
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equiprapdt
other asset
Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activitie
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance c
Payments on long-term debt, including current por{net
of restricted cast
Increase (decrease) due from affiliates, net
Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Financing Activities
Net Cash Used i
Discontinued Operatior
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equigalen
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Yeatuies
cash of discontinued operatior
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year (incledsh of
discontinued operation

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. L Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
$ (306) $ (128) $ 226 $ 90 $ —  $(119)
243 — 340 1 — 584
(648) — — — — (648)
— 3 (6) (1) — (4)
— — (167) (133) — (300)
(10) — (497) 128 — (379
— 82 — — — 82
— — — 13 — 13
— — 3 8 — 11
(415) 85 (327) 16 — (641)
877 — — 66 — 943
— — (26) (104) — (130)
(121) 34 170 (83) — —
756 34 144 (121) — 813
— — — (32) — (32)
@ — (13) 1 — (13)
34 ©) 30 (46) - 9
3 17 245 178 — 443
37 $ 8 $ 275 $ 132§ — $ 452
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2004

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Operating Activities of Continuing Operatio $ 379 $ (26) $ (30) ¢ 315 $ —  $(120)
Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Proceeds from sale and maturity of marketable #ézsi — — 70 — — 70
Purchases of marketable securi — — (410) — — (410)
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash and sexs 7 21 4) ) — 21
Capital expenditure — — (174) (98) — (272)
Acquisitions — — (69) — — (69)
Advances to discontinued operations, — — — 5 — 5
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipnzertt
other asset — — 9 51 — 60
Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Investing Activities 7 21 (578) (45) — (595)
Cash Flows from Financing Activitie
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance c 272 713 — — — 985
Payments and repurchases of long-term debt, inodudi
current portion (net of restricted ca: (949) — (75) ) —  (1,027)
Increase (decrease) in due from affiliates, net 1,04¢ (706) 341 (684) — —
Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Financing Activities 372 7 266 (687) — (42)
Net Cash Provided k
Discontinued Operatior — — — 56 — 56
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equigaler 2 — 5 8 — 15
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival 2 2 (337) (353) — (686)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Yeatudes
cash of discontinued operatior 1 15 582 531 — 1,128
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year (incladsh of
$ 3 3 17 $ 245 $ 178 $ — $ 443

discontinued operation
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2003

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. L Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

Net Cash Provided by (Used i

Operating Activities of Continuing Operatio $ (347) $ — 3 131 $ 209 $ — $
Cash Flows from Investing Activitie

Decrease (increase) in restricted cash and sexgynite’ 26 (26) 4 5 — 9

Capital expenditure — — 87) (66) — (153)

Advances to discontinued operations, — — — 44 — 44

Investments and acquisitio (2) — (209) — — (111)

Proceeds from sale of discontinued operat — — — 20 — 20

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equippsedt

other asset — — 26 77 — 103

Net Cash Provided by (Used i

Investing Activities 24 (26) (166) 80 — (88)
Cash Flows from Financing Activitie

Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance ci 361 487 — — — 848

Payments and repurchases of long-term debt, ingdudi

current portion (net of restricted ca: — — (43) (729) — (772)

Stock options exercise 3 — — — — 3

Increase (decrease) in due from affiliates, net (42) (468) 630 (120) — —
Net Cash Provided by (Used i

Financing Activities 322 19 587 (849) — 79
Net Cash Provided by (Used i

Discontinued Operatior — — 28 (31) — 3)
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equigaler — — — 6 — 6
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival (1) (7) 580 (585) — (13)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Yeatudes

cash of discontinued operatior 2 22 2 1,11€ — 1,142
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year (incladsh of

discontinued operation $ 1 % 15 % 582 ¢ 531 ¢ — $1.12¢
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(22) Subsequent Events
Debt Exchange

On January 13, 2006, the Company completed prastbange offers to exchange its outstanding 9.186#or Notes due 2008,
11% Senior Notes due 2008 and 10.5% Senior Disddates due 2008 (together the “2008 Notes”) thaevireld by eligible holders in a
private placement for cash and new 11.5% SenioedNdtie 2010. The Company issued $692 million aggegyrincipal amount of 11.5%
Senior Notes as well as paid $46 million of cashsideration in exchange for the 2008 Notes tendierélte transactions. The Company also
paid approximately $13 million in cash for totataged interest to the closing date on the 2008 d\ibtat had been accepted for exchange.

Pursuant to the guidance in EITF No. 96-19, the gamy accounted for the exchange of the 9.125% Salutes and the 11%
Senior Notes as an extinguishment of debt and ¢spececognize a gain of approximately $27 milliorOther Income in the first quarter of
2006. The gain was determined using the fair vafube new 11.5% Notes at the time of issuance.falnevalue of the 11.5% Senior Notes
was approximately $73 million less than the face@am of the debt. This accretion to the face amofitiie debt will be reflected as interest
expense. The 11.5% Senior Notes will be recordéidedt fair value on the transaction date and agitrete to their face value at maturity.
Premiums paid to holders of the 9.125% Senior Natesthe 11% Senior Notes of $41 million were aggphgainst the gain on
extinguishment of debt.

The exchange of the 10.5% Senior Discount Notesavesunted for as a modification of the existingtd&he premiums paid to the
holders of the 10.5% Senior Discount Notes of $flioniwill be added to the existing debt issuanosts and amortized over the term of the
11.5% Notes.

The principal amount of 2008 Notes tendered isa@¢h in the table below (dollars in millions).

Aggregate
Principal
Amount
Outstanding Aggregate
Before Aggregate Principal Amount of Total Cash
Exchange Principal Amount Old Notes Premium
2008 Notes to be exchange Offers Tendered to Remain Outstanding Payment
9.125% Senior Notes due 20 $ 954 $ 556 $ 398 $ 36
11% Senior Notes due 20! 132 54 78 5
10.5% Senior Discount Notes due
2008 144 82 62 5

The exchange offers were made only to qualifietitintgonal buyers and institutional accredited istas inside the United Sates and
to certain non-U.S. investors located outside thédd States.

The 11.5% Senior Notes are senior unsecured olgligabf the Company, ranking equal in right of payrnwith the old notes not
tendered in the exchange offers as well as allratberior unsecured obligations of the Company. Th&% Senior Notes will mature on
March 1, 2010, and will bear interest at a rategrmgrum equal to 11.50%. Interest on the Notesbeilbayable on March 1 and September
each year, beginning on September 1, 2006. The Goynmay redeem some or all of the 11.5% SeniorNattany time on or after March 1,
2009, at 100% of their principal amount plus acdrimterest.

The 11.5% Senior Notes have not been registereeruhd Securities Act of 1933, as amended, andmogie offered or sold in the
United States absent registration or an applicelénption from registration requirements. Leveh8eed into a registration rights agreen
pursuant to which it will file an exchange offegigration statement with the Securities and Exgea@ommission with respect to the new
notes.

Acquisition of Progress Telecom LLC

On January 26, 2006, Level 3 signed a definitiveament to acquire all of the membership interesBrogress Telecom, LLC
(“Progress Telecom”), a regional wholesale netwsskices company based in St. Petersburg, FldPisdaress Telecom, LLC is owned by
PT Holding, LLC which is jointly owned by ProgreSeergy, Inc. and Odyssey Telecorp, Inc. Under ¢he$ of the agreement, Level 3
expects to pay total consideration of $137 millicopsisting of $68.5 million in shares of Level 8f@mon Stock, pursuant to the terms of the
Registration Rights Agreement, and $68.5 millioc@sh. The number of shares to be delivered witldtermined immediately prior to
closing. Progress Telecom’s network spans 9,008snihcludes 29 metro networks and connects tonat®enal cable landings in South
Florida and 31 mobile switching centers
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in the southeast United States. Progress Telecorasapproximately 200 customers with a signifiaoricentration of international and
wireless carrier customers. The Company expectsahsaction to close early in the second quaft2ne6.

(23) Sale of Software Spectrum

On September 7, 2006, Level 3 sold Software Spegthoc. to Insight Enterprises, Inc., a leadingvidter of information technolog
products and services. In connection with thesmation, Level 3 received total proceeds of $398amiin cash, consisting of a base
purchase price of $287 million and a working cdmtfjustment of approximately $66 million. The ghase price is subject to working
capital and certain other post-closing adjustmehtszel 3 recognized a $33 million gain on the saation in the third quarter of 2006 after
transaction costs.

The following is the summarized results of openadiof the Software Spectrum business for the yeaded December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003:

2005 2004 2003(1)
(dollars in millions)
Revenue! $1,894 $1,861 $1,92C
Costs and Expense
Cost of revenu 1,717 1,70t 1,77¢€
Depreciation and amortizatic 10 11 15
Selling, general and administrati 143 125 123
Restructuring and impairment charges — 2 14
Total costs and expenses 1,87( 1,842 1,93C
Income (Loss) from Operations 24 18 (10)
Other Income (Expense) (1) 7 2
Income (Loss) from Operations Before Income Te 23 25 (8)
Income Tax Expense 3) (5) )
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations $ 20 $ 20 $ (9

(1) The 2003 loss from the operations of Software $pattoes not reflect the $7 million loss from distioued operations from the
contact services business sold in 2003.

The following is summarized financial informatiaor the Software Spectrum business as of Decemh&08b and 2004

December 31  December 31

(dollars in millions) 2005 2004
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalel $ 73 $ 105
Receivable: 431 408
Other 93 72
Total Current Assets 597 585
Property, Plant and Equipment, | 6 4
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, | 242 257
Other 16 4
Total Assets $ 861 $ 850
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 420 $ 414
Accrued payroll and employee bene 17 13
Deferred revenu 67 61
Other 35 54
Total Current Liabilities 539 542
Deferred Revenu 11 4
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 12 —
Total Liabilities 562 546
Net Assets $ 299 % 304
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(24) Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

March June September December
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
(dollars in millions except per share data

Revenue $ 527 $ 405 $ 390 $ 415 $ 384 $ 448 $ 418 $ 508
Operating Income (Los! 26 (64) (75) (96) (89) (55) (98) (19)
Loss from Continuing Operatiol (78) (152 (196) (64) (207) (175  (226) (87)
Income from Discontinued Operatio 1 5 8 1 3 4 57 10
Net Loss (r7)y (147  (189) (63) (204) (171) (169 (77)
Income (Loss) per Share (Basi

Loss from Continuing Operatiol $ (0.11) $ (0.23) $ (0.28) $ (0.09) $ (0.29) $ (0.26) $ (0.32) $ (0.13)

Income from Discontinued Operations — 0.01 0.01 — — 0.01 0.08 0.02

Net Loss $ (0.11) $ (0.22) $ (0.27) $ (0.09) $ (0.29) $ (0.25) $ (0.24) $ (0.11)

Loss per share was calculated for each three-nperibd on a stand-alone basis. As a result of staeisactions during the periods,
the sum of the loss per share for the four quadkeesach year may not equal the loss per sharhéotwelve month periods. As a result of the
sale of(i) Structure and Software Spectrum in 2005 and 2@&pectively, certain amounts previously includethsn2005 and 2004 quarte
reports on Forms 10-Q have been reclassified fronticuing operations to discontinued operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company recogghia $49 million gain from the sale af)Structure.

In the first quarter of 2005, the Company recogni&86 million and $40 million of termination reventelated to 360networks
(USA), Inc. and France Telecom Long Distance USIXC|respectively. The Company also recognized $ilffomin severance and related
charges as a result of a workforce reduction of@pmately 470 employees in the first quarter 0§20

In the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company recogghia $50 million gain on extinguishments of deklstesl to the repurchase of
portions of its outstanding notes due 2008. The @y also recognized $103 million of terminatiovereue and recorded lease impairment
charges of $14 million for leases in North Amerégad Europe during the fourth quarter of 2004.

In the second quarter of 2004 the Company paidn$iiibn to extinguish a capital lease obligatiorthvAllegiance and recognized a
gain of $147 million on the settlement.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(unaudited)
Three Months Ended
March 31,
(dollars in millions, except per share data 2006 2005
Revenue
Communication: $ 804 $ 510
Coal mining 18 17
Total revenue 822 527
Costs and Expense
Cost of revenue
Communication: 396 116
Coal mining 16 13
Total cost of revenue 412 129
Depreciation and amortizatic 187 166
Selling, general and administrati 276 191
Restructuring charges 4 15
Total costs and expenses 879 501
Operating Income (LosS) (57) 26
Other Income (Expense
Interest incomi 9 4
Interest expens (150) (114)
Other, net 31 6
Total other income (expense) (110) (1049)
Loss from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes (167) (78)
Income Tax Benefit 1 —
Loss from Continuing Operations (166) (78)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations (2) 1
Net Loss $ (168 $ (77)
Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Sh
Loss from Continuing Operatiol $ (0.200 $ (0.11)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations — —
Net Loss $ (0.200 $ (0.11)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsients.




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(unaudited)
March 31, December 31

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005
Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivale $ 555 $ 379

Marketable securitie 412 176

Restricted cash and securit 35 34

Receivables, less allowances of $19 and $17, résphc 402 392

Current assets of discontinued operati 398 597

Other 99 92
Total Current Assets 1,901 1,67C
Property, Plant and Equipment, | 5,581 5,632
Marketable Securitie — 234
Restricted Cash and Securit 87 75
Goodwill and Other Intangibles, n 327 291
Noncurrent Assets of Discontinued Operati 267 264
Other Assets, net 121 111
Total Assets $ 8,284 $ 8,277
Liabilities and Stockholde’ Deficit
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 370 % 367

Current portion of lon-term debt 1 —

Accrued payroll and employee bene 52 79

Accrued interes 120 102

Deferred revenu 184 199

Current liabilities of discontinued operatic 329 539

Other 117 137
Total Current Liabilities 1,173 1,42%
Long-Term Debt, less current portit 6,357 6,023
Deferred Revenu 738 737
Other Liabilities 562 570
Commitments and Contingenci
Stockholder' Deficit:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 10(@@shares: no shares outstanc — —

Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 1,5000@@shares: 844,059,226 outstanding in 2006 and

817,767,818 outstanding in 20 8 8

Additional paic-in capital 7,851 7,75¢

Accumulated other comprehensive |i (42) (51)

Accumulated deficit (8,369) (8,192)
Total Stockholders’ Deficit (546) (476)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit $ 8,284 $ 8,277

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(unaudited)
Three Months Ended
March 31,
(dollars in millions) 2006 2005
Cash Flows from Operating Activitie
Net loss $ (168 $ (77)
(Income) loss from discontinued operations 2 1)
Loss from continuing operations (166) (78)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing ogieres to net cash used in operating activitiesositinuing
operations
Depreciation and amortizatic 187 166
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment ghdrasset (1) Q)
Non-cash compensation expense attributable to stockda 14 10
Deferred revenu (15) (141)
Gain on extinguishment of debt, r (27) —
Non-cash impairment expens 3 —
Amortization of debt issuance co: 4 4
Accreted interest on lor-term discount dek 9 17
Accrued interest on loi-term debt 18 15
Change in working capital items net of amounts aequ
Receivable! 23 (1)
Other current asse (8) (13)
Payables (1) 14
Other current liabilitie: (44) (13)
Other (3) (2)
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities of Continuldgerations (7) (23)
Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Capital expenditure (58) (59)
Advances to discontinued operations, (20) (12)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketalolgrities — 50
Increase in restricted cash and securities (12) 2)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipnsemt othe 2 1
Progress Telecom acquisition (70) —
Net Cash Used in Investing Activiti $ (148 $ (21)

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement Of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
March 31,

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005
Cash Flows from Financing Activitie

Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance c $ 379 $ —

Payments and repurchases of long-term debt, inaucdlirrent portion (51) (25)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activil 328 (25)
Discontinued Operations (Revise

Net cash used in discontinued operating activ (56) (43)

Net cash provided by investing activiti 9 10

Net effect of exchange rates on cash and cashaqoie (1) (2)
Net Cash Used in Discontinued Operati (48) (35)
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equigalen 3 (3)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival 128 (107)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Pe

Cash attributable to continuing operati 379 338

Cash attributable to discontinued operations 73 105
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Pel

Cash attributable to continuing operations $ 555 $ 266

Cash attributable to discontinued operations $ 25 $ 70
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informati

Cash interest pai $ 119 $ 78
Noncash Investing and Financing Activit

Common stock issued for acquisiti $ 66 $ —

Long-Term debt issued in exchange transac 619 —

Long-Term debt retired in exchange transac 692 —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Changes in StockholderBeficit
For the three months ended March 31, 2006

(unaudited)
Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated

(dollars in millions) Stock Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Total
Balances at December 31, 2( $ 8 $ 7,75¢ $ (1) $ (8,192) $ (476)
Adjustment for EITF No. 04-6 — — — (3) (3)
Adjusted balance at December 31, 2005 8 7,75¢ (52) (8,195) (479
Common Stock

Stock plan grant — 10 — — 10

Shareworks pla — 12 — — 12

401(k) plan — 4 — — 4

Progress Telecom acquisiti — 66 — — 66
Net Loss — — — (168) (168)
Other Comprehensive Income — — 9 — 9
Balances at March 31, 2006 $ 8 $ 7,851 $ (42) 3 (8,365 $ (546)

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

(unaudited)
Three Months Ended
March 31,
(dollars in millions) 2006 2005
Net Loss $ (168) $ (77)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before 1
Foreign currency translation income (loss 7 (29)
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on marketablétygecurities and other arising during per 2 —
Reclassification adjustment for losses includedehloss — 4
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before 9 (25)
Income Tax Benefit Related to Items of Other Corhpresive Income (Loss) — —
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Taxes 9 (25)
Comprehensive Loss $ (159 $ (102
SUPPLEMENTARY STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT INFORMATION
(unaudited)
Net Foreign
Currency
Translation
(dollars in millions) Adjustment Other Total
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Ic
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 19 $ 32 $ (51)
Change 7 2 9
Balance at March 31, 2006 $ 12) $ (30) $ (42)

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Hizies

The consolidated financial statements include tuants of Level 3 Communications, Inc. and subsiés (the “Company” or “Level 3") in
which it has control, which are engaged in entegsiprimarily related to communications and coalimgi. Fifty-percent-owned mining joint
ventures are consolidated on a pro rata basisigyificant intercompany accounts and transactiae® been eliminated.

On March 20, 2006, the Company completed the aitipmf Progress Telecom, LLC. (“Progress TelechrProgress Telecom’s results of
operations, cash flows and financial position amuded in the consolidated financial statememsifthe date of acquisition (See Note 2).

On December 23, 2005, Level 3 acquired WilTel Comitations Group, LLC and its operating subsidia(i®gilTel”). The financial
position, results of operations and cash flowshattable to WilTel are included in the consolidafedncial statements from the date of
acquisition (See Note 2).

On September 7, 2006, Level 3 sold Software Spacthoc. (“Software Spectrum”), the Company’s softeveeseller business, to Insight
Enterprises, Inc. (“Insight Enterprises”). On Nmher 30, 2005, Level 3 sold fStructure, LLC (“(i )Structure”), Level 3's wholly-owned
IT infrastructure management outsourcing subsidiafyfocrossing, Inc. (“Infocrossing”). These tlwasinesses comprised Level 3's
information services segment. The results of dpers, financial condition and cash flows for theft®%are Spectrum andi (Structure
businesses have been classified as discontinuedtmpes in the consolidated financial statementsfoperiods presented (See Note 3).

The consolidated balance sheet of Level 3 Commtiaitg Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2@@5deen taken from the Company’s
audited balance sheet as of that date. All otlmanitial statements contained herein are unauditgdimthe opinion of management, contain
all adjustments (consisting only of normal recugractcruals) necessary for a fair presentationnaiiftial position, results of operations and
cash flows for the periods presented. The Compamcsunting policies and certain other disclosaresset forth in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements contained inGbmpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as revisebftect Software Spectrum as
discontinued operations, for the year ended DeceBihe?005. These financial statements should &e ireconjunction with the Company’s
audited consolidated financial statements and rtbergto. The preparation of the consolidated firerstatements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates requires management to make estimatessanmptions that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure ofticgent assets and liabilities and the reporteduarhof revenue and expenses during the
reported period. Actual results could differ frohese estimates.

The results of operations for the three months éfdiarch 31, 2006 are not necessarily indicativehefresults expected for the full year.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123Raf&Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R"). SFAS No.R 2&quires that
compensation cost relating to share-based paymargections be recognized in the financial statésrssmsed on the fair value of equity or
liability instruments issued. The U.S. Securitiad #xchange Commission extended the effective @fa®-AS No. 123R such that the
Company was first required to adopt SFAS No. 128giitming January 1, 2006. The adoption of SFASI28R did not have a material
effect on the Company’s financial position or résaf operations.

Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 04-6, “Acdéogrior Stripping Costs Incurred during Productinrihe Mining Industry” (“EITF

No. 04-6") establishes appropriate accounting for strigpiosts incurred during the production phase awrdféctive for fiscal years

beginning after December 15, 2005. EITF No. 0446ctades that stripping costs incurred during thedpction phase of a mine are variable
production costs that should be included in théscothe inventory produced during the period thatstripping costs are incurred. EITF

No. 046 further defines inventory produced as minerat tras been extracted. As a result, stripping cesised to exposed, but not extracted
mineral must be expensed as incurred rather thiemrdd until the mineral is extracted. The Compargdal mining business had previously
deferred stripping costs and amortized these costisthe period in which the underlying coal was@di. The Company’s adoption of EITF
No. 04-6 on January 1, 2006 requires it to adjust begmpmnétained earnings (accumulated deficit) foreghmunt of prepaid stripping costs
previously deferred. The Company decreased begjrequity by $3 million as a result of the adopta@rEITF No. 04-6.

Reclassifications

Certain current and prior year amounts have bedagsified to conform to the September 30, 2006gntation as filed in the Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended September 30, 2006.




In 2005, the Company has separately disclosedgbeating, investing and financing portion of theltélows attributable to its discontinued
operations, which in prior periods were reportechaombined basis as a single amount.

2. Acquisitions
Progress Telecom

On March 20, 2006 ,Level 3 completed its acquisition of all of the ntmrship interests of Progress Telecom, LLC fronH®lding

Company LLC (“PT Holding”) excluding certain speei assets and liabilities of Progress Telecomgiess Telecom was owned by PT
Holding, which is jointly owned by Progress Enertng. and Odyssey Telecorp, Inc. Under the termb@fpurchase agreement dated
January 25, 2006, Level 3 purchased Progress Trelémoan aggregate purchase price consisting ofsh@@lion in cash and 19.7 million
newly issued shares of Level 3 common stock, vahiek66 million. The purchase price is subjectdustments based on working capital
other matters. The Company also incurred costpprfoximately $1 million related to the transactibevel 3 entered into certain transactions
with Progress Telecom prior to the acquisition afgPess Telecom by Level 3, whereby Level 3 reakash for communications services to
be provided in the future. As a result of the asifioin, Level 3 can no longer amortize this defémevenue into earnings and accordingly,
reduced the purchase price applied to the netsaasqtiired in the Progress Telecom transactiordhyilion, the amount of the unamortized
deferred revenue balance on March 20, 2006.

Level 3 filed a registration statement covering 18e7 million newly issued shares of Level 3 commtatk, which became effective on
March 24, 2006. These shares are subject to traresfgictions pursuant to the registration rigdgseement the Company entered into witl
Holding and others.

Progress Telecom is a regional wholesale netwarkices company based in St. Petersburg, Floridagréss Telecom’s network spans 9,000
miles, includes 29 metro networks and connectat@rmational cable landings in South Florida andn®bile switching centers in the
southeastern region of the United States. Prodrelesom serves approximately 200 customers witfrafeeant concentration of

international and wireless carrier customers.

WilTel

On December 23, 2005, the Company acquired Wiff@iy Leucadia National Corporation and its subsidi&(together “Leucadia”). The
consideration paid consisted of approximately $3@0on in cash and 115 million shares of newlyued Level 3 common stock (“Shares”),
valued at $313 million. The Company also incurrpdraximately $7 million of costs related to thiartsaction. The cash purchase price was
subject to postiosing adjustments based on actual working cagitdlother contractual items as of the closing.dat®arch, 2006, Leucac
and Level 3 agreed that the purchase price for ®/#ghould decrease by approximately $27 milliom assult of working capital and other
contractual post closing adjustments. As of MarthZD06, the purchase price adjustment due to L2was still outstanding and included in
Accounts Receivable on the consolidated balancetshevel 3 received payment of the $27 millionustiinent in the April 2006.

The preliminary valuation indicated that the faatue of the WilTel assets acquired exceeded tla abthe purchase price paid and the
liabilities assumed in the transaction. As a reshét excess value was applied against the failevad the property, plant and equipment
obtained in the transaction. The $27 million pdssing adjustment resulted in an additional de@éaghe fair value of property, plant and
equipment in the first quarter of 2006.

In accordance with the terms of a registrationtsgigreement between Level 3 and Leucadia datedriiser 23, 2005, Level 3 filed a
registration statement covering the Shares, whidaime effective on December 27, 2005. On Marcl2@06, Leucadia sold all of the Shares
under the registration statement.

Pro Forma Financial Information

The following is unaudited pro-forma financial infieation of the Company assuming the WilTel and Rreg Telecom transactions occurred
at the beginning of the period presented

Pro-Forma Pro-Forma
Three months Three months
ended ended
(dollars in millions, except per share data March 31, 2006 March 31, 2005
Revenue $ 835 $ 963
Loss from Continuing Operatiol (165) (50)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatic 2) 1
Net Loss (167) (49)
Per Share
Loss from continuing opertior $ (0.200 $ (0.06)
Net loss $ (0.20) $ (0.06)
Pro Forma Weighted Average Shares Outstandindgn¢uasands 838,987 824,91(
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The fair value of the assets acquired and thelitigisiassumed in the Progress Telecom transaigibased upon a preliminary valuation and
is subject to change based on post-closing purghrése adjustments and changes to the integrataomgf the combined business. The fair
value of assets acquired and liabilities assumeldarWilTel transaction is based upon a preliminaluation as of the acquisition date after
reflecting other contractual purchase price adjestisiand is subject to change due to integratiansplThe Company will continue to
evaluate assets acquired and liabilities assumseldban the valuation analysis and integration &fffmr the WilTel and Progress Telecom
transactions. The estimated fair value of assetsiesd and liabilities assumed for the Progresedah and WilTel transactions are as
follows.

Progress
(dollars in millions) Telecom WilTel
Assets:
Cash and cash equivale! $ — $ 128
Accounts receivabl 3 257
Other current asse 2 20
Property, plant and equipment, | 88 629
Goodwill 30 —
Identifiable intangible asse 25 152
Other assets — 26
Total Assets 148 1,212
Liabilities:
Accounts payabl 1 204
Accrued payrol 1 29
Other current liabilitie: 3 67
Current portion of capital leas 1 —
Capital lease 8 —
Deferred revenu— Progress/WilTe 2 41
Deferred revenu- Level 3 4) (2)
Other liabilities — 90
Total Liabilities 12 429
Purchase Price $ 136 $ 783

3 . Discontinued Operations

On September 7, 2006, Level 3 sold Software Spectoulnsight Enterprises, a leading provider dbimation technology products and
services. In connection with the transaction, IL@veeceived total proceeds of $353 million in casginsisting of a base purchase price of
$287 million and a working capital adjustment opagpximately $66 million. The purchase price isjegbto working capital and certain ot
post-closing adjustments. Level 3 recognized ar$iBi®n gain on the transaction in the third gearf 2006. The results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows for Software &pem have been classified as discontinued ope&smiinthe consolidated financial
statements for all periods presented in this report

The following is the summarized results of openadiof the Software Spectrum business for the thmeieths ended March 31, 2006 and 2!

Three Months Three Months
Ended Ended

(dollars in millions) March 31, 2006 March 31, 2005

Revenue: $ 445 $ 466
Costs and Expense

Cost of revenu 405 4298

Depreciation and amortizatic 3 3

Selling, general and administrative 38 33

Total costs and expenses 446 465

Income (Loss) from operations Q) 1

Income tax expense (1) —

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations $ 2) $ 1
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The following is the summarized balance sheet médion for Software Spectrum as of March 31, 20@® Becember 31, 2005, respectively:

December 31

(dollars in millions) March 31, 2006 2005
Assets
Current Asset
Cash and cash equivale $ 25 % 73
Receivable! 315 431
Other Current Assets 58 93
Total Current Assets 398 597
Property, Plant and Equipme 6 6
Goodwill and Other Intangibles, n 240 242
Other Assets, net 20 16
Total Assets $ 664 $ 861
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payabl $ 251 % 420
Accrued Payroll and Employee Bene 15 17
Deferred Revenu 34 67
Other 29 35
Total Current Liabilities 329 539
Deferred Revenu 11 11
Other 16 12
356 562
Net Assets $ 308 $ 299

On November 30, 2005, Level 3 sold)Structure to Infocrossing, Inc. for proceeds db $&llion which consisted of $82 million in cashcan
$3 million of Infocrossing common stock. The casinghase price is subject to post-closing adjustmbased on actual working capital as of
the closing date. Level 3 recognized a $49 miliam on the transaction in the fourth quarter di20

The following is the summarized results of operadiof the ( )Structure business for the three months ended iM2it¢c 2005:

Three Months

Ended
(dollars in millions) March 31, 2005
Revenue: $ 17
Costs and Expense
Cost of revenu 13
Depreciation and amortizatic 2
Selling, general and administrative 2
Total costs and expenses 17
Loss from Discontinued Operations $ —
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4 . Restructuring Charges

In the first quarter of 2006, the Company initiatearkforce reductions that are expected to affppreximately 850 employees in its North
American communications business related to tregmation of WilTel into Level 3's operations. Thecaunting treatment for the severance
costs is dependent on whether those individuatctdtl are former WilTel employees or Level 3 empésy The estimated severance costs
earned by former WilTel employees as of the actjaisdate are included as a liability in the baksbeet as of the acquisition date.
Severance costs attributable to Level 3 employeesegorded as a restructuring charge in the stateof operations once the employees are
notified that their position will be eliminated anéitheir severance arrangements.

As of March 31, 2006, the Company had notifiedeominated approximately 384 employees (133 for L8wand 251 for WilTel) pursuant
these activities. The Company had recorded apptein $1 million in restructuring charges for etfett Level 3 employees and recognized
approximately $7 million of costs for former WilTemployees. As of March 31, 2006, the Company héidations of less than $1 million
for those Level 3 employees terminated or notifiltk workforce reduction attributable to the WilTmtegration activities is expected to be
substantially complete by the end of 2006.

In the first quarter of 2005, the Company initiatediorkforce reduction of approximately 470 emplksy@ its North American and European
communications business. As a result of the redaogctievel 3 incurred severance and related charfagproximately $15 million in the first
quarter of 2005. As of September 30, 2005, the Gomyhad satisfied its obligations associated withfirst quarter of 2005 workforce
reduction.

A summary of the restructuring charges and relattiyity follows:

Severance and Relate Facilities Related
Number of
Employees Amount Amount
(in millions) (in millions)

Balance December 31, 20 — 3 — 3 16
2005 Charge 472 15 1)
2005 Payments (472) (15) 3)
Balance December 31, 2005 — — 12
2006 Charge 133 1 —
2006 Payments (98) (1) (1)
Balance March 31, 2006 35 $ — 3 11

Level 3 continues to periodically conduct comprediiemreviews of the long-lived assets of its busgas, specifically communication assets
deployed along its intercity network and in itsayady facilities. It is possible that assets maydeatified as impaired and impairment chal
may be recorded to reflect the realizable valuthe$e assets in future periods.

The Company recognized $3 million of non-cash impant charges in the first quarter of 2006 thatilted from the decision to terminate
projects for certain voice services and certainrmiation technology projects in the communicatibusiness. These projects have identifii
costs which Level 3 can separately evaluate foaimpent. The costs incurred for these projectduiting capitalized labor, were impaired as
the carrying value of these projects exceeded #stimated fair value.

5. Termination Revenue

Termination revenue is recognized when a custornsepdnects service prior to the end of the conaciod, for which Level 3 had
previously received consideration and for whicheraye recognition was deferred. Termination revésagso recognized when customers
make termination penalty payments to Level 3 tdesebntractually committed purchase amounts thaictistomer no longer expects to meet
or when a customer and Level 3 renegotiate a contrader which Level 3 is no longer obligated toyide services for consideration
previously received and for which revenue recognitias been deferred. Termination revenue is regpantthe same manner as the original
service provided, and amounted to less than $lomiind $129 million during the three months enliiedch 31, 2006 and 2005, respectiv
The termination revenue in 2005 is primarily attitéble to the following two transactions.

In February, 2005, France Telecom Long Distance U3A (“France Telecom”and Level 3 finalized an agreement to terminataré fiber
agreement signed in 2000. Under the terms of theeagent France Telecom returned the fiber to L8v€lash received for the fiber under
original agreement was deferred and was being &edrto revenue over the 20-year term of the agee¢nievel 3 has no further service
obligations with respect to the fiber and theref@eognized approximately $40 million of unamortizieferred revenue as non-cash
termination revenue in the first quarter of 2005.
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In March, 2005, Level 3 entered into an agreemetiit 860networks (USA) Inc. (“360networks”) in whitloth parties agreed to terminate a
20-year IRU agreement. Under the new agreemente®@&0nks returned the dark fiber originally provideyglLevel 3. Under the original IRU
agreement, signed in 2000, the cash received bgll3was deferred and was being amortized to revvenar the 20-year term of the
agreement. As a result of this transaction, Levelc®gnized the unamortized deferred revenue afoappately $86 million as non-cash
termination revenue in the first quarter of 2005.

6. Loss Per Share

The Company had a loss from continuing operationstfe three months ended March 31, 2006 and 20t&refore, the dilutive effect of the
approximately 418 million and 172 million sharesuiable pursuant to convertible debt securitiesatcki 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
have not been included in the computation of dilutess per share because their inclusion would baea antiilutive to the computation. |
addition, the dilutive effect of the approximaté&ly million and 50 million options, outperform stosftions, restricted stock units and
warrants outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 20@&peetively, have not been included in the comparadif diluted loss per share because
their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive te tomputation.

The following details the loss per share calculaifor the three months ended March 31, 2006 a8 2fbllars in millions, except per share
data):

Three Months Three Months

Ended Ended
March 31, March 31,
2006 2005
Loss from Continuing Operatiol $ (166) $ (78)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations (2) 1
Net Loss $ (168 $ 77)

Total Number of Weighted Average Shares Outstandgggl to Compute Basic and Dilutive Earnings Pe
Share (in thousand 821,91¢ 690,21«
Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock (Basidluted):

Loss from Continuing Operatiol $ (0.20) $ (0.12)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations — —
Net Loss $ (0.20) $ (0.11)

7. Receivables

Receivables at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2@0& as follows (dollars in millions):

Communications Coal Total
March 31, 2006
Accounts Receivabl- Trade $ 412 % 9 3 421
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (19) — (19)
$ 393 $ 9 3 402
December 31, 200!
Accounts Receivabl- Trade $ 400 $ 9 % 409
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (17) — (17)
$ 383 $ 9 $ 392

The Company recognized bad debt expense in sefiangral and administrative expenses of less thanifion in each of the three month
periods ended March 31, 2006 and 2005. Level 3veddess than $1 million of proceeds for amoumes/usly deemed uncollectible in

each of the three month periods ended March 316 28@ 2005. The Company increased accounts redeisa allowance for doubtful
accounts by approximately $2 million in the threenth period ended March 31, 2006 primarily duehtod¢hange in business mix as a result
of the completion of the WilTel and Progress Teta@xquisitions. The Company decreased accountwatbe and allowance for doubtful
accounts by approximately $1 million for the threenth period ended March 31, 2005 for previousbereed amounts the Company deemed
as uncollectible.

The $27 million payment for the purchase price siient that decreased the net purchase price o¥ifi@l acquisition was outstanding at
March 31, 2006 and is included in the Communicatiaccounts receivable balance. Level 3 received the
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$27 million payment from Leucadia in April 2006.
8. Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Costs associated directly with expansions and irgments to the network and customer installatiomtdiiding employee related costs, have
been capitalized. The Company generally capitakiosss associated with network construction, piowisg of services and software
development. Capitalized labor and related costsaated with employees and contract labor workingapital projects were approximately
$10 million and $12 million for the three monthgled March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Includezhpitalized labor and related costs
were less than $1 million and $1 million of capitat non-cash compensation costs related to outper$tock options, restricted stock and
warrants for the three months ended March 31, 20@62005, respectively.

The Company continues to develop business suppsidras required for its business. The externattests of software, materials and
services, payroll and payroll related expensegifioployees directly associated with the projectiirediwhen developing the business support

systems are capitalized and included in the caget@dicosts above. Upon completion of a projectiobed cost of the business support system
is amortized over a useful life of three years.

Depreciation expense was $167 million and $150anilfor the three months ended March 31, 2006 &b 2respectively.
9. Goodwill and Other Intangibles, net

Goodwill and Other Intangibles, net at March 310@@nd December 31, 2005 were as follows (dolfamillions):

Other

Goodwill Intangibles
March 31, 2006
360networks $ — % 3
Sprint — 14
ICG — —
Telverse — 14
Genuity — 24
WilTel — 147
Progress Telecol 30 25
McLeod 40 —
XCOM 30 —

$ 100 $ 227

December 31, 200!

360networks $ — 3 4
Sprint — 16
ICG — 4
Telverse — 16
Genuity — 30
WilTel — 151
McLeod 40 —
XCOM 30 —

$ 70 $ 221

On March 20, 2006, Level 3 completed the acquisitibProgress Telecom. A preliminary valuationlt# aissets acquired indicated a valu
$25 million for intangible assets with a 10 yeé&e.liThe intangible assets primarily include custolists.

Goodwill has been or will be assessed at leastalyfor impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 1B2ginning with the first anniversary
of the acquisition and December 31 of each yeaedtfter. As of March 31, 2006, the Company has@odrded impairment expenses for the
goodwill or intangible assets identified in thepoais table.

Amortization expense was $20 million and $16 millfor the three months ended March 31, 2006 ané,2@8pectively.

The amortization expense related to intangibletasserently recorded on the Company’s books fehex the five succeeding years is

estimated to be the following for the years endedddnber 31: 2006-$66 million; 2007-$38 million; 86824 million; 2009-$20 million,
2010-$19 million and thereafter-$50 million.
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10. Long-Term Debt

At March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, long-taetst was as follows:

March 31, December 31

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005
Senior Secured Term Loan (11.82% due 2( $ 730 $ 730
Senior Notes (9.125% due 20( 398 954
Senior Notes (11.0% due 20(C 78 132
Senior Discount Notes (10.5% due 20 62 144
Senior Euro Notes (10.75% due 20 60 59
Convertible Senior Notes (2.875% due 20 374 374
Senior Discount Notes (12.875% due 20 488 488
Senior Euro Notes (11.25% due 20 125 123
Senior Notes (11.25% due 20! 96 96
Senior Notes (11.5% due 201 692 —
Fair value adjustment on Senior No (70) —
Senior Notes (10.75% due 20! 500 500
Floating Rate Senior Notes (11.42% due 2( 150 —
Issue discount on Floating Rate Senior N (5) —
Senior Notes (12.25% due 20! 250 —
Issue discount on Senior Not (8) —
Convertible Senior Notes (5.25% due 20 345 345
Convertible Senior Notes (10.0% due 20 880 880
Convertible Senior Discount Notes (9.0% due 2( 257 252
Convertible Subordinated Notes (6.0% due 2( 362 362
Convertible Subordinated Notes (6.0% due 2( 514 514
CBRE Commercial Mortgage (6.86% due 20 70 70
Capital Lease 9 —
Other 1 —
6,35¢ 6,025
Less current portion (1) =

$ 6,357 $ 6,022

The debt instruments above contain certain findmeid non-financial covenants with which the Comphalieves it is in full compliance as
of March 31, 2006.

No interest expense or amortized debt issuance eese capitalized to property, plant and equipr@nthe three months ended March
2006 and March 31, 2005.

Debt Exchange

On January 13, 2006, the Company completed prastbange offers to exchange a portion of its onthiey 9.125% Senior Notes due 2008,
11% Senior Notes due 2008 and 10.5% Senior Disddates due 2008 (together the “2008 Notes”) thaevireld by eligible holders in a
private placement for cash and new 11.5% SenioedNdtie 2010. The Company issued $692 million aggeggrincipal amount of 11.5%
Senior Notes as well as paid $46 million of cashsaderation in exchange for the 2008 Notes tenderéte transactions. The Company also
paid approximately $13 million in cash for totataged interest to the closing date on the 2008 d\ibtat were accepted for exchange.

Pursuant to the guidance in EITF No. 96-19, “Debtéccounting for a Modification or Exchange of Deébstruments” (“EITF No. 96-19”),
the Company accounted for the exchange of the 3612&nior Notes and the 11% Senior Notes as angexsinment of debt and recognize
gain of approximately $27 million in Other Inconmethe first quarter of 2006. The gain was deterchinging the fair value of the new 11.5%
Senior Notes at the time of issuance. The fairevalithe 11.5% Senior Notes was approximately $ifliomless than the face amount of the
debt. The accretion of the $73 million discountl Wwé reflected as interest expense. The 11.5% Ebluites were recorded at their fair value
on the transaction date and will accrete to tragefvalue at maturity. Premiums paid to holdethe.125% Senior Notes and the 11%
Senior Notes of $41 million were applied againstgin on extinguishment of debt.

In accordance with EITF No. 989, the exchange of the 10.5% Senior Discount Netessaccounted for as a modification of the existinbt

The premiums paid to the holders of the 10.5% Sebiscount Notes of $5 million were added to thestmg debt issuance costs and will be
amortized over the term of the 11.5% Senior Notes.
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The Company incurred approximately $5 million afdiparty costs associated with the exchange trdiosa The costs were allocated to e
tranche of debt based on the amount tendered tbragxge. The $4 million of fees allocated to the29% Senior Notes due 2008 and the 11%
Senior Notes due 2008 were capitalized and withinertized to interest expense over the term ofdlpective notes. The $1 million of costs
allocated to the 10.5% Senior Discount Notes dd82@ere expensed in the first quarter of 2006.

The principal amount of 2008 Notes tendered is@¢h in the table below (dollars in millions).

Aggregate
Principal
Amount Aggregate
Outstanding Principal Amount
Before Aggregate of Old Notes that Total Cash
2008 Notes Exchange Principal Amount Remained Premium
Exchanged Offers Tendered QOutstanding Payment
9.125% Senior Notes due 20 $ 954 $ 556 $ 398 3 36
11% Senior Notes due 20! 132 54 78 5
10.5% Senior Discount Notes due 2( 144 82 62 5

The exchange offers were made only to qualifietitintgonal buyers and institutional accredited istggs inside the United States and to
certain non-U.S. investors located outside theédh$tates.

The 11.5% Senior Notes are senior unsecured olgligabf the Company, ranking equal in right of payinwith the old notes not tendered in
the exchange offers as well as all other senioecungd obligations of the Company. The 11.5% Sehdades mature on March 1, 2010, and
bear interest at a rate per annum equal to 11.B884rdst on the notes is payable on March 1 ance8dyar 1 of each year, beginning on
September 1, 2006. The Company may redeem somkoditlze 11.5% Senior Notes at any time on orrdffarch 1, 2009, at 100% of their
principal amount plus accrued interest.

The 11.5% Senior Notes have not been registereeruhd Securities Act of 1933, as amended, andmoaie offered or sold in the United
States absent registration or an applicable exemftbom registration requirements. Level 3 enténgal a registration rights agreement
pursuant to which it will file an exchange offegigration statement with the Securities and Exgea@ommission with respect to the new
notes.

New Debt

On March 14, 2006, Level 3 Communications, Incgaarantor and Level 3 Financing, Inc. (“Level 8atcing”), a whollyewned subsidiat

of the Company, as borrower, entered into two itges with the Bank of New York, as trustee, asdiésl $400 million in aggregate
principal amount of senior notes — $150 million meg@te principal amount of floating rate senioresadue 2011 (“Floating Rate Senior Notes
due 2011") and $250 million aggregate principal am®f 12.25% senior notes due 2013 (“12.25% Sewaies due 2013"gach in a prival
offering.

Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2011

The Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2011 rank equaiht of payment with all other senior unsecuoddigations of Level 3 Financing and
have an initial interest rate equal to the six rhdrdndon Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”), plus 8536, which will be reset semi-annually.
Interest on the notes is payable on March 15 apteSder 15 of each year, beginning on Septembe2(. The interest rate was 11.429
March 31, 2006 and was determined at the commenussh¢he interest period beginning on the issuatate. The Floating Rate Senior
Notes due 2011 were priced at 96.782% of par. T$mdnt is reflected as a reduction in I-term debt and is being amortized as interest
expense over the term of the Floating Rate SenibeiNdue 2011.

The Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2011 are sutjgedemption at the option of Level 3 Financingvhole or in part, at any time or from
time to time, on or after March 15, 2008 at thesragtion prices (expressed as a percentage of palh@mount) set forth below, plus accrued
and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption ifatedeemed during the twelve months beginningd&t5, of the years indicated below:

Year Redemption Price

2008 102.C%
2009 101.C%
2010 100.C%

On March 14, 2006, Level 3, Level 3 Financing dmalinitial purchasers of the Floating Rate Senioteld due 2011 entered into a registre
rights agreement relating to the Floating Rate &exotes due 2011 pursuant to which Level 3 andeL8Vinancing agreed to file an
exchange offer registration statement with the 8tes and Exchange Commission.
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These senior notes have not been registered umel&etcurities Act of 1933 or any state securii@sland, unless so registered, may not be
offered or sold except pursuant to an applicabkrgtion from the registration requirements of teewities Act of 1933 and applicable state
securities laws.

Debt issuance costs of $3 million were capitaliaad are being amortized over the term of the Figa#ate Senior Notes due 2011.
12.25% Senior Notes due 2013

The 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013 are senior unsgalnligations of Level 3 Financing, ranking equaiight of payment with all other
senior unsecured obligations of Level 3 Financinterest on the notes accrues at 12.25% per yehisgrayable on March 15 and
September 15 of each year, beginning on Septenth@006. The 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013 weregat 96.618% of par. The disco
is reflected as a reduction in long-term debt anoeing amortized as interest expense over thedéthe 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013.

The 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013 are subject mption at the option of Level 3 Financing in whotdn part, at any time or from time
time, on or after March 15, 2010 at the redempgidoces (expressed as a percentage of principal anset forth below, plus accrued and
unpaid interest thereon to the redemption datedéemed during the twelve months beginning Magkgtofl.the years indicated below:

Year Redemption Price

2010 106.125%
2011 103.06%
2012 100.00(%

On March 14, 2006, Level 3 and Level 3 Financing e initial purchasers of the 12.25% Senior Ndigs 2013 entered into a registration
rights agreement regarding the 12.25% Senior Ntiles2013 pursuant to which Level 3 and Level 3 iraiteg agreed to file an exchange
offer registration statement with the Securitied Bxchange Commission.

These senior notes have not been registered umel&etcurities Act of 1933 or any state securii@sland, unless so registered, may not be
offered or sold except pursuant to an applicabéargtion from the registration requirements of teeBities Act of 1933 and applicable state
securities laws.

Debt issuance costs of approximately $5 millioneveapitalized and are being amortized over the tdrthe 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013.

The debt represented by the 12.25% Senior Note2@li@ together with the Floating Rate Notes duel2fihstitutes purchase money
indebtedness under the indentures of Level 3, lamaét proceeds from the offering was used to tiedahe cash purchase price of Level 3's
acquisition of WilTel, which was consummated on &maber 23, 2005.

Capitalized Leases

As part of the Progress Telecom transaction on Mae; 2006, the Company assumed certain capitsé lebligations of Progress Telecom
for Indefeasible Right of Use (“IRU”") dark fiberdiities of $9 million. The capital leases matutevarious dates through 2021.

Future Debt Maturities

The Company’s contractual obligations at MarchZW6 related to debt, including capital leasesexuiuding issue discounts and fair value
adjustments, will require estimated cash paymemtsg each of the five succeeding years as foll@@€6-$1 million; 2007-$2 million;
2008-$600 million; 2009-$363 million and 2010-$Z3%illion and thereafter-$3,155 million.

11. Stock-Based Awards

Beginning January 1, 2006 the Company adopted S¥AI 23R, “Share-Based Payment.” The adoptionFdfSNo. 123R on January 1,
2006 did not have a significant effect on the Conypafinancial position or results of operationstlas Company adopted the expense
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accountifog Stock-Based Compensation” in 1998. SFAS NXRRL.requires that estimated
forfeitures be included in the amount of expensegaized for instruments that are not fully vest&tie Company has historically recorded
the effect of forfeitures of equity instrumentstlasy occur. The effect of applying the change ftbmoriginal provisions of SFAS No. 123
on the Company'’s results of operations and baglad#inted earnings per share for the three montde@ March 31, 2006 was insignificant.
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As part of the SFAS No. 123R implementation, thenPany did not make modifications to grants maderpd January 1, 2006 which would
have resulted in a change in the compensation.costs

The Level 3 compensation committee (“Compensatiomfittee”) of the Level 3 board of directors (“Bddrhas administered the Level 3
Communications, Inc. 1995 Stock Plan (Amended agstd&ed as of April 1, 1998) (“Plan”) under theiéfehat the action of the Company’s
Board to amend and restate the Plan effective April998 had the effect of extending the origieafrt of the Plan to April 1, 2008. After a
further review of the terms of the Plan, howeviee, Company’s Compensation Committee has deterntiregchn ambiguity may exist as to
the date of expiration of the Plan. To remove ampiguity, the Level 3 Compensation Committee &edBoard have requested the Level 3
stockholders approve an amendment of the Plarhdsathe purpose of extending the term of the Pydiivb years to September 25, 2010.
This extension is subject to the requisite affiingstockholder vote at the 2006 Annual Meetin@tifckholders to be held on May 15, 2006.

The Company recognized in the consolidated stateofesperations a total of $14 million and $10 il of non-cash compensation for the
three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, regelyctincluded in discontinued operations is n@stt compensation expense of $1
million for both the three month periods ended M8, 2006 and 2005. In addition, the Companytafipéd less than $1 million and $1
million of non-cash compensation for those emplsya®d contractors directly involved in the condinrcof the network, installation of
customers or development of the business suppstersg for the three months ended March 31, 2002608, respectively.

SFAS No. 123R requires the benefit of tax dedustiorexcess of recognized compensation expensepoeted as a financing cash in flow if
the tax benefits are expected to be realizablethA<ompany is currently in a net operating lossitppn, Level 3's management does not
expect to realize tax benefits from share-basedensation.

The following table summarizes non-cash compensatipense and capitalized non-cash compensatidghddhree months ended March 31,
2006 and 2005.

Three Months Ended March 31,

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005
0SsO $ 4 % 5
Restricted Stoc 6 1
Shareworks Match Ple — 1
401(k) Match Expens 4 4
401 (k) Discretionary Grant Plan 1 1
15 12
Capitalized Non-cash Compensation — (1)
15 11
Discontinued Operations (1) )
$ 14 $ 10

Non-qualified Stock Options and Warrants

At March 31, 2006, there were approximately 14.8iom warrants outstanding ranging in exercise ggifrom $4.00 to $60.06. Of these
warrants, all were exercisable at March 31, 2008 awweighted average exercise price of $7.82nzarant.

The Company has not granted NQSOs since 2000.f Msuech 31, 2006, all NQSOs previously granted wetly vested and expensed. At

March 31, 2006, there were approximately 6 millMQSOs outstanding with exercise prices ranging f#n76 to $8.00. The weighted
average exercise price of the NQSOs outstandingd&ad at March 31, 2006.
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Outperform Stock Option Plan

In April 1998, the Company adopted an outperforatistoption (“*OSO”) program that was designed s the Company’s stockholders
would receive a market return on their investmegfibte OSO holders receive any return on their ogtidhe Company believes that the C
program aligns directly management’s and stockhsldeterests by basing stock option value on tbenBany’s ability to outperform the
market in general, as measured by the Standardo®&$@ES&P”) 500 Index. Participants in the OSO gram do not realize any value from
awards unless the Company’s common stock pricestiatpns the S&P 500 Index during the life of thargt When the stock price gain is
greater than the corresponding gain on the S&PIB@Ex (or less than the corresponding loss on &f@ Bdex), the value received for
awards under the OSO plan is based on a formutdvimg a multiplier related to the level by whidiret Company’s common stock
outperforms the S&P 500 Index. To the extent theatdl 3's common stock outperforms the S&P 500 Indlex value of OSOs to a holder
may exceed the value of nonqualified stock options.

In August 2002, the Company modified the OSO progta target that no more than 25% of Level 3's etdtrmance was delivered to
employee-owners, and that the exercise of pasfuante OSO grants does not exceed shares resawessfiance under the Company’s 1995
Stock Plan, as amended. The following modificatjaffecting August 19, 2002 and later grants, weaele to the Plan:

. OSO targets will be defined in terms of numiieOSOs rather than a target theoretical doltdue.

. The success multiplier was reduced from etiglibur.

. Awards will continue to vest over 2 years &iade a 4-year life. However, 50% of the award vabt at the end of the first year
after grant, with the remaining 50% vesting over skecond year (12.5% per quarter).

The mechanics for determining the fair value ofratividual OSO is described below:

The initial strike price, as determined on the gagr to the OSO grant date, is adjusted over f{ithe “Adjusted Strike Price”), until the
exercise date. The adjustment is an amount equlétpercentage appreciation or depreciation irvéthage of the S&P 500 Index from the
date of grant to the date of exercise. The vafubedOSO increases for increasing levels of otitgperance. OSOs granted prior to

August 19, 2002 have a multiplier range from zereight depending upon the performance of LevalrBroon stock relative to the S&P 500
Index as shown in the following table. OSOs grdmtegust 19, 2002 and later have a multiplier raingen zero to four depending upon the
performance of Level 3 common stock relative to384> 500 Index as shown in the following table.

If Level 3 Stock Then the Pre-multiplier Gain Is

Outperforms the Multiplied by a Success Multiplier of:

S&P 500 Index by: Pre August 19, 2002 Grant: August 19, 2002 and Later Grant:

0% or Less 0.00 0.00

More than 0% but Less than 11% Outperformance percentar  Outperformance percentai je
multiplied by 8/11 multiplied by 4/11

11% or More 8.00 4.00

The Pre-multiplier gain is the Level 3 common stpcice minus the Adjusted Strike Price on the dditexercise.

Upon exercise of an OSO, the Company shall detivgray to the grantee the difference between tlireMrrket Value of a share of Level 3
common stock as of the day prior to the exercige,dess the Adjusted Strike Price, the “Exercisagideration.” The Exercise
Consideration may be paid in cash, Level 3 comnmocksor any combination of cash or Level 3 commimtls at the Company’s discretion.
The number of shares of Level 3 common stock tddbeered by the Company to the grantee is detachby dividing the Exercise
Consideration to be paid in Level 3 common stockheyFair Market Value of a share of Level 3 comratotk as of the date prior to the
exercise date. Fair Market Value is defined in@®0 agreement, but is currently the closing ppieeshare of Level 3 common stock on the
NASDAQ exchange. Exercise of the OSOs does nafire@ny cash outlay by the employ

OSO awards are granted quarterly to eligible ppdits.

Awards granted prior to August 19, 2002 vest inaquarterly installments over two years and hafeiayear life. OSOs granted between
March 1, 2001 and August 18, 2002 are exercisaiheddiately upon vesting and have a four-year life.

The Company utilizes a modified Black-Scholes madelalue outperform stock options granted to eiygds. The Company believes that
the relative short life of the options and the otveriables used in the model provide a reasonable
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estimate of the fair value of the option at theetiof grant.

The fair value under SFAS No. 123R for the appratety 1.9 million outperform stock options (“OSQiyarded to participants during the
guarter ended March 31, 2006 was approximatelyriillibn using a modified Black-Scholes valuation aebwith the assumptions outlined
in the table below. The resulting theoretical egher option granted in 2006 is 153% of the staatepon the date the grant is communicated
to participants. The theoretical value of optignanted in 2005 was 116% of the stock price. boatance with SFAS No. 123R, the
Company used an estimated forfeiture rate of 10.iP&etermining expense recognition. As of Maréh 2006, the Company had not
reflected $13 million of unamortized compensati@pense in its financial statements for previoushnged OSOs. The weighted average
period over which this cost will be recognized i6 fears.

The fair value of each OSO grant equals the caledltheoretical value multiplied by the Level 3 e¢oon stock price on the day prior to the
date the grant is communicated to participants.

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2006 2005

S&P 500 Expected Dividend Yield Rate 1.78% 1.9%%

Expected Life 3.4 year 2 year:
S&P 500 Expected Volatility Ra 12% 13%
Level 3 Common Stock Expected Volatility Ri 55% 55%
Expected S&P 500 Correlation Fac .28 .30
Calculated Theoretical Valt 153% 116%

The assumptions used for 2006 were based on gradtactual exercises of OSOs previously grantesnployees. The data was further
stratified based on levels of responsibility witttie Company. The theoretical value used in 2086 determined using the weighted ave!
exercise behavior for these groups of employeessuant to SFAS No. 123R, the Expected Life in 2id@6ides options that expired
unexercised at the end of the four year term. H}ected Life used in 2005 only considered thogmog that were actually exercised.
Volatility assumptions were derived using historidata as well as current market data.

As part of a comprehensive review of its long-t@@empensation program, the Company temporarily swudgxkawards of Outperform Stock
Options in April 2005. During the second quarte2@05, the Company granted participants in the péestricted stock units, discussed
below.

Beginning in the third quarter of 2005, the Compasyed both restricted stock units and OSOs dpés long-term compensation
program. The Company plans to make annual grdmestricted stock units that vest ratably overfgeiars and plans to make quarterly C
grants to employees that have similar terms aetl&0s granted in the first quarter of 2005.

A summary of OSO activity for the three months ehiarch 31, 2006 follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Aggregate Remaining
Exercise Intrinsic Contractual
Number Price Value Term
(in millions)
Outstanding at January 1, 20 14,245,971 $ 3.34
Options grante: 1,923,95¢ 3.58
Options exercise (431,220) 2.96
Options forfeitec (236,507 2.78
Options expired (2,255,39() 3.24
Outstanding at March 31, 2006 13,246,81! $ 341 $ 85 2.63 year
Outstanding, exercisable (“vested”) 6,587,69: $ 4.07 $ 21 1.91 year

In the table above, the intrinsic value represtrgssalue of OSOs that have outperformed the SR as of March 31, 2006.
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The total realized value of OSOs exercised for edc¢he three month periods ended March 31, 20062805 was approximately $1 millio
The total realized value of OSOs exercised for@fployees for each of the three months ended MakcB006 and 2005 was less than $1
million.

Restricted Stock and Units

During the first quarter of 2006, approximately éh#llion shares of restricted stock or restrictéatk units were granted to employees and
non-employee members of the Board of Directors. rEstricted stock units and shares were grantéltetoecipients at no cost. Restrictions
on transfer lapse over one to four year periods. falr value of restricted units and stock grante®006 was $1.6 million as calculated using
the value of the Level 3 common stock on the d&yrpo the grant. As of March 31, 2006, the t@ainpensation cost related to nonvested
restricted stock or restricted stock units notrgebgnized was $22 million and the weighted avepg®d over which this cost will be
recognized is 2.8 years.

For the three months ended March 31, 2006, thegefsaim restricted stock and restricted stock wariésshown in the following table:

Weighted Average

Number Grant Date Fair Value
Nonvested at January 1, 2C 23,376,84. $ 2.06
Stock and units grante 442,07¢ 3.71
Lapse of restriction (4,119,856 2.16
Stock and units forfeited (628,457 2.13
Nonvested at March 31, 20! 19,070,60- $ 2.07

The fair value of restricted stock and restrictextls units is based on the market value of the Gomis stock as of the date of the grant. The
Weighed Average Grant Date Fair Value of restrictetk and restricted stock units granted durimgttinee months ended March 31, 2006
and 2005 were $3.71 and $3.67, respectively. @tz fiair value of restricted stock and restricsgack units vested during the three month
periods ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 was $9 midizd $2 million, respectively.

401(k) Plan

The Company and its subsidiaries offer their gieiemployees the opportunity to participate ireéireed contribution retirement plan
qualifying under the provisions of Section 401(k}he Internal Revenue Code. Each employee isddidgo contribute, on a tax deferred
basis, a portion of annual earnings generally m@xteed $15,000 in 2006. The Company matches Hi@¥hployee contributions up to 7%
of eligible earnings or applicable regulatory lignibr employees of the communications businessas. Company’s matching contributions
are made with Level 3 common stock based on tt@mgostock price on each pay date. Employeestdegta diversify the Company’s
matching contribution as soon as it is made, ef/érey are not fully vested. The Company’s matghtontributions will be fully vested upon
completion of three years of service. The Compaage matching contributions of $4 million in ead¢lih® three month periods ended
March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, which weparded as selling, general and administrative resgxe

The Company made a discretionary contribution €4®1(k) Plan in Level 3 common stock as of Decarmthie 2005, equal to three percent
of eligible employees’ 2005 eligible earnings. Teposit was made into the employees’ 401(k) adsaduring the first quarter of 2006.

Employees of WilTel Communications that participat¢he WilTel 401(k) Plan receive an employer rhiatig cash contribution of 100% of
employee contributions up to 6% of eligible earsing regulatory limits which is invested in the saimvestment funds selected by
participants for employee contributions. The Comypmade matching cash contributions of $2 milliorthie first quarter of 2006.

12. Industry and Segment Data

SFAS No. 131 “Disclosures about Segments of anrfnise and Related Information” defines operatiagmnsents as components of an
enterprise for which separate financial informati®available and which is evaluated regularly liy €ompany’s chief operating decision
maker, or decision making group, in deciding howaltocate resources and assess performance. Quesatjments are managed separately
and represent separate strategic business unitsftadifferent products and serve different nesk The Company’s reportable segments
include: communications and coal mining (See Not@®ther primarily includes other corporate asseis overhead not attributable to a
specific segment. The Company’s information s@wiousiness was comprised ofHtructure and Software Spectrum. As a resulef t
sale of these two
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businesses, the Company is no longer providingmnétion for this segment.

Adjusted OIBDA, as defined by the Company, consi$tsperating income (loss) before (1) depreciatiod amortization expense, (2) stock-
based compensation expense included within selfjiegeral and administrative expenses on the calaetl statements of operations and
(3) any non-cash impairment costs included witlestnucturing and impairment expenses all as regpantethe consolidated statements of
operations. The Company excludes stock-based caapen due to the recording of non-cash compensatipense under the provisions of
SFAS No. 123R. Adjusted OIBDA is an important pErthe Company’s internal reporting and is an iathc of profitability and operating
performance used by the chief operating decisiokemar decision making group to evaluate perfornezaned allocate resources. It is a
commonly used indicator in the capital-intensivencaunications industry to analyze companies on #sishof operating performance over
time. Adjusted OIBDA is not intended to represegitincome or cash flow for the periods presentedpt calculated consistently with the
commonly used metric “EBITDA”, and is not recogrdagnder generally accepted accounting principl&€&A@P”) but is used by
management to assess segment results and allesateces.

The data presented in the tables following includésmation for the three months ended March 0&and 2005 for all statement of
operations and cash flow information presented,anadf March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 fdyadiince sheet information presented.
Information related to acquired businesses is thetfrom their respective acquisition dates. Regeand the related expenses are attributed
to countries based on where services are provided.
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Industry and geographic segment financial infororafollows. Certain prior year information has beealassified to conform to the 2006

presentation.

(dollars in millions)

Communications

Coal
Mining

Other

Total

Three Months ended March 31, 200!
Revenue

North America

Europe

Other

Adjusted OIBDA:
North America
Europe
Other

Net Capital Expenditure:
North America
Europe
Other

Depreciation and Amortizatiol
North America
Europe
Other

Three Months ended March 31, 200!
Revenue

North America

Europe

Other

Adjusted OIBDA:
North America
Europe
Other

Net Capital Expenditure:
North America
Europe
Other

Depreciation and Amortizatiol
North America
Europe
Other

$ 762 18 — 780
42 — — 42
$ 804 18 — 822
$ 131 1)
16 — —
$ 147 1 @)
$ 50 — — 50
8 — — 8
$ 58 — — 58
$ 166 — 167
20 — — 20
$ 186 1 — 187
$ 475 17 — 492
35 — — 35
$ 510 17 — 527
$ 203 )
() — —
$ 201 3 )
$ 51 — — 51
8 — — 8
$ 59 — — 59
$ 144 — 145
21 — — 21
$ 165 1 — 166
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Communications Revenue and Adjusted OIBDA for tire¢ months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 inckstethan $1 million and $129
million, respectively, of termination revenue.

Discontinued

Information Coal
(dollars in millions) Communications Services Mining Other Total
Identifiable Assets
March 31, 2006
North America $ 581t $ 511 $ 98 $ 965 $ 7,38¢
Europe 724 138 — 18 880
Other — 15 — — 15
$ 6,53¢ $ 664 $ 98 $ 983 $ 8,284
December 31, 200!
North America $ 578z $ 631 $ 90 $ 810 $ 7,312
Europe 716 206 — 18 940
Other — 24 — — 24
$ 6,49¢ $ 861 $ 90 $ 828 $ 8,277
Long-Lived Assets (excluding Goodwill)
March 31, 2006
North America $ 523¢ $ 70 $ 86 $ — % 5,394
Europe 693 1 — — 694
Other — 1 — — 1
$ 5931 $ 72 $ 86 $ — 3 6,08¢
December 31, 200!
North America $ 5502 $ 68 $ 75 $ — 3 5,64E&
Europe 696 1 — — 697
Other — 1 — — 1
$ 6,19¢ $ 70 $ 75 $ — 6,34<
Goodwill
March 31, 2006 (1)
North America $ 100 $ 194 $ — % — 3 294
Europe — — — — —
$ 100 $ 194 $ — 3 — 3 294
December 31, 2005 (1
North America $ 70 $ 194 $ — 3 — 3 264
Europe — — — — —
$ 70 $ 194 $ — 3 —  $ 264

(1) The goodwill for Discontinued Information Seres presented in the table above includes $19{bmiif goodwill related to Software
Spectrum. This goodwill in included in the Condatied Balance Sheet in Noncurrent Assets of Diguoed Operations.

Communications revenue is grouped into three caiegidl) Core Services (including transport andasifructure services, IP & data services,
voice services and Vyvx services) 2) Other Servfoeduding managed modem and related reciprocalpamsation, DSL aggregation, and
Internet access services), and 3) SBC Contracic@asrvThis revenue reporting structure representsaage from prior year presentations to
reflect how the Company’s management will invest aranage cash flows in the communications busigeisg) forward. Management
believes this product grouping provides more megfoirinformation to the reader of the financialtstaents because each of the revenue
categories has different expectations with resgefitture revenue performance.
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Services

SBC Contract
(dollars in millions) Core Other Services Total

Communications Revenue

Three Months Ended March 31, 200¢

North America $ 348 % 122 $ 292 % 762
Europe 41 1 — 42
Other — — — —

$ 389 $ 123  $ 292 % 804

Three Months Ended March 31, 200¢

North America $ 281 $ 194 $ — 3 475
Europe 34 1 — 35
Other — — — —

$ 315 % 195 $ —  $ 510

Core Services for the three months ended MarcR@16 and 2005 includes less than $1 million an®3tRlion, respectively, of terminatic
revenue.

The majority of North American revenue consistservices delivered within the United States. Thé¢onitg of European revenue consists of
services delivered within the United Kingdom bgceincludes France and Germany. Transoceanic revisrallocated to Europe.

The following information provides a reconciliatiohNet Income (Loss) to Adjusted OIBDA by opergtsegment, as defined by the
Company, for the three months ended March 31, 20@62005:

Three months ended March 31, 2006

Discontinued

Information
(dollars in millions) Communications Services Coal Mining Other
Net Loss $ (166) $ 2) $ — 3 —
Loss from Discontinued Operatio — 2 — —
Income Tax Benefi (2) — — —
Total Other (Income) Expense 111 — — (1)
Operating Loss (56) — — (1)
Non-Cash Impairment Char 3 — — —
Depreciation and Amortization Exper 186 — 1 —
Non-Cash Compensation Expense 14 — — —
Adjusted OIBDA $ 147 $ — $ 1 $ (1)
Three months ended March 31, 2005

Discontinued

Information
(dollars in millions) Communications Services Coal Mining Other
Net Income (Loss $ (79) $ 1 3 2 9 2)
Income from Discontinued Operatio — (1) — —
Income Tax (Benefit) Expen: — — — —
Total Other (Income) Expense 105 — — (1)
Operating Income (Loss) 26 — 2 2)
Depreciation and Amortization Exper 165 — 1 —
Non-Cash Compensation Expense 10 — — —
Adjusted OIBDA $ 201 $ — $ 3 % (2)

13. Other Matters

In April 2002, Level 3 Communications, Inc., andtef its subsidiaries were named as a defendaBairer, et. al. v. Level 3
Communications, LLC, et gla purported class action covering 22 statesq fih state court in Madison County, lllinois. ulyd2001, Level 3
was named as a defendanKioyle, et. al. v. Level 3 Communications, Inc.aét, a purported two state
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class action filed in the U.S. District Court fbetDistrict of Idaho. In November of 2005, the d¢aynanted class certification only for the si
of Idaho, which decision is on appeal. In Septen28€?2, Level 3 Communications, LLC and Williams Gommications, LLC were named as
defendants irsmith et. al. v. Sprint Communications Company,,lefal., a purported nationwide class action filed in th@ted States
District Court for the Northern District of Illinsi In April 2005, the Smith plaintiffs filed a FdbirAmended Complaint which did not include
Level 3 or Williams Communications, Inc. as a patityis ending both companies’ involvement in thetBicase. On February 17, 2005,
Level 3 Communications, LLC and Williams Communiecas, LLC were named as defendant$/icDaniel, et. al., v. Qwest Communications
Corporation, et al, a purported class action covering 10 stated fildhe United States District Court for the Nenth District of Illinois.
These actions involve the companies’ right to ith#&fiber optic cable network in easements aigtitrof-ways crossing the plaintiffs’ land.
In general, the companies obtained the rights tstroct their networks from railroads, utilitiesidaothers, and have installed their networks
along the rights-of-way so granted. Plaintiffstie purported class actions assert that they arevthers of lands over which the companies’
fiber optic cable networks pass, and that theoails, utilities, and others who granted the comgsattie right to construct and maintain their
networks did not have the legal authority to do®te complaints seek damages on theories of trespagist enrichment and slander of title
and property, as well as punitive damages. The aenmiep have also received, and may in the futurgirecclaims and demands related to
rights-of-way issues similar to the issues in thesses that may be based on similar or differeyatl lfneories. To date, other than as noted
above, all adjudicated attempts to have classrast@mus granted on complaints filed against tiepamies or any of their subsidiaries
involving claims and demands related to rights-afpissues have been denied.

It is still too early for the Company to reach acloision as to the ultimate outcome of these astiblowever, management believes that the
Company and its subsidiaries have substantial defeto the claims asserted in all of these act@ms any similar claims which may be
named in the future), and intends to defend thegoreusly if a satisfactory form of settlement ig approved.

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties toyrottrer legal proceedings. Management believesaitmatesulting liabilities for these legal
proceedings, beyond amounts reserved, will not niadlieaffect the Company’s financial condition forture results of operations, but could
impact future cash flows.

It is customary in Level 3's industries to use was financial instruments in the normal courseusiess. These instruments include items
such as letters of credit. Letters of credit aneditional commitments issued on behalf of Leveh Ziccordance with specified terms and
conditions. As of March 31, 2006, Level 3 had ansling letters of credit of approximately $34 noifliwhich are collateralized by cash that
is reflected on the consolidated balance sheatsisated cash and securities.

14. Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

In October 2003, Level 3 Financing, Inc., a whallyned subsidiary of Level 3 Communications, Inte{’el 3 Financing”), issued

$500 million 10.75% Senior Notes due 2011. Thedeqare unsecured obligations of Level 3 Finandiogyever, they are jointly, severally,
fully and unconditionally guaranteed on an unsedwsenior basis by Level 3 Communications, Inc. lagekl 3 Communications, LLC (a
wholly-owned subsidiary). The 10.75% Senior Notesewegistered with the Securities and Exchangerfiission in 2005.

In March 2006, Level 3 Financing, issued $150 wrillFloating Rate Senior Notes due 2011 and $25®mil2.25% Senior Notes due 2013.
In addition, on April 6, 2006, Level 3 Financingiged an additional $300 million of 12.25% Seniotddadue 2013. These notes are
unsecured obligations of Level 3 Financing, howetray are fully and unconditionally guaranteedaorunsecured senior basis by Level 3
Communications, Inc. The Floating Rate Senior Ndtgs 2011 and the 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013ri@veeen registered under the
Securities Act of 1933 or any state securities land, unless so registered, may not be offeredldrexcept pursuant to an applicable
exemption from the registration requirements of$leeurities Act of 1933 and applicable state sdeariaws.

In conjunction with the registration of the 10.73#nior Notes, the accompanying condensed consalidiitancial information has been
prepared and presented pursuant to SEC RegulatioR@e 3-10 “Financial statements of guarantord affiliates whose securities
collateralize an issue registered or being reg@stéiThis information is not intended to presert fimancial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the individual companies or groupsahpanies in accordance with generally accepteodusting principles.

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operatiarthéathree months ended March 31, 2006 and 2d@wfo_evel 3 Communications,

LLC leases equipment and certain facilities frofmeotwholly-owned subsidiaries of Level 3 Commurimag, Inc. These transactions are
eliminated in the consolidated results of the Comypa
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the three months ended March 31, 2006

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
(dollars in millions) Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Revenue $ — 3 — 3 320 $ 548 $ (46) $ 822
Costs and Expense
Cost of Revenu — — 132 323 (43) 412
Depreciation and Amortizatic — — 109 78 — 187
Selling, General and Administrati — — 186 93 (3) 276
Restructuring and Impairment Charges — — 4 — 4
Total Costs and Expenses — — 431 494 (46) 879
Operating Income (Loss) — — (1112) 54 — (57)
Other Income (Loss), ne
Interest Incomt 4 — 3 2 — 9
Interest Expens (112) (37) — (2) —  (150)
Interest Income (Expense) Affiliates, 1 209 158 (378) 11 — —
Equity in Net Earnings (Losses) of
Subsidiaries (298) (419) 42 — 675 —
Other Income (Expense) 28 — — 3 — 31
Other Income (Loss) (168) (298) (333) 14 675 (110
Income (Loss) from Operations Before
Income Taxe: (168) (298) (444) 68 675 (167)
Income Tax Benefit — — — 1 — 1
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations (168) (298) (444) 69 675  (166)
Loss from Discontinued Operations — — — (2) — (2)
Net Income (Loss $ (168) $ (298 $ (444) $ 67 $ 675 $(168)
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the three months ended March 31, 2005

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
(dollars in millions) Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Revenue $ — $ — $ 477 $ 89 $ (39) $527
Costs and Expense

Cost of Revenu — — 145 19 (35 129

Depreciation and Amortizatic — — 118 48 — 166

Selling, General and Administrati 2 — 161 32 4) 191

Restructuring and Impairment Charges — — 11 4 — 15

Total Costs and Expenses 2 — 435 103 (399 501
Operating Income (Loss) 2 — 42 (14) — 26
Other Income (Loss), ne

Interest Incomt — — 3 1 — 4

Interest Expens (81) (32) — (1) — (119

Interest Income (Expense) Affiliates, 1 200 128 (333) 5 — —

Equity in Net Earnings (Losses) of

Subsidiaries (195) (291) (1) — 487 —

Other Income (Expense) 1 — 2 3 — 6

Other Income (Loss) (75) (195) (329) 8 487 (1049
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operation:

Before Income Taxe 77) (195) (287) (6) 487 (78)
Income Tax Expense — — — — — —
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations (77) (195) (287) (6) 487 (78)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatic — — — 1 — 1
Net Income (Loss $ 77 $ (195 $ (287 $ 5) $ 487 $ (77)
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets as of MEré906 and December 31, 2005 follow:

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
March 31, 2006

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
(dollars in millions) Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 15 $ 7 $ 482 % 51 $ — $ 555
Marketable securitie 407 4 — 1 — 412
Restricted cash and securit — 3 20 12 — 35
Accounts receivable, n — — 112 290 — 402
Due from (to) affiliates 10,21z 5,12¢ (15,547 199 — —
Current assets of Discontinued
Operations — — — 398 — 398
Other 15 6 34 44 — 99
Total Current Assets 10,65(C 5,14¢ (14,897) 995 — 1,901
Property, Plant and Equipment, | — — 3,33¢ 2,243 — 5,581
Marketable Securitie — — — — — —
Restricted Cash and Securit 16 — — 71 — 87
Gooduwill and Intangibles, ni — — 71 256 — 327
Investment in Subsidiarie (6,459) (9,981) 953 — 15,48 —
Noncurrent Assets of Discontinu
Operations — — — 267 — 267
Other Assets, net 46 27 13 35 — 121
Total Assets $ 425 $ (4,805 $ (10,518 $ 3,867 $ 15,487 $8,284
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
(Deficit)
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ — $ 1 $ 157 $ 212 $ — $ 370
Current portion of lon-term debt — — — 1 — 1
Accrued payroll and employee
benefits — — 33 19 — 52
Accrued interes 85 34 — 1 — 120
Deferred revenu — — 123 61 — 184
Current liabilities of discontinued
operations — — — 329 — 329
Other 1 1 46 69 — 117
Total Current Liabilities 86 36 359 692 — 1,178
Long-Term Debt, less current portit 4,662 1,617 — 78 — 6,357
Deferred Revenu — — 631 107 — 738
Other Liabilities 51 1 194 316 — 562
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) (546) (6,459 (11,709 2,674 15,487 (546)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’
Equity (Deficit) $ 425 $ (4,805) $ (10,51¢) $ 3,867 $ 15,487 $8,284
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
December 31, 2005

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Level 3 Communications, Other
(dollars in millions) Inc. Financing, Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 37 $ 8 $ 275 % 59 $ — $ 379
Marketable securitie 173 3 — — — 176
Restricted cash and securit — 3 20 11 — 34
Accounts receivable, n — — 84 308 — 392
Due from (to) affiliates 10,117 4,613 (14,853 123 — —
Current Assets of Discontinued
Operations — — — 597 — 597
Other 16 4 29 43 — 92
Total Current Assets 10,34z 4,631 (14,44%) 1,141 — 1,67C
Property, Plant and Equipment, | — — 3,40¢ 2,228 — 5,632
Marketable Securitie 234 — — — — 234
Restricted Cash and Securit 16 — — 59 — 75
Gooduwill and Intangibles, ni — — 85 206 — 291
Investment in Subsidiarie (6,257) (9,657) 802 — 15,10 —
Noncurrent Assets of Discontinu
Opeations — — — 264 — 264
Other Assets, net 44 21 14 32 — 111
Total Assets $ 438¢ $ (4,999 $ (10,135 $ 3,92 $ 15,10C $8,277
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
(Deficit)
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ — $ 1 $ 141 % 225 % — $ 367
Current portion of lon-term debt — — — — — —
Accrued payroll and employee
benefits — — 46 33 — 79
Accrued interes 83 18 — 1 — 102
Deferred revenu — — 138 61 — 199
Current liabilities of discontinued
operations — — — 539 — 539
Other 1 2 50 84 — 137
Total Current Liabilities 84 21 375 943 — 1,422
Long-Term Debt, less current portit 4,722 1,23C — 71 — 6,025
Deferred Revenu — — 633 104 — 737
Other Liabilities 56 1 196 317 — 570
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) (476) (6,257) (11,339 2,49C 15,10 (476)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’
Equity (Deficit) $ 438¢ $ (4,999) $ (10,135 $ 3,92 $ 15,10C $8,277
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flomteéathree months ended March 31, 2006 and 2d@mfo

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the three months ended March 31, 2006
(unaudited)

Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Level 3 Communications, Other
(dollars in millions) Inc. Financing, Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operat
Activities of Continuing Operatior $ 94) % 22 % 5 % 104 $ — $ (1)

Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Proceeds from sale and maturity of
marketable securitie — — — — — —
Purchases of marketable securi — — — — — —
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash
and securitie — — — (12) — (12)
Capital expenditure — — 27) (32) — (58)
Purchases of marketable securi — — — — — —
Advances to discontinued operations
net — — — (20) — (10)
Purchases of marketable securi — — — —
Investmen: — — (70) — — (70)
Proceeds from sale of property, plan
and equipment and other ass — — 2 — — 2
Net Cash Used in Investing Activiti — — (95) (53) — (1498

Cash Flows from Financing Activitie
Long-term debt borrowings, net of
issuance cos! — 379 — — — 379
Purchases and payments on long-ter
debt, including current portion (net

restricted cast (52) — — — — (51)
Increase (decrease) due from affiliates,
net 123 (358) 296 (61) — —
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financ
Activities 72 21 296 (61) — 328
Net Cash Used in Discontinu
Operations — — — (48) — (48)
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and
Cash Equivalent — — 1 2 — 3
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival (22) (@) 207 (56) — 128

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning

of Period (includes cash of discontinued

operations 37 8 275 132 — 452
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of

Period (includes cash of discontinuec
operations $ 15 $ 7 $ 482 % 76 $ — $580

32




Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the three months ended March 31, 2005

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Level 3 Communications, Other
(dollars in millions) Inc. Financing, Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operat
Activities of Continuing Operatior $ (56) $ (20) $ 34 3 19 $ — $(23)

Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Proceeds from sale and maturity of
marketable securitie — — 50 — — 50
Purchases of marketable securi — — — — — —
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash

and securitie — 2 (2) 1) — (1)
Capital expenditure — — (23) (36) — (59)
Advances to discontinued operations,

net — — — (12) — (12)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant

and equipment and other ass — — — 1 — 1

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Invest
Activities — 2 25 (48) — (21)

Cash Flows from Financing Activitie
Long-term debt borrowings, net of
issuance cos! — — — — — —
Purchases and payments on long-term

debt, including current portic — — (24) 1) — (25)
Increase (decrease) due from affiliate
net 57 11 (81) 13 — —
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financ
Activities 57 11 (105) 12 — (25)

Net Cash Used in Discontinu:
Operations — — — (35) — (35)

Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and
Cash Equivalent — — 4) 1 — 3)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival ) (50) (51) —  (107)

=

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginnir

of Period (includes cash of discontint

operations 3 17 245 178 — 443
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of

Period (includes cash of discontinued
operations $ 4 % 10 $ 195 3 127 3 — $336
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15. Subsequent Events
Debt Offering

On April 6, 2006, the Company issued $300 milliggegate principal amount of 12.25% Senior Notes203. These notes were issued at
a premium of 102% to the principal amount of thtesoThese notes together with the $250 milliorreggate principal amount of 12.25%
Senior Notes due 2013 issued on March 14, 2006witreated under the same indenture as a siagksf notes. The notes are senior
unsecured obligations of Level 3 Financing, ranléngal in right of payment with all other senioisanured obligations of Level 3 Financil
Level 3 has guaranteed the 12.25% Senior Note2@i@. The notes will mature on March 15, 2013.rkgeon the notes is payable on
March 15 and September 15 of each year, beginmrgeptember 15, 2006.

These notes have not been registered under theitiescAct of 1933 or any state securities laws,amdess so registered, may not be offered
or sold except pursuant to an applicable exemgtmmn the registration requirements of the Secigifiet of 1933 and applicable state
securities laws.

ICG Communications Acquisition

On April 14, 2006, Level 3 signed a definitive agreent to acquire all of the stock of ICG Communag, Inc. (“ICG Communications”), a
privately held Colorado-based telecommunicatiomagany, from MCCC ICG Holdings, LLC (“MCCC"). Undéme terms of the agreement,
Level 3 expects to pay total consideration of $6fion, consisting of $127 million in unregisterstiares of Level 3 common stock and $36
million in cash, subject to adjustments based orking capital and other matters. The number ofashaf Level 3 common stock to be
delivered will be determined immediately prior tosing. Level 3 has the right to substitute caslein of delivering shares of its common
stock. The transaction does not include ICG Comupatiuns’ investments in New Global Telecom or MpoWwelding Corporation. Closing

is expected to occur mid-year 2006 and is subgectistomary closing conditions, including receipapplicable state and federal regulatory
approvals.

The shares of Level 3 common stock issued, if aiil/pe sold to MCCC pursuant to the exemption froggistration contained in Section 4
(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Level 3 intends to enter into a registration righgseement on the closing of the transaction vaipect to the Level 3 common stock issue
MCCC as part of the purchase consideration. Putgaahe registration rights agreement, Level 3 bl required to file a registration
statement covering the shares of Level 3 commaksssued to MCCC under the Purchase Agreemeninifitie business days following
the consummation of the transaction. The LevelrBroon stock will also be subject to certain transéstrictions that limits the number of
shares MCCC can sell on any given day.

TelCove Acquisition

On April 30, 2006 Level 3 signed a definitive agremt to acquire all of the stock of TelCove, If@elCove”), a privately held
Pennsylvania-based telecommunications company. iiedes of the agreement, Level 3 will pay totaisideration of $1.238 billion,
consisting of $637 million in shares of Level 3 coon stock, $445 million in cash and $156 milliorthie assumption of debt.

TelCove is a leading facilities-based provider @trapolitan and regional communications servicekutling transport, Internet access and
voice services. TelCove's network has over 22,@@@lland long haul route miles serving 70 marketsss the eastern United States, with
approximately 4,000 buildings on net.

After integration, TelCove’s metropolitan and regabnetworks will connect Level 3's national backbmetwork directly to traffic
aggregation points. These aggregation points irecbitler carriers’ points of presence, local teleoomications companies’ central offices,
wireless providers’ switch centers, colocation dath centers, cable company head ends, and higiwizith enterprise locations. Before the
pending acquisitions of TelCove and ICG Commundgatiand the completed acquisition of Progress dalet.evel 3 already had extensive
metro infrastructure in 36 markets, connectinggpraximately 900 traffic aggregation points, andiéle3 believes that these facilities have
been a competitive advantage. The acquisition ofifeiss and, after close, of TelCove and ICG Comaatioins is expected to increase the
number of traffic aggregation points to approxinhatge000 in the U.S. and approximately 5,200 glgbal

The number of shares of Level 3's common stocketddlivered at closing will be determined prioctosing, but in no case will the number
of shares that Level 3 is required to deliver asitlg be greater than approximately 166 millionrshar less than approximately 111 million
shares. Closing is subject to customary conditiordyuding receipt of applicable state and fedeegllatory approvals, and is also subject
vote to approve an increase in the number of aizdishares of Level 3's common stock (or any adjment thereof), which is scheduled to
occur at Level 3's 2006 Annual Meeting of

34




Stockholders on May 15, 2006. The holders of mbaa ta majority of TelCove’common stock have irrevocably approved the tctizsaant
therefore, the transaction is not subject to arditexhal approvals by TelCove'’s securityholdersosdhg is expected to occur in the third
quarter of 2006.

Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the Company’s consolidated financial stagats (including the notes thereto),
included elsewhere herein and the Company’s 200%uAhReport on Form 10-K filed with the Securitégsl Exchange Commission.

This document contains forward looking statementsiaformation that are based on the beliefs ofagament as well as assumptions made
by and information currently available to Level 8r@munications, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Leveb8the “Company”). When used in this
document, the words “anticipate”, “believe”, “plarigstimate” and “expect” and similar expressiasthey relate to the Company or its
management, are intended to identify forward-loglstatements. Such statements reflect the curiewswof the Company with respect to
future events and are subject to certain risksetdamties and assumptions. Should one or moreesft risks or uncertainties materialize, or
should underlying assumptions prove incorrect,aatsults may vary materially from those descrilethis document. For a more detailed
description of these risks and factors, pleasd¢tme€ompany’s 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K fikgth the Securities and Exchange
Commission and Item 1A in this quarterly reportkmrm 10-Q.

Level 3 Communications, Inc., through its operasndsidiaries, is primarily engaged in the commatins with additional operations in
coal mining.

Communication Services

The Company is a facilities based provider of abdrmange of integrated communications serviceseRa& for communications services is
recognized on a monthly basis as these servicggavaled. For contracts involving private line,weéengths and dark fiber services, Level 3
may receive ugront payments for services to be delivered foedaqu of up to 20 years. In these situations, L&weill defer the revenue at
amortize it on a straight-line basis to earningsrdfie term of the contract.

The Company separates its communication servitestiree separate categories: 1) Core Communicagenvices, 2) Other
Communications Services, and 3) SBC Contract Sesvieach category of revenue is in a different pludishe service life cycle, requiring
different levels of investment and focus and pringddifferent contributions to the Company’s AdptOIBDA. Management of Level 3
believes that growth in revenue from its Core Comitations Services is critical to the long-termcss of its communications business. At
the same time, the Company believes it must coatinumanage effectively the positive cash flowsrfiits SBC Contract Services and its
Other Communications Services including the Comjfsamature managed modem business and its relatgat@eal compensation. The Core
Communications Services group includes transpattiafinastructure, IP and data services, voice ayakWideo services. The Other
Communications Services group includes managed meah related reciprocal compensation and legacyage IP service business. In
2005, Other Communications Services included DSiregpation services which are no longer provided $BC Contract Services product
group includes all the revenues related to the $BGter Services Agreement contract, which was nbthin the December 23, 2005
acquisition of WilTel.

The Company’s transport and infrastructure senvigelside colocation services, wavelength, private,ldark fiber and transoceanic services.
Growth in transport and infrastructure revenueaigely dependent on increased demand for bandwéthices and available capital of
companies requiring communications capacity foirtben use or in providing capacity as a servioevjater to their customers. These
expenditures may be in the form of up-front payreemtmonthly payments for private line, wavelengtilark fiber services. An increase in
demand may be partially offset by declines in pniting.

IP and data services primarily include the Compsitmgh speed Internet access service and IP-VRANtssr Level 3's high speed Internet
access service is a high quality and high-speexiriat access service offered in a variety of caigaciThe Company’s IP-VPN services
permit businesses of any size to replace multiptevarks with a single, cost-effective solution thatatly simplifies the converged
transmission of voice, video, and data. This cogeece to a single platform can be obtained witlsactificing the quality of service or
security levels of traditional ATM and Frame Retdferings. IP-VPN services also permit customergrtoritize network application traffic
so that high priority applications, such as voind &ideo, are not compromised in performance byfltve of low priority applications such :
email.

The conversion from narrow band dial-up servicesigher speed broadband services is expected ieaise demand for the Company’s

IP and data services. Revenue growth in this ardapendent on the continued increase in usagethyenterprises and consumers and the
pricing environment. An increase in the reliabikityd security of information transmitted
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over the Internet and declines in the cost to trandata have resulted in increased utilizatioe-@bmmerce or web based services by
businesses. The Company, however, continues taierpe lower revenue growth due to price compresfioits IP and data services. These
declines were patrtially offset by an approximaté&eSiicrease in IP and data traffic, excluding taéfttributable to WilTel, for the first quari

of 2006 compared to the first quarter of 2005.udahg WilTel, IP and data traffic increased 87%ha first quarter of 2006. Current high
levels of available capacity and the numerous caegecompeting in this market have resulted inrg eempetitive pricing environment.

The Company’s average price per megabyte declippobaimately 30% in 2005. In addition to pricingepsures, the decline in the
Company'’s average price per megabyte was attrilrutathigher traffic from larger customers and oustrs moving to higher speed services
with a lower price per megabyte. The larger custsrhave a lower price per megabyte due to highkemve commitments. Level 3 believes
that industry-wide, excess network inventory hasnbgignificantly reduced and pricing pressuresaginning to moderate as evidenced by
the Company'’s improved pricing and increased waftilume. For its IP and data services, the Comgapgcts pricing to decline by
approximately 20% in 2006. The decline is partialhe to contract renewals and volume discountkifgr traffic customers.

The Company continues to experience pricing presiuirthose transport and infrastructure custortretsrequire simple, low quality, point-
to-point services, as competitors aggressivelyymrdghis business. However, Level 3 believes thatpetitors are less willing to discount
these services if it requires investment in incretalecapacity to meet the customer’s requiremdtdgsthose customers that provide high
quality content or require a combination of tranmspl® and voice solutions on a regional or natigniatform, Level 3 is seeing some
indications that price compression is starting taerate and, in many cases, prices are startimgtease. Level 3 intends to remain
disciplined in its approach to pricing for its temort and IP services.

The emergence of a number of companies from batdyygotection and additional competition from atdestressed carriers continues to
contribute to the difficult and competitive opengtienvironment. The Company does not expect this@rment to change significantly until
the industry consolidates further and/or demanelacates.

The Company has developed voice services thatttiEngge and existing markets. The Company beli¢gvasthe efficiencies of Level 3's IP
and optical based network, including its Softswitebhnology, will provide customers a lower cos¢mlative than the existing circuit-
switched networks. The Company is moving quicklgéwelop both its capability to market and selhia voice market and develop the
internal systems and processes necessary to supparéw services being launched. The revenue faitéor voice services is large;
however, the revenues and margins are expectazhtmae to decline over time as a result of the t®mwcost IP and optical based
technologies. In addition, the market for voicevgas is being targeted by many competitors, séweérahich are larger and have more
financial resources than the Company.

Vyvx provides audio and video programming for itstomers over the Company’s fiber-optic network aiadsatellite. It uses the Compasay’
fiber-optic network to carry many live traditionadoadcast and cable television events from theo$itkee event to the network control centers
of the broadcasters of the event. For live evetisresthe location is not known in advance, sudbreaking news stories in remote locations,
Vyvx provides an integrated satellite and fiberiopetwork based service to transmit the conteitstoustomers. Most of Vyvx’'s customers
for these services contract for the service onvamteby-event basis; however, Vyvx has some custembo have purchased a dedicated
point-to-point service which enables these custsrtetransmit programming at any time.

Vyvx also distributes advertising spots to radid &levision stations throughout the U.S., botletetmically and in physical form. Customers
for these services can utilize a network-based atketbr aggregating, managing, storing and distiifgucontent for content owners and rights
holders.

The Company’s Other Communications Services aremgiroducts or services that are not areas of asipfor the Company. Other
Communications Services currently include managedam, related reciprocal compensation and legacyaged IP services.

The Company and its customers continue to see omrsumigrate from narrow band dial-up servicesighér speed broadband services as
the narrow band market matures. This trend is @rgeto result in declines in managed modem revénttee future. The Company
recognized approximately $80 million of managed aradevenue in the first quarter of 2006, a 25%idedtom the same period in 2005.
These declines may be mitigated in the mid to lotgien by growth in Ifbased services offered by the Company that adthressarket shil
to higher speed broadband services. Level 3 balithet the low cost structure of its network wilbdle it to aggressively compete for new
business in the IP-based market.

Level 3 receives compensation from other carridremit terminates traffic originating on those &g’ networks. This reciprocal

compensation is based on interconnection agreeméthtshe respective carriers or rates mandateth&yCC. The Company earns the
majority of its reciprocal compensation revenuerfrproviding managed modem services.
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Legacy managed IP services primarily include loeegpservices which utilize ATM technology, as vesllVPN and managed security
services. The Company’s legacy Internet accesséssiconsists primarily of a business that wasieadjin the Genuity transaction in 2003.
The Company has elected not to pursue additiorssbmers and limit the capital invested in this comgnt of its business.

The SBC Master Services Agreement was an agredmémeen SBC Services Inc. and WilTel and was aeduir the WilTel transaction in
December 2005. Recently, SBC Services Inc. becasubsidiary of AT&T Inc., (together “SBC"WilTel and SBC amended their agreemr
in June 2005 to run through 2009 and it providgsoss margin purchase commitment of $335 milliamfiDecember 2005 through the end
of 2007, and $75 million from January 2008 throtigh end of 2009. The remaining gross margin comentrfor this contract was $259
million as of March 31, 2006. Only purchases ofnat-services count toward satisfaction of this pase commitment. Originating and
terminating access charges paid to local phone aamap are passed through to SBC in accordanceavidimula that approximates cost.
Additionally, the SBC Master Services Agreementvies for the payment of $50 million from SBC ifrtaén performance criteria are met
Level 3. If Level 3 meets the performance criteitigs eligible to earn $25 million in 2006 and $&fillion in 2007.

Level 3's management continues to review all of@lmenpany’s existing lines of business and servftariags to determine how those lines
of business and service offerings assist with thm@any’s focus on delivery of communications arfdrimation services and meeting its
financial objectives. To the extent that certaine$ of business, business segments or servicéngfeare not considered to be compatible
the delivery of the Company’s services or with atitay financial objectives, Level 3 may exit thdsees of business, business segments or
stop offering those services.

Management focuses on Adjusted OIBDA, cash flowmfoperating activities and capital expenditureas®ess the operating performanc
the communications business. Management belieatRtfjusted OIBDA, when viewed over time, reflettte operating trend and
performance of its communications business. AdfU§EBDA, or a similar measure, also is an indicatbperformance used by Level 3's
competitors and is used by management in evaluegiatjve performance.

Management of Level 3 believes the introduction@iv services or technologies, as well as the fudbgelopment of existing technologies,
may reduce the cost or increase the supply ofioestvices similar to those provided by Level BeTbility of the Company to anticipate,
adapt and invest in these technology changesiimedyt manner may affect the future success of the@any.

The Company completed the initial planned deploytnoéthe next generation of optical transport tembgy in its North American and
European networks in the fourth quarter of 2005 eandly in the first quarter of 2006, respectivaliile Company has decided to deploy the
technology for additional routes in North AmericedéEurope and completed the deployments on thegesa the first quarter of 2006. The
Company began an upgrade of its IP backbone teatpah the third quarter of 2005. Level 3 belietteat this deployment of new equipmi
to the existing network equipment will allow ther@pany to optimize the amount of traffic it carreager the network and lower the cost of
providing services.

In order to expand its service offerings in Eurahe, Company expects to invest $20 million for &kd#er based expansion in nine Europ
markets. The dark fiber is expected to replacaippkement existing wavelength capacity.

The communications industry continues to consatidagvel 3 has participated in this process withabquisitions of WilTel and Progress
Telecom and the proposed ICG Communications an@dhal transactions described below. Level 3 willtoore to evaluate consolidation
opportunities and could make additional acquis&ion2006.

The successful integration of these businessed miel 3 is important to the success of Level 32 TQompany must quickly identify
synergies, integrate the networks and support @azgtons while maintaining the service quality lEvexpected by customers.

Level 3 has embarked on a strategy to expand iterumetro presence. The strategy will allow@wmpany to terminate traffic over its
owned metro facilities rather than paying thirdtjgerto terminate the traffic. Level 3's ability provide high-speed bandwidth directly to
customer facilities is expected to be a competitiheantage as local exchange companies often doroaitle this service. The Company
intends to offer the traditional set of serviceshiese markets and concentrate its sales effortiseohandwidth intensive businesses. The
expansion into new metro markets should also peaititional opportunities to sell services on@oenpany’s national and international
networks. This new metro strategy includes theusitipn of Progress Telecom and the proposed atipris of ICG Communications and
TelCove described below.

The Company is focusing its attention on 1) growiegenue through Core Communications Servicespjirruing to show
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improvements in Adjusted OIBDA as a percentageewénue, 3) completing the integration of acquiresiesses, 4) managing cash flows
provided by its Other Communications Services aB@ Eontract Services, and 5) developing its metrsirtess. The anticipated change in
the composition of the Company’s revenue will reguhe Company to manage operating expenses dgrafl concentrate its capital
expenditures on those technologies and assetw/ithahable the Company to develop its Core Commatidns Services further and replace
the decline in revenue and earnings from Other Conications Services and SBC Contract Services.

In addition to the operational metrics mentionedva) the Company is also focusing on improvingiagsidity, financial condition, and
extending the maturity dates of certain of its dmid lowering the effective interest rate on itsstanding debt over the long term. In
January 2006, the Company completed the exchanggvefal tranches of its debt maturing in 2008&faew tranche of debt maturing in
2010. The Company was able to extend the matugity df approximately $692 million of debt due ir08@o March 2010.

In March 2006, Level 3 issued $150 million of FingtRate Senior Notes due in 2011 and $250 millibh2.25% Senior Notes due in 2013.
In April 2006, the Company issued an additionalG8&4llion of the 12.25% Senior Notes due in 201Be Pproceeds from these offerings
were used to fund the cash portion of the WilTal Bnogress Telecom acquisitions as well fund thst ebconstruction, installation,
acquisition, lease, development or improvementtiogéoassets to be used in Level 3's communicatimisiness. The Company will continue
to look for opportunities to improve its financiasition in 2006 and focus its resources on grow@wgnue and managing costs for the
communications business.

Information Services

On November 30, 2005, the Company sold its whollyred subsidiary, i()Structure, LLC, which provided computer outsougcservices
primarily to small and medium-sized businesses. Company also completed the disposition of its iemg subsidiary in the information
services business, Software Spectrum, Inc. on Bdqae7, 2006. The results of operations and firduposition for (i )Structure and
Software Spectrum are reflected as discontinuedatipas for all periods presented in this report

Coal Mining

Level 3, through its two 50% owned joint ventureface mines in Montana and Wyoming, sells coal prity through long-term contracts
with public utilities. The long-term contracts fibre delivery of coal establish the price, volume] guality requirements of the coal to be
delivered. Revenue under these and other conisasognized when coal is shipped to the customer.

Critical Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies set forth intdld to the consolidated financial statements énGbompany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2005 appropriaé@isesent, in all material respects, the currertustof the Company'’s critical accounting
policies, and are incorporated herein by reference.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123R on January B. BRAS No. 123R requires that compensation cteimg to share-based payment
transactions be recognized in the financial statgesieased on the fair value of equity or liabilitgtruments issued. The Company adopted
the expense recognition provisions of SFAS No. 128counting for Stock-Based Compensation” in 199Berefore, the effect of applying
the change from the original provisions of SFAS W23 on the Company’s financial position or resafteperations for the three months
ended March 31, 2006 was insignificant.

The Company also adopted Emerging Issues Task Fsgae No. 04-6, “Accounting for Stripping Costsurred during Production in the
Mining Industry” (“EITF No. 04-6") effective Januad, 2006. EITF No. 04-6 concluded that strippigts incurred during the production
phase of a mine are variable production costssihatld be included in the costs of the inventondpiced during the period that the stripping
costs are incurred. EITF No. 04-6 further defimagentory produced as mineral that has been exttagiea result, stripping costs related to
exposed, but not extracted mineral must be expessétturred rather than deferred until the minisraktracted. The Comparsytoal mining
business had previously deferred stripping costisaamortized these costs over the period in whiehutiderlying coal is mined. The
Company’s adoption of EITF No. 04-6 on JanuaryQQ&required it to adjust beginning retained eaysiaccumulated deficit) for the
amount of prepaid stripping costs previously defériThe Company decreased beginning equity by $®mas a result of the adoption of
EITF No. 04-6.

38




First Quarter 2006 vs. First Quarter 2005
Revenuefor the periods ended March 31, is summarized k®afs (dollars in millions):

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2006 2005
Communications $ 804 $ 510
Coal Mining 18 17

$ 822 $ 527

Communicationsrevenue is separated into three categories: 1) Conemunications Services (including transport arichstructure service
wholesale IP and data services, voice serviced/gmg services), 2) Other Communications Servicasl(iding managed modem and its
related reciprocal compensation, DSL aggregatiod,legacy managed IP services), and 3) SBC Corerstices. Revenue attributable to
these service categories is provided in the folhgatable:
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(dollars in millions) 2006 2005

Core Communications Service

Transport and Infrastructu $198 $248
Wholesale IP and Da 64 41
Voice 98 26
Vyvx 29 —
389 315

Other Communication Service
Managed Moden 79 107
Reciprocal Compensatic 26 28
Managed IF 18 23
DSL Aggregation — 37
123 195
SBC Contract Services 292 —
Total Communications Revenue $804 $510

The Company’s Core Communications Services inctea8és in the first quarter of 2006 compared tofitst quarter of 2005. Excluding
termination revenue of $129 million in the firstagter of 2005, Core Communications Services revevaudd have increased 109% in 2006.
Transport and infrastructure revenue in 2005 inefuthe $129 million of termination revenue attrihlé to agreements reached with France
Telecom and 360networks relating to the terminatibexisting dark fiber lease agreements with thmsstomers described below. Excluding
this termination revenue, transport and infrastiietevenue would have increased 66% in 2006 fro@%2The primary factor leading to this
increase is the inclusion of revenue attributableperations acquired in the WilTel transactioecember 2005. In addition, increased
demand for colocation space in large markets irtiNAmerica and Europe, and an increase in wavetereytenue due to sales to
360Networks, France Telecom and other new andiegististomers also contributed to the increaseaimsport and infrastructure revenue.

In February 2005, France Telecom and Level 3 fmealian agreement to terminate a dark fiber agreesigamed in 2000. Under the terms of
the agreement France Telecom returned the fibleevel 3. Under the original IRU agreement, the aaseived by Level 3 was deferred and
amortized to revenue over the 20-year term of greement. As a result of this transaction, Leved@®gnized unamortized deferred revenue
of approximately $40 million as non-cash terminatievenue in the first quarter of 2005. The wavglbrsales described above were a part of
this transaction.

In March 2005, Level 3 entered into an agreemetit @0networks in which both parties agreed to ieate a 20year IRU agreement. Unc
the new agreement 360networks returned the dagk fiiginally provided by Level 3. Under the originRU agreement, signed in 2000, the
revenue associated with the cash received by L3wels deferred and amortized to revenue over thged@term of the agreement. As a
result of this transaction, Level 3 recognizeduhamortized deferred revenue of approximately $8&m as non-cash termination revenue
in the first quarter of 2005. The wavelength salescribed above were a part of this transaction.

The Company expects to recognize termination rexémthe future if customers desire to renegotiatgracts or are required to terminate
service. The Company is not able to estimate tkeifip value of these types of transactions uhglytoccur, but does not currently expect to
recognize significant termination revenue for tbeefeeable future.

Wholesale IP and data services revenue increasg@Did primarily due to the customers obtained eWilTel transaction. Wholesale IP and
data revenue also increased due to traffic growtiiarth America from new and existing customers exa@eeded the rate of price
compression as well as improved market acceptate €ompany’s new IP-VPN service and the contihgmwth of previously awarded
contracts.

Level 3's voice revenue increased in 2006 primarily dud¢coperations acquired in WilTel transaction. didiion, 2006 revenue attributal
to the Company’s existing voice services, includmgce termination and local inbound services, éased by approximately 48% from 2005
levels.

The Vyvx business was acquired on December 23, a6Qgrt of the WilTel transaction. Revenue of 8fion is included in the results of
operations for the three months ended March 316200

Managed modem revenue declined in 2006 as a i&sihié continued migration from narrow band dialsgpvices to higher speed broadband
services by end user customers. This change rddaleedecline in the demand for managed modensport
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America Online, the Company’s largest managed modgstomer, reduced the number of ports it purch&eed Level 3 by approximately
30% during 2005. Managed modem revenue also dedim2006 as a result of certain contracts beingwed or renegotiated at prices lower
than were earned in 2005.

The Company expects, excluding the effects of fuagquisitions, managed modem related revenuentince to decline in the future
primarily due to an increase in the number of stibecs migrating to broadband services and thenpiaiepricing concessions as contracts are
renewed.

The Company’s primary DSL aggregation customer beéganigrate its DSL subscribers to its own netwoekinning in the first quarter of
2005. The customer completed the migration ofttsssribers in the third quarter of 2005. The Conyfsaather DSL contracts expired in
2005 and were not renewed. The Company did nogréee DSL revenue in the first quarter of 2006 dods not expect to recognize DSL
aggregation revenue in the foreseeable future.

Reciprocal compensation revenue declined from 28@&s primarily due to the signing of interconnestagreements with other carriers in
2005 that resulted in the Company receiving a laat per minute for terminating traffic. The matpof the Company’s interconnection
agreements provide rate structures through 2006 Cdmpany earns the majority of its reciprocal cengation revenue from managed
modem services.

Level 3 has interconnection agreements in placéh®majority of traffic subject to reciprocal coemsation. Level 3 continues to negotiate
new interconnection agreements with its local eastiTo the extent that the Company is unablegio séw interconnection agreements or
signs new agreements containing lower rates, oetisea significant decline in the Company’s mamaig@dem dial-up business, or FCC or
state regulations change such that carriers areegatred to compensate other carriers for terrmgdSP-bound traffic, reciprocal
compensation revenue may decline significantly davee.

The Company’s legacy Managed IP business congistaply of a business that was acquired in the @griransaction in 2003. The
Company has not invested in this service and iaottely looking for new customers. The declinggaenue is attributable to the
disconnection of service by existing customers. Thenpany expects this trend to continue througBo06.

The SBC Master Services Agreement was obtaindaeiMtilTel transaction. Under the terms of the agrert, SBC has gross margin
purchase commitments through 2009. Due to thefgignce of the commitment, the Company has eletesgparate and report revenue
generated under this contract from its Other Comoations Services. Level 3 earned revenue of apmrabely $292 million attributable to
this contract in the first quarter of 2006 of whabproximately 26% will apply to the gross margurghase commitment. The remaining
gross margin commitment for this contract was $2filon as of March 31, 2006.

Coal mining revenue increased from $17 million for the threenthe ended March 31, 2005 to $18 million for theeéhmonth periods endii
March 31, 2006. The increase in revenue is ataifletto an 18% increase in the volume of coal BoRD06. This increase was partially of
by an 11% decline in the average price per toroaf sold in 2006 compared to the same period 5200

Cost of revenuefor the communications business, as a percentageyehue for 2006 and 2005 was 49% and 23%, ragplctThe increase

is primarily attributable to the recognition oft@nation revenue in 2005 and incremental revenlagimg to the operations acquired from
WilTel which was recognized in 2006. In the firstagter of 2005, the Company recognized $129 milkibtermination revenue, primarily
related to 360networks and France Telecom. Theitation revenue with no corresponding cost of rexempositively affected the percent:

in 2005. Excluding termination revenue, the costeknue, as a percentage of revenue, would hare3#% for the three months ended
March 31, 2005. Cost of revenue, as a percentagevehue, increased in 2006 due to the significaite and SBC services revenue obtained
in the WilTel acquisition. The margins for theseveses are generally lower than the margins eaomedther components included in Other
Communications Services.

Cost of revenue, as a percentage of revenue, dacdhl mining business increased from 76% for biheet months ended March 31, 2005 to
86% for the three months ended March 31, 2006.Airein the average price per ton of coal solthmfirst quarter of 2006 compared to the
same period in 2005 resulted in an increase inafa®venue, as a percentage of revenue.

Depreciation and amortizationexpenses were $187 million for the first quarted&0a 13% increase from 2005 depreciation and
amortization expenses of $166 million. The increéag®imarily attributable to the communicationedile and intangible assets that were
acquired in the WilTel transaction in December 200%s increase was partially offset by the shelitexd communications assets that were
placed in service in prior years that became faélpreciated during the
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second half of 2005 and the first quarter of 2006.

Selling, general and administrativeexpenses increased 45% to $276 million for theetmenths ended March 31, 2006 compared to the
same period in 2005. This increase is primarilgilattable to the inclusion of a full quarter of exzes associated with the operations acq
in the WilTel transaction. Specifically, increase€ompensation, bonus, and employee related aostiwork related costs and facilities
expenses all contributed to the increase in seljegeral and administrative expenses in 2006idfarffsetting the increase in
communication expenses was a property tax berfefif anillion pertaining to the Company’s faciliti@sthe United Kingdom.

Included in operating expenses for the first quaste2006 and 2005, were $14 million and $10 millicespectively, of non-cash
compensation and professional expenses recognimiel $FAS No. 123R and SFAS No. 123, respectivelgted to grants of
outperform stock options, warrants and other stuméed compensation programs. The increase in rsinecenpensation expense is
attributable to grants of restricted stock andrietetd stock units in 2005 and an increase in #iaevof the option grants to employees.

The Company expects selling, general and admitiigtraxpenses to increase in 2006 versus 2005esult of the WilTel and Progress
Telecom acquisitions and the proposed ICG Commtiniteand TelCove acquisitions.

Restructuring charges and impairment chargesvere $4 million for the three months ended MarchZ8D6 and $15 million for the same
period in 2005. In the first three months of 200@& Company recognized approximately $1 milliomesftructuring charges attributable to the
workforce reductions of the communications businesg¢orth America. In the first three months o080 the Company recognized
approximately $15 million of restructuring chargekated to the workforce reductions of the commatmdns business in North America and
Europe. The employees affected by this workfordeicdon provided support functions or worked dikgon mature products. All obligatiol
attributable to the 2005 restructuring activitiesrevpaid in 2005.

During the first quarter of 2006, the Company retngd $3 million in non-cash impairment chargesiiteéyy from the decision to terminate
projects for certain voice services and informatiechnology projects in the communications busin€be costs incurred for these projects,
including capitalized labor, were impaired as theying value of these projects exceeded theimedéd fair value.

Adjusted OIBDA is defined by the Company, as operating income(livem the consolidated statements of operatiess tlepreciation and
amortization expense, less non-cash compensatfmener included within selling, general and admiaiiin expense on the consolidated
statements of operations, and less the non-casiopof restructuring and impairment charges. At§dsOIBDA is not a measurement under
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates and may not be used by other compaieasmgement believes that Adjusted
OIBDA is an important part of the Company’s intdrregporting and is an indicator of profitability doperating performance used by the
chief operating decision maker or decision makirgug, especially in a capital-intensive industrgtsas telecommunications. Adjusted
OIBDA excludes interest expense and income taxmesgand other gains/losses not included in operaitome. Excluding these items
eliminates the expenses associated with the Congpaapitalization and tax structures. Note 12 ef tbnsolidated financial statements
provides a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA for &aaof the Company’s operating segments.

Adjusted OIBDA for the communications business @447 million and $201 million for the three montreled March 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The decrease in 2006 is primarilsilattable to the $129 million reduction in termiioait and settlement revenue from 2005 to
2006. Partially offsetting the decline in termiatirevenue, were earnings attributable to the dipesaacquired in the WilTel transaction,
which was acquired in December 2005, and a detlinestructuring charges from $15 million in thesfiquarter of 2005 to $1 million in the
first quarter of 2006.

Adjusted OIBDA for the coal business decreased f§@million for the three months ended March 3102 $1 million for the three mont
ended March 31, 2006 as a result of lower margneoal sales during 2006 versus 2005.

Interest Incomewas $9 million for the three months ended MarchZBD6 increasing from $4 million in the same ped@005. This
increase is the result of increases in the weigatetage interest rate earned on the portfolioitite average cash and marketable security
portfolio balance. The Comparsyaverage return on its portfolio increased froBY% in 2005 to 3.6% in 2006. The average cash balalsc
increased by approximately 20% from 2005 to 20@&dihg utilization of cash and cash equivalenes,Gbmpany invests the funds prima

in government and government agency securitiesramkey market funds. The investment strategy gelgguedvides lower yields on the
funds than on alternative investments, but redtleesisk to principal in the short term prior t@$ie funds being used in the Company’s
business.

Interest Expense, netncreased by $36 million from $114 million for thieee months ended March 31, 2005 to $150 millioRA06. Intere:
expense increased primarily as a result of incebagerest expense from the issuance of the
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Companys $880 million of 10% Convertible Senior Notes @04 1 in the second quarter of 2005 and the Marcl20d6 issuance of Floati
Rate Senior Notes due 2011 and 12.25% Senior Noee2013. In addition, the Company exchanged puatad its 9.125% Senior Notes due
2008, 11% Senior Notes due 2008 and 10.5% Sensmobit Notes due 2008 for new 11.5% Senior Notes2@10 during the first quarter
2006, thereby increasing the effective intereseasp on this debt. The Company experienced a higtezest rate on the $730 million Senior
Secured Term Loan due 2011 which also resulteddreased interest charges in the first quarte06620verall, the debt exchange
transaction and the additional debt issued initisednd second quarters of 2006 are expectecttease the Company’s annual interest
expense by approximately $75 million in 2006.

Other, netincreased primarily as a result of the $27 millgain realized on the debt exchange in the firsttguaf 2006.
Income Tax Benefitfor 2006 was $1 million and 2005 was zero. The Camyphas incurred significant operating losses sirg98. The

Company is unable to determine when and if thebtmefits attributable to its net operating lossékbe realizable, and accordingly has
recorded a valuation allowance against the defdemedssets for the net operating loss carryforaard
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Discontinued Operations:

Software Spectrum revenue decreased 5% from $46mfor three months ending March 31, 2005 to S4dillion for the three months
ending March 31, 2006, primarily due to an increassales under software publishers’ agency licenprograms that result in only a service
fee being recognized as revenue, rather than tlegsgrice of the software. Software Spectrum begaperiencing an increase in sales under
Microsoft’'s 6.0 licensing program and similar pragrs offered by other suppliers several years agdetithese programs, new enterprise-
wide licensing arrangements are priced, billed esilbcted directly by the software publishers. &afte Spectrum continues to provide sales
and support services related to these transaciioth®arns a service fee directly from publisherstfese activities. The Company recognizes
the service fee it receives as revenue and nadritiee value of the software under this progranftvgre Spectrum recorded approximately
$17 million and $14 million of revenue attributalitethese types of contracts in 2006 and 2005etsely. The estimated selling price of
software sold under these agreements was $30®&mdld $256 million for the corresponding periods.increase in sales to the small-
medium business market customers partially offseidecline in revenue attributable the continueaptidn of the sales agency programs.

The cost of revenue for Software Spectrum, as eepegige of its revenue, was 92% for the first quart 2005 compared to 91fdr the same
period in 2006. The increase in agency sales is 2880ich generally have higher margins than agency sales, was the primary factor in
improved results. Software Spectrum is very rel@ntebates received from software publishers fwrawe its operating results. For both the
three months periods ended March 31, 2005 and Zfféyare Spectrum earned approximately $8 miliiorebates which reduced cost of
revenue.

Software Spectrum'’s selling, general and admirtisgaéexpenses increased from $33 million for thre¢hmonths ended March 31, 2005 to
$38 million in the same period in 2006 due primard headcount related expenses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows provided by (used in)operating actigitd continuing operations for the three monthseeindarch 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively are as follows (dollars in millions):

Three Months

Ended
March 31,
2006 2005
Communications** $ (10) $ (21)
Other 3 (2)
Total $ (1) $ (23

** Includes interest expense net of interest income

The reduction of cash used in communications ojperatsh flows for the three months ended Marct2806 is primarily attributable to
improved operating results after excluding theafef $129 million of non-cash termination reveiuéhe first quarter of 2005. The
improved results are directly attributable to tipemtions acquired in the WilTel acquisition in ftharth quarter of 2005 and additional
revenue from Core Communications Services. Fluitinatin working capital balances resulted in ameneental use of cash of $18 million in
the first three months of 2006 compared to the saened in 2005. An increase in cash used for actsopayable and other current liabilities
was partially offset by higher sources of cash famnounts receivable. In addition to the cash @isiediorking capital, cash interest payments
increased by $41 million in the first quarter oDBcompared to the same period in 2005.

The increase in operating cash flows for the othesinesses is primarily attributable to the paynoémertain legal and benefit obligations of
the coal and packaging business in 2005. Paymenthdse types of obligations decreased in 2006.

Investing activities in the first quarter of 2006nparily include $70 million of cash used for thegaisition of Progress Telecom and $58
million used for capital expenditures, primarilythe communications business. In addition, the Gomipncreased its restricted securities by
$12 million, primarily for its coal business.

Financing sources in the first quarter of 2006 eziad of $379 million of proceeds from the issuaatthe Floating Rate Senior Notes due in
2011 and 12.25% Senior Notes due in 2013. Thedaaiitange transaction in January 2006 required L2t@lpay $46 million of premiums

to holders of the exchanged notes. Level 3 alsaried $5 million of costs associated with this saation.

In April 2006, the Company issued an additionalG8&4llion of 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013. Procdeats the offering
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will be used to fund the purchase of Progress Defeas well to fund the cost of construction, ifdatain, acquisition, lease, development or
improvement of other assets to be used in the corwations business.

The increase in cash used by the discontinuedrnetion services group is primarily the resultlotfuations in working capital and lower
earnings of Software Spectrum. Operating cash flaredargely dependent on the timing of collectibsn customers and payments to
suppliers. An increase in payments for software@thedr liabilities in the first quarter of 2006 cpared to the same period in 2005 resulted in
the increased use of cash for operating activi@ggrating income (loss) for the information seegibusiness declined slightly from $1

million of income for the three months ended MaBdh 2005 to a $2 million loss for the same perio@006.

The Company incurred losses from continuing openatof $166 million and consumed $65 million oftcésr operating activities and capi
expenditures in the first three months of 2006. Thenpany expects that the business will continusotssume cash for the remainder of
2006, however the amount of cash consumed is eagbégtdiminish. In 2006, the Company expects igwill continue to exceed revenue
and it will continue to consume cash primarily doénterest payments and capital expenditures.Qdmapany expects Adjusted OIBDA to
improve in 2006 primarily as a result of the WilBeld Progress Telecom acquisitions, the propos€d@mmunications and TelCove
acquisitions and the growth in Core Communicati®asrices revenue. Interest payments are expeciadrease to approximately $565
million in 2006, based on debt levels at the tirhthis filing. Capital expenditures for 2006 arepekted to range from $320 million to $360
million and will consist of $100 million to $125 Hidn of base capital expenditures (capital reqaiit@ keep the network operating efficiently
and product development), approximately $30 millidrcapital expenditures for the integration of Vél, $10 million associated with the
expected integration of ICG Communications and ®#0on for a dark fiber based expansion in Europlee majority of the Company’s
ongoing capital expenditures are expected to beesgebased, which are tied to incremental revdnuetal, the Company expects that cash
required for operating activities, discontinued giens and capital expenditures, excluding thalte®f TelCove, will range from $190
million to $200 million, excluding fluctuations imorking capital. The Company does not have anyifsigmt principal amounts due on its
outstanding debt until 2008.

Level 3 has approximately $992 million of cash caquivalents and marketable securities on haiMbath 31, 2006 and was able to rais¢
additional $300 million of cash through the issu@p€additional debt in April 2006. In addition,Z2Lmillion of current and non-current
restricted securities are used to collateralizstantling letters of credit, long-term debt, certgierating obligations of the Company or to
fund certain reclamation liabilities. Based on mf@tion available at this time, management of tben@any believes that the Company’s
current liquidity and anticipated future cash flofn@em operations will be sufficient to fund its lnisss. However, if the Company has the
opportunity, at acceptable terms, to improve dsiliity, refinance its debt, or fund acquisitiottee Company may elect to secure additional
capital in the future.

The Company issued $150 million of Floating Ratai@eNotes due in 2011 and $250 million of 12.25éi®r Notes due in 2013 in
March 2006 to institutional investors. In April 28Ghe Company issued an additional $300 millioA225% Senior Notes due in 2013 to
institutional investors. The proceeds from theserofgs were used to fund the WilTel and Progresgdom acquisitions as well as to fund
the cost of construction, installation, acquisifitease, development or improvement of other assdis used in Level 3's communications
business.

In addition to raising capital through the debt aqdity markets, the Company may sell or disposxiting businesses, investments or o
non-core assets. In 2005, the Company completeshtlreof the { )Structure business to Infocrossing for approxirya®85 million in cash
and Infocrossing common stock. The Company allbSoftware Spectrum for approximately $353 milliarSeptember 2006.

Level 3 is aware that the various issuances afutstanding senior notes, senior discount notesandertible notes may trade at discounts to
their respective face or accreted amounts. In daleontinue to reduce future cash interest payspastwell as future amounts due at
maturity, Level 3 or its affiliates may, from tinbe time, enter into debt for debt, debt for equitycash transactions to purchase these
outstanding debt securities in open market or pelyanegotiated transactions. Level 3 will evaluatg such transactions in light of then
existing market conditions and the possible dikigffect to stockholders. The amounts involvedniy such transaction, individually or in the
aggregate, may be material.

On January 13, 2006, the Company completed prastbange offers to exchange a portion of its ontstey 9.125% Senior Notes due 2008,
11% Senior Notes due 2008 and 10.5% Senior Disddates due 2008 (together the “2008 Notes”) thaeweld by eligible holders in a
private placement for cash and new 11.5% SenioedNdtie 2010. The Company issued $692 million aggeggrincipal amount of 11.5%
Senior Notes as well as paid $46 million of cashsideration in exchange for the 2008 Notes tendierélte transactions. The Company also
paid approximately $13 million in cash for totabaged interest on the 2008 Notes that had beermpstéor exchange to the closing date and
$5 million in transaction
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costs.

The communications industry continues to consodidaével 3 has participated in this process withabquisitions of WilTel, Progress
Telecom and the proposed ICG Communications an@dhal transactions described below. Level 3 willtoare to evaluate consolidation
opportunities and could make additional acquis&ion2006.

On December 23, 2005, the Company completed thaésattgn of WilTel Communications Group, LLC fronelucadia National Corporation
and its subsidiaries. The consideration paid ctedisf approximately $363 million in cash (inclugii27 million of post-closing working
capital and other adjustments which reduced tte potrchase price), plus $100 million in cash ftect Leucadia’s having complied with its
obligation to leave that amount of cash in WilTaid 115 million newly issued shares, with a faiueaof approximately $313 million, of
Level 3 common stock. The Company also incurredsoofsapproximately $7 million related to the tracison.

On March 20, 2006, Level 3 completed the acquisitibProgress Telecom LLC. Under the terms of tire@ment, Level 3 issued
approximately 19.7 million unregistered sharesysdlat approximately $66 million, and $69 milliendash. The Company also incurred
approximately $1 million of costs attributable ke ttransaction. The cash purchase price is sulgjgxist-closing adjustments based on actual
working capital as of the closing date.

On April 14, 2006 the Company signed a definitigeement to acquire all of the stock of ICG Comroations, Inc., a privately held
Colorado-based telecommunications company. Understef the agreement, Level 3 will pay total coesadion of $163 million, consisting
of $127 million in unregistered shares of LeveloBnenon stock and $36 million in cash. The numbeshafres to be delivered will be
determined immediately prior to closing.

ICG Communications primarily provides transportaii®l voice services to wireline and wireless cesrilternet service providers and
enterprise customers. ICG Communications’ netwark dwer 2,000 metro and regional fiber miles ino€ado and Ohio, includes
approximately 500 points of presence and serveg than 1,600 customers.

On April 30, 2006 the Company signed a definitigeement to acquire all of the stock of TelCove,,la privately held Pennsylvania-based
telecommunications company. Under terms of theeagent, Level 3 will pay total consideration of $8illion, consisting of $637 million
in shares of Level 3 common stock, $445 milliorcash and $156 million in the assumption of debt.

TelCove is a leading facilities-based provider @trapolitan and regional communications servicekitting transport, Internet access and

voice services. TelCove’'s network has over 22,@@@lland long haul route miles serving 70 marketsss the eastern United States, with
approximately 4,000 buildings on net.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
STATEMENT REGARDING COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNING S TO FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS
(dollars in millions)

Loss from Continuing Operations Before Ta
(Earnings) Losses of Equity Investe

Interest on Debt, Net of Capitalized Inter
Amortization of Capitalized Intere

Interest Expense Portion of Rental Expense

Earnings (Losses) Available for Fixed Charges

Interest on Dek
Preferred Dividend
Interest Expense Portion of Rental Expense

Total Fixed Charges
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Deficiency

Three Months Ended

Fiscal Year Ended

Exhibit 12

3/31/200€

3/31/200E

2005

2004

2003

2002

2001

$ (168 $ (78 $ (702 $ (477) $ (746) $ (991) $ (4,351
— — — — 3) (13) (16)

150 114 530 485 567 560 646

17 17 68 68 68 68 68

9 6 25 29 31 20 19

$ 8 $ 59 $ (799 $ 105 $ (83 $ (356 $ (3,639
$ 150 $ 114 $ 530 $ 485 $ 567 $ 560 $ 703
9 6 25 29 31 20 19

$ 159 $ 120 $ 555 $ 514 $ 598 $ 580 $ 722
$ (151) $  (61) $ (634 $ (409) $ (681) $ (936) $ (4,356
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(unaudited)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions, except per share data 2006 2005 2006 2005
Revenue
Communication: $ 819 $ 371 $ 1622 $ 881
Coal mining 16 19 34 36
Total revenue 835 390 1,657 917
Costs and Expense
Communication: 385 110 781 226
Coal mining 14 9 30 22
Total cost of revenue 399 119 811 248
Depreciation and amortizatic 164 162 351 328
Selling, general and administrati 283 180 559 371
Restructuring and impairment charges 7 4 11 19
Total costs and expenses 853 465 1,732 966
Operating Income (Los! (18) (75) (75) (49)
Other Income (Expense
Interest incomi 16 10 25 14
Interest expens (170) (139) (320) (253)
Other, net (51) 10 (20) 16
Total other income (expense) (205) (119) (315) (223
Loss from Continuing Operations Before Income (223) (194) (390) (272)
Income Tax Expense (1) (2) — (2)
Loss from Continuing Operations (224) (196) (390) (274)
Income from Discontinued Operations 23 8 21 9
Net Loss $ (201) $ (189) (369) $ (2695

Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Sh
Loss from Continuing Operatiol

$ (0.25 $ (0.28
Income from Discontinued Operations .02 .01

(0.45) $ (0.39)
02 01

Net Loss $ (0.23) $ (0.27)

(0.43) $ (0.39)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(unaudited)
June 30, December 31

(dollars in millions, except share amounts 2006 2005
Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivale $ 1571 $ 379

Marketable securitie 507 176

Restricted cash and securit 35 34

Receivables, less allowances of $19 and $17, résphc 376 392

Current assets of discontinued operati 644 597

Other 119 92
Total Current Assets 3,252 1,67C
Property, Plant and Equipment, | 5,52¢ 5,632
Marketable Securitie — 234
Restricted Cash and Securit 90 75
Goodwill and Other Intangibles, n 490 291
Noncurrent Assets of Discontinued Operati 265 264
Other Assets, net 125 111
Total Assets $ 9,751 $ 8,277
Liabilities and Stockholde’ Deficit
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 375 % 367

Current portion of lon-term debt 462 —

Accrued payroll and employee bene 65 79

Accrued interes 153 102

Deferred revenu 177 199

Current Liabilities of Discontinued Operatio 560 539

Other 127 137
Total Current Liabilities 1,91¢ 1,42%
Long-Term Debt, less current portit 6,55¢ 6,023
Deferred Revenu 736 737
Other Liabilities 571 570
Commitments and Contingenci
Stockholder' Deficit:

Preferred Stock, $.01 par value authorized 10,@@shares: no shares outstanc — —

Common Stock, $.01 par value, authorized 2,2500@@0shares: 1,000,173,489 outstanding in 2006 and

817,767,818 outstanding in 20 10 8

Additional paic-in capital 8,54E 7,75¢

Accumulated other comprehensive |i (24) (51)

Accumulated deficit (8,564) (8,192)
Total Stockholders’ Deficit (33) (476)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit $ 9,751 $ 8,277

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(unaudited)

(dollars in millions)

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2006 2005

Cash Flows from Operating Activitie
Net Loss
Income from discontinued operations
Loss from continuing operations
Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing opieres to net cash provided by (used in) operatuityities of
continuing operations
Depreciation and amortizatic
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment ghdrasset
Non-cash compensation expense attributable to stockda
Deferred revenu
Loss on extinguishment of debt, 1
Non-cash impairment expens
Amortization of debt issuance co:
Accreted interest on lo-term debt discour
Accrued interest on loi-term debt
Changes in working capital items net of amountsiaed:
Receivable!
Other current asse
Payable:
Other current liabilitie
Other
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activité€ontinuing Operation

Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Capital expenditure
Advances to discontinued operations,
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketaloigrities
Purchases of marketable securi
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash and sexynite:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipnzemt other asse
Investments and acquisitions
Net Cash Used in Investing Activitis

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.

$(369) $ (265)
(21 ©)
(390) ~ (274)

351 328
(4) 3)
34 19

(29)  (136)
28 —

7 4
7 8
20 23
52 35
37 (32)

(15) (31)
— 23

(45) (22)
— (12)
53 (70)

(131)  (140)

2 (8)
5 150
(98) (649
(12) 1
2 4
82 _ (10)

$(314) $ (651)




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

(dollars in millions)

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2006 2005

Cash Flows from Financing Activitie
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance c
Refinancing costs and payments on -term debt, including current portion (net of regeed cash
Equity offering

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activiti

Discontinued Operations (Revise
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued opagadictivities
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Net cash used in financing activiti
Net effect of exchange rates on cash and cashagquie
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Discontinued Opens

Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equigalen
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Pe
Cash attributable to continuing operati
Cash attributable to discontinued operations

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Pel
Cash attributable to continuing operations
Cash attributable to discontinued operations

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informati
Cash interest pai
Income taxes pai
Noncash Investing and Financing Activit
Common stock issued for acquisitic
Amendment and restatement of $730 million creditlifs
Long-term debt issued in exchange transac
Long-term debt retired in exchange transac
Use of restricted securities to repay I-term debr

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.

$ 1,007 $ 877
(104) (130)
543 —

1,44€ 747
20 (7)

(5) 2

1) 4)

14 9)

7 (12)

1,20€ 5
379 338

73 105

$ 1571 $ 352

$ 241 $ 187

2 1

$ 197 $ —
730 —

619 —

692 —

— 13




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Changes in StockholderBeficit
For the six months ended June 30, 2006

(unaudited)
Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated

(dollars in millions) Stock Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Total
Balances at December 31, 2( $ 8 $ 7,75¢ % (51 $ (8,192) $ (476)

Adjustment for EITF No. 04-6 (3) (3)
Adjusted balance at December 31, 2005 8 7,75¢ (51) (8,19%) (479
Common Stock

Issuances, net of offering co 2 541 — — 543

Stock plan grant — 28 — — 28

Shareworks pla — 12 — — 12

401(k) plan — 8 — — 8

Acquisitions — 197 — — 197
Net Loss — — — (369) (369)
Other Comprehensive Income — — 27 — 27
Balances at June 30, 2006 $ 10 $ 8,64t $ (24) 3 (8,564 $ (33)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

(unaudited)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2006 2005
Net Loss $ (201) $ (188 $ (369 $ (265
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before 1
Foreign currency translation income (loss 23 (35) 30 (64)
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on marketablétygecurities and other arising during
period 4) 1) (2) 1)
Reclassification adjustments for (income) lossebutted in net loss (1) (2) (1) 2
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before 18 (38) 27 (63)
Income Tax Benefit Related to Items of Other Corhpresive Income (L0oSS) — — — —
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Taxes 18 (38) 27 (63)
Comprehensive Loss $ (183) $ (226) $ (342 $ (328

SUPPLEMENTARY STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT INFORMATION

(unaudited)

Net Foreign

Currency

Translation
(dollars in millions) Adjustment Other Total
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Ic
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 19 $ 32) $ (52)

Change 30 27

Balance at June 30, 2006 $ 11 (35 $ (24)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsients.




LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements include tu@ants of Level 3 Communications, Inc. and subsiés (the “Company” or “Level 3") in
which it has control. The Company is engaged iemntses primarily related to communications anal coining. Fifty-percent-owned
mining joint ventures are consolidated on a pra katsis. All significant intercompany accounts radsactions have been eliminated.

The Company completed its acquisition of Progrededom, LLC (“Progress Telecom”) on March 20, 208 its acquisition of ICG
Communications, Inc. (“ICG Communications”) on M2y, 2006. The Progress Telecom and ICG Communitatiesults of operations,
cash flows and financial position are includedhie tonsolidated financial statements from the re8medates of their acquisition (See Note
2).

On December 23, 2005, Level 3 acquired WilTel Comitations Group, LLC and its operating subsidia(i®gilTel”). The financial
position, results of operations and cash flowshattable to WilTel are included in the consolidafedncial statements from the date of
acquisition (See Note 2).

On September 7, 2006, Level 3 sold Software Spegthoc. (“Software Spectrum”), the Company’s softeveeseller business, to Insight
Enterprises, Inc. (“Insight Enterprises”). On Noeer 30, 2005, Level 3 sold JStructure, LLC (“(i )Structure”), Level 3's wholly-owned

IT infrastructure management outsourcing subsidiafyfocrossing, Inc. (“Infocrossing”). These tlwasinesses comprised Level 3's
information services segment. The results of ajmers, financial position and cash flows for thdt®&are Spectrum andi()Structure
businesses have been classified as discontinuedtmpes in the consolidated financial statementsafoperiods presented in this report (See
Note 3).

The consolidated balance sheet of Level 3 Commtioits; Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2@@50deen taken from the Company’s
audited balance sheet as of that date. All ofhantial statements contained herein are unauditddin the opinion of management, contain
all adjustments (consisting only of normal recugraccruals) necessary for a fair presentationnairftial position, results of operations and
cash flows for the periods presented. The Comaagtounting policies and certain other disclosaresset forth in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements contained inGbmpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as revisebftect Software Spectrum as
discontinued operations, for the year ended DeceBhe2005. These financial statements shoulathd in conjunction with the Company’s
audited consolidated financial statements and rtbrgto. The preparation of the consolidatednfiie statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdéthBtates requires management to make estimatessanmptions that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure oftiogrent assets and liabilities and the reporteduarhof revenue and expenses during the
reported period. Actual results could differ fréimese estimates.

The results of operations for the three and sixtmperiods ended June 30, 2006 are not necessatibative of the results expected for the
full year.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123Raf&Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS No.R 2&quires that
compensation cost relating to share-based paymamdactions be recognized in the financial statésriessed on the fair value of equity or
liability instruments issued. The U.S. Securitiad &xchange Commission extended the effective @fa®-AS No. 123R such that the
Company was first required to adopt SFAS No. 128grning January 1, 2006. The adoption of SFASI®28R did not have a material
effect on the Company’s financial position or réswalf operations.




Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 04-6, “Acdngribr Stripping Costs Incurred during Productiorthe Mining Industry” (“EITF No.
04-6") establishes appropriate accounting for ptrig costs incurred during the production phaseisuedfective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2005. EITF No. 04-6 conclutias stripping costs incurred during the producpibase of a mine are variable production
costs that should be included in the costs ofrikientory produced during the period that the siniggosts are incurred. EITF No. 04-6
further defines inventory produced as mineral tieet been extracted. As a result, stripping cesidad to exposed, but not extracted mineral
must be expensed as incurred rather than defentddhe mineral is extracted. The Company’s aoaling business had previously deferred
stripping costs and amortized these costs ovepehied in which the underlying coal was mined. Twmpany’s adoption of EITF No. 04-6
required it to adjust by $3 million beginning retad earnings (accumulated deficit) for the amotiprepaid stripping costs previously
deferred as of January 1, 2006.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation N¢.ABcounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — Arterpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109" (“FIN No. 48"). FIN No. 48 clarifies the accoung for uncertainty in income taxes recognizednreaterprise’s financial
statements in accordance with FASB Statement N@. “Ktcounting for Income Taxes.” FIN No. 48 als@scribes a recognition threshold
and measurement attribute for the financial statémezognition and measurement of a tax positikartaor expected to be taken in a tax
return that results in a tax benefit. AdditionalN No. 48 provides guidance on de-recognitioepme statement classification of interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disaie, and transition. This interpretation is effee for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. The Company is currently etialgiahe effect that the application of FIN No. w8l have on its consolidated results of
operations and financial condition, but given itsrent net operating losses and operating losgfcawards, does not expect a significant
effect on its results of operations or financiahdition as a result of adopting FIN No. 48.

In June 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus oargimg Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 0630w Taxes Collected from
Customers and Remitted to Governmental AuthorBiesuld Be Presented in the Income Statement” (“ENl6F06-3"). The scope of

EITF No. 06-3 includes any tax assessed by a govemtal authority that is directly imposed on a rmeproducing transaction between a
seller and a customer and may include, but isimitdd to, sales, use, value added, Universal 8ervund (“USF”) contributions and some
excise taxes. The Task Force affirmed its conctuiiat entities should present these taxes imti@ne statement on either a gross or a net
basis, based on their accounting policy, which &hbe disclosed pursuant to APB Opinion No. 22 stihdsure of Accounting Policies.” If
such taxes are significant, and are presentedgnass basis, the amounts of those taxes shouldtiesed. The consensus on EITF No. 06-3
will be effective for interim and annual reportipgriods beginning after December 15, 2006. The @&my currently records USF
contributions on a gross basis in its consolidatatements of operations, but records sales, atgg added and excise taxes billed to its
customers on a net basis in its consolidated s&atenof operations. The Company does not expatthie effect of adopting EITF No. 06-3
will be significant to its reported revenue, opargincome and net earnings or loss, but is culyr&valuating the effect.

Reclassifications

Certain current and prior year amounts have bedagsified to conform to the September 30, 2006@rtion as filed in the Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended September 30, 2006.

2. Acquisitions

In 2006, the Company embarked on a strategy torekjia presence in metropolitan markets. Theegsatvill allow the Company to
terminate traffic over its owned facilities rathban paying third parties to terminate the traffiche expansion into new metro markets should
also provide additional opportunities to sell seegito bandwidth intensive businesses on the Coyrgpaational and international networks.

In order to expedite the expansion of its metrdrmss, Level 3 acquired ICG Communications, Pragiedecom, TelCove, Inc. (“TelCove”)
and Looking Glass Networks Holding Co., Inc. (“Laad Glass”) in 2006.




ICG Communications

On May 31, 2006, Level 3 acquired all of the stoEkCG Communications Inc., a privately held Coltwebased telecommunications
company, from MCCC ICG Holdings, LLC excluding @éntassets and liabilities. Under the terms ofpihichase agreement dated April 14,
2006, Level 3 purchased ICG Communications forggregate consideration consisting of approxima2élynillion shares of Level 3
common stock, valued at $131 million, and approxatya$45 million in cash. The Company also incdreests of less than $1 million
related to the transaction. Working capital anceottontractual matters resulted in the paymentiditnal consideration of approximately
$1 million in the third quarter of 2006. The casimsideration at closing was increased from theiptesly disclosed amount of $36 million to
reflect an improvement in ICG Communications’ wokicapital.

Level 3 entered into certain transactions with IC@nmunications prior to the acquisition of ICG Coumications by Level 3, whereby Le

3 received cash for communications services torbeigied in the future and which was originally rgo@ed as deferred revenue. As a result
of the acquisition, Level 3 can no longer amorttas deferred revenue into earnings and, accorgimgtuced the purchase price applied to
the net assets acquired in the ICG Communicatiamsaction by $1 million, the amount of the unaied deferred revenue balance on May
31, 2006.

ICG Communications primarily provides transportaiil voice services to wireline and wireless cesrilternet service providers and
enterprise customers. ICG Communications’ netwak imore than 2,000 metro and regional fiber mileSalorado and Ohio and includes
approximately 500 points of presence. ICG Commuituna serves more than 1,600 customers.

Progress Telecom

On March 20, 2006, Level 3 completed its acquisitid all of the membership interests of Progrededan from PT Holding Company LLC
(“PT Holding”) excluding certain specified assetsldiabilities of Progress Telecom. Progress Taieevas owned by PT Holding which is
jointly owned by Progress Energy, Inc. and OdysBelgcorp, Inc. Under the terms of the purchaseegent dated January 25, 2006, L¢

3 purchased Progress Telecom for an aggregategaegrice consisting of approximately $69 milliarcash and approximately 20 million
shares of Level 3 common stock, valued at $66 onilliThe purchase price was subsequently reduc&@ byillion for working capital and
other contractual matters. The Company receivgdchpat of the $2 million adjustment in July 2006heTCompany also incurred costs of
approximately $1 million related to the transaction

Level 3 entered into certain transactions with Resg Telecom prior to the acquisition of Progresiedom by Level 3, whereby Level 3
received cash for communications services to beiged in the future and which was originally reczgul as deferred revenue. As a resu
the acquisition, Level 3 can no longer amortize tteéferred revenue into earnings and, accordinmgtiyced the purchase price applied to the
net assets acquired in the Progress Telecom trigmséy $4 million, the amount of the unamortizexfeired revenue balance on March 20,
2006.

Progress Telecom is a regional wholesale netwarkices company based in St. Petersburg, Floridagress Telecoms’network spans 9,0l
miles, includes 29 metro networks and connectatirmational cable landings in south Florida andribile switching centers in the
southeastern region of the United States. Prodrelesom serves approximately 200 customers witfrafeeant concentration of
international and wireless carrier customers.
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WilTel

On December 23, 2005, the Company acquired WilfbehfLeucadia National Corporation and its subsidg(together “Leucadia”). The
consideration paid consisted of approximately $38@0on in cash, plus $100 million in cash to refld.eucadia’s having complied with its
obligation to leave that amount of cash in WilTaid 115 million shares of newly issued Level 3 cammtock (“Shares”), valued at $313
million. The Company also incurred approximateRyrsillion of costs related to this transaction.eTash purchase price was subject to post
closing adjustments based on actual working cagitdlother contractual items as of the closing.dateMarch, 2006, Leucadia and Level 3
agreed that the purchase price for WilTel shoulttekese by approximately $27 million as a resulvofking capital and other contractual
post-closing adjustments. Level 3 received payroéttie $27 million adjustment in April 2006.

The preliminary valuation indicated that the faatue of the WilTel assets acquired exceeded tla adthe purchase price paid and the
liabilities assumed in the transaction. As a resé excess value was applied against the faievaf the property, plant and equipment
obtained in the transaction. The $27 million pdsting adjustment resulted in an additional desgeéa property, plant and equipment in the
first quarter of 2006.

In accordance with the terms of a registrationtsgigreement between Level 3 and Leucadia datedriiser 23, 2005, Level 3 filed a
registration statement covering the Shares, whidaime effective on December 27, 2005. Duringitseduarter of 2006, Leucadia sold all
of the Shares under the registration statement.

Pro Forma Financial Information

The following is unaudited pro forma financial imfeation of the Company assuming the WilTel, ProgifEslecom and ICG Communicatic
transactions occurred at the beginning of the perfmesented

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions, except per share data 2006 2005 2006 2005
Revenue $ 848 $ 850 $ 1,70¢ $ 1,832
Loss from Continuing Operations $ (2190 $ (159 $ (376) $ (210
Income from Discontinued Operations $ 23 $ 8 $ 21 $ 9
Net Loss $ (196) $ (151) $ (355 $ (201)
Per Share
Loss from continuing operations $ (029 $ (0.19 $ (0.42) $ (0.25)
Net loss $ (022 $ (0.18) $ (040 $ (0.29
Pro Forma Weighted Average Shares Outstandindn¢asiands) 898,281 856,20« 881,931 853,55¢

The fair value of the assets acquired and theliligsiassumed in the ICG Communications and Pssgf@lecom transactions are based upon
preliminary valuations and are subject to changetan post-closing purchase price adjustmentslagages to the integration plans of the
combined business. The fair value of assets amgjaind liabilities assumed in the WilTel transati®based upon a preliminary valuation as
of the acquisition date after reflecting other caatual purchase price adjustments and is suljestidnge due to integration plans. The
Company will continue to evaluate assets acquinetliabilities assumed based on the valuation ambnd integration efforts for the

WilTel, Progress Telecom and ICG Communicationsdaations. The estimated fair value of assetsieemjand liabilities assumed for the
ICG Communications, Progress Telecom and WilTeldaations are as follows.
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ICG Progress

(dollars in millions) Communications Telecom WilTel
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 6 $ — 3 128
Accounts receivabl 7 3 257
Other current asse 2 2 20
Property, plant and equipment, | 10 77 629
Goodwill 118 30 —
Identifiable intangible asse 49 36 152
Other assets 4 — 26
Total Assets 196 148 1,212
Liabilities:
Accounts payabl 6 1 204
Accrued payrol 2 1 29
Other current liabilitie: 6 5 67
Current portion of capital leas — 1 —
Capital lease 2 8 —
Deferred revenu— ICG/Progress/WilTe 2 2 41
Deferred revenu- Level 3 (1) 4) (2)
Other liabilities 3 — 90
Total Liabilities 20 14 429
Purchase Price $ 176 $ 134 $ 783

TelCove Acquisition

On July 24, 2006, Level 3 completed the acquisitibfelCove, a privately held Pennsylvania-baséttanmunications company. Under
terms of the agreement, Level 3 paid $446 millimeash and issued approximately 150 million shafégvel 3 common stock. In addition,
Level 3 repaid $132 million of TelCove debt and@iocgd $13 million in capital leases in the trangatt Also, the Company paid third party
costs of approximately $15 million related to trensaction, which included certain costs incurred ®lCove.

TelCove is a leading facilities-based provider @trapolitan and regional communications servicekitting transport, Internet access and
voice services. TelCove’'s network has more thaO@2|ocal and long haul route miles serving 70 ratrlacross the eastern United States
with approximately 4,000 buildings on net.

Looking Glass Acquisition
On August 2, 2006, Level 3 completed the acquisitibLooking Glass, a privately held lllinois-basgetecommunications company.

The consideration paid by Level 3 consisted of appnately $9 million in cash and approximately 2illion shares of Level 3 common
stock. In addition, at the closing, Level 3 repajgbroximately $67 million of Looking Glass lialidis. The transaction purchase price is not
subject to any post-closing adjustments.

Concurrently with the closing, Level 3 entered iateegistration rights agreement with respect ¢ostiares of Level 3 common stock issue
the security holders of Looking Glass in the tratisa. Pursuant to the registration rights agrestireevel 3 filed a registration statement on
August 8, 2006, that covers the shares of LevaBroon stock issued to the Looking Glass securitgidrs in the transaction. The
registration statement became effective autométicglon filing, allowing Looking Glass security lagrs to sell the shares of Level 3
common stock they receive without any limitations.

Looking Glass provides data transport servicesutiog SONET/SDH, Wavelength and Ethernet as wetlaak fiber and carrier-neutral
collocation. Looking Glass’ network includes approately 2,000 route miles serving 14 major metrokats,
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with lit fiber connectivity to approximately 215 itdings. Looking Glass also has dark fiber connéigtito approximately 250 additional
buildings.

3 . Discontinued Operations
Software Spectrum

On September 7, 2006, Level 3 sold Software Spectoulnsight Enterprises, a leading provider obmifation technology products and
services. In connection with the transaction, IL@veeceived total proceeds of $353 million in casginsisting of a base purchase price of
$287 million and a working capital adjustment opapximately $66 million. The purchase price isjeabto working capital and certain otl
post-closing adjustments. Level 3 recognized ari®n gain on the transaction in the third qeamf 2006. The results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows for Software &pem have been classified as discontinued ope&siinthe consolidated financial
statements for all periods presented in this report

The following is the summarized results of operaiof the Software Spectrum business for the thnekesix month periods ended June 30,
2006 and 2005:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2006 2005

Revenue! $ 695 $ 504 $ 1,14C $ 970
Costs and Expense

Cost of revenu 627 457 1,032 886
Depreciation and amortizatic 3 2 6 5
Selling, general and administrative 43 35 81 68
Total costs and expenses 673 494 1,11¢ 959
Income from operations 22 10 21 11
Total Other Income (Expens 3 (1) 3 (1)
Income Tax Expense (2) (1) (3) (1)
Net Earnings $ 23 $ 8 ¢ 21 $ 9
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The following is summarized balance sheet infororafor Software Spectrum as of June 30, 2006 arwkiDber 31, 2005:

December 31

June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2006 2005
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 87 $ 73
Receivable: 492 431
Other 65 93
Total Current Assets 644 597
Property, Plant and Equipment, | 8 6
Goodwill and Other Intangibles, n 238 242
Other Assets, net 19 16
Total Assets $ 909 $ 861
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 459 % 420
Accrued payroll and employee bene 17 17
Deferred revenu 43 67
Other 41 35
Total Current Liabilities 560 539
Deferred Revenu 10 11
Other Liabilities 16 12
Total Liabilities 586 562
Net Assets $ 323 % 299

(1 )Structure

On November 30, 2005, Level 3 sold)Structure to Infocrossing, Inc. for proceeds db $&llion, which consisted of $82 million in cashct
$3 million of Infocrossing common stock. The casinghase price is subject to post-closing adjustmbased on actual working capital as of
the closing date. The Company and Infocrossingraetiee process of completing the working capitjuatments. Level 3 recognized a $49
million gain on the transaction in the fourth qeamf 2005.

The following is the summarized results of operagiof the ( )Structure business for the three and six montde@dune 30, 2005.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(dollars in millions) June 30, 200¢ June 30, 200¢
Revenue $ 16 $ 33
Costs and Expense
Cost of revenu 12 25
Depreciation and amortizatic 2 4
Selling, general and administrative 2 4
Total costs and expenses 16 33
Loss from Discontinued Operations $ —  $ —
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4 . Restructuring Charges

In 2006, the Company initiated workforce reductitimst are expected to affect approximately 750 egg#s in its North American
communications business related to the integratfdilTel, Progress Telecom and ICG Communicatiots Level 3's operations. The
accounting treatment for the severance costs isratgmt on whether those individuals affected amaéo employees of the acquired
companies or Level 3 employees. The estimateda@ewve costs earned by former WilTel, Progress Betear ICG Communications
employees as of the acquisition date are includeall&@bility in the balance sheet as of the adtjoisdate. The Company expects to incur
approximately $23 million of severance and relatests for former WilTel, Progress Telecom and IC@n@hunications employees. As of
June 30, 2006, the Company paid $15 million of savee and related costs for these employees. Seeecasts attributable to Level 3
employees are recorded as a restructuring chartpe istatement of operations once the employeeasatifeed that their position will be
eliminated and the severance arrangements are coitgied to the employee.

As of June 30, 2006, the Company had notified wniteated approximately 624 employees (204 for L&vahd 420 for acquired businesses)
pursuant to these activities. The Company had decbapproximately $4 million in restructuring chesdor affected Level 3 employees. As
of June 30, 2006, the Company had remaining olidigatof less than $1 million for those Level 3 eaygles terminated or notified. The
workforce reduction attributable to the WilTel, Bress Telecom and ICG Communications integratitivities are expected to be
substantially complete by the end of 2006.

In the first quarter of 2005, the Company initiatediorkforce reduction of approximately 470 empksy/én its North American and European
communications business. As a result of the redactievel 3 incurred severance and related chafy@gproximately $15 million in the first
quarter of 2005. As of September 30, 2005, the fizomw had satisfied its obligations associated thighfirst quarter of 2005 workforce
reduction.

A summary of the restructuring charges and relattiyity follows:

Severance and Relate: Facilities Related
Number of
Employees Amount Amount
(in millions) (in millions)

Balance December 31, 20 — 3 — 3 16
2005 Charge 472 15 1)
2005 Payments (472) (15) 3)
Balance December 31, 2005 — — 12
2006 Charge 204 4 —
2006 Payments (195) 4) (1)
Balance June 30, 2006 9 $ — % 11

Non-cash impairment charges were $4 million and $Tanilfor the three and six months ended June 30620n the second quarter of 2006,
Level 3 recognized $4 million of non-cash impairmemarges primarily related to excess land of tramunications business held for sale in
Germany. This charge resulted from the differdmeteveen the recorded carrying value and the estimatrket value of the land. In
addition, the Company recognized $3 million of reash impairment charges in the first quarter of62@t resulted from the decision to
terminate projects for certain voice services agrtiain information technology projects in the conmications business. These projects have
identifiable costs which Level 3 can separatelyiuate for impairment. The costs incurred for thesmgects, including capitalized labor, wi
impaired as the carrying value of these projecteeded their estimated fair value.

Non-cash impairment charges were $4 million for thepsel quarter of 2005 and resulted from the decigiderminate projects for certain
Softswitch related products in the communicationsitiess. The costs incurred for these projeatydimg capitalized operating expenses,
were impaired as the carrying value of these ptsjexceeded their estimated fair value.

Level 3 continues to periodically conduct comprediiemreviews of the long-lived assets of its bussas, specifically communication assets

deployed along its intercity network and in itseyady facilities. It is possible that assets maydeatified as impaired and impairment
charges may be recorded to reflect the realizadlgevof these assets in future periods.
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5. Termination Revenue

Termination revenue is recognized when a custorisepdnects service prior to the end of the confpaciod, for which Level 3 had
previously received consideration and for whicheraye recognition was deferred. Termination revésagso recognized when customers
make termination penalty payments to Level 3 tdesebntractually committed purchase amounts thatctistomer no longer expects to meet
or when a customer and Level 3 renegotiate a contrader which Level 3 is no longer obligated toyide services for consideration
previously received and for which revenue recognitias been deferred. Termination revenue is treg@n the same manner as the original
service provided, and amounted to $3 million fothbthe three and six month periods ended June(@IH and $2 million and $131 million
during the three and six months ended June 30,,288pectively. The termination revenue in 2008rimarily attributable to the following
two transactions:

In February 2005, France Telecom Long Distance USA; (“France Telecom”) and Level 3 finalized arregment to terminate a dark fiber
agreement signed in 2000. Under the terms of theeagent France Telecom returned the fiber to L8v€lash received for the fiber under
original agreement was deferred and was being &edrto revenue over the 20-year term of the agee¢nievel 3 has no further service
obligations with respect to the fiber and theref@eognized approximately $40 million of unamortizieferred revenue as non-cash
termination revenue in the first quarter of 2005.

In March 2005, Level 3 entered into an agreemetit @0networks (USA) Inc. (“360networks”) in whibloth parties agreed to terminate a
20 year Indefeasible Right of Use (“IRU”) agreeméstider the new agreement, 360networks returneddhefiber originally provided by
Level 3. Under the original IRU agreement signe@@00, the cash received by Level 3 was deferrddnaas being amortized to revenue o
the 20-year term of the agreement. As a resuhisfttansaction, Level 3 recognized the unamortdefdrred revenue of approximately

$86 million as non-cash termination revenue infitse quarter of 2005.

6. Loss Per Share

The Company had a loss from continuing operationshfe three and six months ended June 30, 200@@0 Therefore, the dilutive effect
of the approximately 480 million and 417 millionashks issuable pursuant to convertible debt seesidti June 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, have not been included in the contjmurtaf diluted loss per share because their incfusiould have been anti-dilutive to the
computation. In addition, the dilutive effect bEtapproximately 52 million and 59 million optiomsjtperform stock options, restricted stock
units and warrants outstanding at June 30, 200®6a608, respectively, have not been included inrctiraputation of diluted loss per share
because their inclusion would have been anti-diuto the computation.

The following details the loss per share calculaifor the three and six months ended June 30, 200&005 (dollars in millions, except per
share data):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Loss from Continuing Operatiol $ (229 $ (196 $ (390 $ (279
Income from Discontinued Operations 23 8 21 9
Net Loss $ (201) $ (188 $ (369 $ (265
Total Number of Weighted Average Shares Outstandgggl to Compute Basic and
Dilutive Loss Per Share (in thousan 881,15 695,53 851,70( 692,88¢
Income (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock (Basidzihded):
Loss from Continuing Operatiol $ (025 $ (028 $ (045 $ (0.39
Income from Discontinued Operations 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.01
Net Loss $ (023 $ (027 $ (043 $ (0.39
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7. Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2006 and December 31,28@5as follows (dollars in millions):

Communications Coal Total
June 30, 200¢
Accounts Receivabl— Trade $ 388 $ 7 $ 395
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (19) — (19)
$ 369 $ 7 $ 376
December 31, 2005
Accounts Receivabl— Trade $ 400 $ 9 3 409
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 17 — )
$ 383 $ 9 $ 392

The Company recognized bad debt expense in sefjangral and administrative expenses of less thanilion for each of the three and six
months ended June 30, 2006, respectively, andHass$1 million for each of the three and six merghded June 30, 2005, respectively.
Level 3 received proceeds for amounts previousgnued uncollectible of less than $1 million for ealthe three and six months ended June
30, 2006, respectively, and less than $1 milliod $i million for the three and six month periodsleh June 30, 2005, respectively. The
Company increased accounts receivable and allowfanc®ubtful accounts by approximately $2 millifam the six months ended June 30,
2006, primarily due to the customers acquired Wil Tel acquisition. The Company decreased actsowateivable and allowance for
doubtful accounts by approximately $2 million foetsix month period ended June 30, 2005 for preslyaeserved amounts the Company
deemed as uncollectible.

8. Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Costs associated directly with expansions and irgrents to the network and customer installatiortdiiding employee related costs, have
been capitalized. The Company generally capitalipsts associated with network construction, piomiag of services and software
development. Capitalized labor and related casts@ated with employees and contract labor workimgapital projects were approximat
$16 million and $26 million for the three and sixmnths ended June 30, 2006, respectively. Inclimedpitalized labor and related costs
were less than $1 million and $1 million of capizetl non-cash compensation costs related to oatper$tock options, restricted stock and
warrants for the three and six months ended Jun2@®, respectively. Capitalized labor and relatests associated with employees and
contract labor working on capital projects wereragpnately $11 million and $23 million for the tlr&nd six months ended June 30, 2005,
respectively. Included in capitalized labor anlédted costs were less than $1 million and $1 mmllid capitalized non-cash compensation
costs related to outperform stock options, regtdctock and warrants for the three and six maertided June 30, 2005, respectively.

The Company continues to develop business suppsidras required for its business. The externattests of software, materials and
services, payroll and payroll related expensegfioployees directly associated with the projectirediwhen developing the business support
systems are capitalized and included in the cagat@icosts above. Upon completion of a projectiobed cost of the business support system
is amortized over an estimated useful life of thyears.

In the second quarter of 2006, Level 3 recordefildnmillion decrease in property, plant and equipnaad an $11 million increase in
customer lists to reflect their estimated valuesblasn a further review of the purchase price atloodor the Progress Telecom transaction.
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During the second quarter of 2006, Level 3 deteeahithat the period the Company expects to use&issirgg fiber is longer than the
remaining useful life as originally estimated. @&sesult, the Company extended the depreciablefifies existing fiber from 7 years to 12
years. This change in estimate, effected as ol Ap2006, was accounted for prospectively, incadance with SFAS No. 15“Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections - A Replacement d& ®pinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3", anduoedl depreciation expense by
$18 million in the second quarter of 2006. In &ddi this change in estimate reduced net loss frontinuing operations and net loss by $18
million, or approximately $0.02 cents per share.

Depreciation expense was $149 million and $316enilfor the three and six months ended June 306,2@3pectively. Depreciation expense
was $147 million and $297 million for the three aindmonths ended June 30, 2005, respectively.

9. Goodwill and Other Intangibles, net

Goodwill and Other Intangibles, net at June 30,6280d December 31, 2005 were as follows (dollarsillions):

Other

Goodwill Intangibles
June 30, 2006
360networks $ — % 3
Sprint — 11
ICG — —
Telverse — 13
Genuity — 18
WilTel — 143
Progress Telecol 30 35
ICG Communication 118 49
McLeod 40 —
XCOM 30 —

$ 218 $ 272

December 31, 200!

360networks $ — % 4
Sprint — 16
ICG — 4
Telverse — 16
Genuity — 30
WilTel — 151
McLeod 40 —
XCOM 30 —

$ 70 $ 221

The Company completed the acquisition of ICG Comications on May 31, 2006. A preliminary valuatioithe assets acquired indicated a
value of $49 million for identifiable intangible sets with a life of 15 years.

On March 20, 2006, Level 3 completed the acquisitibProgress Telecom. A preliminary valuationthaf assets acquired resulted in a value
of $25 million for customer-related intangible asseith an 8 year life. In the second quarter@d&, Level 3 adjusted the fair value of the
customer-related intangible assets to $36 millioch ieduced the value of property, plant and equipirtee$77 million based on an updated
valuation of the assets acquired and liabilitiegiaged in the transaction.

The preliminary purchase price valuations for PesgrTelecom and ICG Communications indicated tieaptirchase price exceeded the fair
value of the assets acquired and liabilities assuoyeb30 million and $118 million, respectively.
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Gooduwill is assessed at least annually for impairnire accordance with SFAS No. 142, beginning wligh first anniversary of the acquisition
and December 31 of each year thereafter. As af 3002006, the Company has not recorded impairexgenses for the goodwill or
intangible assets identified in the previous table.

Amortization expense was $15 million and $35 millior the three and six months ended June 30, 2@6fectively. Amortization expense
was $15 million and $31 million for the three amdrmonths ended June 30, 2005, respectively.

The amortization expense related to intangibletagserently recorded on the Company’s books fehe# the five succeeding years is
estimated to be the following for the years endedddnber 31: 2006-$69 million; 2007-$43 million; 86829 million; 2009-$25 million,
2010-$25 million and thereafter-$89 million.

10. Long-Term Debt

At June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, long-teziph was as follows:

June 30, December 31

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005
Senior Secured Term Loan (11.82% due 2( $ 730 $ 730
Senior Notes (9.125% due 20( 398 954
Senior Notes (11.0% due 20(C 78 132
Senior Discount Notes (10.5% due 20 62 144
Senior Euro Notes (10.75% due 20 62 59
Convertible Senior Notes (2.875% due 20 374 374
Senior Discount Notes (12.875% due 20 488 488
Senior Euro Notes (11.25% due 20 131 123
Senior Notes (11.25% due 20! 96 96
Senior Notes (11.5% due 201 692 —
Fair value adjustment on Senior No (65) —
Senior Notes (10.75% due 20! 500 500
Floating Rate Senior Notes (11.42% due 2( 150 —
Issue discount on Floating Rate Senior N (5) —
Convertible Senior Notes (5.25% due 20 345 345
Convertible Senior Notes (10.0% due 20 880 880
Convertible Senior Notes (3.5% due 20 335 —
Senior Notes (12.25% due 20! 550 —
Issue discount on Senior Nof (2) —
Convertible Senior Discount Notes (9.0% due 2( 263 252
Convertible Subordinated Notes (6.0% due 2( 362 362
Convertible Subordinated Notes (6.0% due 2( 514 514
CBRE Commercial Mortgage (6.86% due 20 70 70
Capital Lease 11 —
Other 1 —
7,02C 6,025
Less current portion (462) —

$ 6,55¢ $ 6,025

The debt instruments above contain certain findreid non-financial covenants with which the Comphalieves it is in full compliance as
of June 30, 2006.

No interest expense or amortized debt issuance eese capitalized to property, plant and equipri@nthe six months ended June 30, 2
and June 30, 2005.
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3.5% Convertible Senior Notes due 2012

On June 13, 2006 Level 3 Communications, Inc. kexk$326 million of net proceeds, after giving effo offering expenses, from a public
offering of $335 million aggregate principal amouwiiits 3.5% Convertible Senior Notes due 20125%8.Convertible Senior Notes”). The
3.5% Convertible Senior Notes were priced at 100%h@ principal amount. The notes are senior umsetobligations of the Company,
ranking equal in right of payment with all the Ccemng’s existing and future unsubordinated indebtesnd he 3.5% Convertible Senior
Notes will mature on June 15, 2012. Interest enntbites will be payable on June 15 and Decembef &&ch year, beginning on Decem
15, 2006.

At any time before the close of business on Jun@52, the 3.5% Convertible Senior Notes are cuitle by holders into shares of Level
3's common stock at a conversion price of $5.46share (subject to adjustment in certain eventss iE equivalent to a conversion rate of
approximately 183.1502 shares of common stock p&0® principal amount of these notes. Upon caiwer the Company will have the
right to deliver cash in lieu of shares of its coamstock, or a combination of cash and sharesmhoon stock. In addition, holders of the
3.5% Convertible Senior Notes will have the rightéquire the Company to repurchase the notes tifgoaccurrence of a change in control,
as defined, at a price of 100% of the principal ani@f the notes plus accrued interest. In addlitioa holder elects to convert its notes in
connection with certain changes in control, Leveb8ld be required to pay a make whole premiunmbyeiasing the number of shares
deliverable upon conversion of the notes.

On or after June 15, 2010, Level 3, at its optinay redeem for cash all or a portion of the nofHse 3.5% Convertible Senior Notes are
subject to redemption at the option of Level 3yhmole or in part, at any time or from time to tinog&, not more than 60 nor less than 30 days’
notice, on or after June 15, 2010, plus accrueduapaid interest thereon (if any) to the redemptiate, if redeemed during the twelve
months beginning June 15, of the years indicatéoibe

Year Redemption Price
2010 101.17%
2011 100.5¢%

Level 3 used a portion of the net proceeds from diffiering and its common stock offering compleitethe second quarter to redeem certain
debt securities maturing in 2008. The remainiracpeds will be used to potentially repurchase,eeder refinance other existing
indebtedness from time to time, for acquisitiond &r general corporate purposes, including worldagital and capital expenditures.

Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2011

On March 14, 2006, Level 3 Communications, Incgaarantor and Level 3 Financing, Inc. (“Level 8acing”), a whollyewned subsidiat
of the Company, as borrower, entered into an indentith the Bank of New York, as trustee, andess$i150 million aggregate principal
amount of floating rate senior notes due 2011 @ktm Rate Senior Notes due 2011”) in a privateniffy.

The Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2011 rank equaiht of payment with all other senior unsecuoddigations of Level 3 Financing and
have an initial interest rate equal to the six rhdrdndon Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”), plus 8536, which will be reset senainnually.
Interest on the notes is payable on March 15 apteSer 15 of each year, beginning on Septembe2. The interest rate was 11.42%
at June 30, 2006 and was determined at the commemtef the interest period beginning on the isseatate. The Floating Rate Senior
Notes due 2011 were priced at 96.782% of par. digmount is reflected as a reduction in I-term debt and is being amortized as interest
expense over the term of the Floating Rate SenibeiNdue 2011.
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The Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2011 are sutgeetdemption at the option of Level 3 Financinguvhole or in part, at any time or from
time to time, on or after March 15, 2008 at theeragtion prices (expressed as a percentage of palh@mount) set forth below, plus accrued
and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption dfatedeemed during the twelve months beginningdd5, of the years indicated below:

Year Redemption Price

2008 102.(%
2009 101.(%
2010 100.C%

On March 14, 2006, Level 3, Level 3 Financing amalinitial purchasers of the Floating Rate Senioteld due 2011 entered into a registre
rights agreement relating to the Floating Rate @eXotes due 2011 pursuant to which Level 3 anceL8vrinancing agreed to file an
exchange offer registration statement with the Bees and Exchange Commission. The CompsamXchange offer registration statemen
those notes was declared effective by the Secsiatiel Exchange Commission on August 8, 2006.

Debt issuance costs of $3 million were capitaliaad are being amortized over the term of the Figaflate Senior Notes due 2011.
12.25% Senior Notes due 2013

On March 14, 2006, Level 3 Communications, Incgaarantor and Level 3 Financing, as borrower,redtéto an indenture with the Bank
of New York, as trustee, and issued $250 milliogragate principal amount of 12.25% senior notes2ie3 (“12.25% Senior Notes due
2013") in a private offering.

On April 6, 2006, the Company issued $300 milliggieegate principal amount of 12.25% Senior Notes20) 3 in a private offering. These
notes together with the $250 million aggregategypial amount of 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013 issmeldlarch 14, 2006 will be treated
under the same indenture as a single series af.note

The 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013 are senior unsgalnligations of Level 3 Financing, ranking equalight of payment with all other
senior unsecured obligations of Level 3 Financihgvel 3 has guaranteed the 12.25% Senior Note2@dL&. The notes will mature on
March 15, 2013. Interest on the notes accrue2.26% per year and is payable on March 15 and Bdqmel5 of each year, beginning on
September 15, 2006. The $250 million of 12.25%i@exotes due 2013 issued on March 14, 2006 weoegmat 96.618% of par. The $300
million of 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013 issued @nil%5, 2006 were priced at 102% of par. The réisglnet discount of the two issuances
of approximately $2 million is reflected as a retilure in long-term debt and is being amortized asrest expense over the remaining term of
the 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013.

The 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013 are subject tmption at the option of Level 3 Financing in whoten part, at any time or from time
time, on or after March 15, 2010 at the redempgidces (expressed as a percentage of principal ainset forth below, plus accrued and
unpaid interest thereon to the redemption datedéemed during the twelve months beginning Maggtofl.the years indicated below:

Year Redemption Price

2010 106.125%
2011 103.06%
2012 100.00(%
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On March 14, 2006, Level 3 Communications, Incyéle Financing and the initial purchasers of tBe2%% Senior Notes due 2013 entered
into a registration rights agreement regardinglth@5% Senior Notes due 2013 pursuant to which IL&@mmunications, Inc. and Level 3
Financing agreed to file an exchange offer redistnastatement with the Securities and Exchange @ission. The Company’s exchange
offer registration statement for those notes wataded effective by the Securities and Exchange i@@sion on August 8, 2006.

Debt issuance costs of approximately $5 millioneveapitalized and are being amortized over the tdrthe 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013.

The debt represented by the 12.25% Senior Note@l@ together with the Floating Rate Notes duel2@ihstitutes purchase money
indebtedness under the indentures of Level 3, lamaét proceeds from the offering were used tafinghe cash purchase price of Level 3's
acquisition of WilTel and Progress Telecom, whigtrevconsummated on December 23, 2005 and Marc?0P8, respectively. The
remaining net proceeds will be used to fund thé ebsonstruction, installation, acquisition, leadevelopment or improvement of
communications assets.

Capitalized Leases

As part of the Progress Telecom transaction corgleh March 20, 2006, the Company assumed cerdgitat lease obligations of Progress
Telecom for IRU dark fiber facilities of $9 millionThe capital leases mature at various dates ghr@021.

As part of the ICG Communications transaction oryl@4, 2006, the Company assumed certain capitsé¢lebligations of ICG
Communications for IRU dark fiber facilities of $2llion. The capital leases mature at various sitteough 2018.

Debt Redemption

On June 13, 2006, Level 3 announced, and on Jylgads, Level 3 completed the redemption of alt®butstanding 9.125% Senior Notes
due 2008 and 10.5% Senior Discount Notes due 2008.

The 9.125% Senior Notes due 2008 were redeemetkdeaption price equal to 100% of the principabant of those notes plus accrued
and unpaid interest. The aggregate principal amoi®.125% Senior Notes due 2008 that were reddemas $398 million. The 10.5%
Senior Discount Notes due 2008 were redeemedetteanption price equal to 101.75% of the principabant at maturity of those notes plus
accrued and unpaid interest. The aggregate pehaipount at maturity of 10.5% Senior Discount Natae 2008 that were redeemed was
$62 million. The aggregate principal amounts &ftlotes were included in the current portion ofjléerm debt on the June 30, 2006
consolidated balance sheet.

Amendment and Restatement of Credit Facility

On June 27, 2006, Level 3 Financing amended andteekits existing $730 million senior secured irktility to reduce the interest rate
payable under the agreement by 400 basis poin@ifyrthe pre-payment provisions and make other ifipcchanges.

The amendment of the credit facility was treatedmextinguishment of the existing debt instrunthre to the significant change in lender
the debt per EITF No. 96-19, “Debtor’s Accountirmg & Modification or Exchange of Debt Instrumenf€ITF No. 96-19”). The fair value

of the amended and restated credit facility appnated the carrying value of the original creditlfgcas the interest rate of the amended and
restated credit facility approximated current mari¢es. As part of the transaction, Level 3 majtepayment premium of approximately !
million to existing debt holders. The prepaymemmium along with the unamortized deferred dehtasse costs of $13 million from the
original offering, were recognized as a loss onektinguishment of debt in the second quarter @620The Company also incurred $11
million of third party costs to complete this traoson. These costs were reflected as deferretlisiiance costs and will be amortized to
interest expense over the term of the debt.
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Debt Exchange

On January 13, 2006, the Company completed prastbange offers to exchange a portion of its ontstey 9.125% Senior Notes due 2008,
11% Senior Notes due 2008 and 10.5% Senior Disddates due 2008 (together the “2008 Notes”) thaevireld by eligible holders in a
private placement for cash and new 11.5% SenioedNdtie 2010. The Company issued $692 million agdgeeprincipal amount of 11.5%
Senior Notes as well as paid $46 million of cashséteration in exchange for the 2008 Notes tendieréttk transactions. The Company
paid approximately $13 million in cash for totabaged interest to the closing date on the 2008 $ibtat were accepted for exchange.

Pursuant to the guidance in EITF No. 96-19, the @amy accounted for the exchange of the 9.125% &aluites and the 11% Senior Notes
as an extinguishment of debt and recognized agfapproximately $27 million in Other Income in tfiest quarter of 2006. The gain was
determined using the fair value of the new 11.5%i@eNotes at the time of issuance. The fair valfithe 11.5% Senior Notes was
approximately $73 million less than the face amaifrihe debt. The accretion of the $73 millioncdisnt will be reflected as interest
expense. The 11.5% Senior Notes were recorddabiatfair value on the transaction date and witlrate to their face value at maturity.
Premiums paid to holders of the 9.125% Senior Natesthe 11% Senior Notes of $41 million were aggphgainst the gain on
extinguishment of debt.

In accordance with EITF No. 96-19, the exchangihefl0.5% Senior Discount Notes was accountedsfar modification of the existing
debt. The premiums paid to the holders of the%0Sgnior Discount Notes of $5 million were addethexisting debt issuance costs and
will be amortized over the term of the 11.5% SeiNotes.

The Company incurred approximately $5 million dfdiparty costs associated with the exchange trdiase The costs were allocated to
each tranche of debt based on the amount tendereddhange. The $4 million of fees allocatedhi®9.125% Senior Notes due 2008 ant
11% Senior Notes due 2008 were capitalized andbgithmortized to interest expense over the tertheofespective notes. The $1 million of
costs allocated to the 10.5% Senior Discount Ndtes2008 were expensed in the first quarter of 2006

The principal amount of 2008 Notes tendered isaét in the table below (dollars in millions).

Aggregate
Aggregate Principal Amount

Principal Amount Aggregate of Old Notes that Total Cash
2008 Notes Outstanding Before Principal Amount Remained Premium
Exchanged Exchange Offers Tendered Qutstanding Payment
9.125% Senior Notes due 20 $ 954 $ 556 $ 398 ¢ 36
11% Senior Notes due 20! 132 54 78 5
10.5% Senior Discount Notes due 2( 144 82 62 5

The exchange offers were made only to qualifietitintsonal buyers and institutional accredited ista@s inside the United States and to
certain non-U.S. investors located outside theddhBtates.

The 11.5% Senior Notes are senior unsecured oigigabf the Company, ranking equal in right of paytnwith the old notes not tendered in
the exchange offers as well as all other senioecurgd obligations of the Company. The 11.5% Sdwades mature on March 1, 2010, and
bear interest at a rate per annum equal to 1115%rest on the notes is payable on March 1 anteSsdger 1 of each year, beginning on
September 1, 2006. The Company may redeem soalkafithe 11.5% Senior Notes at any time on agrdffarch 1, 2009, at 100% of their
principal amount plus accrued interest.

The Company’s exchange offer registration staterfaarthese notes was declared effective by the @&=i1and Exchange Commission on
August 8, 2006.
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Future Debt Maturities

The Company’s contractual obligations at June B062elated to debt, including capital leases awtuding issue discounts and fair value
adjustments, will require estimated cash paymemtisig each of the five succeeding years as foll@@€6-$462 million; 2007-$2 million;
2008-$142 million; 2009-$363 million and 2010-$234illion and thereafter-$3,761 million.

11. Stock-Based Awards

Beginning January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAI 23R, “Share-Based Payment.” The adopticBFeAS No. 123R on January 1,
2006 did not have a significant effect on the Conypafinancial position or results of operationstlas Company adopted the expense
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accountifog Stock-Based Compensation” in 1998. SFAS NxRR requires that estimated
forfeitures be included in the amount of expensegaized for awards that are not fully vested. Toenpany has historically recorded the
effect of forfeitures of equity awards as they acciihe effect of applying the change from the ioidd) provisions of SFAS No. 123 on the
Company’s results of operations and basic andatllernings per share for the three and six mamtied June 30, 2006 was not significant.

The Company recognized in the consolidated stateofesperations a total of $20 million and $34 ol of non-cash compensation for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2006, respBctiduring the second quarter of 2006, the Oat@€5 and January 2006 grants were
revalued using May 15, 2006 as the grant datecdénrdance with SFAS No. 123R, and resulted in en#in increase in non-cash
compensation expense. As stated in the Compangig/ pnaterials for its 2006 Annual Meeting of Stbolders, over the course of the years
since April 1, 1998, the compensation committethefCompany’s Board of Directors had administehed995 Stock Plan under the belief
that the action of the Company’s Board of Directoramend and restate that plan effective Aprii998 had the effect of extending the
original term of the Plan to April 1, 2008. Aftarfurther review of the terms of the plan, howeteg, compensation committee determined
that an ambiguity could exist as to the date ofetk@ration of the plan. To remove any ambiguitye Board of Directors sought the approval
of the Company’s stockholders to amend the plaxtend the term of the plan by five years to Septm5, 2010. This approval was
obtained at the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholdheisl on May 15, 2006. Included in discontinuedragions is additional non-cash
compensation expense of $1 million and $2 millionthe three and six months ended June 30, 2088ecévely. In addition, the Company
capitalized $1 million of non-cash compensationtfmse employees and contractors directly involnetie construction of the network,
installation of customers or development of theitess support systems for the three and six mantied June 30, 2006, respectively.

The Company recognized in the consolidated stateofesperations a total of $9 million and $19 nailli of non-cash compensation for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2005, respictiincluded in discontinued operations is addiil non-cash compensation expense of
$1 million and $2 million for the three and six ntlesended June 30, 2005, respectively. In additttmCompany capitalized less than $1
million and $1 million of non-cash compensation ioose employees and contractors directly involmetie construction of the network,
installation of customers or development of theifess support systems for the three and six manttied June 30, 2005, respectively.

SFAS No. 123R requires the benefit of tax dedustiorexcess of recognized compensation expensepoeted as a financing cash in flow if
the tax benefits are expected to be realizablethALompany is currently in a net operating lossitipn, Level 3's management does not
expect to realize tax benefits from share-basedpemsation for the foreseeable future.

The following table summarizes non-cash compensatigpense and capitalized non-cash compensatighdahree and six months ended
June 30, 2006 and 2005.
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Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2006 2005
0SO $ 13 $ 4 $ 17 % 9
Restricted Stoc 4 5 10 6
Shareworks Match Ple — 3) — 2)
401(k) Match Expens 5 4 9 8
401 (k) Discretionary Grant Plan — — 1 1

22 10 37 22
Capitalized Non-cash Compensation (@) — (@9) 1)

21 10 36 21
Discontinued Operations (@) (@) (2 (2)

$ 20 % 9 % 34 $ 19

Non-qualified Stock Options and Warrants

At June 30, 2006, there were approximately 14.@aniwarrants outstanding ranging in exercise @item $4.00 to $29.00. As of June 30,
2006, all of the warrants previously granted weilyfvested and the compensation expense had bégmdcognized in the consolidated
statements of operations. Of these warrants, eéwxercisable at June 30, 2006, with a weightedthge exercise price of $7.79 per warr

The Company has not granted NQSOs since 2000.f Asne 30, 2006, all NQSOs previously granted vilhg vested and the compensat
expense had been fully recognized in the conseistatements of operations. At June 30, 2006 tlvere approximately 6 million NQSOs
outstanding with exercise prices ranging from $1/$8.00. The weighted average exercise pricae@NQSOs outstanding was $5.71 at
June 30, 2006.

Outperform Stock Option Plan

In April 1998, the Company adopted an outperforatistoption (“OSO”) program that was designed s the Company’s stockholders
would receive a market return on their investmezioite OSO holders receive any return on their ogtidhe Company believes that the C
program aligns directly management’s and stockhsldeterests by basing stock option value on tbenBany’s ability to outperform the
market in general, as measured by the Standardo®$@ES&P”) 500 Index. Participants in the OSO gram do not realize any value from
awards unless the Company’s common stock pricestiatpns the S&P 500 Index during the life of thargt When the stock price gain is
greater than the corresponding gain on the S&PIB@Ex (or less than the corresponding loss on & Bdex for grants awarded before
June 30, 2005), the value received for awards uth@e® SO plan is based on a formula involving atipliér related to the level by which the
Company’s common stock outperforms the S&P 500x4niie the extent that Level 3's common stock outpens the S&P 500 Index, the
value of OSOs to a holder may exceed the valu@ofjnalified stock options.

The Company’s OSO program targets that no more2b&t of Level 3's outperformance is delivered tqptayee-owners, and that the
exercise of past and future OSO grants does neeeixshares reserved for issuance under the Congpd®95 Stock Plan, as amended. The
method for determining the value of an individu8@is described below:

The initial strike price, as determined on the gagr to the OSO grant date, is adjusted over f{ithe “Adjusted Strike Price”), until the
exercise date. The adjustment is an amount equlétpercentage appreciation or depreciation irvéhee of the S&P 500 Index from the
date of grant to the date of exercise. The vafubeOSO increases for increasing levels of otitperance. OSO awards outstanding as of
June 30, 2006 have a multiplier range from zerfoto depending upon the performance of Level 3 comstock relative to the S&P 500
Index as shown in the following table.
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If Level 3 Stock Outperforms Then the Pre-multiplier Gain Is
the S&P 500 Index by: Multiplied by a Success Multiplier of:

0% or Less 0.00
More than 0% but Less than 11 Outperformance percentage multiplied by 4

11% or More 4.00
The Pre-multiplier gain is the Level 3 common stpcice minus the Adjusted Strike Price on the dditexercise.

Upon exercise of an OSO, the Company shall detivgray to the grantee the difference between tlireMarket Value of a share of Level 3
common stock as of the day prior to the exercige,dess the Adjusted Strike Price, the “Exercisagideration.” The Exercise
Consideration may be paid in cash, Level 3 comnmoacksor any combination of cash or Level 3 commimtls at the Company’s discretion.
The number of shares of Level 3 common stock tddleered by the Company to the grantee is detexchby dividing the Exercise
Consideration to be paid in Level 3 common stockheyFair Market Value of a share of Level 3 comratotk as of the date prior to the
exercise date. Fair Market Value is defined in@®0 agreement, but is currently the closing ppieeshare of Level 3 common stock on the
NASDAQ exchange. Exercise of the OSOs does nafitre@ny cash outlay by the employ

OSO awards are granted quarterly to eligible paditts. Awards outstanding at June 30, 2006 halgear life and vest 50% at the end of
the first year after the grant, with the remaint@§6 vesting over the second year (12.5% per qQarter

The Company utilizes a modified Black-Scholes madelalue outperform stock options granted to erygés. The Company believes that
given the relative short life of the options and dther variables used in the model, the modifiedtiB Scholes model provides a reasonable
estimate of the fair value of the OSOs at the tiihgrant.

The fair value under SFAS No. 123R for the appratity 2.0 million OSO awarded to participants dgrine six months ended June 30,
2006 was approximately $12 million using a modifiéleck-Scholes valuation model with the assumptimmgined in the table below. The
resulting theoretical value per option granted0&is 153% of the stock price on the grant datgefised in SFAS No. 123R. The
theoretical value of options granted in 2005 wa% bf the stock price. In accordance with SFAS N8R, the Company used an estimated
forfeiture rate of 10.19% in determining expensmgnition. As of June 30, 2006, the Company hadeftected $23 million of unamortized
compensation expense in its financial statememtprieviously granted OSOs. The weighted averagegever which this cost will be
recognized is 1.5 years.

The fair value of each OSO grant equals the caledltheoretical value multiplied by the Level 3 ¢oon stock price on the grant date. The
modified Black-Scholes valuation model used théofeing assumptions during the six months ended 30ne

2006 2005
S&P 500 Expected Dividend Yield Rate 1.78% 1.9%%
Expected Life 3.4 year 2 year:
S&P 500 Expected Volatility Ra 12% 13%
Level 3 Common Stock Expected Volatility Ri 55% 55%
Expected S&P 500 Correlation Fac .28 .30
Calculated Theoretical Valt 153% 116%

The expected life data was stratified based ondedMeresponsibility within the Company. The thetical value used in 2006 was determined
using the weighted average exercise behavior Belyroups of employees. Upon adoption of SFASIRBR, the Company updated its
calculation of the Expected Life. Volatility assptions were derived using historical data as welt@rrent market data.
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As part of a comprehensive review of its long-t@@mpensation program, the Company temporarily swudgzkawards of OSOs in April
2005. During the second quarter of 2005, the Caomgmanted participants in the plan restrictedlstaaits, as discussed below.

Beginning in the third quarter of 2005, the Compasyed both restricted stock units and OSOs dopis long-term compensation
program. In the third quarter of 2005, the Comparage a grant for 2005 of restricted stock uniés test ratably over four years. The
Company plans to make quarterly OSO grants to eyaplthat have similar terms as those OSOs grantbd first quarter of 2005.

A summary of OSO activity for the six months endede 30, 2006 follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Aggregate Remaining
Initial Strike Intrinsic Contractual
Number Price Value Term
(in millions)
Outstanding at January 1, 20 14,245,971 $ 3.34
Options grante: 3,968,88° 4.08
Options exercise (1,356,68) 3.14
Options forfeitec (599,967 2.88
Options expired (2,446,48) 3.39
Outstanding at June 30, 2006 13,811,72. $ 358 $ 43 2.60 year
Outstanding, exercisable (“vested”) 6,983,090 $ 3.82 $ 15 1.84 year

In the table above, the weighted average initidtestprice represents the values used to calcthat¢theoretical value of OSOs on the grant
date and the intrinsic value represents the valu@S®Ds that have outperformed the S&P 500 Indeof dsine 30, 2006.

The total realized value of OSOs exercised for edc¢he three and six month periods ended Jun2@@5 was $6 million and $7 million,
respectively. This total includes total realizedlresof OSOs exercised for SSI employees for eatcheothree and six month periods ended
June 30, 2006 of $1 million and $1 million, respesly.

Restricted Stock and Units

During the first six months of 2006, approximat@l9 million shares of restricted stock or restdcstock units were granted to employees
non-employee members of the Board. The restridtmzksunits and shares were granted to the recipento cost. Restrictions on transfer
lapse over one to four year periods. The fair valueestricted units and stock granted in 2006 $amillion as calculated using the fair value
of the Level 3 common stock on the grant date.ofAlune 30, 2006, the total compensation costa@lat nonvested restricted stock or
restricted stock units not yet recognized was $1Bom and the weighted average period over whiuh cost will be recognized is 2.5 years.

For the first six months of 2006, the changes #trieted stock and restricted stock units are shiovthe following table:

Weighted Average

Number Grant Date Fair Value
Nonvested at January 1, 20 23,376,84. $ 2.0€
Stock and units grante 888,05¢ 4.03
Lapse of restriction (7,313,84)) 2.08
Stock and units forfeited (1,495,274 2.13
Nonvested at June 30, 20 15,455,781 $ 2.15
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The Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value of retstd stock and restricted stock units grantedrdptie six months ended June 30, 2006
and 2005 were $4.03 and $1.99, respectively. @ta fair value of restricted stock and restricséack units vested during the six month
ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $15 million amdifidn, respectively.

401(k) Plan

The Company and its subsidiaries offer their gieliemployees the opportunity to participate irefingtd contribution retirement plan
qualifying under the provisions of Section 401(k}re Internal Revenue Code. Each employee isbddidgo contribute, on a tax deferred
basis, a portion of annual earnings generally meixceed $15,000 in 2006. The Company matches Hi@¥tiployee contributions up to 7%
of eligible earnings or applicable regulatory lisifibr employees of the communications busines$sas. Company’s matching contributions
are made with Level 3 common stock based on thergostock price on each pay date. Employeestdecta diversify the Company’s
matching contribution as soon as it is made, ef/#rey are not fully vested. The Company’s matghiontributions will vest ratably over the
first three years of service. The Company madehiag contributions of $5 million and $9 millionrfthe three and six months ended June
30, 2006, respectively, and $4 million and $8 moiilfor the three and six months ended June 30,,2868pectively, which were recorded as
selling, general and administrative expenses.

The Company made a discretionary contribution 0401 (k) Plan in Level 3 common stock as of Decar3tie 2005, equal to three percent
of eligible employees’ 2005 eligible earnings. Teposit was made into the eligible employees’ Wpa¢counts during the first quarter of
2006.

Employees of WilTel Communications that participat¢he WilTel 401(k) Plan receive an employer rhiatig cash contribution of 100% of
employee contributions up to 6% of eligible earsing regulatory limits. The matching cash contiidmuis invested in the same investment
funds selected by participants for employee coutitins. The Company made matching cash contribsitid $2 million and $4 million for
the three and six months ended June 30, 2006.

12. Industry and Segment Data

SFAS No. 131 “Disclosures about Segments of anrfnse and Related Information” defines operatiagmnsents as components of an
enterprise for which separate financial informat®available and which is evaluated regularly i,y Company’s chief operating decision
maker, or decision making group, in deciding howaltocate resources and assess performance. Quesatjments are managed separately
and represent separate strategic business unitsffeadifferent products and serve different megk The Company’s reportable segments
include: communications and coal mining (See N¢t@®ther primarily includes other corporate asseis overhead not attributable to a
specific segment. The Company’s information s&wicusiness was comprised o $tructure and Software Spectrum. As a resulhef t
sale of these two businesses, the Company is meitgroviding information for this segment.

Adjusted OIBDA, as defined by the Company, consi$tsperating income (loss) before (1) depreciatiod amortization expense, (2) stock-
based compensation expense included within selfjageral and administrative expenses on the caladetl statements of operations and (3)
any non-cash impairment costs included within testring and impairment expenses all as reportetti®consolidated statements of
operations. The Company excludes stock-based awsafien due to the recording of non-cash compessatipense under the provisions of
SFAS No. 123R. Adjusted OIBDA is an important pEfrthe Company’s internal reporting and is andattr of profitability and operating
performance used by the chief operating decisiokemar decision making group to evaluate perfornsaamed allocate resources. ltis a
commonly used indicator in the capital-intensivencaunications industry to analyze companies on #séshof operating performance over
time. Adjusted OIBDA is not intended to represegitincome or cash flow for the periods presentedpt calculated consistently with the
commonly used metric “EBITDA”, and is not recogrdaender generally accepted accounting principl&A@P”), but is used by
management to assess segment results and allesateces.

The data presented in the following tables includésmation for the three and six months endece M 2006 and 2005 for all statement of
operations and cash flow information presented,anadf June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 ftmihce sheet information presented.
Information related to acquired businesses is d®wiufrom their respective acquisition dates. Reeeand the related expenses are attributed
to countries based on where services are provittgdrmation for the prior periods has been revided to discontinued operations (See Note
3).
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Industry and geographic segment financial infororafollows. Certain prior year information has beealassified to conform to the 2006
presentation.

Coal
(dollars in millions) Communications Mining Other Total
Three Months ended June 30, 200
Revenue
North America $ 774 % 16 $ — % 790
Europe 45 — — 45
Other — — — —
$ 819 $ 16 $ — 3 835
Adjusted OIBDA:
North America $ 162 $ 2 3 2
Europe 8 — —
Other — — —
$ 170 $ 2 $ (2)
Net Capital Expenditure:
North America $ 62 $ 1 % — % 63
Europe 10 — — 10
Other — — — —
$ 72 $ 1 % — 3 73
Depreciation and Amortizatiol
North America $ 144 % 1 % — 3 145
Europe 19 — — 19
Other — — — —
$ 163 $ 1 $ — % 164
Six Months ended June 30, 200
Revenue
North America $ 153¢ $ 34 $ — % 1,57C
Europe 87 — — 87
Other — — — —
$ 1,62 $ 34 $ — 3 1,657
Adjusted OIBDA:
North America $ 293 ¢ 3 % (3)
Europe 24 — —
Other — — —
$ 317 $ 3 $ (3)
Net Capital Expenditure:
North America $ 112 $ 1 % — % 113
Europe 18 — — 18
Other — — — —
$ 130 $ 1 % — % 131
Depreciation and Amortizatiol
North America $ 310 $ 2 3 — % 312
Europe 39 — — 39
Other — — — —
$ 349 $ 2 $ — $ 351
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(dollars in millions)

Communications

Coal
Mining

Other

Total

Three Months ended June 30, 2005
Revenue

North America

Europe

Other

Adjusted OIBDA:
North America
Europe
Other

Net Capital Expenditure:
North America
Europe
Other

Depreciation and Amortizatiol
North America
Europe
Other

Six Months ended June 30, 200
Revenue

North America

Europe

Other

Adjusted OIBDA:
North America
Europe
Other

Net Capital Expenditure:
North America
Europe
Other

Depreciation and Amortizatiol
North America
Europe
Other

334
37

19

353
37

371

19

390

~l|

=

138
22

140
22

161

|

162

809
72

36

845
72

881

36

917

286

10

289

10

123
16

124
16

138

Ny

140

283
43

285
43

326

no |

328
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Communications Revenue and Adjusted OIBDA incluetentnation revenue of $3 million in each of theethiand six months periods ended
June 30, 2006, respectively, and $2 million andi$idlion for the three and six months ended Jule2B05, respectively.

Discontinued

Information Coal
(dollars in millions) Communications Services Mining Other Total
Identifiable Assets
June 30, 200¢
North America $ 5,90¢ $ 647 $ 99 $ 2,071 % 8,72:
Europe 748 233 — 18 999
Other — 29 — — 29
$ 6,654 $ 909 $ 99 $ 2,08¢ $ 9,751
December 31, 200!
North America $ 5782 $ 631 $ 90 $ 810 $ 7,312
Europe 716 206 — 18 940
Other — 24 — — 24
$ 6,49¢€ $ 861 $ 90 $ 828 $ 8,277
Long-Lived Assets (excluding Goodwill)
June 30, 200¢
North America $ 5222 $ 69 $ 87 $ — % 5,37¢
Europe 707 1 — — 708
Other — 1 — — 1
$ 5,92¢ $ 71 $ 87 $ — $ 6,087
December 31, 200!
North America $ 5,502 $ 68 $ 75 $ — 3 5,64E&
Europe 696 1 — — 697
Other — 1 — — 1
$ 6,19¢ $ 70 $ 75 $ — 3 6,34<
Goodwill
June 30, 2006 (1
North America $ 218 $ 194 $ — % — 3 412
Europe — — — — —
$ 218 $ 194 $ — $ — 3 412
December 31, 2005 (1
North America $ 70 $ 194 $ — 3 — 3 264
Europe — — — — —
$ 70 $ 194 $ — $ — $ 264

(1) The goodwill for Discontinued Information Seses presented in the table above includes $19#{bmiif goodwill related to Software
Spectrum. This goodwill is included in the Condated Balance Sheet in Noncurrent Assets of Dignoed Operations.

Communications revenue is grouped into three caiegidl) Core Services (including transport andasifructure services, IP & data services,
voice services and Vyvx services) 2) Other Servioeduding managed modem and related reciprocalpamsation, DSL aggregation, and
Internet access services), and 3) SBC Contracic®srv This revenue reporting structure represgietsange from prior year presentations to
reflect how the Company’s management will invest aranage cash flows in the communications busigeisg) forward. Management
believes this product grouping provides more megfoirinformation to the reader of the financialtstaents because each of the revenue
categories has different expectations with resgefiiture revenue performance.
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Services

SBC Contract
(dollars in millions) Core Other Services Total

Communications Revenue

Three Months Ended June 30, 200

North America $ 377 % 119 $ 278 % 774
Europe 44 1 — 45
Other — — — —
$ 421 $ 120 $ 278 $ 819
Six Months Ended June 30, 200
North America $ 725 $ 241 % 570 % 1,53¢
Europe 85 2 — 87
Other — — — —
$ 810 $ 243  $ 570 $ 1,62%
Three Months Ended June 30, 2005
North America $ 158 % 176  $ — % 334
Europe 35 2 — 37
Other — — — —
$ 193 $ 178 $ — 3 371
Six Months Ended June 30, 200
North America $ 439 $ 370 % — % 809
Europe 69 3 — 72
Other — — — —
$ 508 $ 373 $ —  $ 881

Core includes termination revenue of $1 million bath the three and six months ended June 30, 288gectively, and $2 million and $131
million for the three and six months ended June2B05, respectively.

The majority of North American revenue consistsefvices delivered within the United States. Tlagomity of European revenue consists of
services delivered within the United Kingdom budceincludes France and Germany. Transoceanic wevisrallocated to Europe.
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The following information provides a reconciliatiohNet Income (Loss) to Adjusted OIBDA by opergtsegment, as defined by the
Company, for the three and six months ended Jun2@®® and 2005:

Discontinued

Information
(dollars in millions) Communications Services Coal Mining Other
Three Months Ended June 30, 2006
Net Income (Loss $ (224) $ 23 % 1 % @)
Income from Discontinued Operatio — (23) — —
Income Tax Expens — — — 1
Total Other (Income) Expense 207 — — (2)
Operating Income (Loss) (17) — 1 2)
Depreciation and Amortization Exper 163 — 1 —
Non-Cash Compensation Exper 20 — — —
Non-Cash Impairment Charge 4 — — —
Adjusted OIBDA $ 170 $ — % 2 3 (2)
Six Months Ended June 30, 200
Net Income (Loss $ (390) $ 21 % 1 % @)
Income from Discontinued Operatio — (21) —
Income Tax Expense (Benei (2) — — 1
Total Other (Income) Expense 318 — — (3)
Operating Income (Loss) (73) — 1 3)
Depreciation and Amortization Exper 349 — 2 —
Non-Cash Compensation Exper 34 — — —
Non-Cash Impairment Charge 7 — — —
Adjusted OIBDA $ 317 $ — % 3 % (3)
Three Months Ended June 30, 200
Net Income (Loss $ (205) $ 8 $ 5 % 4
Income from Discontinued Operatio — (8) — —
Income Tax Expens — — 1 1
Total Other (Income) Expense 119 — — —
Operating Income (Loss) (86) — 6 5
Depreciation and Amortization Exper 161 — 1 —
Non-Cash Compensation Exper 9 — — —
Non-Cash Impairment Charge 4 — — —
Adjusted OIBDA $ 88 $ — 3 7 % 5
Six Months Ended June 30, 200
Net Income (Loss $ (284) $ 9 % 7 % 3
Income from Discontinued Operatio — (9) — —
Income Tax Expens — — 1 1
Total Other (Income) Expense 224 — — (1)
Operating Income (Loss) (60) — 8 3
Depreciation and Amortization Exper 326 — 2 —
Non-Cash Compensation Exper 19 — — —
Non-Cash Impairment Charge 4 — — —
Adjusted OIBDA $ 289 $ — 3 10 $ 3
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13. Other Matters

On June 13, 2006, Level 3 completed the sale ofifllon shares of its common stock at $4.55 pershpar value $0.01 per share, in an
underwritten public offering. Level 3 received peeds of $543 million net of $26 million in tran8an costs. Level 3 used a portion of the
net proceeds from this transaction and its offedhd.5% Convertible Senior Notes completed ingbeond quarter to redeem certain debt
securities maturing in 2008. The remaining proseeil be used to potentially repurchase, redeemefinance other existing indebtedness
from time to time, for acquisitions and for genezaiporate purposes, including working capital eaglital expenditures.

In April 2002, Level 3 Communications, Inc., andtef its subsidiaries were named as a defendaBauer, et. al. v. Level 3
Communications, LLC, et gla purported class action covering 22 statesq fih state court in Madison County, lllinois. yJ2001, Level 3
was named as a defendanKioyle, et. al. v. Level 3 Communications, Inc.aét, a purported two state class action filed inth8. District
Court for the District of Idaho. In November of Z)@he court granted class certification only fog state of Idaho, which decision is on
appeal. In September 2002, Level 3 Communicatioib€, and Williams Communications, LLC were namediafendants irsmith et. al. v.
Sprint Communications Company, L.P., et @.purported nationwide class action filed intheted States District Court for the Northern
District of Illinois. In April 2005, the Smith platiffs filed a Fourth Amended Complaint which didtrinclude Level 3 or Williams
Communications, Inc. as a party, thus ending bothpaniesinvolvement in the Smith case. On February 17, 20@%el 3 Communication
LLC and Williams Communications, LLC were namediatendants ifMcDaniel, et. al., v. Qwest Communications Corpioratet al., a
purported class action covering 10 states filethénUnited States District Court for the Northeristict of lllinois. These actions involve the
companies’ right to install its fiber optic cabletwork in easements and right-of-ways crossingtamtiffs’ land. In general, the companies
obtained the rights to construct their networksrfr@ilroads, utilities, and others, and have itetiaiheir networks along the rights-of-way so
granted. Plaintiffs in the purported class actiassert that they are the owners of lands over wthieltompanies’ fiber optic cable networks
pass, and that the railroads, utilities, and otldrs granted the companies the right to constmdtraaintain their networks did not have the
legal authority to do so. The complaints seek dasam theories of trespass, unjust enrichmentlander of title and property, as well as
punitive damages. The companies have also receanelimay in the future receive, claims and demagldsed to rights-ofvay issues simile
to the issues in these cases that may be baseanhitar ®r different legal theories. To date, otligan as noted above, all adjudicated attempts
to have class action status granted on complalatbdgainst the companies or any of their subs&lanvolving claims and demands related
to rights-of-way issues have been denied.

It is still too early for the Company to reach acloision as to the ultimate outcome of these astiblowever, management believes that the
Company and its subsidiaries have substantial defeto the claims asserted in all of these act@ms any similar claims which may be
named in the future), and intends to defend thegoreusly if a satisfactory form of settlement i¢ approved.

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to/ratrer legal proceedings. Management believesaimaresulting liabilities for these le
proceedings, beyond amounts reserved, will not niagdlieaffect the Company’s financial condition forture results of operations, but could
effect future cash flows.

It is customary in Level 3's industries to use vas financial instruments in the normal courseusibess. These instruments include items
such as letters of credit. Letters of credit ameditional commitments issued on behalf of Leval accordance with specified terms and
conditions. As of June 30, 2006, Level 3 had aumiding letters of credit of approximately $37 noifliwhich are collateralized by cash that is
reflected on the consolidated balance sheet asctestcash and securities.

14. Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

In October 2003, Level 3 Financing, Inc., a whallyned subsidiary of Level 3 Communications, Inespied $500 million 10.75% Senior
Notes due 2011. These notes are unsecured obfigaifd_evel 3 Financing, however, they are joinflgyerally, fully and unconditional
guaranteed on an unsecured senior basis by Leveh8nunications, Inc. and Level 3 CommunicationsCL(a wholly-owned subsidiary).
The 10.75% Senior Notes were registered with the®ees and Exchange Commission in 2005.

In March 2006, Level 3 Financing issued $150 millidoating Rate Senior Notes due 2011 and $250omill2.25% Senior Notes due 2013.
In addition, on April 6, 2006, Level 3 Financingugd an additional $300 million of 12.25% Seniotdso
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due 2013. These notes are unsecured obligationsved 3 Financing, however, they are fully and amditionally guaranteed on an
unsecured senior basis by Level 3 Communicatiorts, |

In conjunction with the registration of the 10.73#nior Notes, Floating Rate Senior Notes due 201112.25% Senior Notes due 2013 the
accompanying condensed consolidating financiarmédion has been prepared and presented pursugQdregulation S-X Rule 3-10
“Financial statements of guarantors and affiliath®se securities collateralize an issue registerdxting registered.” This information is not
intended to present the financial position, resofitsperations and cash flows of the individual pamies or groups of companies in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operatiarthéathree and six months ended June 30, 2002 @0t follow. Level 3
Communications, LLC leases equipment and certailfitias from other wholly-owned subsidiaries ofuat 3 Communications, Inc. These
transactions are eliminated in the consolidatedlt®sf the Company.

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the three months ended June 30, 2006

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Level 3 Communications, Other
(dollars in millions) Inc. Financing, Inc. LLC Subsidiaries _Eliminations Total
Revenue $ — 3 — 8 323 $ 57" $ (67 $ 83¢
Costs and Expense
Cost of Revenu — — 139 321 (62) 399
Depreciation and Amortizatic — — 83 81 — 164
Selling, General and Administrati 2 — 198 85 (2) 283
Restructuring and Impairment Charges — — 3 4 — 7
Total Costs and Expenses 2 — 423 491 (63) 853
Operating Income (Loss) (2) — (100) 84 — (18)
Other Income (Loss), ne
Interest Incom: 5 — 10 1 — 16
Interest Expens (111) (58) — (1) — (170)
Interest Income (Expense) Affiliates, 1 218 166 (389) 5 — —
Equity in Net Earnings (Losses) of
Subsidiaries (312) (365) 59 — 617 —
Other Income (Expense) — (54) 2 1 — (51)
Other Income (Loss) (199) (311) (318) 6 617 (205)
Income (Loss) from Operations Before Incc
Taxes (201) (311) (418) 90 617 (223)
Income Tax Expense — — — (1) — (1)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations (201) (311) (418) 89 617 (224)
Income from Discontinued Operations — — — 23 — 23
Net Income (Loss $ (200 % (31) % (413 11: $ 61 $ (20]
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the six months ended June 30, 2006

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Level 3 Communications, Other
(dollars in millions) Inc. Financing, Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Revenue $ — — 3 643 $ 1,120 $ (109 $ 1,65:
Costs and Expense
Cost of Revenu — — 271 644 (204) 811
Depreciation and Amortizatic — — 192 159 — 351
Selling, General and Administrati 2 — 384 178 (5) 559
Restructuring and Impairment Charges — — 7 4 — 11
Total Costs and Expenses 2 — 854 985 (109) 1,732
Operating Income (Loss) (2) — (211) 138 — (75)
Other Income (Loss), ne
Interest Incomt 9 — 13 3 — 25
Interest Expens (222) (95) — 3) — (320)
Interest Income (Expense) Affiliates, 1 427 324 (767) 16 — —
Equity in Net Earnings (Losses) of
Subsidiaries (609) (784) 101 — 1,29z —
Other Income (Expense) 28 (54) 2 4 — (20)
Other Income (Loss) (367) (609) (651) 20 1,292 (315)
Income (Loss) from Operations Before
Income Taxe! (369) (609) (862) 158 1,292 (390)

Income Tax Expense — — — — — —

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations (369) (609) (862) 158 1,292 (390)
Income from Discontinued Operations — — — 21 — 21

Net Income (Loss $ (36) % (60) $ (86) % 170 $ 1,29 (369)
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the three months ended June 30, 2005

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Level 3 Communications, Other
(dollars in millions) Inc. Financing, Inc. LLC Subsidiaries  Eliminations Total
Revenue $ — — 3 336 $ 9 $ (4) $ 39
Costs and Expense
Cost of Revenu — — 141 16 (38) 119
Depreciation and Amortizatic — — 108 54 — 162
Selling, General and Administrati 2 — 158 23 3) 180
Restructuring and Impairment Charges — — 4 — — 4
Total Costs and Expenses 2 — 411 93 (42) 465
Operating Income (Loss) (2) — (75) 2 — (75)
Other Income (Loss), ne
Interest Incomt 6 — 2 2 — 10
Interest Expens (102 (32) 1) 4) — (139)
Interest Income (Expense) Affiliates, 1 201 127 (328) — — —
Equity in Net Earnings (Losses) of
Subsidiaries (292 (387) (1) — 680 —
Other Income (Expense) 1 — 7 2 — 10
Other Income (Loss) (186) (292 (321) — 680 (119
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations
Before Income Taxe (188) (292 (396) 2 680 (194)
Income Tax Expense — — — (2) — (2)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations (188) (292) (396) — 680 (196)
Income from Discontinued Operations — — — 8 — 8
Net Income (Loss $ (18) $ (29) % (39 % t$ 68 $ (189
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the six months ended June 30, 2005

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Level 3 Communications, Other
(dollars in millions) Inc. Financing, Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Revenue $ — $ — 813 $ 18 $ (8)$ 917
Costs and Expense

Cost of Revenu — — 286 35 (73) 248

Depreciation and Amortizatic — — 226 102 — 328

Selling, General and Administrati 4 — 318 55 (7y 371

Restructuring and Impairment Charges — — 15 4 — 19

Total Costs and Expenses 4 — 846 196 (80) 966
Operating Loss (4) — (33) (12) — (49
Other Income (Loss), ne

Interest Incomt 6 — 5 3 — 14

Interest Expens (183) (64) (1) (5) — (253

Interest Income (Expense) Affiliates, 1 401 255 (661) 5 — —

Equity in Net Earnings (Losses) of

Subsidiaries (487) (678) (2) — 1,167 —

Other Income (Expense) 2 — 9 5 — 16

Other Income (Loss) (261) (487) (650) 8 1,167 (223
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operation:

Before Income Taxe (265) (487) (683) (4) 1,167 (272
Income Tax Expense — — — (2) — (2)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations (265) (487) (683) (6) 1,167 (274)
Income from Discontinued Operations — — — 9 — 9
Net Income (Loss $ (26) $ (48) % (68) $ $ 1,16 $ (269
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets as of Iyr#H36 and December 31, 2005 follow:

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

June 30, 2006

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Level 3 Communications, Other

(dollars in millions) Inc. Financing, Inc. Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalel $ 1 % 1 % 1,48 $ 50 $ — $ 1,571

Marketable securitie 408 — 98 1 — 507

Restricted cash and securit — 3 21 11 — 35

Accounts receivable, n — — 77 299 — 376

Due from (to) affiliates 11,223 5,492 (17,14¢ 431 — —

Current assets of discontinued

operations — — — 644 — 644

Other 22 6 37 54 — 119
Total Current Assets 11,671 5,517 (15,437) 1,49¢ — 3,252
Property, Plant and Equipment, | — — 3,324 2,20t — 5,52¢
Marketable Securitie — — — — — —
Restricted Cash and Securit 2 — — 88 — 90
Gooduwill and Intangibles, ni — — 62 428 — 490
Investment in Subsidiarie (6,599) (20,167) 1,18¢ — 15,571 —
Noncurremt Assets of Discontinu

Operations — — — 265 — 265
Other Assets, net 65 27 14 19 — 125
Total Assets $ 51 % (4,62) $ (10,84) $ 450 $ 15,57 $ 9,75!
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

(Deficit)
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ $ $ 1 3% 25, % — $ 375

Current portion of lon-term debt 460 — — 2 — 462

Accrued payroll and employee bene — — 42 23 — 65

Accrued interes 110 43 — — — 153

Deferred revenu — — 109 68 — 177

Current liabilities of discontinued

operations — — — 560 — 560

Other 1 1 50 75 — 127
Total Current Liabilities 573 46 320 980 — 1,91¢
Long-Term Debt, less current portit 4,554 1,92z — 81 — 6,55¢
Deferred Revenu — — 626 110 — 736
Other Liabilities 51 1 197 322 — 571
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) (33) (6,59%) (11,98¢) 3,00¢ 15,571 (33)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

(Deficit) $ 514 % (462) $ (10,84) $ 450 $ 15,57 $ 9,75:
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
December 31, 2005

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Level 3 Communications, Other

(dollars in millions) Inc. Financing, Inc. C Subsidiaries  Eliminations Total
Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalel $ 37 % 8 % 275 $ 59 $ — $ 379

Marketable securitie 173 3 — — — 176

Restricted cash and securit — 3 20 11 — 34

Accounts receivable, n — — 84 308 — 392

Due from (to) affiliates 10,117 4,613 (14,853 123 — —

Current assets of discontinued operati — — — 597 — 597

Other 16 4 29 43 — 92
Total Current Assets 10,34: 4,631 (14,445 1,141 — 1,67C
Property, Plant and Equipment, | — — 3,40¢ 2,223 — 5,632
Marketable Securitie 234 — — — — 234
Restricted Cash and Securit 16 — — 59 — 75
Gooduwill and Intangibles, ni — — 85 206 — 291
Investment in Subsidiarie (6,257) (9,657) 802 — 15,10( —
Noncurremt Assets of Discontued Operati — — — 264 — 264
Other Assets, net 44 21 14 32 — 111
Total Assets $ 4,38€ $ (4,999 $ (10,135 $ 3,92t $ 15,10C $ 8,277
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

(Deficit)
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ — $ 19 141 $ 225 $ — $ 367

Current portion of lon-term debt — — — — —

Accrued payroll and employee bene — — 46 33 — 79

Accrued interes 83 18 — 1 — 102

Deferred revenu — — 138 61 — 199

Current liabilities of discontinued

operations — — — 539 — 539

Other 1 2 50 84 — 137
Total Current Liabilities 84 21 375 943 — 1,42¢
Long-Term Debt, less current portit 4,722 1,23C — 71 — 6,022
Deferred Revenu — — 633 104 — 737
Other Liabilities 56 1 196 317 — 570
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) (476) (6,251) (11,339 2,49(C 15,10( (476)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

(Deficit) 4,38¢ $ (4,999 $ (10,139 $ 3,92t $ 15,10C $ 8,277
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flomthdosix months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005xfollo

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

Level 3

For the six months ended June 30, 2006
(unaudited)

Communications, Level 3 Communications, Other
(dollars in millions) Inc. Financing, Inc. Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operat
Activities 171 $ 69 $ 18) $ 311 $ $ 53
Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Proceeds from sale and maturity of
marketable securitie — 5 — — 5
Purchases of marketable securi — — (98) — (98)
Increase in restricted cash and secur — — — (12) (12)
Capital expenditure — — (68) (63) (131)
Advances to discontinued operations, — — — 2 2
Investments and acquisitic — — (88) 6 (82)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment and other ass — — 2 — 2
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Invest
Activities — 5 (252) (67) (314)
Cash Flows from Financing Activitie
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance
costs 326 681 — — 1,007
Refinancing costs and payments on long
term debt, including current portic (52) (53) — — (104)
Equity offering 543 — — — 543
Increase (decrease) in due from affiliates
net (666) (556) 1,46€ (246) —
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financ
Activities 152 72 1,46€ (246) 1,44€
Net Cash Provided by Discontinu
Operations — — — 14 14
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash
Equivalents — — 8 1) 7
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival (29) 8 1,20¢ 11 1,20€
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning o
Period (includes cash of discontinued
operations 37 8 275 132 452
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period
18 $ 16 $ 1,481 $ 143 $ $ 1,65

(includes cash of discontinued operatic
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the six months ended June 30, 2005

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Level 3 Communications, Other
(dollars in millions) Inc. Financing, Inc. LLC Subsidiaries  Eliminations Total
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operat
Activities $ (118 $ 62) % 56 $ 54 $ — $ (70)
Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Proceeds from sale and maturity of
marketable securitie — — 150 — — 150
Purchases of marketable securi (648) — — — — (648
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash and
securities — 3 (2) — — 1
Capital expenditure — — (70) (70) — (140
Advances to discontinued operations, — — — (8) — (8)
Investments and acquisitio (20) — — — — (20)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment and other ass — — 2 2 — 4
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Invest
Activities (658) 3 80 (76) — (651)
Cash Flows from Financing Activitie
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance
costs 877 — — — — 877
Payments on long-term debt, including
current portion (net of restricted ca: — — (25) (105) — (130
Increase (decrease) due from affiliates, net 8 54 (171) 109 — —
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financ
Activities 885 54 (196) 4 — 747
Net Cash Used in Discontinued Operati — — — (9) — 9)
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cas
Equivalents (1) — (10) (1) — (12)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival 108 (5) (70) (28) — 5
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of
Period (includes cash of discontinued
operations 3 17 245 178 — 443
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Peric
(includes cash of discontinued operatic ~ $ 111 $ 12 $ 175 $ 150 $ — $ 448

15. Subsequent Events
2008 Debt Redemption

On July 13, 2006, Level 3 redeemed all of its @utding 9.125% Senior Notes due 2008 and 10.5% SBisoount Notes due 2008.
Aggregate principal, call premium and accrued egétotaled $470 million.

The 9.125% Senior Notes due 2008 were redeemertedeaption price equal to 100% of the principleant of those notes plus accrued
and unpaid interest. The aggregate principal amofu®.125% Senior Notes due 2008 that were reddemas $398 million. The 10.5%
Senior Discount Notes due 2008 were redeemedeateanption price equal to 101.75% of the principabant at maturity of those notes plus
accrued and unpaid interest. The aggregate pahaipount at maturity of 10.5% Senior Discount atae 2008 that were redeemed was
$62 million.
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TelCove Acquisition

On July 24, 2006, Level 3 acquired all of the stoERelCove, Inc., a privately held Pennsylvanigdihtelecommunications company. Under
terms of the agreement, Level 3 paid $446 millimeash and issued approximately 150 million in sbaf Level 3 common stock. In
addition, Level 3 repaid $132 million of debt arcdjaired $13 million in capital leases in the trastgm. Also, the Company paid third party
costs of approximately $15 million related to trensaction, which included certain costs incurred ®lCove.

TelCove is a leading facilities-based provider @trapolitan and regional communications servicekitling transport, Internet access and
voice services. TelCove’s network has over 22,@@@lland long haul route miles serving 70 marketsss the eastern United States, with
approximately 4,000 buildings on net.

Looking Glass Acquisition

On August 2, 2006, Level 3 completed the acquisiibLooking Glass Networks Holding Co., Inc., a/ptely held lllinois-based
telecommunications company.

The aggregate consideration paid by Level 3 coeist approximately $9 million in cash and approaiety 21 million shares of Level 3
common stock. In addition, at the closing, Leve¢faid approximately $67 million of Looking Gldebilities.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the Company’s consolidated financial stagats (including the notes thereto),
included elsewhere herein and the Company’s 200%uAhReport on Form 10-K filed with the Securitégsl Exchange Commission.

This document contains forward looking statementbiaformation that are based on the beliefs ofagament as well as assumptions made
by and information currently available to Level 8f@munications, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Leveb8the “Company”). When used in this
document, the words “anticipate”, “believe”, “plarigstimate” and “expect” and similar expressiasthey relate to the Company or its
management, are intended to identify forward-loglstatements. Such statements reflect the curiewswof the Company with respect to
future events and are subject to certain risksetaimties and assumptions. Should one or moreeskt risks or uncertainties materialize, or
should underlying assumptions prove incorrect,aatsults may vary materially from those descrilethis document. For a more detailed
description of these risks and factors, pleasd¢tme€ompany’s 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K fikgth the Securities and Exchange

Commission and Item 1A in this quarterly reportrmrm 10-Q.

Level 3 Communications, Inc., through its operasngsidiaries, is primarily engaged in the commatidns business with additional
operations in coal mining.

Communication Services

The Company is a facilities based provider of aarmange of integrated communications services/eRee for communications services is
recognized on a monthly basis as these servicggavaled. For contracts involving private lineavelengths and dark fiber services, Lev
may receive up-front payments for services to biweled for a period of up to 20 years. In theisgasions, Level 3 will defer the revenue
and amortize it on a straight-line basis to earmioger the term of the contract.

The Company separates its communication servitestiree separate categories: 1) Core Communicagenvices, 2) Other
Communications Services, and 3) SBC Contract Sesvi&ach category of revenue is in a differenspldd the service life cycle, requiring
different levels of investment and focus and pringddifferent contributions to the Company’s AdetOIBDA. Management of Level 3
believes that growth in revenue from its Core Comitations Services is critical to the long-termess of its communications business. At
the same time, the Company believes it must coatinumanage effectively the positive cash flowsrflits SBC Contract Services and its
Other Communications Services including the Companmyature managed modem business and its relatipdosadl compensation. The Ci
Communications Services group includes transpattiafrastructure, IP and data services, voice apakWideo and advertising distribution
services. The Other Communications Services gitetlpdes managed modem and related reciprocal cosatien and legacy managed IP
service business. In 2005, Other Communicatiomgi&ss included DSL aggregation services whichreréonger provided. The SBC
Contract Services product group includes all tivemees related to the SBC Master Services Agreeomanitact, which was obtained in the
December 23, 2005 acquisition of WilTel.

The Companys transport and infrastructure services includecation services, wavelength, private line, dapkifiand transoceanic servic
Growth in transport and infrastructure revenueigely dependent on increased demand for bandwédtlices and available capital of
companies requiring communications capacity foirtben use or in providing capacity as a serviaavfter to their customers. These
expenditures may be in the form of up-front payreemtmonthly payments for private line, wavelengtidark fiber services. An increase in
demand may be partially offset by declines in pniting.

IP and data services primarily include the Compsamgh speed Internet access service and IP-VRNcssr Level 3's high speed Internet
access service is a high quality and high-speetriat access service offered in a variety of caigaci The Company’s IP-VPN services
permit businesses of any size to replace multiptevarks with a single, cost-effective solution thatatly simplifies the converged
transmission of voice, video, and data. This cogerce to a single platform can be obtained witlsaatificing the quality of service or
security levels of traditional ATM and Frame Reti#ferings. IP-VPN services also permit customerprioritize network application traffic
so that high priority applications, such as voind &ideo, are not compromised in performance byfltve of low priority applications such :
email.
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The conversion from narrow band dial-up serviceSigher speed broadband services is expected teaise demand for the Company’s core
communications services. Revenue growth in thia erelependent on the continued increase in usabeth enterprises and consumers and
the pricing environment. An increase in the religband security of information transmitted ovaetinternet and declines in the cost to
transmit data have resulted in increased utiliratibe-commerce or web based services by busineBsesCompany, however, continues to
experience lower revenue growth due to price cosgina for its IP and data services. These declirege partially offset by a 68% increase
in IP and data traffic for the second quarter di@@ompared to the second quarter of 2005. Cuhightlevels of available capacity and the
numerous companies competing in this market hasidtesl in a very competitive pricing environment.

The Company’s average price per megabyte declipprbaimately 30% in 2005. In addition to pricingepsures, the decline in the
Company'’s average price per megabyte was attrilrutathigher traffic from larger customers and oustrs moving to higher speed services
with a lower price per megabyte. The larger custianiave a lower price per megabyte due to higbleme commitments. Level 3 believes
that industry-wide, excess network inventory hasnbsignificantly reduced and pricing pressuresbaginning to moderate as evidenced by
the Company'’s improved pricing and increased waftilume. For its IP and data services, the Comgapgcts pricing to decline by
approximately 20% in 2006. The decline is pastidilie to contract renewals and volume discountsifgh traffic customers.

The Company continues to experience pricing presiurthose transport and infrastructure custortiesrequire simple, low quality, point-
to-point services, as competitors aggressivelyyrdghis business. However, Level 3 believesdbatpetitors are less willing to discount
these services if it requires investment in incretalecapacity to meet the customer’s requiremehts. those customers that provide high
quality content or require a combination of transpl® and voice solutions on a regional or natiguiatform, Level 3 is seeing some
indications that price compression is starting tadarate and, in many cases, prices are startimgtease. Level 3 intends to remain
disciplined in its approach to pricing for its temort and IP services.

The emergence of a number of companies from batdyygotection and additional competition from atdestressed carriers continues to
contribute to the difficult and competitive opengtienvironment. The Company does not expect this@mment to change significantly until
the industry consolidates further and/or demanelacates.

The Company has developed voice services thatttiEngge and existing markets. The Company beli¢givatthe efficiencies of Level 3's IP
and optical-based network, including its Softswitebhnology, will provide customers a lower costmative than the existing circuit-
switched networks. The Company is moving to dgvéloth its capability to market and sell in theoesomarket and develop the internal
systems and processes necessary to support theenewes being launched. The revenue potentialdime services is large; however, the
revenues and margins are expected to continuectmée@ver time as a result of the new low cosaiid optical-based technologies. In
addition, the market for voice services is beirrgeted by many competitors, several of which amgelaand have more financial resources
than the Company.

Vyvx provides audio and video programming for itstomers over the Company’s fiber-optic network aiadsatellite. It uses the Compasay’
fiber-optic network to carry many live traditionaoadcast and cable television events from theo$itee event to the network control centers
of the broadcasters of the event. For live eveshisre the location is not known in advance, suchraaking news stories in remote locations,
Vyvx provides an integrated satellite and fiberiopetwork-based service to transmit the conteitstoustomers. Most of Vyvx’s customers
for these services contract for the service onvamieby-event basis; however, Vyvx has some custembo have purchased a dedicated
point-to-point service which enables these custsrteetransmit programming at any time.

Vyvx also distributes advertising spots to radid éelevision stations throughout the U.S., botlttetmically and in physical form. Customers
for these services can utilize a network-based atketbr aggregating, managing, storing and distiifgucontent for content owners and rights
holders.

The Company’s Other Communications Services aremagiroducts or services that are not areas of agipfor the Company. Other
Communications Services currently include managedam, related reciprocal compensation and legacyaged IP services.

The Company and its customers continue to see omersumigrate from narrow band dial-up servicesigbér speed broadband services as

the narrow band market matures. Additionally, AiceeOnline, a primary customer of the Company’s-diaservices, recently announced a
strategic change in its approach to its dial-uprimtt access business that may accelerate theflitssslial-up subscribers. While this event is
not expected to affect managed modem revenuewtitite
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to America Online meaningfully in 2006, it couldveathe effect of accelerating the decline in thesenues in 2007 and beyond\s a resul
the Company expects to see continuing declinesaimaged modem revenue in the future. The Compamgnézed approximately $77
million and $156 million of managed modem revenuéhe first three and six months of 2006, respettivan approximate 25% decline from
the same periods in 2005. These declines may tigateid in the short term by an increase in maskate and mid to longer term by growth
in IP-based services offered by the Company thadtesd the market shift to higher speed broadbamites. Level 3 believes that the low
cost structure of its network will enable it to aggsively compete for new business in the IP-basadket.

Level 3 receives compensation from other carridrsmit terminates traffic originating on those &g’ networks. This reciprocal
compensation is based on interconnection agreeméthtshe respective carriers or rates mandatetth®y=CC. The Company earns the
majority of its reciprocal compensation revenuerfrproviding managed modem services.

Legacy managed IP services primarily include loeespservices which utilize ATM technology, as vesllVPN and managed security
services. The Compars/legacy Internet access business consists printdrd business that was acquired in the Genuatystaction in 2002
The Company has elected not to pursue additiorssbmers and to limit the capital invested in thasnponent of its business.

The SBC Master Services Agreement was an agredmeémeen SBC Services Inc. and WilTel and was aeduir the WilTel transaction in
December 2005. Recently, SBC Services Inc. beeasubsidiary of AT&T Inc., (together “SBC”). WilTand SBC amended their
agreement in June 2005 to run through 2009. Thairéng gross margin commitment under the agreem&if June 30, 2006 was
approximately $165 million for the period throudie tend of 2007, and $75 million from January 2008ugh the end of 2009. Only
purchases of on-net services count toward satisfaof this purchase commitment. Originating amthieating access charges paid to local
phone companies are passed through to SBC in amumedvith a formula that approximates cost. Adddity, the SBC Master Services
Agreement provides for the payment of $50 milliconi SBC if certain performance criteria are metbyel 3. If Level 3 meets the
performance criteria, it is eligible to earn $23liom in 2006 and $25 million in 2007. As of Jun@, 2006, Level 3 has recognized $5 million
attributable to the performance criteria.

Level 3's management continues to review all of@lmenpany’s existing lines of business and servftariags to determine how those lines
of business and service offerings assist with the@any’s focus on delivery of communications arfdrimation services and meeting its
financial objectives. To the extent that certaine$ of business, business segments or servicéngfeare not considered to be compatible
the delivery of the Company’s services or with atitay financial objectives, Level 3 may exit thdsees of business, business segments or
stop offering those services.

Management focuses on Adjusted OIBDA, cash flowmfoperating activities and capital expenditureas®ess the operating performanc
the communications business. Management belieatRtfjusted OIBDA, when viewed over time, reflettie operating trend and
performance of its communications business. Adju&iEBDA, or a similar measure, also is an indicatbperformance used by Level 3's
competitors and is used by management in evaluagiatjve performance.

Management of Level 3 believes the introduction@iv services or technologies, as well as the fudbgelopment of existing technologies,
may reduce the cost or increase the supply ofioestvices similar to those provided by LevelThe ability of the Company to anticipate,
adapt and invest in these technology changesimedyt manner may affect the future success of the@any.

The Company completed the initial planned deploytnoéthe next generation of optical transport tembgy in its North American and
European networks in the fourth quarter of 2005 eandly in the first quarter of 2006, respectivelshe Company has decided to deploy the
technology for additional routes in North AmerigadeEurope and completed the deployments on theges 2006. The Company began
an upgrade of its IP backbone technology in thel thuarter of 2005. Level 3 believes that thisldgment of new equipment to the existing
network equipment will allow the Company to optimithe amount of traffic it carries over the netwarld lower the cost of providing
services.

In order to expand its service offerings in Euradpe, Company expects to invest $20 million for ekdéer based expansion in nine Europ
markets in 2006. The dark fiber is expected tda@por supplement existing wavelength capacity.
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The communications industry continues to consadidatevel 3 has participated in this process withdcquisitions of WilTel, Progress
Telecom, ICG Communications, TelCove and Lookinggs! Level 3 will continue to evaluate consoliolatbpportunities and could make
additional acquisitions in 2006.

The successful integration of these businessed.mel 3 is important to the success of Level Bie Tompany must quickly identify
synergies, integrate the networks and support @gaons, while maintaining the service qualityééssexpected by customers.

Level 3 has embarked on a strategy to expand iterumetro presence. The strategy will allow@wmpany to terminate traffic over its
owned metro facilities rather than paying thirdtgerto terminate the traffic. Level 3's ability provide high-speed bandwidth directly to
customer facilities is expected to be a competitieantage as local exchange companies often doroaitle this service. The Company
intends to offer the traditional set of serviceshase markets and concentrate its sales effortiseobhandwidth intensive businesses. The
expansion into new metro markets should also peautlitional opportunities to sell services on@oenpany’s national and international
networks. This new metro strategy includes thausitipns of Progress Telecom, ICG Communicatide$Cove and Looking Glass.

The Company is focusing its attention on 1) growiegenue through Core Communications Servicesp@firmuing to show improvements in
Adjusted OIBDA as a percentage of revenue, 3) cetimg) the integration of acquired businesses, 4)agimg cash flows provided by its
Other Communications Services and SBC Contracti@=syvand 5) developing its metro business. Thieipated change in the composition
of the Company’s revenue will require the Companynanage operating expenses carefully and conteirtsacapital expenditures on those
technologies and assets that will enable the Cognfadevelop its Core Communications Services &rrind replace the decline in revenue
and earnings from Other Communications ServicesSB1@ Contract Services.

In addition to the operational metrics mentionedva) the Company is also focusing on improvingiagsidity, financial condition, and
extending the maturity dates of certain debt ameeting the effective interest rate on its outstagdiebt over the long term. In January 2(
the Company completed the exchange of severaltteanaf its debt maturing in 2008 for a new tranchdebt maturing in 2010. The
Company was able to extend the maturity date ofcmately $692 million of debt due in 2008 to Mar2010.

In March 2006, Level 3 issued $150 million of FiogtRate Senior Notes due in 2011 and $250 millibh2.25% Senior Notes due in 2013.
In April 2006, the Company issued an additionalG8&0llion of the 12.25% Senior Notes due in 201Be proceeds from these offerings
were used to fund the cash portion of the WilTal Bnogress Telecom acquisitions as well as funadlse of construction, installation,
acquisition, lease, development or improvementtioéioassets to be used in Level 3's communicatioisiness.

In June 2006, Level 3 issued $335 million in anamditten public offering of 3.5% Convertible SenNotes due 2012. The Company also
completed the underwritten public offering of 12Blion shares of its common stock for which it rees $543 million in net proceeds.

Level 3 used a portion of these proceeds to redsdected series of its debt securities maturirgpip8. On July 13, 2006, Level 3 redeemed
all of its 9.125% Senior Notes due 2008 and 10.8#i@ Discount Notes due 2008 for total consideratf $461 million, excluding accrued
interest. The remaining proceeds will be usedtemially repurchase, redeem or refinance othistiag indebtedness from time to time, for
acquisitions and for general corporate purposesjding working capital and capital expenditures.

On June 27, 2006, the Company amended and re#iatedsting $730 million senior secured creditifigcto reduce the interest rate payable
under the agreement by 400 basis points, modifpthpayment provisions and make other specifiedgbs The Company paid
approximately $42 million to existing debt holdarsd $11 million to third parties in transactiontsa® complete the transaction.

The Company will continue to look for opportunitiesimprove its financial position in 2006 and fedts resources on growing revenue and
managing costs for the communications business.
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Information Services

On November 30, 2005, the Company sold its whollyred subsidiary, i()Structure, LLC, which provided computer outsougcservices
primarily to small and medium-sized businessese Chmpany also completed the disposition of itsaiemg subsidiary in the information
services business, Software Spectrum, Inc. on Bdqae7, 2006. The results of operations and firdposition for (i)Structure and Softwe
Spectrum are reflected as discontinued operatimnalif periods presented in this report.

Coal Mining

Level 3, through its two 50% owned joint ventureface mines in Montana and Wyoming, sells coal prily through long-term contracts
with public utilities. The long-term contracts fibre delivery of coal establish the price, volume] guality requirements of the coal to be
delivered. Revenue under these and other conisagtsognized when coal is shipped to the customer.

Critical Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies set forth intdld to the consolidated financial statements énGbompany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2005 appropriagpisesent, in all material respects, the curretistof the Company'’s critical accounting
policies, and are incorporated herein by reference.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123R on January B.286AS No. 123R requires that compensation ebsting to share-based payment
transactions be recognized in the financial statesieased on the fair value of equity or liabilitgtruments issued. The Company adopted
the expense recognition provisions of SFAS No. 188¢counting for Stock-Based Compensation” in 199erefore, the effect of applying
the change from the original provisions of SFAS W23 on the Company’s financial position or resafteperations for the three months
ended March 31, 2006 was insignificant.

The Company also adopted Emerging Issues Task Fsgae No. 04-6, “Accounting for Stripping Costsurred during Production in the
Mining Industry” (“EITF No. 04-6") effective Januad, 2006. EITF No. 04-6 concluded that stripptiogts incurred during the production
phase of a mine are variable production costssthadild be included in the costs of the inventodpiced during the period that the stripping
costs are incurred. EITF No. 04-6 further defime®ntory produced as mineral that has been extlacfs a result, stripping costs related to
exposed, but not extracted mineral must be expessé@tturred rather than deferred until the minisraktracted. The Company’s coal
mining business had previously deferred strippiosi€ and amortized these costs over the periodhichvthe underlying coal is mined. The
Company'’s adoption of EITF No. 04-6 on JanuaryQQ@&required it to adjust beginning retained eaysi@accumulated deficit) for the
amount of prepaid stripping costs previously deférrThe Company decreased beginning equity byii®@mas a result of the adoption of
EITF No. 04-6.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation N¢."ABcounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — Arterpretation of FASB Statement
No. 10¢" (“FIN No. 48"). FIN No. 48 clarifies the accounty for uncertainty in income taxes recognized ireaterprises financial statemen

in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, “Accowunfor Income Taxes.” FIN No. 48 also prescribagcognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statemecbgnition and measurement of a tax position takesxpected to be taken in a tax return
that results in a tax benefit. Additionally, FINoN48 provides guidance on de-recognition, incotagement classification of interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesand transition. This interpretation is effeetfer fiscal years beginning after Decembel
2006. The Company is currently evaluating theatffieat the application of FIN No. 48 will have s consolidated results of operations and
financial condition, but given its current net agtimg losses and operating loss carryforwards, doegxpect a significant effect on its results
of operations or financial condition as a resuladdpting FIN No. 48.

In June 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus oargimg Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 0630w Taxes Collected from
Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorlesuld Be Presented in the Income Statement” (“BEN6F06-3"). The scope of

EITF No. 06-3 includes any tax assessed by a govemtal authority that is directly imposed on a rmeproducing transaction between a
seller and a customer and may include, but isinotdd to, sales, use, value added, Universal Servund (“USF”) contributions and some
excise taxes. The Task Force affirmed its conctutliat entities should present these taxes imit@e statement on either a gross or a net
basis, based on their accounting policy, which &hba disclosed pursuant to APB Opinion No. 22 stihdsure of Accounting Policies.” If
such taxes are significant, and are presentedgoass basis, the amounts of those taxes shouldstlesed. The consensus on EITF No. 06-3
will be effective for interim and annual reportipgriods beginning after December 15, 2006. The [@my currently records USF
contributions on a gross basis in its
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consolidated statements of operations, but recgalds, use, value added and excise taxes billégl ¢castomers on a net basis in its
consolidated statements of operations. The Comgaayg not expect that the effect of adopting EIT: 06-3 will be significant to its
reported revenue, operating income and net earoinigss, but is currently evaluating the effect.

Results of Operations 2006 vs. 2005

Revenuefor the periods ended June 30, is summarized Esv®l(dollars in millions):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Communication: $ 819 $ 371 $ 162z $ 881
Coal Mining 16 19 34 36

$ 835 $ 390 $ 1657 $ 917

Communicationsrevenue is separated into three categories: 1) Conemunications Services (including transport arfchstructure service
wholesale IP and data services, voice serviced/gmd services), 2) Other Communications Servicesl{iding managed modem and its
related reciprocal compensation, DSL aggregatiod,legacy managed IP services), and 3) SBC Corertces. Revenue attributable to
these service categories is provided in the folhgatable:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2006 2005
Core Communications Service
Transport and Infrastructu $ 217 $ 123 $ 415 $ 371
Wholesale IP and Da 67 45 131 86
Voice 107 25 205 51
Vyvx 30 — 59 —
421 193 810 508
Other Communication Service
Managed Moden 77 103 156 210
Reciprocal Compensatic 28 29 54 57
Managed IF 15 22 33 45
DSL Aggregation — 24 — 61
120 178 243 373
SBC Contract Services. 278 — 570 —
Total Communications Revenue $ 819 $ 371 $ 162 $ 881

The Company’s Core Communications Services incce&$8% in the second quarter of 2006 comparedetedicond quarter of 2005. The
acquisitions of WilTel, Progress Telecom and ICGr@wunications and growth in the Company’s existingdpcts contributed to the
increase. For the three months ended June 30, P@6gress Telecom and ICG Communications repoeteehue of $15 million and $6
million, respectively. During the first half of @6, the Company integrated a significant portioM6ifTel into the business. As a result
separate revenue information for former WilTel ousérs is no longer available. The Company continaesee demand for complex
nationwide solutions and colocation capacity igéamarkets within its transport and infrastructousiness.

Wholesale IP and data services revenue increaseéldedhree months ended June 30, 2006, primauniégytd the customers obtained in the

WilTel transaction. Wholesale IP and data reveaise increased due to traffic growth in North Aroarfrom new and existing customers
exceeded the rate of price compression. Traffisvftavas mitigated by a customer’s migration
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of traffic to its own network which was acquireé\d merger with another carrier. Improved markeeptance of the Company's IP-VPN
service and the continued growth of previously @@drcontracts also contributed to the increasehiolesale IP and data revenue.

Level 3's voice revenue increased for the threethmanded June 30, 2006 compared to the same per2@®5 primarily due to the
operations acquired in the WilTel transaction, ipatarly domestic and international voice terminatservices, and growth in Level 3's
existing wholesale and VolP-related services. dditgon, 2006 revenue attributable to the Compamyisting local inbound service increa
by approximately $3 million or 167% from 2005 level

The Vyvx business was acquired on December 23, 26@#art of the WilTel transaction. Revenue of 88llion is included in the results of
operations for the three months ended June 30,.2006

Managed modem revenue declined in 2006 as a i&sihié continued migration from narrow band dialsgpvices to higher speed broadband
services by end user customers. This change eesulta decline in the demand for managed modems.pémerica Online, the Company’s
largest managed modem customer, reduced the nwhperts it purchased from Level 3 by approximat@¥o during 2005. Managed
modem revenue also declined in 2006 as a resukrtdin contracts being renewed or renegotiatgdieds lower than were in effect in 2005.

The Company expects, excluding the effects of fuagquisitions and increases in market share, neanagdem related revenue to continue
to decline in the future, primarily due to an irese in the number of subscribers migrating to dvaad services and to potential pricing
concessions as contracts are renewed.

The Company’s primary DSL aggregation customer beégamigrate its DSL subscribers to its own netwoekinning in the first quarter of
2005. The customer completed the migration ddutsscribers in the third quarter of 2005. The Camnys other DSL contracts expired in
2005 and were not renewed. The Company did nogréze DSL revenue in 2006 and does not expe&dognize DSL aggregation rever
in the foreseeable future.

Reciprocal compensation revenue declined slightihé second quarter of 2006 versus the secondequdir2005 primarily due to the signi
of interconnection agreements with other carrier80d05 that resulted in the Company receiving &loate per minute for terminating trafi
The majority of the Company’s interconnection agreats provide rate structures through 2006. Thagamy earns the majority of its
reciprocal compensation revenue from managed maaewices.

Level 3 has interconnection agreements in placéh®omajority of traffic subject to reciprocal coemsation. Level 3 continues to negotiate
new interconnection agreements with its local easti To the extent that the Company is unablétorsew interconnection agreements, s
new agreements containing lower rates, there igréfisant decline in the Company’s managed modéatrup business, or FCC or state
regulations change such that carriers are notmredjtd compensate other carriers for terminatiriRrh®und traffic, reciprocal compensation
revenue may decline significantly over time.

The Company’s legacy Managed IP business congistaply of a business that was acquired in the @grtransaction in 2003. The
Company has not invested in this service and iaottely looking for new customers. The declinggvenue is attributable to the
disconnection of service by existing customerse Tompany expects this trend to continue through006.

The SBC Master Services Agreement was obtaindaeiWilTel transaction. Under the terms of the agrent, SBC has gross margin
purchase commitments through 2009. Due to thefgignce of the commitment, the Company has eletdex®parate and report revenue
generated under this contract from its Other Comioations Services. Level 3 earned revenue of aqmiately $278 million attributable to
this contract in the second quarter of 2006 of Whaipproximately 26% will apply to the gross manginchase commitment. The remaining
gross margin commitment under the agreement asnaf 30, 2006 was approximately $165 million for pleeiod through the end of 2007,
and $75 million from January 2008 through the eh20®9. Additionally, the SBC Master Services Agrent provides for the payment of
$50 million from SBC if certain performance crigeare met by Level 3. If Level 3 meets the perfarogecriteria, it is eligible to earn $25
million in 2006 and $25 million in 2007. As of JuB@, 2006, Level 3 has recognized $5 million attréble to the performance criteria.

SBC has begun to migrate its traffic to the AT&Twerk acquired in 2005. The Company expects regemd gross margin to decline in
future periods. However, SBC must still complylwihe minimum margin commitments contained in @stcact.
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Communications revenue for the six months ended 30n2006 increased compared to the same per@@Dif for the same reasons noted
above for the three month periods ended June 3@ 20d 2005. Partially offsetting the increaseeirenue in 2006 was the recognition of
$129 million of termination revenue in the firstagter of 2005. Transport and infrastructure reeefou the six months ended June 30, 2005
includes the $130 million of termination revenugrarily attributable to agreements reached witmEeaTelecom and 360networks relating
to the termination of existing dark fiber leaseesgnents with those customers described below. imation revenue of $1 million was
included in transport and infrastructure revenuete six months ended June 30, 2006.

In February 2005, France Telecom and Level 3 frealian agreement to terminate a dark fiber agreesigamed in 2000. Under the terms of
the agreement France Telecom returned the fibeevel 3. Under the original IRU agreement, thehaaseived by Level 3 was deferred and
amortized to revenue over the 20-year term of greement. As a result of this transaction, Leved@®gnized unamortized deferred revenue
of approximately $40 million as non-cash terminatievenue in the first quarter of 2005.

In March 2005, Level 3 entered into an agreemetit @0networks in which both parties agreed to ieate a 20year IRU agreement. Unc
the new agreement, 360networks returned the daek €iriginally provided by Level 3. Under the ongi IRU agreement, signed in 2000, the
revenue associated with the cash received by L3wels deferred and amortized to revenue over thgeda@term of the agreement. As a
result of this transaction, Level 3 recognizeduhamortized deferred revenue of approximately $8&m as non-cash termination revenue
in the first quarter of 2005.

The Company expects to recognize termination rexémthe future if customers desire to renegotiatgracts or are required to terminate
service. The Company is not able to estimate tkeifip value of these types of transactions uhgytoccur, but does not currently expect to
recognize significant termination revenue for thefeeable future.

Wholesale IP and data services revenue increasg@Did primarily due to the customers obtained eWilTel transaction and traffic growth
in North America from new and existing customersvall as improved market acceptance of the Comsal8*VPN service.

The acquisition of WilTel's domestic and internatib voice termination contracts in December 2005 gnowth in these services and Level
3’s voice services were the primary factors resuitinpe increase in voice revenue for the six memthded June 30, 2006 as compared t
corresponding period in 2005.

The continued migration from narrow band dial-up/gees to higher speed broadband services resutediecline in demand for ports and a
reduction in managed modem revenue for the six hsoehded June 30, 2006 compared to the same pe2005. As noted earlier, America
Online reduced the number of ports it purchaseohftevel 3 by approximately 30% and certain consaeotre renewed at lower prices dul
2005.

Reciprocal compensation revenue declined from 20@&s primarily due to the signing of interconneatagreements with other carriers in
2005 that resulted in the Company receiving a laatr per minute for terminating traffic.

Coal mining revenue decreased from $19 million for the threatimoended June 30, 2005 to $16 million for theghmonths ended June 30,
2006. The decrease in revenue is attributablelt@?a decline in the average price per ton of col and a 3% decline in coal shipped in
2006 compared to the same period in 2005. The piécline is attributable to coal sold under a rmttthat was renewed in 2005 and
contained a lower price per ton than the origimeitract.

For the six month period ending June 30, 2006, salgls declined 6% versus the same period in 28@0511% decline in the average price
per ton of coal sold was partially offset by a #¥rease in tons shipped. The Company began deliveoal under new and amended
contracts during the first quarter of 2005. The@ase in tons shipped in 2006 is attributable ¢octhntracts awarded during 2005.

Cost of Revenudor the communications business, as a percentagevenue, was 47% and 30% for the three monthsdejutee 30, 2006
and 2005, respectively. The increase is due teitiréficant voice and SBC contract services reeesiotained in the WilTel acquisition. The
margins for the SBC contract services revenueaveid than the margins earned on other componecitgdied in Core and Other
Communications Services. Partially offsetting lihveer WilTel margins were
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the margins earned by Progress Telecom and ICG Qumications. Margins for these businesses weghth}i higher in 2006 than those
reported by the Company in 2005.

The communications business’ cost of revenue,ms@ntage of revenue for the six months ended 32006 and 2005 was 48% and
26%, respectively. The increase is primarily atttéle to the recognition of termination revenu@®5 and incremental revenue relating to
the operations acquired from WilTel which was ratagd in 2006. In the first quarter of 2005, thex@pany recognized $129 million of
termination revenue, primarily related to 360netwgceind France Telecom. The termination revenud, matcorresponding cost of revenue,
positively affected the percentage in 2005. Exiclgdermination revenue, the cost of revenue, pesreentage of revenue, would have been
30% for the six months ended June 30, 2005. Casivenue, as a percentage of revenue, increas#iDih due to the voice and SBC
Contract Services revenue obtained in the WilTgquagition.

Cost of revenue, as a percentage of revenue, dacdhl mining business increased from 47% for biheet months ended June 30, 2005 to
for the three months ended June 30, 2006 and fi®n fér the six months ended June 30, 2005 to 88%héosix months ended June 30,
2006. In the second quarter of 2005, the Compaasy able to favorably resolve certain productionisaxes. The resolution of this matter
resulted in a $5 million reduction in cost of reuerfor the three and six months ended June 30,. 2D0&ddition, the decline in the average
price per ton of coal sold in 2006 versus 2005Itedun an increase in cost of revenue, as a pagerof revenue.

Depreciation and amortizationexpense was $164 million for the second quart@00686, a 1% increase from the depreciation and
amortization expense of $162 million in the samegokof 2005. The increase is primarily attributabb the communications tangible and
intangible assets that were acquired in the Witfia@isaction in December 2005 and the Progress drlé@nsaction in March 2006. This
increase was partially offset by an $18 million@ase in depreciation expense in the second quir#06 attributable to the change in
estimated useful life for fiber. The increase @prkciation and amortization expense was offs¢h&ghorter-lived communications assets,
including intangible assets, that were placed imise in prior years that became fully depreciatedmortized during the second half of 2005
and the first quarter of 2006.

Depreciation and amortization expense for the sixtims ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $351 maidr$328 million, respectively. T
increase is primarily attributable to transactians factors described above.

Selling, general and administrativeexpenses increased 57% to $283 million for theetimenths ended June 30, 2006 compared to the sam
period in 2005. This increase is primarily attrdole to the inclusion of a full quarter of expenassociated with the operations acquired in
the WilTel and Progress Telecom transactions. iBpalty, increases in compensation, bonus, andleyge related costs, network related
costs and facility-based expenses all contributetie increase in selling, general and administagxpenses in 2006.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ataliie to the Company’s other businesses in thenskeguarter of 2005 included the
favorable settlement of an obligation to providsuirance for employees of the Company’s former pgiokebusiness and the receipt of
insurance proceeds reimbursing the Company for paygsmade to settle legacy environmental litigati®hese items resulted in a $6 mill
decline in selling, general and administrative egas in 2005. The Company does not expect taeeadist reductions of this magnitude in
the future for these businesses.

Included in operating expenses for the second guaft2006 and 2005, were $20 million and $9 millicespectively, of non-cash
compensation and professional expenses recognimbzt SFAS No. 123R and SFAS No. 123, respectivelgted to grants of outperform
stock options, warrants and other sthelsed compensation programs. The increase is [ilsirdae to an increase in outperform stock opti
restricted stock and restricted stock units graimte2D06 and an increase in the value of the optgmanted to employees. In addition, during
the second quarter of 2006, the October 2005 amabdg 2006 grants were revalued using May 15, 2808ie grant date, in accordance with
SFAS No. 123R, and resulted in a $6 million incesizisnon-cash compensation expense during the departer of 2006. As stated in the
Company’s proxy materials for its 2006 Annual Megtof Stockholders, over the course of the yearsesApril 1, 1998, the compensation
committee of the Company’s Board of Directors hdohimistered the 1995
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Stock Plan under the belief that the action ofGloenpany’s Board of Directors to amend and restateplan effective April 1, 1998 had the
effect of extending the original term of the PlarApril 1, 2008. After a further review of the tes of the plan, however, the compensation
committee determined that an ambiguity could essto the date of the expiration of the plan. Troaee any ambiguity, the Board of
Directors sought the approval of the Company’sidiolders to amend the plan to extend the termeptan by five years to September 25,
2010. This approval was obtained at the 2006 Aniegting of Stockholders held on May 15, 2006.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&1% to $559 million for the six months endeaeJB80, 2006 compared to the same
period in 2005. This increase is primarily attrédoie to the factors described above. In addipantially offsetting the increase in
communication expenses was a property tax berfe$if anillion pertaining to the Company’s faciliti@sthe United Kingdom in the first
quarter of 2006.

Included in operating expenses for the first haR@06 and 2005, were $34 million and $19 millioespectively, of non-cash compensation
and professional expenses recognized under SFAZ28®R and SFAS No. 123, respectively, related amigrof outperform stock options,
warrants and other stock-based compensation pregrEine increase is primarily due to the factorsdiesd above.

Beginning in the third quarter of 2006, the Comparpects to issue both restricted stock units aB®©on a quarterly basis.

The Company expects selling, general and admitiigraxpenses to increase in 2006 versus 2005esult of the WilTel, Progress Telecc
ICG Communications, TelCove and Looking Glass agitians.

Restructuring and impairment chargeswere $7 million for the three months ended June2806 and $4 million for the same period in
2005. In the second quarter of 2006, the Compatygreized approximately $3 million of restructuriclyarges attributable to the workforce
reductions of the communications business in NArtterica.

Non-cash impairment charges were $4 million in eacthefthree months ended June 30, 2006 and 20Q®atdésely. During the second
quarter of 2006, Level 3 recognized $4 million ohrcash impairment charges primarily related teesgdand of the communications
business deemed available for sale in Germanys dirarge resulted from the difference betweendberded carrying value and the
estimated market value of the land.

Nor-cash impairment charges of $4 million were recogdiin the second quarter of 2005 as a resulteofléitision to terminate projects for
certain Softswitch related products in the commaitidms business. The costs incurred for thesegimjincluding capitalized operating
expenses, were impaired as the carrying valueasietiprojects exceeded their estimated fair value.

Restructuring and impairment charges were $11anilfor the first half of 2006 and $19 million fdret same period in 2005. In the first half
of 2006, the Company recognized approximately $#ianiof restructuring charges attributable to therkforce reductions of the
communications business in North America. In ih& fjuarter of 2005, the Company recognized agprately $15 million of restructuring
charges related to the workforce reductions oftttramunications business in North America and Eurofiee employees affected by this
workforce reduction provided support functions arked directly on mature products. All obligaticatsributable to the 2005 restructuring
activities were paid in 2005.

Non-cash impairment charges were $7 million and $4ionilfor the six months ended June 30, 2006 and,2@8bectively. In addition to tl
$4 million of non-cash impairment charges in theosel quarter of 2006 discussed above, the Compaognized $3 million of non-cash
impairment charges in the first quarter of 2006 tkaulted from the decision to terminate projéotertain voice services and certain
information technology projects in the communicasidousiness. These projects have identifiablesaaisich Level 3 can evaluate separately
for impairment. The costs incurred for these ptgeincluding capitalized labor, were impairedtascarrying value of these projects
exceeded their estimated fair value.

Adjusted OIBDA is defined by the Company, as operating incomes)lfsem the consolidated statements of operatiess,depreciation and

amortization expense, less non-cash compensatjmener included within selling, general and admiai&tn expense on the consolidated
statements of operations, and less the non-casiopof restructuring and impairment charges.
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Adjusted OIBDA is not a measurement under accogrgimciples generally accepted in the United Stated may not be used by other
companies. Management believes that Adjusted OIBDsh important component of the Company’s interapbrting and is an indicator of
profitability and operating performance used bycthif operating decision maker or decision maljraup, especially in a capital-intensive
industry such as telecommunications. Adjusted OlB&x8ludes interest expense and income tax expewkether gains/losses not included
in operating income. Excluding these items elimesahe expenses associated with the Comparapitalization and tax structures. Note 1
the consolidated financial statements providesaneiliation of Adjusted OIBDA for each of the Coamy’s operating segments.

Adjusted OIBDA for the communications business éased to $170 million in the second quarter of Zo@® $88 million for the same

period in 2005. This increase is primarily atttdole to the operations acquired in the WilTel Bndgress Telecom transactions, which were
acquired in December 2005 and March 2006, respaygtivPartially offsetting the increase are castructuring charges of $3 million in the
second quarter of 2006. There were no restrugfutirarges in the second quarter of 2005.

Adjusted OIBDA for the communications business #2%7 million and $289 million for the six monthsdex June 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The increase in 2006 is primarilyilatitable to the operations acquired in the Wildietl Progress Telecom transactions. In
addition, a decline in restructuring charges frath illion in the first half of 2005 to $4 milliom the first half of 2006 also contributed to
the improved results. Partially offsetting thetsens was the $128 million reduction in terminatéord settlement revenue from 2005 to 2006.

Adjusted OIBDA for the Company’s coal and otheribasses for each of the three and six months ehdeel 30, 2006 was less than $1
million. In 2005, Adjusted OIBDA was $12 milliomd $13 million for the corresponding periods. Tleemase in both periods is primarily
attributable to the favorable resolution of certainduction tax issues, which resulted in a $5iarildecrease in the cost of revenue for the
mining business in the second quarter of 2005,aa%@ million benefit, related to the favorable leatient of an obligation to provide insura
for employees of the Company’s former packagingr®ss and the receipt of insurance proceeds resmguthe Company for payments
made to settle legacy environmental litigation,tabating to the lower selling, general and adntiive expenses of the Company’s other
businesses in the second quarter of 2005.
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Interest Incomewas $16 million for the three months ended June&B06 increasing from $10 million for the same perof 2005. This
increase is the result of increases in the weigatetlage interest rate earned on the portfoliciatice average cash and marketable security
portfolio balance. The Company’s average returitoportfolio during the second quarter increagsedf2.6% in 2005 to 4.3% in 2006. The
average cash balance also increased by approxyni&ed from 2005 to 2006.

Interest Incomevas $25 million for the first half of 2006 increagifrom $14 million in the same period of 2005 hisTincrease is the result
increases in the weighted average interest rateedam the portfolio and in the average cash anftetable security portfolio balance. The
Company'’s average return on its portfolio during tinst half of the year increased from 2.4% in 208 4.0% in 2006. The average cash
balance also increased by approximately 15% frob520 2006. Pending utilization of cash and caglivalents, the Company invests the
funds primarily in government and government agesenyurities and money market funds. The investrsieategy generally provides lower
yields on the funds than on alternative investmdnisreduces the risk to principal in the shomit@rior to these funds being used in
Company’s business.

Interest Expense, netncreased by $31 million from $139 million for ttieee months ended June 30, 2005 to $170 milli&0D6. Interest
expense increased primarily as a result of incebagerest expense from the issuance of $550 miol2.25% Senior Notes due 2013 is¢
in the first half of 2006, $335 million of Convéyte Senior Notes due 2012 issued on June 13, F00&ting Rate Senior Notes due 2011
issued on March 14, 2006 and the $880 million &flDonvertible Senior Notes due 2011 in the secaradtgr of 2005. In addition, the
Company exchanged portions of its 9.125% Senioedldue 2008, 11% Senior Notes due 2008 and 10.5%r32ziscount Notes due 2008
for new 11.5% Senior Notes due 2010 during the fuarter of 2006, thereby increasing the effedtiterest expense on this debt. The
Company experienced a higher interest rate on786 #illion Senior Secured Term Loan due 2011 pgodts amendment in late June of
2006 which also resulted in increased interestgg®ain the second quarter of 2006.

Interest expense increased by $67 million from $288on for the first half of 2005 to $320 millioim 2006. Interest expense increased
primarily as a result of the transactions descriteave. Overall, the debt exchange transactiortfaddditional debt issued in the first and
second quarters of 2006, partially offset by reduogerest expense due to the amended and re§ta8&dmillion senior secured credit facil
and the redemption in July 2006 of the 9.125% SeMades due 2008 and 10.5% Senior Discount Note2@08, are expected to increase
Company’s annual interest expense in 2006.

Other, net decreased in the second quarter of 2006 compatbe tame period in 2005 primarily as a resulhef$55 million loss realized
on the amendment and restatement of the Compaeyi®iSSecured Term Loan due 2011 recognized is¢khend quarter of 2006.

Other, net decreased in the first half of 2006 careg to the same period in 2005 primarily as alre$the transaction described above. 1
decrease was partially offset by the $27 milliomgaalized on the debt exchange in the first aqurast 2006.

Income Tax Expensavas $1 million and $2 million for each of the thraenths ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectiaely,was less
than $1 million and was $2 million for the six mbatended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Discontinued Operations:

Software Spectrum revenue increased 38% from $5Ddmfor three months ending June 30, 2005 to%61llion for the three months
ending June 30, 2006, due to several large custoamracts and an increase in sales to mid-martkstbmers. Software Spectrum has
increased sales and marketing efforts and resotagsting mid-market businesses over the last a8tis resulting in higher revenues in
2006. The increase in revenue was partially offigedn increase in sales under software publisiagrsihcy licensing programs that result in
only a service fee being recognized as revenueeréitan the selling price of the software. Sofen@pectrum began experiencing an incr
in sales under Microsoft’s 6.0 licensing progrard amilar programs offered by other suppliers salvgears ago. Under these programs,
new enterprisavide licensing arrangements are priced, billed @itbcted directly by the software publishers. &afte Spectrum continues
provide sales and support services related to th@ssactions and earns a service fee directly frablishers for these activities. The
Company recognizes the service fee it receives\anue and not the entire value of the softwareutids program. Software Spectrum
recorded approximately $31 million and $22 millisirevenue attributable to these types of contriactise three months ended June 30, 2006
and 2005, respectively. The estimated sellingepoicthe software sold under these agreements #@& Million and $379 million for the
corresponding periods.
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Revenue attributable to Software Spectrum alseeaszd to $1,140 million for the six months endede R0, 2006 versus $970 million for 1
corresponding period in 2005 for the same reasotesirabove. An increase in agency sales in teetfiree months of 2006 compared to
2005 partially offset the increased revenue attable to the large contracts and mid-market busggsSoftware Spectrum recorded
approximately $48 million and $36 million of revenattributable to these types of contracts in then®nths ended June 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The estimated selling price of thiévgare sold under these agreements was $800 mainal $635 million for the corresponding
periods.

The software reseller industry is seasonal, witteneie and operating income typically being highehie second and fourth quarters of the
Company’s fiscal year.

The cost of revenue for Software Spectrum, as eepgaige of its revenue, was 90.6% for the secoadeyuof 2005 compared to 90.2% for
the same period in 2006. The increase in agereg 822006, which generally have higher margimmthon-agency sales, was the primary
factor in the improved results. This was partialfiset by lower margins earned on several largegracts which were awarded in the second
quarter of 2006. Software Spectrum is very rel@ntebates received from software publishers tadwvpits operating results. For the three
month periods ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, S&t®@ectrum earned approximately $21 million andiililon, respectively, in rebates
which reduced cost of revenue. The increase iateshin 2006 is directly attributable to the insein revenue.

For the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2085ptoevenue, as a percentage of revenue, fowamdtSpectrum was 90.5% and 91.3%,
respectively. The increase in agency sales arttehigbates in 2006 resulted in the improved margBoftware Spectrum earned $29 mil
and $19 million in rebates from publishers for ghbemonths ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, resphyctive

Software Spectrum experienced an increase in getieneral and administrative expenses from $3komiand $68 million for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2005, respectively, 3on$ittion and $81 million for the three and six ntleperiods ended June 30, 2006,
respectively, primarily due to an increase in headt and performance incentives.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows provided by (used in) continuing operagifor the six months ended June 30, 2006 and, 286pectively are as follows (dollars
in millions):

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2006 2005
Communications** $ 47 $ (72
Other 6 2
Total $ 53 $ (70

** Includes interest expense net of interest income

The improvement in communications operating casWdlfor the six months ended June 30, 2006 is piliyrettributable to improved
operating results after excluding the effects d%fhnillion of non-cash termination revenue in thistfquarter of 2005. The improved results
are directly attributable to the operations of WilTProgress Telecom and ICG Communications, wiviete acquired late in 2005 and first
half of 2006, and additional revenue from Core Camitations Services. Fluctuations in working caldiialances resulted in an incremental
source of cash of $15 million in the six month2006 compared to the same period in 2005. An as&én cash provided by accounts
receivable was partially offset by an increaseashcused for accounts payable and other currdnilities and a decline in deferred revenue.
Partially offsetting the increase in cash provitdgdperations and working capital fluctuations wieigher cash interest payments in 2006.
Cash interest payments increased by $54 milligherfirst six months of 2006 compared to the saered in 2005.

The increase in operating cash flows for the oblusinesses is primarily attributable to the paynoémertain legal and benefit obligations of
the coal and packaging business in 2005. Paymentkdse types of obligations decreased in 2006.

Investing activities in the first half of 2006 prmily include $70 million and $45 million of caskead for the acquisition of Progress Telecom
and ICG Communications, respectively, $131 millicsed for capital expenditures, primarily in the coamications business, and $98 million
to purchase short-term marketable securities.dttitian, the Company increased its restricted sgesiby $12 million, primarily for its coal
business. In the second quarter, the Companyvest&27 million from Leucadia for the WilTel purceaprice adjustment and $5 million of
proceeds from the sale of Infocrossing sharesveden the ( )Structure transaction.

Financing sources in 2006 consisted of $379 miltibproceeds from the issuance of the Floating Bat@or Notes due in 2011 and 12.25%
Senior Notes due in 2013, $301 million from theedfig of additional 12.25% Senior Notes due in 268326 million from the offering of
3.5% Convertible Senior Notes due 2012 and $54Bomibf proceeds from the offering of 125 milliohaes of common stock. The debt
exchange transaction in January 2006 required L®telpay $46 million of premiums to holders of thechanged notes. Level 3 also
incurred $5 million of third-party costs associateith this transaction. The $730 million creditegment amendment and restatement
required the payment of $53 million in fees to dediders and third parties.
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In July 2006, the Company used $470 million of dastedeem all the outstanding 9.125% Senior Nates10.5% Senior Discount Notes
due in 2008, including accrued interest. The Comadso completed the acquisition of TelCove on B4y2006. In the transaction, Level 3
issued approximately 150 million shares of commouksand paid $446 million in cash consideratidine Company also repaid $132 mill
of TelCove debt at closing. Also, the Company phird party costs of approximately $15 millionatdd to the transaction, which included
certain costs incurred by TelCove.

On August 2, 2006, Level 3 completed the acquisitibLooking Glass The aggregate consideratiod pgiLevel 3 was $96 million
consisting of approximately $9 million in cash approximately 21 million shares of Level 3 commuock. In addition, at the closing,
Level 3 repaid approximately $67 million of Looki@jass liabilities.

The improvement in cash provided by operating &/ for the discontinued information servicesigrdrom a use of $7 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2005 to a source of $2Mmmiitir the six months ended June 30, 20086, is pifyrihie result of higher earnings and
fluctuations in working capital. Operating cashwik are largely dependent on the timing of coleifrom customers and payments to
suppliers. Operating income for the information/gees business improved from $11 million for tive months ended June 30, 2005 to $21
million for the same period in 2006. In additiordexcline in cash used for accounts payable and othieent liabilities more than offset an
increase in accounts receivable in the first sixithe of 2006 compared to the same period in 2085 esulted in the additional cash being
provided by operating activities.

The Company incurred losses from continuing openatof $224 million and $390 million for the thraed six months ended June 30, 2006,
respectively. The Company used $13 million and ®1Bon of cash for operating activities less dapexpenditures in the first three and six
months of 2006, respectively. The Company expéetsthe communications business will consume caisthé remainder of 2006, however,
the amount of cash consumed is expected to dimiaigtiuding the timing effects of working capitaguirements and interest payments. In
2006, the Company expects its costs will contimuextceed revenue and it will continue to consunsé gaimarily due to interest payments
and capital expenditures. The Company expectasieljl OIBDA to improve in 2006 primarily as a reésflthe WilTel, Progress Telecom,
ICG Communications, TelCove and Looking Glass agitians and the growth in Core Communications ®wvrevenue. Interest payments
are expected to increase to approximately $550amilh 2006 based on debt levels at the time af fiing. Capital expenditures for 2006 i
expected to range from $360 million to $410 millexmd will consist of $100 million to $150 milliorf base capital expenditures (capital
required to keep the network operating efficiemtfyl product development), approximately $30 millidrcapital expenditures for the
integration of WilTel, $10 million associated withe expected integration of ICG CommunicationsCbe&ke and Looking Glass, and $20
million for a dark fiber based expansion in Euroféae majority of the Company’s ongoing capital exgitures is expected to be success-
based, which is tied to incremental revenue. otaltthe Company expects that cash required feraijmg activities, capital expenditures, i
discontinued operations will range from $195 millim $205 million, excluding fluctuations in workjrcapital. The Company does not have
any significant principal amounts due on its outdtag debt until 2010. The Company has debt oP&hdllion and $363 million that matur

in 2008 and 2009, respectively.

Level 3 has approximately $2.078 billion of casiistt equivalents and marketable securities on hahehe 30, 2006. In addition, $125
million of current and non-current restricted séoes are used to collateralize outstanding lettérsredit, long-term debt, certain operating
obligations of the Company or to fund certain reéion liabilities. Subsequent to June 30, 2006 Gbmpany used $470 million to redeem
certain tranches of 2008 debt and related accntedeist as well as $654 million to acquire TelCamd Looking Glass. Based on informat
available at this time, management of the Compantig\es that the Company’s current liquidity anti@pated future cash flows from
operations will be sufficient to fund its businessowever, if the Company has the opportunity,caeptable terms, to improve its liquidity,
refinance its debt, or fund acquisitions, the Conypmay elect to secure additional capital in tHerfe.

In March 2006, Level 3 issued $150 million of FiogtRate Senior Notes due in 2011 and $250 millibh2.25% Senior Notes due in 2013.
In April 2006, the Company issued an additionalG8&0llion of the 12.25% Senior Notes due in 201Be proceeds from these offerings
were used to fund the cash portion of the WilTal Bnogress Telecom acquisitions as well fund thst ebconstruction, installation,
acquisition, lease, development or improvementtioéioassets to be used in Level 3's communicatioisiness.
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In June 2006, Level 3 issued $335 million of 3.58m@rtible Senior Notes due 2012. The Company @sapleted the offering of 125

million shares of its common stock for which it eaed $543 million in net proceeds. Level 3 usgubdion of these proceeds to redeem
selected series of its debt securities maturir@Pid8. On July 13, 2006, Level 3 redeemed all©9il25% Senior Notes due 2008 and 10.5%
Senior Discount Notes due 2008 for total considemnadf $461 million, excluding accrued interesthelremaining proceeds will be used to
potentially repurchase, redeem or refinance otkistieg indebtedness from time to time, for acdidsis and for general corporate purposes
including working capital and capital expenditures.

Level 3 is aware that the various issuances afutstanding senior notes, senior discount notesandertible notes may trade at discounts to
their respective face or accreted amounts. In daleontinue to reduce future cash interest paysy@stwell as future amounts due at
maturity, Level 3 or its affiliates may, from tinbe time, enter into debt for debt, debt for equitycash transactions to purchase these
outstanding debt securities in the open marketmmugh privately negotiated transactions. LevelilBavaluate any such transactions in light
of then existing market conditions and the possdililgive effect to stockholders. The amounts imeadl in any such transaction, individually
or in the aggregate, may be material.

On January 13, 2006, the Company completed prastbange offers to exchange a portion of its onthiey 9.125% Senior Notes due 2008,
11% Senior Notes due 2008 and 10.5% Senior Disddates due 2008 (together the “2008 Notes”) thaeweld by eligible holders in a
private placement for cash and new 11.5% SenioedNdtie 2010. The Company issued $692 million aggesprincipal amount of 11.5%
Senior Notes as well as paid $46 million of cashsaderation in exchange for the 2008 Notes tenderéte transactions. The Company i
paid approximately $13 million in cash for totabaged interest on the 2008 Notes that had beermpstéor exchange to the closing date and
$5 million in transaction costs.

On June 27, 2006 the Company amended and restaiexisting $730 million senior secured creditligcto reduce the interest rate payable
under the agreement by 400 basis points, modifpthpayment provisions and make other specifiedgbs The Company paid
approximately $42 million to existing debt holdersd $11 million to third parties in transactiontsa® complete the transaction.

In addition to raising capital through the debt aqdity markets, the Company may sell or disposxiting businesses, investments or o
non-core assets. In 2005, the Company completedale of the ()Structure business to Infocrossing for approximys#85 million in cash
and Infocrossing common stock. The Company alfbSoftware Spectrum for approximately $353 milliarcash in September, 2006.

The communications industry continues to consadidatevel 3 has participated in this process withdcquisitions of WilTel, Progress
Telecom, ICG Communications, TelCove and Lookingss! Level 3 will continue to evaluate consoliglatpportunities and could make
additional acquisitions in 2006.

On December 23, 2005, the Company completed thaisitign of WilTel Communications Group, LLC froneucadia National Corporation
and its subsidiaries. The consideration paid ctetsisf approximately $363 million in cash (inclugii27 million of post-closing working
capital and other adjustments which reduced tte potrchase price), plus $100 million in cash ftect Leucadia’s having complied with its
obligation to retain that amount of cash with WilTand 115 million shares, with a fair value of epppmately $313 million, of Level 3
common stock. The Company also incurred costppfaximately $7 million related to the transaction.

On March 20, 2006, Level 3 completed the acquisitibProgress Telecom LLC. Under the terms of tire@ment, Level 3 issued
approximately 20 million shares, valued at appratity $66 million, and $69 million in cash. The Quamy also incurred approximately $1
million of costs attributable to the transactiorhe purchase price was reduced by $2 million inséeond quarter due to post-closing
adjustments based on actual working capital aseotlosing date.

On May 31, 2006, the Company completed the acquisif ICG Communications, Inc., a privately heldi@ado-based telecommunications
company. Under terms of the agreement, Level 3 foa&d consideration of $176 million, consistingagfproximately 26 million shares of
Level 3 common stock, valued at $131 million, add #illion in cash. The Company also incurred sadtapproximately $1 million related
to the transaction.

On July 24, 2006, Level 3 completed the acquisitibiielCove, Inc., a privately held Pennsylvanigdihtelecommunications company.

Under terms of the agreement, Level 3 paid $446aniln cash and issued approximately 150 millibargs of Level 3 common stock valt
at $637 million. In addition, Level 3 repaid $132lion of TelCove
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debt and acquired $13 million in capital leasethentransaction. Also, the Company paid thirdyedsts of approximately $15 million
related to the transaction, which included certaists incurred by TelCove.

After integration, TelCove’s metropolitan and ragabnetworks will connect Level 3's national backbaetwork directly to traffic
aggregation points. These aggregation points ircattler carriers’ points of presence, local telemomications companies’ central offices,
wireless providers’ switch centers, colocation dath centers, cable company head ends, and higlwitth enterprise locations. With the
acquisitions of TelCove, ICG Communications andgrees Telecom, Level 3 has an extensive metrosintreture in 36 markets, connecting
to approximately 900 traffic aggregation pointevel 3 believes that these facilities will provialeompetitive advantage. With the
acquisition of Progress Telecom, TelCove, ICG Comications and Looking Glass, the number of LevsltBaffic aggregation points
increased to approximately 5,100 in the U.S. ami@pmately 5,300 globally.

On August 2, 2006, Level 3 completed the acquisitibLooking Glass, a privately held lllinois-bagetecommunications company. The
Company paid consideration of approximately $9iomllin cash and approximately 21 million sharek@fel 3 common stock. In addition,
at the closing, Level 3 repaid approximately $6Wiom of Looking Glass liabilities.

Looking Glass provides data transport servicesugiog SONET/SDH, wavelength and Ethernet as wellaak fiber and carrier-neutral
collocation. Looking Glass’ network includes approately 2,000 route miles serving 14 major metrakats, with lit fiber connectivity to
approximately 215 buildings. Looking Glass also tiask fiber connectivity to approximately 250 adutial buildings.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
ltem 6. Exhibits
€)) Exhibits filed as part of this report are listeddve

12 Statements of Computation of Ratios
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Exhibit 12

STATEMENTS OF COMPUTATION OF RATIOS

STATEMENT REGARDING COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNING S TO FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

Loss from Continuing Operations Before Ta
(Earnings) Losses of Equity Investe

Interest on Debt, Net of Capitalized Inter
Amortization of Capitalized Intere

Interest Expense Portion of Rental Expense

Earnings (Losses) Available for Fixed Charges

Interest on Dek
Preferred Dividend
Interest Expense Portion of Rental Expense

Total Fixed Charges
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Deficiency

Six Months Ended Fiscal Year Ended

6/30/200€ 6/30/200% _ 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(279$ (702$ (477)$ (746)$ (991)$ (4,351
— — — G (13 1§
253 530 485 567 560 646
34 68 68 68 68 68
12 25 29 31 20 19

27$  (79$ 105$  (83)$ (356)$ (3,639

253% 530% 485% 567% 560% 703

12 25 29 31 20 19

265 555% 514% 598% 5808 722

$ (390)$
320
34
17
$ (193
$ 320%
17
$ 337%
$ (356)%

(239)$  (634)$  (409)$  (681)$  (936)$ (4,35€)

The computation for 2006 - 2002 have been restateeflect the results of Software Spectrum, whias sold in September 2006, as

discontinued operations.
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